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Page 2 of 3




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
A.B. 1, 18" Spec. Sess. Pt. 1 (Nev. 2002) Vol. 1
ADD 00440049
A.B. 1, 18" Spec. Sess. Pt. 2 (Nev. 2002) Vol. 2
ADD 02140378
A.B. 1, 18" Spec. Sess. Pt. 4 (Nev. 2002) Vol. 4
ADD 0655-0790
A.B. 1, 18% Spec. Sess. Pt. 5 (Nev. 2002) Vol. 1
ADD 00500213
A.B. 289, 76th Sess. (Nev. 2011) Vol. 2
ADD 0379-0410
Legislative Subcommittee to Study Medical Vol. 3

Malpractice, LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL BUREAU BULLETIN
No. 03-9 (Jan. 2003)

ADD 0617-0654

S.B. 130, 80th Sess. (Nev. 2019) Vol. 3
ADD 0417-0475
S.B. 292, 78th Sess. (Nev. 2015) Vol. 2
ADD 0411-0416
S.B. 292, Exhibit H proposed to Senate Committee on Vol. 3
Judiciary on Mar. 26, 2015, 78th Sess. (Nev. 2015) ADD 0476-0480
S.B. 292, Exhibit N proposed to Senate Committee on Vol. 3
Judiciary on May 26, 2015, 78th Sess. (Nev. 2015) ADD 04810482
S.B. 292, Minutes of Hearing of the Senate Committee Vol. 1
on Judiciary on Mar. 26, 2015, 78th Sess. (Nev. 2015) | ADD 0001-0043
S.B. 292, Minutes of Hearing of the Senate Committee Vol. 3
on Judiciary on May 26, 2015, 78th Sess. (Nev. 2015) | ADD 0483-0542
S.B. 80, 69th Sess. Combined Legislative History Vol. 3

(Nev. 1997)

ADD 0543-0616

Page 3 of 3




MINUTES OF THE
SENATE COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Seventy-Eighth Session
March 26, 2015

The Senate Committee on Judiciary was called to order by Chair Greg Brower at
1:05 p.m. on Thursday, March 26, 2015, in Room 2134 of the Legislative
Building, Carson City, Nevada. The meeting was videoconferenced to
Room 4412E of the Grant Sawyer State Office Building, 555 East Washington
Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada. Exhibit A is the Agenda. Exhibit B is the
Attendance Roster. All exhibits are available and on file in the Research Library
of the Legislative Counsel Bureau.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:

Senator Greg Brower, Chair
Senator Becky Harris, Vice Chair
Senator Michael Roberson
Senator Scott Hammond
Senator Ruben J. Kihuen
Senator Aaron D. Ford

COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT:

Senator Tick Segerblom (Excused)

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

Patrick Guinan, Policy Analyst
Nick Anthony, Counsel
Cassandra Grieve, Committee Secretary

OTHERS PRESENT:

Garrett Gordon, Community Associations Institute; Olympia Companies;
Southern Highlands Homeowners Association

Donna Zanetti, Community Associations Institute

Angela Rock, Southern Highlands Homeowners Association; Olympia Companies

Mark Leon, Mountain’s Edge Master Association

Marilyn Brainard, Wingfield Springs Community Association

Pamela Scott, The Howard Hughes Corporation
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Glen Proctor

Jon Sasser, Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada

Kathie Chism

Jonathan Friedrich, Nevada Homeowner Alliance

Barbara Holland, H&L Realty and Management Company

Keith Wand

Bruce Woodbury

J.D. Decker, Administrator, Real Estate Division, Department of Business and
Industry

Jennifer Gaynor, Nevada Credit Union League; Fundamental Administrative
Services, LLC

Marcus Conklin, Nevada Mortgage Lending Association

George Ross, Nevada Bankers Association

John Cotton, Keep Our Doctors In Nevada

Rudy Manthei, M.D., Keep Our Doctors In Nevada

Robert Rourke, Horizon Hospital and Rehabilitation Center

Darrin Cook, CEO, Horizon Specialty Hospitals

Margo Piscevich, Nevada Rural Hospital Partners Foundation

Kathleen Conaboy, Nevada Orthopaedic Society

Denise Selleck, Executive Director, Nevada Osteopathic Medical Association

Elizabeth MacMenamin, Retail Association of Nevada; Retail Chain Drug Council

Adam Plain, Nevada Dental Association

Stephen Osborne, Nevada Justice Association

Christian Morris, Nevada Justice Association

Lawrence Smith

John Echeverria, Nevada Justice Association

Chair Brower:
| will open the hearing of the Senate Committee on Judiciary with
Senate Bill (S.B.) 260.

SENATE BILL 260: Revises provisions governing common-interest communities.
(BDR 10-726)

Senator Becky Harris (Senatorial District No. 9):

During the economic collapse, long before | contemplated being a member of
the Nevada Senate, | saw the necessity for S.B. 260. As an attorney who
represents homeowners losing their homes to foreclosure, | know if
homeowners are not making mortgage payments, they are also not making their
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association payments. Delinquent association payments pose a problem for
banks with regard to superpriority liens and who can lay claim to the title of a
property or when foreclosure is appropriate. Senate Bill 260 provides a solution
to a larger problem of when associations are able to foreclose.

Generally, the association’s lien is not prior to a first security interest on a unit;
however, the association’s lien is prior to the first security interest on a unit to
the extent of certain maintenance and abatement charges and a certain amount
of assessments for common expenses. The portion of the association’s lien that
is prior to the first security interest on the unit is commonly referred to as the
superpriority lien.

Senate Bill 260 requires lenders to establish impound accounts for the payments
of common-interest community assessments. Since banks already impound for
taxes and insurance, they should also impound for association fees. If banks
establish impound accounts for association fees, they will have real-time
knowledge of their secured interest in those properties. Under S.B. 260, banks
will access their customers’ accounts to determine if mortgage payments
include association dues.

Including association dues with mortgage payments would be helpful for people
in various situations: people burdened with writing monthly dues checks, people
forgetting about their payments or people who may not want to bother with
their household obligations. Under S.B. 260, homeowners will make their
mortgage payments and have stability in dealing with the expenses of their
properties.

The Committee will hear opposition to this bill from lending institutions. The
banks will say putting association fees into impound accounts is something they
cannot do and that creating and managing such accounts will be expensive and
burdensome. To that argument, | say implementing S.B. 260 will not be any
more expensive than having a first mortgage wiped out because of a
superpriority lien by an association.

To the claim that S.B. 260 will be burdensome, | point out that banks were able
to get the necessary requirements in place to work with the State’s Foreclosure
Mediation Program. Additionally, since January 2015, WestStar Credit Union
voluntarily collects association fees as part of its mortgage payment plan.
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Creating an impound account for association fees makes common sense and is
good for the consumer and associations. Associations do not want to hire
collection companies to go after the homeowner for unpaid dues. Having
impound accounts is good for the banks because they will have first-hand,
real-time knowledge of their investments. Banks will be in control and be able to
make sure association fees are paid in a timely manner, thereby ensuring
associations cannot take their security away.

Senator Hammond:
| thank Senator Harris for bringing this consumer-friendly bill to the Committee.

Garrett Gordon (Community Associations Institute; Olympia Companies;

Southern Highlands Community Association):
We support S.B. 260 and appreciate Senator Harris putting forward a
commonsense solution to this problem. This is the fourth session | have worked
on common-interest community bills, and every session deals with the question
of whether there should be judicial or nonjudicial foreclosures. Every session,
we attempt to sort out answers to questions such as the cost of collections and
payment plans.

This Session alone has 25 common-interest community bills, many trying to do
a fix for the lending industry relating to superpriority liens and the recent
Nevada Supreme Court case, SFR Investments Pool 1 v. U.S. Bank, 130 Nev.
Adv. Op. 75, 334 P.3d 408 (2014). Even the Nevada Supreme Court attempted
a fix hearing that case, posing many of the same questions again: How should
the superpriority lien problem be addressed? Should more notice to lenders be
provided? Should the process be stretched out? If so, for how long?

Senate Bill 260 is a commonsense solution because an impound account
resolves all these problems. With an impound account, there would be no more
discussion about associations foreclosing, the cost of collection, how much the
costs should be and how long payment plans should continue. Associations
want only to be paid so the landscaper can be paid, the gate maintained, the
water bill paid, etc.

We understand that an impound account would not apply to a cash buyer, so a
provision is necessary to address that. We know impound accounts would not
apply retroactively and only be applicable going forward with respect to new
loans or the refinancing of loans.
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| spoke with Senator Harris about some citation tweaks, so an amendment is
needed. Senator Harris agreed to sponsor such an amendment if S.B. 260 goes
to work session.

Chair Brower:

If people are in the audience here on behalf of an association that supports this
bill, the Committee knows the association community supports this bill. In an
effort to save time, please keep your testimonies brief.

Donna Zanetti (Community Associations Institute):

The Nevada Legislative Action Committee of the Community Associations
Institute is comprised of people who work for management companies, law
firms and collection agencies. We support S.B. 260 even though it may reduce
the income we derive from assisting associations with collections. We support
the bill because it is good for the associations, which only want to be paid so
they can provide the services required of them.

Chair Brower:
As an association payer myself, | think homeowners want to pay their dues and
do not want to forget, which is part of the rationale behind S.B. 260.

Angela Rock (Southern Highlands Community Association; Olympia Companies):
| have testified alongside Mr. Gordon countless times over many sessions on the
multitude of problems affecting the ability of homeowners to pay their
assessments. | testified last week in front of the Assembly Committee on
Judiciary on issues regarding judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure and superpriority
liens. | was asked how | would solve the problem, and | mentioned S.B. 260.

Put simply, impound accounts solve problems. Providing impound accounts
solves the biggest problem of all—which is homeowners forgetting to pay their
dues. It also solves the problem of unjust enrichment. It seems unjust that a
home worth $800,000 forecloses for $5,000. While S.B. 260 forces an
infrastructure shift for the banks, in the end, the bill protects them.
Senator Harris outlined that expertly. We support this bill.

Mark Leon (Mountain’s Edge Master Association):
| support S.B. 260 and submit my testimony (Exhibit C).
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Marilyn Brainard (Wingfield Springs Community Association):

Impound accounts are the best way to solve the current situation. | hope the
banks and lending companies find a way to make S.B. 260 work. Impound
accounts will protect bank investments as well as the properties. | support
S.B. 260.

Pamela Scott (The Howard Hughes Corporation):

| support S.B. 260 because it solves many problems the banks are having with
foreclosed properties. The banks have made business decisions to slow down or
even stop many foreclosures. We have been tracking bank foreclosures in
Summerlin since 2010. In this time, foreclosures in Summerlin reached a high of
1,043 properties; there were 125 foreclosed properties last year. There are still
numerous liens filed against properties and many years’ worth of foreclosures
that have not even happened yet.

If an impound account is set up under S.B. 260 and the bank continues to pay
that property’s association fees while waiting out its foreclosure, it makes good
sense and is less expensive than losing equity on that property, paying
collection costs, etc.

Glen Proctor:

| have had my home in Mountain’s Edge since 2008 and my mortgage is with
JPMorgan Chase. The company has an escrow account for both my
Clark County Special Improvement District payment and my taxes, and | have
never received a notice of late or nonpayment. The escrow system works, and
S.B. 260 is a marvelous solution for every party involved.

The banks are going to say it will cost them money to implement S.B. 260, but
many property assessments are due quarterly, so the banks will earn interest on
the monthly payments. Banks already have a system in place to handle other
types of payments, so they will not have to create a new system to manage
association fees.

My association spent $375,000 in collection costs last year, not counting
foreclosure notices. That is money the association would not have had to spend
if impound accounts had been in place. My assessment might even go down if
my association does not have to spend that kind of money yearly.
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Jon Sasser (Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada):

We represent the third group in this process, the homeowners. We think
homeowners will benefit along with the banks and the associations.
Senate Bill 260 takes care of the problem of remembering to pay. Additionally,
only about 10 percent of nonjudicial foreclosures actually go to foreclosure sale.
The vast majority of foreclosures are taken care of by homeowners before
becoming final, but by that point, homeowners are paying hundreds, if not
thousands of dollars, in collection costs for overdue fees.

Senate Bill 260 will help homeowners avoid getting into arrears and help the
banks because those collection costs will have been avoided. This bill is a win
for all involved.

Kathie Chism:

I live in Yellowstone, a development within Mountain’s Edge, so | pay
two association fees. Both of my association fees increased this year, and |
believe the reason was the huge collection costs my association incurred trying
to collect dues owed by people who did not pay their assessments. | support
S.B. 260 because it will save me money as a homeowner. Associations will
save money on collection costs, and as a result, my assessment costs may
stabilize. | am a retired schoolteacher on a fixed income; | cannot afford for my
assessments to go up year after year.

Jonathan Friedrich (Nevada Homeowner Alliance):
| support S.B. 260. Does the bill consider those who do not have a mortgage?
Also, has there been input from the banking industry on this bill?

Chair Brower:
Your points are good. We will hear testimony from the banking industry today.

Barbara Holland (H&L Realty and Management Company):

| support S.B. 260. This Session, numerous bills in both the Assembly and the
Senate use the term “judicial foreclosure.” Judicial foreclosure —also discussed
last week in the Assembly Committee on Judiciary hearing on
Assembly Bill 240—would be disastrous to all associations. No association will
be able to afford the time and money to participate in judicial foreclosure.

ADD 0007



Senate Committee on Judiciary
March 26, 2015
Page 8

ASSEMBLY BILL 240: Revises provisions governing liens of a unit-owners’
association. (BDR 10-821)

In 2013, the Legislature passed S.B. No. 280 of the 77th Session, which
allowed lenders to impound association fees in the way lenders impound
property taxes and insurance expenses under Nevada Revised Statutes
(NRS) 116. Lenders could have taken advantage of that law to insulate
themselves from losing loans in their portfolios. Senate Bill 260 changes that
language, thereby forcing banks to create impound accounts. This bill solves so
many different problems, especially since too many bills this Session have the
word “judicial” in them.

It will be too costly for associations to pursue judicial foreclosure. It is already
costly for associations to wait for banks to finally foreclose on properties in
order to get the money owed. Associations are sitting on a large amount of
delinquencies, and homeowners who do pay their assessments are paying
increasing assessments solely because the associations do not have enough
money to do the basic operations required of them.

This is a good bill, but banks may pose an obstacle by claiming not to know
who manages a property. There are ways for banks to access the information
needed with regard to management companies. The Real Estate Division is a
resource banks can use to solve that issue. Property managers must report to
the Real Estate Division yearly on who has the first deed of trust on a property.
The Division must be notified every time a management company changes a
portfolio or a property is lost to foreclosure. It will be easier for banks to access
the necessary information through the Division than for property managers to
investigate the various lenders.

This fix to the law is long overdue and will take care of many problems
regarding late fees, collection costs, etc.

Keith Wand:

I am a homeowner in Henderson. | met with Senator Harris and
Senator Hammond in Carson City regarding S.B. 260. | have been a financial
planner in Las Vegas for 10 years and have many contacts in the banking
industry. These industry contacts have told me that when association fees are
impounded, they are included in the mortgage calculations made when a buyer
seeks to qualify for a mortgage.
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Because it is likely to be unpopular, Legislators and bankers will not say this,
but there are times when people should not buy homes. Association costs
should be included in a mortgage; if they were to be included, it may put that
house out of reach for a buyer—a reality that needs to be reviewed. | support
S.B. 260. We need to protect our communities. Not everyone may favor
associations, but they exist for a reason, and we need to fund them.

Bruce Woodbury:
| am an attorney in Boulder City who represents a few associations and other
interested individuals. | support S.B. 260.

J.D. Decker (Administrator, Real Estate Division, Department of Business and
Industry):

We protect the common-interest community marketplace as well as regulate it
and the broader real estate marketplace. It is important to the Real Estate
Division that homeowners pay associations in a timely manner. It is also
important that the lender protect its security interest in property. Any positive
impact this bill would have on the common-interest community marketplace
would extend to the broader real estate market.

Jennifer Gaynor (Nevada Credit Union League):
While we appreciate the intent of the bill, we oppose S.B. 260. | submit a
written statement outlining the reasons for our opposition (Exhibit D).

Our issues with the bill revolve around the legality and feasibility of
implementing S.B. 260. On top of the expected implementation expense, there
are technical concerns. One concern is residents within associations may have
difficulty disputing erroneous association charges paid via an escrow account.
Another concern is credit unions would be required to adjust the variability of
association payments out of escrow accounts to address nonregular association
payments, such as capital improvements.

There may also be conflict with the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act and
other federal regulations administered and enforced by the Consumer Financial
Protection Bureau. The Truth in Lending Act is also a federal regulation that
creates variability on when and how escrow accounts should be established.

Another potential issue with S.B. 260 is buyers who want control over paying
their property taxes, insurance and association dues. We like to allow buyers
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this flexibility, assuming they meet certain credit requirements. We want
S.B. 260 to have more flexibility and not be mandatory. We would like to work
with Senator Harris to accomplish that.

Chair Brower:
The details you highlighted seem to be something you can work on with the
bill’s sponsor.

Marcus Conklin (Nevada Mortgage Lending Association):

We are opposed to S.B. 260. We oppose the bill for three reasons, the
first reason is the complexity in implementing the bill, as testified by
Ms. Gaynor. Property taxes are collected into escrow, and one remit is made to
one county. Insurance is collected into escrow, and remits are made to a
handful of entities. Association dues will need to be remitted to hundreds, if not
thousands, of associations. The law also permits a group of homeowners living
in a same neighborhood to create its own association. Tracking association
payments will be incredibly complex, especially if current loan contracts need to
be included.

The second reason we oppose S.B. 260 is the cost associated with its
enactment. Instead of the normal one-time costs associated with creating a
loan—the closing costs—we will have to add an impound cost for multiple
months.

The bill may solve the problem of delinquent dues, but it does not address
penalties or extra association assessments done by an association. Even though
owners may be current in their dues structure, that does not ensure they are not
carrying penalties.

If you look at the impound structure, dues collections happen up front in the
transaction of the home. This lowers the amount that homeowners can actually
borrow for their homes. If you take that out, the money available to purchase a
home is a little bit lower. Doing this does not change the number of
transactions, but it does lower the amount of the transaction, which equates to
lower home values.

The third reason we oppose S.B. 260 is it does not look at the diversity of

situations. Currently, only homes with federally backed loans that are
80 percent/20 percent (80/20), or worse in terms of owner equity, are required
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to have escrow accounts. Not all loans are 80/20, and individual lenders or
portfolio lenders have differing standards. This bill promotes wrapping all loans,
regardless of the amount, into an escrow account even though there is the
option not to do this. | am not sure we want to take that away.

Cash buyers are not addressed in the bill, even though they can equally be
delinquent in their dues. With S.B. 260, only those with impound accounts will
be paying their dues for certain.

George Ross (Nevada Bankers Association):

We oppose S.B. 260. This is going to be a logistical nightmare for banks.
Databases already exist to handle the impound accounts for taxes. No database
matches loans with associations; one would have to be created. Banks also use
vendors for tax remittances; no vendors exist for associations.

A big accounting system—a tracking system—would have to be established for
associations. Setting up such a system would take time and money. This cost
will show up in the expenses people pay for their mortgages, perhaps as larger
escrow fees or closing costs. It may not show up in the interest rate, but it will
definitely show up in cost to the consumer or homeowner.

If this bill applies to existing loans, that is an even larger problem.

Senator Ford:
Implementing S.B. 260 will be a difficult task, but banks are doing a similar task
already. The banking industry knows how to set up a process like this.

Implementing the bill may also be expensive. Associations are going to have to
communicate with the banks. The bill is a decent idea sufficient for our
consideration. | hope you will figure out a way to assist Senator Harris by
offering amendments. Senate Bill 260 represents a decent opportunity to cut
down on unnecessary litigation.

Senator Harris:

| have listened to the points made by those opposed to the bill. Hearing
testimony will help us fashion a better piece of legislation that will truly address
this problem.
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| want to clarify that some lenders in Nevada already do this task, so a model
exists. There is a way to comply with S.B. 260, and | have been told the model
has been successful. It has been proven that putting association fees in
impound accounts can happen and can work.

| do not think we will find a perfect solution to this issue of delinquent
association fees, but S.B. 260 will go a long way in addressing it. How often do
collection companies, associations and legal aid come together to say a bill is a
great idea? That unity should underscore how we need to move forward to pass
this bill.

Chair Brower:
We will now close the hearing on S.B. 260 and open the hearing on S.B. 292.

SENATE BILL 292: Revises provisions relating to certain civil actions involving
negligence. (BDR 3-954)

Senator Michael Roberson (Senatorial District No. 20):
Senate Bill 292 revises chapter 41A of Nevada Revised Statutes concerning
medical malpractice and awards of noneconomic damages.

Keep Our Doctors In Nevada (KODIN) submitted a proposed amendment that
addresses a typographical error in the bill (Exhibit E). | support this amendment
and will elaborate on it later in my testimony.

Sections 1, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 10 of the bill delete the words “medical malpractice”
and “dental malpractice” from statute and replace that language with the term
“professional negligence” in order to broaden the chapter’s applicability beyond
these two narrow terms.

Section 2 revises the definition of “provider of health care” to include physician
assistant, practitioner of respiratory care, occupational therapist, licensed
marriage and family therapist, licensed clinical professional counselor, music
therapist, athletic trainer, perfusionist, pharmacist and any clinic, surgery center
or other entity that employs any such person.

The proposed amendment modifies that list, which will be addressed later.
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Section 3 provides that the total noneconomic damages that can be awarded to
the injured plaintiff in a civil action brought against a provider of health care
claiming injury or death upon professional negligence is $350,000, regardless of
the number of plaintiffs, defendants or theories upon which liability may be
based.

Section 4 sets forth the means by which a court or other trier of fact must
determine the percentage of liability to be assigned to all persons against whom
the action is being pursued. This section also establishes the procedure by
which the responsibility of a nonparty to the action may be determined in order
to accurately determine the fault of named parties—and this is the key —without
subjecting the nonparty to any liability.

The typographical error | spoke of earlier is in section 4, subsection 2,
paragraph (c). The language in the original bill says “May be introduced as
evidence of liability in any action.” That statement should say, “May not be
introduced as evidence of liability in any other action.” The proposed
amendment, Exhibit E, addresses this error.

Section 4, subsection 3 provides that, in order to establish the percentage of
liability of any party or nonparty, a defendant may submit an affidavit, expert
report or expert testimony pursuant to the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure
(NRCP).

Section 6 adds two items to the list of elements, the absence of which will
require a district court to dismiss without prejudice an action for professional
negligence. These items state that the support affidavit must: one, identify by
name, or describe by conduct, each alleged provider of health care; and two,
comply with any written report required under Rule 16.1 of the NRCP.

Section 9 provides that the rebuttable presumption of professional negligence
described in section 9, subsection 3 does not apply in an action where the
plaintiff submits an affidavit or otherwise provides for an expert witness or
expert testimony to establish the claim of negligence.

John Cotton and Dr. Rudy Manthei of KODIN will further testify on S.B. 292.
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Chair Brower:

The bill provides that the $350,000 cap for noneconomic damages is a per
action cap. This was implemented via Question No. 3 of the Statewide Ballot
Questions of 2004. Why is there a need for this new language?

John Cotton (Keep Our Doctors In Nevada):

There are judges who are choosing not to read the language in Question No. 3
as written. These judges interpret the language to read that there can be
multiple defendants and multiple plaintiffs with actions for $350,000 each, even
though the group is in one action for negligence.

Some cases filed have upwards of seven or eight plaintiffs and multiple doctors
involved. The language in Question No. 3 used “an action.” Senate Bill 292 is
an effort to clarify that there is only one $350,000 cap. Senate Bill 292 will
eliminate wasted legal fees and motion practice spent trying to enforce this
statute. If some judges feel that Question No. 3 needs clarification, S.B. 292
provides that clarity.

Chair Brower:

| am looking at the official explanation that accompanied Question No. 3. The
official explanation states, “if passed, would remove the two statutory
exceptions to the existing $350,000 cap, and limit the recovery of noneconomic
damages to $350,000 per action.” | find that direction clear, but it sounds like it
is not being interpreted that clearly by some courts.

Mr. Cotton:
Yes. For a minor technical matter, this confusion is wasting time, money and
effort fighting something that should not be fought.

Rudy Manthei, M.D. (Keep Our Doctors In Nevada):
| am chairman of Keep Our Doctors In Nevada. | submit my testimony in support
of S.B. 292 (Exhibit F).

| submit a document from Nevada Mutual Insurance Company showing that
since Question No. 3 passed in 2004, premiums have dropped from
100 percent to 51.2 percent (Exhibit G). There has been a 50 percent drop in
malpractice premiums in the last 10 years.
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Very simply stated, we are in a good place. KODIN did what it set out to do.
We need to continue to work to stay there.

Chair Brower:
Mr. Cotton, we have heard that we are in a good place, but yet we have a bill in
front of us. Please explain to the Committee why S.B. 292 is important.

Mr. Cotton:

Senate Bill 292 clarifies technical errors that have periodically arisen from the
courts’ misinterpretation of Question No. 3. | was asked by KODIN to devise
changes lessening the instances of litigation, as well as reiterate the
Legislature’s intent from the 18th Special Session in 2002 and the Statewide
Ballot in 2004. Hundreds of thousands of dollars are spent on unnecessary
motions that do need to be filed; S.B. 292 will address this.

When doctors talk about the expense of lawsuits, they are talking about the
costs they incur to get to the point of dismissal. We are hopeful S.B. 292 will
cut down on that expense.

Section 2 of S.B. 292 defines the term “provider of health care.” As
Senator Roberson testified, the proposed amendment, Exhibit E, removes many
of the names that were added to the bill.

The proposed amendment was necessary because NRS 630A already has a
number of different types of caregivers included. It was not our intent to add
additional providers of health care into the bill. Our goal with S.B. 292 was to
reiterate and clarify KODIN’s intent with Question No. 3 from 2004.

Having said that, we did add clinics, surgery centers or other entities that
employ any such person because lawyers are filing actions not only against
doctors but also against the clinics for which those doctors work or in which
those doctors operate.

Some judges are taking the position that clinics are not subject to the
$350,000 cap. These judges allow lawyers to go for an amount of money
beyond the cap if only the clinic is sued and not the doctor. We took a strong
position on that opinion and, in most of the cases, it was upheld that a plaintiff
cannot get a liability level higher than the cap from a clinic that is responsible
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for a doctor’s conduct than it could get against a doctor. Senate Bill 292 wiill
clarify this opinion and take that issue off the table.

The bill will serve the expressed intent of holding the doctor and whatever
entity he or she works for to the $350,000 cap. We do not want any more
rogue rulings that impact the ability to enforce the cap.

Section 4 of S.B. 292 addresses several liability. | have a case in front of the
Nevada Supreme Court right now on this issue, Piroozi v. Dist. Ct., No. 64946
(Nev. filed Feb. 5, 2014).

In the 18th Special Session in 2002 and again in the Statewide Ballot in 2004,
the Legislature decided medical malpractice actions would only be
several liability. In other words, each defendant in a case would be responsible
only for the percentage of negligence allocated by a jury.

The issue with this decision is exemplified here: there are two defendants in a
case. The jury holds Doctor A 90 percent responsible and Doctor B 10 percent
responsible. If the plaintiff were to settle with Doctor A but fail to submit any
evidence specific to Doctor A’s misconduct, we believe that is a fraud on the
jury. Under statute, the jury is not told all the facts of what caused the
plaintiff’s injury, and so it may overly act in a negative fashion against Doctor B,
who, at 10 percent, may have merely committed wrongful conduct.

Statute indicates several liability. When Question No. 3 was codified, no
mechanism was put in place to address several liability. Senate Bill 292 puts in
a mechanism that allows the conduct of all responsible parties to be displayed in
front of a jury. This change in statute will allow a jury to rule on 100 percent of
the facts, not on a portion of the facts.

The changes in section 5 are technical in nature, removing language about when
cases have to be filed and when cases have to go to trial. Changing the wording
with regard to timing of cases clarifies legislative intent. Essentially, absent
something out of the ordinary with the judge or a motion, a case has to be tried
within 2 years with the intent of getting cases brought to trial even sooner, if
possible.

The changes in section 6 are also technical in nature, addressing the use of
“professional negligence” over “medical malpractice” or “dental malpractice.”
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When Question No. 3 was voted on in 2004, the term “professional negligence”
was added when the term “medical malpractice” already existed in the wording.
Ever since that vote, there has been confusion between the two definitions and
how the cap applies. One judge ruled the cap did not apply to professional
negligence and that affidavits did not need to be filed, etc. This judge ruled
these requirements were only necessary for medical malpractice. A lot of
nondoctor defendants covered under this bill are not being pulled into the cap.
Senate Bill 292 attempts to correct that ambiguity. The Nevada Supreme Court
actually affirmed confusion about the language between professional negligence
and medical malpractice. Senate Bill 292 would clarify the language.

Sections 7 and 8 also exchange the term “professional negligence” for “medical
malpractice.”

Section 9 addresses what is called a concept of res ipsa loquitur, which means,
“the thing speaks for itself,” or in common law, taking the position that when
negligence is self-evident, a jury does not need the assistance of an expert. An
example of res ipsa loquitur would be a doctor cutting off a patient’s left leg
when he should have cut off the right leg.

If res ipsa loquitur is present, plaintiffs are allowed to go to the jury without
having to incur the expense of hiring experts. In a res ipsa loquitur situation, the
jury is instructed that if one element is proven, the plaintiff is allowed a
rebuttable presumption that there was a negligent breach of the standard of
care. The jury would not necessarily have to rule against the defendant, but the
plaintiff would not need the expert under those circumstances.

Unfortunately, in a myriad of cases, the presumption of negligence is alleged.
The plaintiff provides affidavits from experts regarding the presumed negligent
act. The matter goes to trial and the plaintiff calls an expert witness. The jury is
given both the negligence instruction and the presumption of negligence
instruction. This is double-dipping in a tried lawsuit.

We want to clarify the language and have the law comport with law around the
Country. Common law holds that if the plaintiff is claiming a presumption of
negligence —a standard of care violation—the jury is so instructed to adhere to
the statute. If a plaintiff brings in an expert to testify, then the jury does not get
the presumed negligence instruction. To bring an expert in to testify when the
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plaintiff is claiming the action itself speaks to negligence flies in the face of the
law.

This situation is a misstatement of what has been the law for years—even going
back to England. Senate Bill 292 clarifies that if plaintiffs want to bring in an
expert to testify, they get the negligence instruction and then go to the jury. To
have those two elements, an expert and affidavits, is a double-dip on the
standard of care issue; this is harmful to doctors.

Senator Ford:

| have already expressed to the witnesses and Senator Roberson my issues with
caps. | do not like the notion of capping the division of grief. If a father and a
mother lose a son, they do not have to split their grief between themselves and
get half of $350,000 each.

| was here in 2003 and 2004 when we discussed this issue, but | left before
the vote came. | cannot fathom that we thought back then that the term
“action” did not mean legal action.

| have a hard time determining why we would want to require grief splitting in a
situation when the word “action” is to indicate legal action. | reviewed
Question No. 3, and | understand “action” to be a legal action—versus an event
of malpractice. | wonder what kind of conversation was going on during that
time period.

This ambiguity has existed since 2004, yet over the course of the last 14 years,
premiums have dropped 50 percent. | do not understand the need to clarify that
$350,000 must be per action, per event, when the word “action” means a legal
action.

Dr. Manthei:

Based on how the initiative was drafted, the interpretation has always been per
event. | am a doctor, not an attorney, so | did not participate in drafting it, but |
was part of the group. There has been no misunderstanding that it has been
anything more or less than that—an event. Question No. 3 was based on a
California law that was at least 10 years old before our law took effect—and
that California law is per event.
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If you get away from “per event,” you get away from any kind of predictability.
If there is one part of Question No. 3 that is mainly responsible for the
controlling and reduction of liability premiums, it is the ability to be predictable
about that one issue —per event.

| agree there is no fair way to legislate for these issues. No amount of money
will make somebody whole after an event, but the reality is Nevada has health
care issues. The State has a responsibility to provide health care to all its
citizens.

The State already has limits on damages, which have affected even me. | was
rear-ended by a school bus. Is it fair that | lost my ability to practice medicine
because of that event and the only recourse was $50,000 from the State? No,
it was not fair, but the reality is government services such as health care and
education have to be provided to all, and sometimes that is not fair to the few.

Senator Ford:

You are making part of my point that there should not be arbitrary caps placed
on damages. Cannot the same jury who determines whether a criminal lives or
dies in a criminal case be able to determine how much damage a victim has
incurred when rear-ended by a school bus?

You are telling me that “action” means “event.” | do not see how “action” and
“event” are equivalent, especially when *“action” is used in the statute and
“action” is used in Question No. 3.

You testified that over the last 14 years, premiums have dropped. How many
court cases have interpreted “action” to mean legal action versus “action” as an
“event?”

Mr. Cotton:

The majority of judges rule that there is an action against somebody for injuries
caused. Let me illustrate the problem we are running into: there is one family
with seven children. The family files one action for the group’s injuries; it should
be viewed by the court as one action, not seven actions; however, not all
judges adhere to this view.

The sad part is this: if Nevada does not have any doctors, the State has a major
problem. If an unquantifiable number of cases can be brought to court,
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premiums cannot be actuarially set. If premiums cannot be actuarially set, they
will not continue to drop. If premiums do not continue to drop, the State will
not be able to attract doctors. Doctors will not come to Nevada because
insurance will not be affordable.

Senator Ford:

As | said earlier, there has to be a better way. | have a lawsuit consortium
action, so does my wife, her brother and her brother’s wife. Is it correct that
those constitute four different actions?

Mr. Cotton:

Those four actions are different rights of recovery or theories of recovery. They
are not an action in themselves and that is the problem with these cases. You
can have multiple people who can have theories of recovery, but the bottom line
is that you still only have one action that you can file. Then you move forward
under that one action.

Senator Ford:
Do | have to file them all together? Can | file my own?

Mr. Cotton:
They would be consolidated in an action for negligence and the event that took
place.

Senator Ford:
Unless one case ends and | come in later.

Mr. Cotton:

No, you still have the same event and the same action even if you chose to file
2 months after someone else. They are consolidated because the seminal facts
are the same: it is the same incident. In medical malpractice, it is whether the
doctor’s conduct caused somebody to die, lose his or her leg, etc. This issue
has been debated all over the Country.

Is this situation fair? This sounds terrible, but for those fighting a specific
lawsuit, the issue here today is not about fairness for them. It is about fairness
for the entirety of Nevada and that there be fair, reasonably priced access to
medical care. That has to trump personal fairness. | do not like that situation,
but that is the reality.
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From 2002 to 2004, a number of my clients left Nevada—and even before that,
they were leaving. Doctors will continue to leave if their premiums climb back
up again. If the 50 percent reduction goes back up again, the State will lose
more doctors and not be able to attract new ones. At the same time, Nevada is
trying to establish a medical school specifically to keep doctors in the State. All
these elements are in play with this situation, so when we talk about fairness,
we cannot isolate the one aspect of personal fairness.

The Legislature has to decide how to balance these elements. The balance has
worked since 2004. We lowered premiums and we are attracting more doctors
to the State. The only way we will continue to attract doctors is if we have
quantifiable amounts of damage—not acting out of emotion—within a range of
fairness. A range of fairness is all that should be promised.

Chair Brower:
| call upon others to testify in support of S.B. 292.

Jennifer Gaynor (Fundamental Administrative Services, LLC):

We support S.B. 292 because it creates clarity and avoids unnecessary and
expensive litigation. We have submitted a proposed amendment to add further
clarity to the bill by enhancing the language of section 2 to ensure that skilled
nursing facilities, as defined in NRS 449.0151, are included in the entities listed
in S.B. 292 (Exhibit H).

Our proposed amendment would also make clear that a plaintiff cannot
circumvent the limitations of NRS 41A by bringing in an additional claim under
NRS 41.1395. Physicians may not encounter this situation very often, but
Nevada’s skilled nursing facilities do. Skilled nursing facilities spend money on
needless litigation defending themselves over this confusion.

Nevada’s skilled nursing facilities have not had a rate increase in almost
20 years and, in fact, have had their rates cut. Most skilled nursing facilities
operate at a 1.5 percent margin, which is very tight. Hundreds of thousands of
dollars are spent on lawsuits litigating these technicalities, and it is draining for
these businesses.

Chair Brower:
We will consider your proposed amendment.
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Robert Rourke (Horizon Hospital and Rehabilitation Center):

| represent many skilled nursing facilities in the Las Vegas area and litigate quite
often with Mr. Cotton. His explanation as to why we need to rectify and clarify
some of the issues in this statute was spot on. | echo Mr. Cotton’s testimony
with regard to the cost to the clinic being potentially higher than the cost to the
doctors that the clinics employ. What is happening to clinics is also happening
to skilled nursing facilities.

While nurses and therapists are covered under statute, almost every single
lawsuit we encounter makes the claim that skilled nursing facilities are not
covered by NRS 41A. With a few exceptions, these cases are dismissed, but
not before the facility incurs an exorbitant cost. As was testified by
Ms. Gaynor, the margins, the costs and the availability of insurance for these
types of facilities makes staying in business tough. These issues are magnified
when money has to be allocated to defend a case that will most likely be
dismissed.

While we welcome the elimination of the confusion surrounding medical
malpractice and professional negligence claims, our priority is that the definition
of provider of health care include skilled nursing facilities. Naming skilled nursing
facilities in the definition will ensure we will not have to litigate every single
case with the same issues at a huge cost.

When | say at a huge cost, | am not only referring to my clients’ costs but costs
to the system. Judges have crowded dockets already and are hearing these
types of motions and arguments repetitively. The associated costs are
attributable not only to filing a motion but doing the discovery in advance to
prepare the fact pattern for that motion. Adding skilled nursing facilities to
S.B. 292 is important and will be consistent with Question No. 3.

The second change in our proposed amendment, Exhibit H, relates to
NRS 41.1395. Not all doctors have experienced this issue yet; but some are

seeing it more recently ...

Chair Brower:
Please remind the Committee what NRS 41.1395b states.
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Mr. Rourke:

The elder abuse statute, or NRS 41.1395, provides an avenue for damages for
injury or loss suffered by an older or vulnerable person from abuse, neglect or
exploitation. In both skilled nursing facilities and hospitals, we see plaintiffs post
tort reform. Plaintiffs file lawsuits containing causes of action for NRS 41.1395
as a way to get around the caps of NRS 41A. These lawsuits focus on the
neglect portion of NRS 41.1395, which states,

“Neglect” means the failure of a person who has assumed legal
responsibility or a contractual obligation for caring for an older
person or a vulnerable person, or who has voluntarily assumed
responsibility for such a person’s care, to provide food, shelter,
clothing or services within the scope of the person’s responsibility
or obligation, which are necessary to maintain the physical or
mental health of the older person or vulnerable person. For the
purposes of this paragraph, a person voluntarily assumes
responsibility to provide care for an older or vulnerable person only
to the extent that the person has expressly acknowledged the
person’s responsibility to provide such care.

The key language in this paragraph is “which are necessary to maintain the
physical or mental health of the older or vulnerable person.”

Plaintiffs are blending negligence under NRS 41A —professional
negligence —with neglect under NRS 41.1395. It is extraordinarily expensive to
defend this cause of action.

In the end, most judges accept that NRS 41A and NRS 41.1395 cannot be read
in harmony while giving meaning to the caps in 41A and still providing for
double damages, attorney’s fees, unlimited damages and costs under essentially
the same fact pattern with one motion proceeding under neglect and one motion
proceeding under negligence. To address this issue in statute, we propose
language be added to NRS 41.1395 stating that when an action is due to
professional negligence, it will be governed by NRS 41A, and if that occurs,
then NRS 41.1395 is no longer an available remedy.

We ask that if the definition of provider of health care is expanded to include

skilled nursing facilities, changes be made throughout the NRS to maintain
consistency. That is, if changes to the definition of provider of health care are
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made to NRS 41A, then the same changes must be made to NRS 629.031 and
NRS 42.021. Making changes to the language across the NRS will preclude us
from having to face arguments like we have been in which the provider of
health care is defined under NRS 41A one way and then defined under NRS 629
another way.

Darrin Cook (CEO, Horizon Specialty Hospitals):
| support S.B. 292 and the proposed amendment, Exhibit H. | submitted my
written testimony for the record (Exhibit I).

Margo Piscevich (Nevada Rural Hospital Partners Foundation):

| have practiced law 43 years with 25 to 30 of those years practicing
professional malpractice. This means | have worked continually with lawyers,
doctors and hospitals.

| support S.B. 292 and concur with the proposed amendment, Exhibit E. | agree
that caps on damages is a public policy issue. Question No. 3 worked fine for
the first few years it was implemented and then some judges decided to
interpret it to be a cap per person, not per action—about 25 percent of judges
do this.

| agree with the addition of section 4, subsection 2, paragraph (c) to the law.

Regarding the definition of professional malpractice, the term includes numerous
entities from lawyers to engineers to licensed professionals. My preference
would be to use professional malpractice and maybe include medical malpractice
or dental malpractice. Professional malpractice applies to all licensed
practitioners whether you are an architect or an engineer.

Regarding the bill’s statement of bringing a trial within 2 years, | have never
seen this happen. Generally, parties stipulate that the case can be brought later
because the parties will receive preferential settings. We also have to contend
with a conflict between the way Clark County and Washoe County, the State’s
two largest counties, set trials. Washoe County gives a firm setting of
18 months out, 24 months out, 30 months out, etc. Clark County has a
calendar call and the case may go on that first calendar call, but it is not certain.
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In my experience, it takes at least 3 years to get cases to trial because of
various conflicting situations, including the fixed setting date used in
Washoe County and the stacked calendar used in Clark County.

Regarding section 6, | agree on the necessity that an affidavit identify the
physicians or nurses, etc., or that it at least identify the practitioners’ actions.
For the past 5 years, complaints have been coming in that say, “The conduct in
this hospitalization was below the standard of care.” The affidavit will say the
testifier is an expert witness who agrees with the allegations of the complaint.
That is literally the allegation of the affidavit. We do not know the identity of
the person or that person’s alleged misconduct.

| have one case where seven nurses from two different shifts are named. |
understand the plaintiffs may not know the contents of what is going to be
said, but it can definitely be said what misconduct was done: a misdiagnosis, a
wrong injection, the wrong amount—the plaintiff can at least state the nature of
the misconduct. It is costly to defend these cases.

Regarding the res ipsa loquitur, yes, there are simple solutions for when the
wrong leg is amputated. It is a given, and an expert witness is not needed for
determination; however, an expert witness is needed on causation. There can
be many different issues in a medical setting that are bad, but those issues may
not have caused anything.

If there is going to be expert testimony, then res ipsa loquitur is sort of “inside
baseball.” If res ipsa loquitur is used and there is causation, then it is important
not to give both jury instructions because it becomes confusing.

Kathleen Conaboy (Nevada Orthopaedic Society):

We support S.B. 292 and KODIN’s proposed amendment, Exhibit E. | want to
address Senator Ford’s concerns about fairness. We see this as a policy tension
between a physician providing good care and a physician being available to
provide good care. Clarity and predictability in the law is crucial so doctors can
run effective business models.

Senator Ford:

| appreciate your perspective, but the patient needs to be in that calculus as
well. My concern is that with the $350,000 cap, we are being asked to decide
that grief be divided among those who have been aggrieved by a physician’s
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malpractice. That important policy consideration weighs heavily on me. My vote
is not needed to pass this S.B. 292, but if you want me to vote for this bill, we
need to have a conversation about finding an alternative.

Ms. Conaboy:
The physicians we represent do see the patient as paramount, and that is why
there is tension for them. Doctors need predictability.

Denise Selleck (Executive Director, Nevada Osteopathic Medical Association):
| support S.B. 292. The Nevada State Medical Association asked me to relay its
support for the bill as well as support for the proposed amendment, Exhibit E.

Elizabeth MacMenamin (Retail Association of Nevada; Retail Chain Drug Council)
We support S.B. 292. | am opposed to the proposed amendment, Exhibit E. We
were excited to see pharmacists included in the original bill, but the proposed
amendment strikes pharmacists from the list of providers. | would like the
Committee to consider including pharmacists and will speak with the bill’s
sponsor.

Adam Plain (Nevada Dental Association):
We support S.B. 292.

Stephen Osborne (Nevada Justice Association):

It was testified that Nevada is in a good place and that rates have stabilized.
Senate Bill 292 attempts to expand the scope of the $350,000 cap on
damages. This further expansion violates the Seventh Amendment of the
U.S. Constitution, which is a right to trial by jury. In fact, the Nevada
Constitution provides that the right to jury trial be secured to all and remain
inviolate forever.

This bill does not fairly compensate victims and limits the meritorious
cases—not the frivolous cases, but the cases that have merit and value. It does
not limit the health costs for consumers and does not ensure quality of care.

In 2002, it was agreed and voted upon that $350,000 would be for each
plaintiff and each defendant. A bill presented in 2003 did not pass, so by law, it
went to the voters. In that initiative, Question No. 3 was presented, but not
fairly. In Jones v. Heller, No. 43940 (Nev. Sep. 18, 2004) (order granting in
part petition for writ of mandamus), seven Nevada Supreme Court Justices held
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that the initiative removed two statutory exceptions to the cap: one, gross
negligence, and two, exceptional circumstances. Despite this issue, the intent of
Question No. 3 is still per plaintiff, per defendant.

The Nevada Supreme Court ruled that the condensation and explanation of
Question No. 3 misinformed the voters—that it was deficient and could not
stand. Despite that ruling, the explanation remained and was distributed to
voters. Nevada Revised Statute 41A.035 clearly states the singular: “a”
provider of health care based upon professional negligence and “the” injured
plaintiff. Singular. In fact, the term “professional negligence” is defined in

NRS 41A.015 as “a” negligent act or omission to act. Again, singular.

The term “action” was testified to be clear, but seven Nevada Supreme Court
Justices did not interpret it that way. Seven Supreme Court Justices ordered
those two statutory exemptions to the cap to be removed.

Chair Brower:
What is the year of the case you are citing?

Mr. Osborne:
September 18, 2004.

Chair Brower:
Is that the unpublished Jones v. Heller decision?

Mr. Osborne:
| do not know.

Chair Brower:

Legislative Counsel informs me it was an unpublished order. In the time since
that Nevada Supreme Court order, have a majority of district court judges
decided the other way?

Mr. Osborne:
Some judges have ruled that way, many judges have not.

Chair Brower:
Do you know how many judges have ruled one way or the other?
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Mr. Osborne:
| do not. | do not know if those statistics are even available.

Senate Bill 292 extends the law. Yes, there are problems with the statute and
Mr. Cotton went over those issues. | will address a few of those issues in my
testimony.

Even though Nevada is in a good place and is stable with regard to doctors
working in the State, S.B. 292 expands the cap to additional parties. | did not
hear testimony today about the new language stating awarded damages must
not exceed $350,000 regardless of the number of theories upon which liability
may be based —not merely those issues related to professional malpractice.

For instance, in Las Vegas, Dr. Dipak Desai was convicted of murdering his
patient. There is a $350,000 cap for murdering his patient because the verdict
was based upon his treatment of the patient.

Chair Brower:
To be clear, the murder case is a criminal case. A wrongful death case would
have a $350,000 cap.

Mr. Osborne:
Yes, but Dr. Desai was convicted of murdering his patient, so that would be
considered part of the theory of the wrongful death.

Chair Brower:
Correct. And damages would be capped at $350,000.

Mr. Osborne:

Correct. The statute also shifts the costs of the malpractice from the negligent
parties to the victim and then to the State. If there is no recovery and the victim
becomes a ward of the State, that puts a burden on Nevada’s Medicaid system.

Section 6 ...
Chair Brower:
Please clarify for the Committee if we are talking about noneconomic damages

versus economic damages. A victim of medical malpractice—a plaintiff—can
recover all economic damages, all past and future medical bills, all past and
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future income loss; everything needed to make that plaintiff whole in terms of
monetary loss. Is it correct to say the sky is the limit?

Mr. Osborne:
No, that is not necessarily correct.

Chair Brower:
Would a cap apply to economic damages under the statute?

Mr. Osborne:
That is taken on a case-by-case basis. Future medical expenses are not subject
to the cap.

Chair Brower:
Is only pain and suffering subject to the cap?

Mr. Osborne:
It is not only pain and suffering. It is disability, disfigurement, loss of limbs; it is
everything that the patient has experienced.

Chair Brower:
Everything that is unquantifiable.

Mr. Osborne:

No, not necessarily unquantifiable because the damage has to be quantified at
some point. It has to have a price tag attached to it, for example, a medical bill.
These are called special damages. The cap, as proposed, is arbitrary and one
size fits all. No matter how many plaintiffs or how many defendants there are,
the cap sits at $350,000.

Section 4 provides the trier of fact can consider any person who could have
contributed to the negligence. | would like to emphasize the words
“could have.” There is no requirement of disclosure of this mystery person, but
“any person” that is chosen “could have” it required. There has to be some level
of proof or disclosure.

We spoke with Mr. Cotton about these issues and he has agreed to work on the

language with us. The bill's language, as is, will further reduce the cap as well
as other damages. For example, if it is found that a radiology technician
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“could have” contributed to the negligence and is included in the verdict form,
that will operate to further reduce the total amount. If this radiology technician
is 50 percent responsible, the way S.B. 292 is written, the cap is then reduced
50 percent, which is not fair without any kind of proof or disclosure.

The bill allows for a person to be brought into a case to lower damages, but
then a plaintiff cannot bring that person in for any other action. | am not sure of
the purpose for doing that. You have responsibility, but then you say it cannot
be used in any further way once it has been determined.

Section 6 amends NRS 41A.071, which is a preliminary procedural requirement.
This is the affidavit of merit. At the beginning of a case, many key facts are
unknown, especially when only a partial set of medical records is provided.
Hospitals will not include an incident report or a current report; those reports are
held back until after a case is filed.

For example, a patient is dropped while being moved from the gurney to the
operating table. The patient’s operation was for a deviated septum, but
following the drop, he has a herniated disc. At this point, as the plaintiff’'s
attorney, you do not know key information such as who was involved in the
transfer or who actually dropped the patient. You have to go forward without
knowing elements of that nature.

Section 6, subsection 4 of S.B. 292 discusses complying with Nevada Rules of
Civil Procedure 16.1 at the initial pleading stage. Rule 16.1 of NRCP is the
expert report requirement that is to be completed after the discovery process.
The language of the bill requires the plaintiff to comply with this rule at the
initial stage of proceedings, but that is simply not possible.

In section 9, the bill’'s sponsors want to add the language “provider of health
care caused the” personal injury or death. The key word is “caused,” which
takes the rebuttable presumption, or the res ispa loquitur, out of play. In
23 years of practicing law, | have never seen a case that says the medical
record provides the cause of subsequent injuries.

With S.B. 292, a plaintiff is asked to prove negligence without an expert, which

simply cannot be done. A plaintiff has to provide for the cause of damage for
the clear liability actions, but if an expert is used, a plaintiff no longer has that
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rebuttable presumption. This is not a double-dip, as testified by the bill’s
sponsors.

Senator Ford:

There is a public policy issue to keeping doctors in Nevada. The division of
$350,000 by the number of plaintiffs seems to accomplish that goal. Are there
alternatives to this issue other than a cap?

Mr. Osborne:
Public policy also supports that when voters vote on something, they be aware
of what they are actually voting on—which did not happen with Question No. 3.

You stated when you originally examined the language, you read the word
“action” and did not fathom that negligence could be split. The Nevada
Supreme Court also stated the language was deficient and could not stand. The
Court also found the cap to be per plaintiff, per event and was not part of the
amendment made.

Senator Ford:
Please restate your answer.

Mr. Osborne:

In Jones v. Heller, the order says nothing changed from prior statute—the prior
statute being per plaintiff, per defendant—and each gets a separate cap. The
Nevada Supreme Court found the per plaintiff, per defendant cap to still be in
place, meaning multiple caps, not one cap for the entire case.

At the same time, however, the Justices cited two exceptions that were
wrongly removed from the condensation and explanation of Question No. 3. The
Justices wrote that neither the condensation nor the explanation accurately
reflected that Question No. 3, upon passage, would remove the two statutory
exceptions of gross negligence and exceptional circumstances shown by clear
and convincing evidence.

Senator Ford:
Are there alternatives to this issue other than a cap?
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Mr. Osborne:

The bill’s sponsors testified Nevada is in a good place and premiums have been
reduced by 50 percent. | am not sure why there needs to be an alternative. The
statute does not compensate victims of meritorious cases that show their
damages are over and above the $350,000 cap because that is the only time
the cap operates.

If the jury does not find that a plaintiff’s noneconomic damages are over and
above the capped amount, the judge does not have to reduce anything down.
The jury does not get to hear about the cap until after the trial is over.

Chair Brower:

Regarding Jones v. Heller, the order states it is unpublished and shall not be
regarded as precedent and shall not be cited as legal authority, according to
Supreme Court Rule 123. It is not a wunanimous decision: signed by
three justices, two dissenting in part and concurring in part. It is interesting that
the order is dated September 18, 2004.

From the timing, it appears a challenge was made to Question No. 3 prior to the
November 2004 election. The Court granted in part petition for a writ of
mandamus, filed by those challenging the wording of Question No. 3.
Nevertheless, Question No. 3 was on the ballot less than 2 months later. What
happened between the date of the unpublished order and Election Day in 2004?

Mr. Osborne:

There was the initial majority decision, two comparing opinions and one
dissenting. All Justices found the same thing with regard to the language—it
was deficient. Justice William Maupin dissented only because of the timing.

It was too late to redo the ballot, so voters received the misinformed, deficient,
cannot-stand language and then, on the back of the ballot, additional pages

were added correcting the language.

Chair Brower:
Did the deficient language go to voters despite the Supreme Court’s order?

Mr. Osborne:
Correct. The actual ballot that voters received had a note on the cover that said,
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Attention voter: after your sample ballot was printed, the Nevada
Supreme Court ruled the wording originally submitted for the
question and explanation for State Question No. 3 did not
adequately, fairly or sufficiently describe the question and its
ramifications. The revised State Question No. 3, its explanation and
the arguments for and against the question are printed on the blue
pages, 16A-16F, inserted after page 16.

Chair Brower:
| am not sure Jones v. Heller has the specific issue we are dealing with today.

Christian Morris (Nevada Justice Association):

| am a trial attorney. It is important to keep good doctors in Nevada. Lawyers do
not like to sue doctors because doctors usually help people. Doctors cannot be
sued unless there is an affidavit from an expert who has looked at the actions
and agreed those actions are below the standard of care; this safeguard is
already in place. Senate Bill 292 is not a clarification of statute but an
expansion.

There is a cap of $350,000. | have not heard that 75 percent of judges say the
law holds per event or per action and 25 percent say it is per plaintiff, per
defendant. | practice in Las Vegas. | know some judges allow for it. | have
always had judges allow per plaintiff, per defendant. There is a split, though.

Chair Brower:
Have you always held this view?

Ms. Morris:

In the time | have taken these cases, yes, that has always been my view, but |
have not had many cases. | do not know of any statistics, but there is a
disconnect as to how to apply the law.

Section 4 outlines the responsibility of a nonparty. If a facility has been found to
be 90 percent responsible, that percentage should be allowed on the verdict
form so the jury receives the full version of what happened.

The jury knows that another party has been found responsible, but the language

in S.B. 292 states that a nonparty can be anyone—even someone not party to
the action. This means that a doctor who is not involved in the case, who is not
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named as a defendant and who has not had an opportunity to present himself or
herself as a defendant can be listed in the verdict form. No doctor wants his or
her name listed on the verdict form without a chance to defend himself or
herself. No doctor wants to have a percentage of responsibility in a malpractice
case to which he or she is a nonparty.

Section 5 states dismissal of an action is a bar to the filing of another action
upon the same claim, but that does not mean the doctor will not be subjected to
some sort of discipline from a medical board.

The language of the bill is not safe language that protects doctors; it actually
exposes doctors to some degree.

Another thing ...

Chair Brower:
Mr. Cotton, does the bill intend to have nonparties named on the verdict form?

Mr. Cotton:
The language in the bill is not clear.

Chair Brower:
We will address that language issue later.

Ms. Morris:

Another thing to consider is the affidavit requirement. The expert affidavit that
is required in order to file a medical malpractice claim is based on information
available at the beginning of the case. This information is limited in scope, and
there is a 1-year statute of limitations.

Discovery is when medical records are gathered, depositions taken, written
discovery done. An expert is disclosed 90 days before the end of discovery. An
expert affidavit, a requirement of NRCP 16.1, has to fully state all opinions and
the basis of such opinions to be presented at trial. One simply cannot ask for
that initial expert affidavit in support of the complaint to fulfill the NRCP 16.1
obligation until the discovery process is complete.

It was testified that the nature of the misconduct needs to be made known.
Misconduct which rises to the level of medical malpractice is stated in the
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affidavit. It is unreasonable to ask an initial expert to apply all of his or her
opinions before the case has even started. Existing law is sufficient, and the
affidavit requirement should remain.

Lawrence Smith:
I am a member of the Nevada Justice Association, but | testify today
representing myself.

Regarding section 4, where nonparties are allowed to be put on the verdict
form, a nonparty virtually does not exist anymore; it is the law of unintended
consequences.

Plaintiff attorneys who do not want to get sued for malpractice themselves later
on are going to name every person who has a fingerprint anywhere on the care
of their client. As such, S.B. 292 will create more litigation, not less. No
plaintiff’s attorney will take a chance on fault being attributed to those who are
not already defending themselves because the plaintiff cannot collect.

If putting nonparties on the verdict form is allowed to stay, there will be an
explosion of litigation within the same case—and other bills being heard this
Session allow nonparties to be put on the verdict form. Every single person who
has anything to do with the matter will have to be named in case the defendant
blames him or her.

This situation will have to be approached carefully because individuals who may
have even a slight amount of responsibility will have to be named. The focus is
normally not on that, though. Normally, the plaintiff’s attorney will only look at
those who are the main cause of the incident; but if everybody is on the verdict
form, then everybody will get invited to the party.

Chair Brower:
It works that way already.

Mr. Smith:
| work in this part of law daily, and that is not the way it works.

Chair Brower:
More often than not, it does work that way.
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John Echeverria (Nevada Justice Association):

| am a personal injury and medical malpractice lawyer. | am not a member of the
Nevada Justice Association, but the Association asked me to testify on the
statute and S.B. 292.

If the goal of the bill is correct—that we are clarifying problems in statute —then
| fully support S.B. 292. There is confusion in medical malpractice litigation, and
this confusion leads to needless motions. | would like to see the law clarified.

The law does not need clarification with respect to the caps and the direction
this bill takes those caps. The issue of caps is a policy argument. If we are just
correcting technicalities, we need to focus on the difference in opinion between
judges. It seems some judges have interpreted the code to read $350,000 per
plaintiff, per defendant and others have read it to mean $350,000 for
everybody.

The reason for the cap was to create some predictability for the purposes of
insurance for doctors. With or without a cap, there can still be predictability in
insuring doctors.

The insurance company that insures Doctor A and the insurance company that
insures Doctor B are making the same analysis on risk. If Doctor A and
Doctor B, each with their own insurance policies, are brought into the same
malpractice case, both get the benefit of the $350,000 cap. The insurance
companies write insurance policies based on an actuarial of a doctor’s exposure.
Senate Bill 292 addresses the actuarial issue to the benefit of the insurance
companies—companies that continue to maintain a higher actuarial number.

The policy issue of $350,000 per plaintiff, per defendant is an argument for
another bill and should not be the focus of S.B. 292. The problems with the rest
of the bill revolve around language and how to interpret that language.
Senate Bill 292 will create more litigation and more disputes on how to interpret
its language.

Section 3 adds the language “regardless of the number of plaintiffs, defendants
or theories upon which liability may be based.” If the cap is applied to all
theories upon which liability could be based, it would immunize a doctor from
battery. An ear, nose and throat doctor who performs a colonoscopy—and has
never been trained in that capacity —commits battery, and that is egregious.
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That cause of action for battery should not be subject to the cap because that
doctor performed something in which he or she has no training.

Chair Brower:
How does that square with the language that says “In an action for injury or
death against a provider of health care based upon professional negligence ... “?

Mr. Echeverria:
A battery is not professional negligence.

Chair Brower:
Is that a separate action?

Mr. Echeverria:
Yes, it is a separate cause of action, but it is covered by this limitation.

Chair Brower:
| will consider that further. Thank you.

Mr. Echeverria:

The real problem is in section 2. In addition to the arguments already raised, the
main problem is two different words are being used to describe conduct:
responsibility and fault. Responsibility and fault are two different concepts. That
language needs to be rewritten.

Somebody may be responsible for an injury but not be legally at fault. It is a
problem if a jury is entitled to assign a percentage of fault to someone who
does not have legal responsibility.

Mr. Cotton stated the goal of the bill was to allow the defendant doctor to talk
about the doctor who settled out. For example, Doctor A is found to be
90 percent negligent and settles out. The jury is not entitled to consider that
when assessing the remaining 10 percent of fault. If the goal of the bill is to
allow the defendant Doctor B to talk about defendant Doctor A, who settled
out, that can be accomplished. Senate Bill 292 goes beyond that consideration
and allows the jury to consider the conduct of a doctor who may not have ever
even known he or she was listed and discussed in the case.
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There are ways to solve Mr. Cotton’s concerns, but this bill does not achieve
that. This bill creates more problems.

Chair Brower:
Does naming the person on the verdict form differ from the classic empty chair
defense?

Mr. Echeverria:
Yes. Statute states only the parties before the court are named.

Chair Brower:
That is the classic empty chair defense argument.

Mr. Echeverria:
Empty chair defense can be made, but there is no proof of it.

Chair Brower:
No appearance on the verdict form ...

Mr. Echeverria:

Correct, but with S.B. 292, that person will be put on the verdict form and the
jury will be asked to assess responsibility. The language about anybody being
responsible could be a nurse who should have consulted with her peers or with
the doctor but may not have been negligent in not doing so.

Not being forced to name the person who the defense wants to put on the
ballot is also problematic. | would hate to be a doctor waking up one morning
and seeing in the headlines that | was found 80 percent liable for Mr. Smith’s
death, never having known the case existed. Now | have adverse publicity and
other problems. There are ways to solve these issues, and Mr. Cotton is willing
to discuss how the language might be tightened up to accomplish his goals.

| agree with Ms. Piscevich that the definition of professional negligence should
be tightened to specifically cover medical negligence. | am concerned some

judges may interpret even more broadly the term “professional negligence.”

| echo the concerns about the requirement of NRCP 16.1 regarding the filing of
an affidavit prior to the filing of a lawsuit.
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Mr. Cotton:

To rebut the concern that if the noneconomic cap of $350,000 remains and
Nevada consequently ends up with wards of the State, | remind the Committee
that economic losses are in addition to noneconomic losses.

If an injured party would have earned $3.5 million over a lifetime, then he or she
will get $3.5 million plus $350,000 for noneconomic damages. If juries allocate
responsibility properly and there is evidence of past and future medical expenses
and past and future economic losses, the cap is not going to make anybody a
ward of the State.

| disagree with the argument that several liability reduces the cap. If the
defendant is 10 percent responsible, the plaintiff may only get $35,000 from
that defendant, but that does not reduce the cap. That is allocating the
percentage of damage. If the defendant causes 100 percent of the damage,
100 percent will be assessed. If it is 50 percent, it is 50 percent. The jury
makes that determination once it has all of the evidence, not parts of it.

Chair Brower:
What about the issue of the nonparty being at portion fault?

Mr. Cotton:

The nonparties—whether done by other or done by name—do not have a
reportable judgment against them. On one level, it is a jury allocation question
and then, later on, on another level, the judge applies whatever verdict the jury
found. A judgment is not entered against somebody named as a nonparty at
fault. The doctors are not going to name a nurse as a nonparty who is 3 percent
at fault. The rules of discovery cover this concern. If there is a belief that
somebody caused the injury, that has be to disclosed, and disclosures are made
throughout the course of litigation. If the plaintiffs choose to join the cases,
they can.

Chair Brower:
You envision adding a person to a lawsuit if the plaintiff’s lawyer agrees that
the person has potential liability.

Mr. Cotton:

Correct. We do not want to have a situation where the plaintiff gets to decide
who appears in front of the jury as opposed to who actually is responsible. If
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plaintiffs choose not to join somebody or wait too long and have a statute of
limitation problem on Doctor A, that should be a penalty on Doctor B, who
remains in the case.

Chair Brower:
The jury verdict form will potentially name the person, but the ultimate
judgment will not.

Mr. Cotton:

Correct. The ultimate judgment is never found against that person when it is
allocated out that way for several liability. There will be no judgment entered
against Doctor A. He may not be there, but there is not a judgment that he has
to report to his insurance carrier or medical examiners board—or anyone else.
This is just not done.

Senator Ford:
Can the defendant bring that person in as well?

Mr. Cotton:
It is not likely that person can be brought in on a third-party action.

Senator Ford:
It may not be likely, but is it possible?

Mr. Cotton:
| do not have the burden of proving who was damaged or how much that
person was damaged ...

Senator Ford:
That is true, but if you want to put that person on the verdict, you can bring the
person in, correct?

Mr. Cotton:

Yes. In theory, you can bring them in as a party. Often, plaintiffs wait until the
day before the statute has run out to sue somebody, and then it is too late to
bring in someone.

Regarding the issue of the affidavit of merit, | wholeheartedly disagree. | get
these types of affidavits constantly with verbiage such as “I am Joe Smith of
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the University of California, Los Angeles. | have all this background and, in my
opinion, these defendants caused this injury because they violated the standard
of care.” These affidavits do not offer anything more.

These types of attestations were clearly not the intent of the 2002 legislation
where the affidavit was exchanged for the screening panel. The idea behind the
2002 legislation was you still have to get someone to say, “These defendants
did the following acts and they violated the standard of care, by ... ” An
attorney’s access to a client’s medical records can be made available with a
HIPAA release. These records can be had 2 years before the filing and can be
given to the experts.

If experts look at the medical record and cannot determine which doctor did
something wrong, then those doctors should not be joined as a party to a
lawsuit. To blanket-join four or five defendants, then weed them out and throw
them off to the side during the process of discovery —because it is no sweat off
the plaintiff’s back to do that—is unfair to doctors who should not have been
joined in the first place. Doctors have to report when they are joined in a case,
whether or not their own responsibility is eventually dismissed.

Senator Ford:
How is this any different from an expert report?

Mr. Cotton:

Rule 16.1 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure outlines all the theories and
the facts that a case can be based upon. If the expert has the medical records,
that expert can use those records to make a determination 6 months down the
line. That future determination can be made at the time of filing and keep
doctors from being exposed.

It is so easy to throw in four or five doctors and then dismiss them one at a
time, but doctors are required to report when they are joined onto a case. That
information goes to their insurance carriers and to the Board of Medical
Examiners. Statute allows for defendants to be joined with a sloppy affidavit,
and this is 180 degrees from what we intended when we dropped the screening
panel.
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Chair Brower:
Seeing no more business or public comment, | adjourn the meeting at 3:16 p.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Cassandra Grieve,
Committee Secretary

APPROVED BY:

Senator Greg Brower, Chair

DATE:
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18" SPECIAL SESSION
OF THE NEVADA STATE LEGISLATURE

PREPARED BY
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LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL BUREAU
Nonpartisan Staff of the Nevada State Legislature

ASSEMBLY BILL 1
(Enrolled)

Topic

Assembly Bill 1 makes various changes related to medical and dental malpractice.

Summary

This bill limits civil damages in some emergency situations for care rendered gratuitously,
limits noneconomic damages, addresses delays in bringing cases to trial, shortens the statute of
limitations, requires pretrial settlement conferences, eliminates malpractice screening panels,
regulates expert testimony, requires training for district judges who try malpractice cases,
requires physicians and dentists to carry malpractice insurance with minimum limits in certain
circumstances, requires the Board of Medical Examiners to submit periodic reports on
disciplinary actions and malpractice cases, requires physicians and dentists to report
malpractice claims and establishes the Repository for Health Care Assurance.

$50,000 Cap on Damages for Emergency Care

Assembly Bill 1 limits civil damages in certain emergencies to no more than $50,000 for any
claimant. The limit applies to certain parties that in good faith render care or assistance made
necessary by a “traumatic injury” demanding immediate medical attention, for which the
patient enters the hospital through its emergency room or trauma center. A “traumatic injury”
is defined as any acute injury, which, according to standardized criteria for triage in the field,
involves a significant risk of death or the precipitation of complications or disabilities.
The parties affected by this limit include:

e A hospital;

e An employee of a hospital who renders care or assistance to patients;

e A physician or dentist who renders care or assistance at a hospital, whether the care is
gratuitous or for a fee; and

e A physician or dentist whose liability is not otherwise limited and who renders care or
assistance at such a hospital, whether the care is gratuitous or for a fee.
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This limitation on liability does not apply:

e If there is gross negligence or reckless, willful, or wanton conduct;

e To any act or omission in rendering care or assistance occurring after a patient is
stabilized, unless surgery is required within a reasonable time after stabilization; and

e To any act or omission in rendering care or assistance that is unrelated to the original
traumatic injury.

Total Immunity for Treatment in Governmental or Nonprofit Facilities

Assembly Bill 1 further provides that any licensed physician, osteopathic physician, or dentist
who renders care at a health care facility of a governmental entity or a nonprofit organization
is not liable for any civil damages if the care or assistance is rendered gratuitously, in good
faith, and in a manner not amounting to gross negligence or reckless, willful, or wanton
conduct.

$350,000 Cap on Noneconomic Damages

The bill establishes a general limit on the amount of noneconomic damages that may be
awarded to a plaintiff in a malpractice action brought against a dentist, physician, hospital, or
employee of a hospital. Noneconomic damages are defined to include damages for pain,
suffering, inconvenience, physical impairment, disfigurement, and other nonpecuniary
damages.

Unless certain exceptions apply, the noneconomic damages awarded to each injured plaintiff
must not exceed $350,000. The exceptions to the $350,000 cap on noneconomic damages
apply when the conduct of the defendant is grossly negligent or the court determines by clear
and convincing evidence at trial that an award in excess of $350,000 for noneconomic damages
is justified because of exceptional circumstances.

Subsection 3 of section 5 of the bill provides that in all cases of medical malpractice the
amount of damages awarded to the plaintiff may not exceed the amount of money remaining
under the professional liability insurance policy limit covering the defendant after subtracting
the economic damages awarded to the plaintiff. In addition, a single defendant cannot be held
liable for noneconomic damages in an amount that exceeds the defendant’s professional
liability insurance policy limit even if there is more than one plaintiff. Economic damages are
defined as damages for medical treatment, care or custody, loss of earnings, and loss of
earning capacity.

Moreover, A.B. 1 provides that in order for physicians, dentists, and osteopathic physicians to
obtain the benefit of the $350,000 cap on noneconomic damages they must maintain
professional liability insurance of not less than $1 million per occurrence and not less than
$3 million in the aggregate.
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Several Liability

The measure also provides that each defendant is individually liable for noneconomic damages
only to the extent of that defendant’s percentage of negligence, but is not jointly liable for the
total amount of such damages. This provision applies to a certified nurse midwife and a
certified registered nurse anesthetist, as well as to physicians, hospitals, and hospital
employees.

Expediting Trials

Assembly Bill 1 also limits delays in bringing medical malpractice cases to trial. Cases filed
between October 1, 2002, and October 1, 2005, must be dismissed if they are not brought to
trial within three years unless good cause is shown for a delay. Cases filed on or after
October 1, 2005, must be brought to trial within two years. Dismissal of an action bars the
filing of another action upon the same claim. Assembly Bill 1 further requires dismissal of an
action for medical or dental malpractice if the action is filed without an affidavit submitted by a
qualified medical expert supporting the allegations.

The bill also requires district courts to adopt rules on or before March 1, 2003, to expedite
medical and dental malpractice trials.

Pretrial Settlement Conferences

The bill requires that settlement conferences be held before a judge other than the judge
assigned to the case. Each plaintiff, defendant, representative of the physician’s or dentist’s
insurer, and each of their respective attorneys must attend and participate in the settlement
conference. The judge presiding at the settlement conference must decide what information the
parties may submit. The failure of any party, his insurer, or his attorney to participate is
grounds for sanctions. The settlement conference replaces the medical and dental malpractice
screening panels, which are eliminated.

Statute of Limitations

Additionally, A.B. 1 shortens the statute of limitations for commencing an action for injury or
death that occur after October 1, 2002, from four years to three years, or two years after the
plaintiff discovers or should have discovered the injury, whichever occurs first.

Expert Medical Testimony

Further, this measure specifies that expert medical testimony may only be given by a
medical care provider who practices or practiced in an area substantially similar to the type of
practice engaged in at the time of the alleged negligence.
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Periodic Payment of Future Damages

Assembly Bill 1 also provides that future economic damages may be awarded in periodic
payments by a means other than an annuity if the defendant posts an adequate bond or other
security to ensure full payment by periodic payments of the damages. Upon termination of the
payment of the periodic payments, the court shall order the return of the bond or other security
to the defendant.

Special Training for Trial Judges

This measure requires the Supreme Court of Nevada to provide for training concerning the
complex issues of medical malpractice litigation for each district judge to whom actions
involving medical malpractice are assigned.

Malpractice Reporting Requirements

The Board of Medical Examiners must submit to the Governor and the Director of the
Legislative Counsel Bureau a written report compiling disciplinary actions taken by the Board
during the previous biennium against physicians for malpractice or negligence and other
information reported to the Board. Additionally, the Court Administrator of the Supreme
Court of Nevada must submit to the Governor and the Director of the Legislative Counsel
Bureau a written report compiling the information pertaining to physicians and osteopathic
physicians submitted by the clerks of the courts. These reports must include aggregate
information for statistical purposes and exclude any identifying information related to a
particular person.

Further, A.B. 1 strengthens requirements for physicians, osteopathic physicians, their insurers,
a person, medical school, or medical facility to report to licensing boards actions that could be
grounds for discipline, as well as all actions filed or claims submitted to arbitration or
mediation for malpractice or negligence against the physician or osteopathic physician. The
measure also requires similar reports from the clerks of the courts. Administrative fines of
$10,000 may be imposed on certain parties for failure to comply.

Assembly Bill 1 also requires insurers to report to the Commissioner of Insurance within
30 days on a breach of professional duty by osteopathic physicians. Current law only applies
to physicians. Additionally, the Commissioner of Insurance must report to the State Board of
Osteopathic Medicine within 30 days after receiving the report of the insurer.
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Medical Error Reporting

In addition, Assembly Bill 1 requires reporting of “sentinel events” to the Health Division of
the Department of Human Resources. A “sentinel event” is defined as an unexpected
occurrence involving death or serious physical or psychological injury or the risk thereof,
including any process variation for which a recurrence would carry a significant chance of a
serious adverse outcome. The term includes the loss of a limb or function. An employee of a
medical facility must report “sentinel events” to the facility’s patient safety officer within
24 hours. Subsequently, within 13 days, the patient safety officer must report the date, time,
and description of the sentinel event to the Health Division.  Medical facilities include
hospitals, obstetric clinics, ambulatory surgery centers, and independent centers for emergency
medical care.

Medical facilities must also notify patients affected by a sentinel event within seven days.
However, the notification cannot be considered an acknowledgement or admission of liability.

To the extent of legislative appropriation and authorization, the Health Division must safely
and confidentially maintain reports of sentinel events. The Division must also contract with a
quality improvement organization to analyze and report trends regarding sentinel events. If the
Health Division receives notice from a medical facility that it has taken corrective action to
remedy the causes or contributing factors of a sentinel event, the Division must make a record
of the information and ensure that the information is aggregated and does not reveal the
identity of the person or facility.

In addition, the information concerning corrective actions must also be forwarded to the quality
improvement organization. The findings of the organization regarding its analysis of
aggregated trends of sentinel events must be forwarded to the new Repository for Health Care
Assurance. To the extent of legislative appropriation and authorization, the Repository serves
as a clearinghouse of information relating to aggregated trends of sentinel events.
Assembly Bill 1 specifies that no report, document, recommendation, or any other material
compiled pursuant to the reporting of sentinel events is admissible as evidence in any
administrative or legal proceeding.

Patient Safety Plans and Committees

Further, Assembly Bill 1 requires medical facilities to develop internal patient safety plans in
consultation with licensed health care professionals at the facility, which must be submitted for
approval to the facility’s governing board. Compliance with the plan is a condition of
employment at the facility. Medical facilities must also establish patient safety committees to
meet monthly. Each committee must receive reports relating to patient safety, make
recommendations to reduce the number and severity of sentinel events, and report quarterly to
the facility’s governing body regarding the number of sentinel events and any
recommendations to reduce the number and severity of such events.

AB1.EN
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No person involved in the reporting, transmitting, or compiling of information concerning
sentinel events is subject to any criminal penalties or civil liability if the reporting,
transmitting, or compiling is made without malice.

Whistle-blower Protections

Finally, Assembly Bill 1 includes “whistle-blower” protections for employees of medical
facilities, physicians, and osteopathic physicians who report either: (1) a sentinel event to the
Health Division; or (2) grounds for initiating discipline or information that raises questions
regarding a physician’s competence to a physician licensing board. The bill prohibits the
medical facility or physician from retaliating or discriminating against an employee for these
actions and from restricting the rights of an employee to make these reports or participate in
any related investigation.

An employee of a medical facility who believes he has been unlawfully retaliated or
discriminated against for making these reports may file an action in court for appropriate

relief.

Effective Date

The majority of this measure is effective on October 1, 2002, while the medical error reporting
provisions are effective on July 1, 2003.

Background Information

The State of Nevada is experiencing extreme difficulties attracting and maintaining a sufficient
network of physicians to meet the needs of the residents of this state due to the escalating cost
of obtaining professional liability insurance. The Governor of Nevada called a special session
of the Legislature after it was determined that the shortage of physicians and the inability to
attract new physicians to this state posed a serious threat to the health, welfare, and safety of
the residents of the state. Subsequently, the Legislature enacted provisions to increase the
availability and affordability of malpractice insurance while safeguarding the rights of patients
and relatives to seek compensation for medical injuries.
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Excerpts from the Senate Journal

Remarks and testimony

- selections by Research Library staff

THE SECOND DAY

 CARSON CITY(Tuesday), July 30, 2002
Senatos Raggio moved that the Senase resolve fisell ipo 3 Commiitee of the Whale for the purpose of
consideting Senwie Bill Mo, I,
Motion carried

IN COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

AtB:11 am.

Senator Raggo presiding.

Senate Bill No. 2 considered.
The Commitiee of the Whole was addressed by Senator Raggio; Governor Kenny
Guinn: Jan Needham, Principal Deputy Legislative Counscl; Bradley A. Wilkinson,
Principal Deputy Legislative Counsel; Scott Young, Principal Research Analyst; Maury
Astley, Executive Director, Nevada Dental Association; Robert Byrd, Chairman,
Medical Liability Association of Nevada; J. R, Crockett, Jr., Nevada Trial Lawyers
Aszociation; Michael Daubs, M.D., Concermed Physicians of Nevada, Nevada
Orthopedic Society; Denise Selleck Davis, Executive Director, Nevada Osteopathic
Medical Association; Gus W. Flangas, Anmorney, Physicians Task Force; Gerald
Gillock, Nevada Trail Lawyers Association; David P. Haefner, Nevada Association of
Nurse Anesthetists; Lonnie Hammergren, M.D., Neurosurgical Associates of Nevada;
Ron Kendall, Patient, Carson City; Richard J. Legarza, General Counsel, Nevada State
Board of Medical Examincrs; Larry E. Lessly, Executive Director, Nevada State Board
of Medical Examincrs; Dan McBride, M.D., Nevada Mutual Liability Company;
Eobert McBeath, M.D., Nevada Medical Liability Phyvsicians Task Force: Alice
Molaky-Arman, Commission of Insurance; Jerry H. Mowbray, Atorney; Nancy
Peverini, Legisiotive Counsel, Consumer Attorneys of California; Janice Pine, Saint
Mary's Health Network: Jim Wadhams, American Insurance Association; Charles
(Chip)y Wallace, Nevada Muotwal Insurance Company, Communications
Director/cofounder; Bill M. Welch, President, CEQ, Nevada Hospital Association.

Senator Rapgio requested that all remarks on Senate Bill No. 2 be emterced in the
Journal.

SENATOR RAGGID:

This committee will come 0 order. This is the Commiltee of the Whale, all Senabe nsbmbers
participating, and loday, the comminge will comtlnue s deliberations on Scnase Bill No, 2. Our iien
order of busipess is o complete our discssion of sections 3, 4 and 5 addressing the caps om
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noneconomic damages. Afler we have finshed our discosions, we will deliberste and vobe on those
sections, Thereafler, the commitiee is going 10 procesd with a comsideration of ather sections of the bill
We posted &n agenda with centatn se¢iboas of the bill indicated for discussion voday. [T thene i5 oo viodem
disagreement on e rest of the provisions, we may be able o go through and consider ather sectbons of
ilse Bill, | wand oo alen evervoee in the legislsive bullding thar we may be able 1o ke other scctions of
iz bill, in addition bt those designated oo the ageesda. | am going o ask (hal an amended agends be
posted indicating we will take up the issues, and in tbe onder they will be taken up, as the committes s
able 10 do so. | would ke to urilize our time as cificienly as possible. | promise, we will gol g0 beyond
midnighi tondght on any of these discussions,

I also want to commend the commitiee for the bealthy, bipartisan manner inowhich it has condscted it
deliberations and encournge contimuation of ihat spirit. | wam 10 express my appreciation o all our
colleagues for their patience ard attertion o whal was a very long day yestienday. 'We f&e an equally
demanding schedule oday. We will have 10 complete our work 25 well as emterain whalever the other
House sends us. | am pleased, and | hope you are oo, with the progoess we have made, so far, on
crivical isswes. With your approval, we will abserve the same procedires employed yeslenday. We will
first hear presentaiions on these ot issues by ose bn support of and (hose opposed 1o gpecilic sections
of the bill. Similarly, we will allow members of the maoriny and misodily parties, on a8 eqaal bagis, an
opportanity w ask quecstions amd make statements. Again, following questions and comments from
members of the commities, we will inviee any public mpst and deliberase and vole on any dlem under
discussion,

When we go 1o owr deliberations, 1hat will be an approprisde lime io propose any relevani and
appropriate amendmests, You can offér smendments m the form voo want, sebject to the bill drafier
puting it islo language deemed appropriase for the hill. Is that undersiood?

Yeserday, we asked for any necessary changes and were told there were some technical wrinkles, and
Mr. Bradiey went through some of those, It is the Chair's understanding there are more that need 1o be
adjusted or changed. | am poing o ask that we po back to Senate HWill Mo, 2 and have Mr. Bradley,
apain, indicate the sugpesed champes. Wi have represenlatives of the legal and medics] professioes here,
foslay, kool us aboul the changes tn thi: lappisge ey feel ase necessary.

BILL BRADLEY (Mevada Trial Lawyersk:

Gonsd morming, Senator Raggio, starting with secbon 3, line 2, page 3, the menience should read;
Economi¢ damages includes damages for medical treabment, care or custody, the “and” is deleied, loss of
earnings, and loss of earning capacity.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Do both partics agree to thar?

JOHN COTTON (Nevada Physicisns Task Porce).

Yes.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
All right. Next.

MHE. BRADLEY:
Section 5, subsection 1, line 14, page 3, should read, “Excepl as atherwise provided in subsections 2
and 3.7

SENATOR RAGGIC:
ks thai agreed (o

MR. COTTOM:
I k5.

SENATOR RAGGID:
All right,
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ME: BRADLEY:

Section 3, subscction 1, line 16, page 3, states, "soncconpmic damages awarded to each plalmilT. "
Insert “firom each defendant™ afier the word "plaisilif."

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Is that agresd w?

ME. COTTOM:
Yes, it i,

ME. BRADLEY:
Section 3, subsection 2, line 20, should read, “subsection” then insert. =1.°

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Is thai agreed

MR, COTTON:
Yes, i1 ks,

MR. BRADLEY:

Do you peed that clarified, Senator Mathows? It will resd now, “subsection | and 3.7 Whike we are
of that line, following 3.7 it will read, “ithe noncconomic damages awanded o a plainif™ then insen,
*from each defendant, ™

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Is thai agreed wo?

ME. COTTON:

It is.

ME. BRADLEY:

On line 21, section 5, subseciion 2, (ke sealence will resd, a1 the end of line 20, "muast fol exceed.”
and these words will be debeied, “the greater of $350,0000r.

SEMATOR RAGGH):
I ihat agreed 1o?
ME. COTTOMN:

Iuis.

ME. BRADLEY:

Secalon 5, subsectbon 3, paragraph (h), line 40, will read, *A case in which, following retarn of a
verdicl, ™ and inger the languspe “or a finding of damages in a bench trial. "

SENATOR RAGGHD:

Is thal agreed (7

MR. COTTOMN:

i is.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

All right, pext change.

SEMATOR NEAL:

T have @ question regarding that langusge, As | understand (he langusge, "5 case m which, following
retarn af the verdicl or ihe finding of damage in a hench irfal.® ase you leaving the language “by the
jury™ there alsa?

MRE. BRADLEY:

[ asked Mr. Cotlon and 1 think a “verdict by the jury®™ & probably golag 10 make i clear that it is a
Jury trial. Ahbough a verdict 15 senarsed by a jury; 1 ilalek “by the jury® will make il perfectly clear, "By
the jury™ shoald rematn in the bl Let me read i agzin, Line 40, section 5, subsection 3, paragraph (hi,
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=A case in which, following retarn of 3 verdlet by the jury or a finding of damages i a bench trial™. The
pest senience, ling 41, says, “desermines, by clear and comvincing evidence™ then add the words
= milmiticd af irial. "

SENATOR RAGGID:

Is thai agreed 1o

ME. COTTOM:

b s

ME. BRADLEY:

Line 42, paragraph (b}, "5350,000 for nopcconomic damages i justificd” delete the wonds “under
the™ and include 1be words “as excepdional. ™

SENATOR RAGGID:

Az exceplional circumstances, is that bow i i57

ME. BRADLEY:
Yes.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Is thal agreed ol

ME. COTTOM:

(™

ME. BRADLEY:

Before we leave section 5. because we discussed W, last might, regarding he policy linguage

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Before you get there, is there any caber language 10 be added m that?

ME. BRADLEY:

Yees, that 5 what T will be adding based on 1he recommendation of (b Legislative Council Bureau, bus
I willl let them worry about where o place it

SENATOR RAGGID:

Whal & the language both of you woald like 10 have inscroed?

ME. BRADLEY:

This sectlon is not mhended 10 Ll e responsibiliy of any debendant for the Wk econonis damages
awarided

SENATOR RAGGI:
ks the sxbatance of thal agreeahble 1w you!

MR. COTTOM:
f ks

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

If that or any of these sugpested changes are approved as amendments, they will be subject 1o
whatever the bill drafers feel b8 the necessary way (o siate (hem. Do vou undersiand thai?

ME. BERADLEY:

| understand that, Sendtor Raggio,

SEMATOR RAGGIHD:
Lo ather warde, they may nod nse this exaclt language, bot they will draft tbe Language 5o il s i the
proper farm
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ME. BRADLEY:
My oaly responss is, we rescrve our right to comamenl gpon il

SENATOR RAGGID:
Absodutely, since this is a change, we would like sn explanation of the intent of the language.

ME. BRADLEY:

Under (his bill, the iment is that for any award, whether by jury or jodge, of econombs damages, those
damages thal arc out-of-pocker expenses: medical bills, carmings, loss of carmng capacity. nursing
carsiibe wivde gamud of capenses asgocisted wilh the care of an injured persombthe defendant &gaknsg
whom they were awanded is responsibde for thar catire award, There 18 no cap,

SENATOR RAGGID:
Ecomomic damages?

ME. BRADLEY:
That is correct. If there is a substamial economic award, the physician will remain obligated or the
kospiial will remaln obligsied, w pay thal awand unless there s a segtbemeni.

MR. COTTOM:;

Our wnderstanding of the isent of that classe, 2% we discussed amd negotiated back and forth on
language, is that we coubd have 2 number of different maladies that people could say would or would not
fall wiikin this casegory. We ase defining a som of caasrophac-type loss. Our beliel was hal if the
Legislamre adopied this posiion, and e judge applied the wvery stringemt siandards of clear and
convinging evidence. as defined by the Supreme Ciowrt kn a mumber of cawes, and also 1o find excepibonal
circumsiances which has also been very strcly conflsed, (bt in those exceptional cases where there i3
clear and convincing evidence, the judge would hawe that opporumity: but it woudd also set a definabde
stanilard amd a very strict standard, that (he Supreme Cowrt has voiced #eclf upon a pumber of occasions.,
For that reason, rather than trying o delinease, we (elt this might encompass those odd-ball cases thad
might be catastirophic in their own particuar facis, but not on a necessarily average basis,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
1 am asking about the lEnguage yoo are sdding. What does this do? This section 5 sl nbended (o
Timit the resporsthility of any defendant for the il econombc damage award

MR, COTTOMN:

That Lenguage is intended (o convey the understanding thal the caps discussed in section 5 would be
appliad o noneconomic damages, and not 1o the hard economic damages as defined in this act,

SEMATOR RAGGHD.

Do the bl drafiers, or those who are going 10 charged with obisinimg this amendment, §F il is
approved, have any questions on that?

BRADLEY A. WILKINSON (Principal Deputy Leglslative Counsel);
Mo, Mr. Chairman.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Are there any olber changes you are recommending on which you joimily agree?

SEMATOR NEAL:
Last night, when we were discussing the language on line 26, after “defendant,” | am woodering why
they are swiiching thai language, now, bo ling 40 under paragraph (h),

SEMATOR RAGGID:

I think they said they did oot know where i goes properly. They will beave that up o the bl drafters
b defermine where i goes in the section, §s that correct?

ME. BRADLEY:

I belleve Senator MNeal's quesiion is different. He b asking abowl per each defendani. You ane asking
ahoal the long semence’
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SEMATUR RAGGHY;

You said last night you wanted if to follow paragraph (b), 14 that correct, Senxtor MNeal?

SEMATOR NEAL:

Right,

ME. BRADLEY:

Tha is correct.

SEMATOR RAGGID:

I think there were some ciher questions in oiber sections & 1o the proper nomenclaiure on the
IRSEFARCE COvErage.

MR. BRADLEY:

That is comect.

SENATOR COFFIM:

Do we knoww i we have agreemsent with the Assembly committes, @t this poiml, on this langusge?
SEMATOR RAGGID:

They spemt yesterday reviewing the bill, They are polng o start wday.

SEMATOR COFFIN:

S Usey have nol seen &y of hese,

SENATOR RAGEICH:

1 just w@ilked 1o the Speaker on that, They are going io kave o make the same case ibere on that sade. It
is my understanding that wherever ihere is a reference i the bill to the amount of coverage, for example,
on page 10, section 18, kines 25 and 26, that should say 51,000,000 per oocurrence and 53,000,000  in
ibe aggrigale.

ME. COTTOMN:

Yies, Seaatar,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
There are several places where tha language is there.

ME . COTTON:
[ falls on page 10 and on page 13,

SENATOR RAGGID:
Is ihat the way these policies are writien? [s tha the language in the plicy™

MR COTTOM:
That 15 understandable langaage for people 18 that imdsscry.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Brad, you understand there are several sections (hat pertain 1o the minimem coverage that s requined.
15 thay agreed na?

ME. COTTOM:
Thai is agreed on.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Wherever that appears in the Wil Any others?

MR, COTTON;
That will complete i, Sensior Raggio.

SENATOR RAGGICY
Are there questions from he commilbos on these proposed amendments?
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SENATOR O'CONNELL:
i wonder 1§ we could ask that the minsies on this hearing be verbarim so ibere @8 no misundersianding

SENATOR RAGGIOH

There will be 4 iranscript of the reconding of these susemems, This i rather crucial, We will have
mimstes iyl are cheaned-up verbatum which is the standand (or oar Senate journals g0 here 15 oM a0y
misundersianding.

SENATOR MILBURN:

Yes, lhank yowo, Mr. Chairmuan. o sabsecton 3, paragraph (g). | have wriblen in there, “The cide n
which the conduct of the defendant is determined 1o constituste pross malpractics, or clear and convincing
evidence, " I8 that cormect?

MRE. BRADLEY:
Mo, the language i that particular subsection shall rémain as written,

SEMNATOR MILBURN:

One other question, Mr, Brwdbey, when you say “per occumence,” what exacily does that mean? | a
doctes has 3 probiem witl somscihing Foand sgainst him. is that per organ? |5 if per occurrence. or &oes il
epcompass ihe whole?

ME. BRADLEY:

Insurance polices are writien for dociors on the basis of an occurrence being an event thai may causs
multiple damapes; it may cause multiple plaintiffs, but it is an occurrence and all the nstaral
consequences arising oat of that claim for (ks ccoumence, In a year, based on their policy in the
agpregate, they would be covered for additional occurrences up fo the 33 million. Por example, if they
bad three, 51 million cccurrences during a year, they would have a0 coverage left at the end of thas year,

SENATOR MILBURN:
Lo, one inchlent &8 an osocurrence?

ME. BRADLEY:
Yes,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Let me, again, ask for an explanation from both of you a5 o how you undersiand paragraph (h) 1o
apply a8 an exemplion

ME. COTTOM:
My understanding is, ag the conclusion, the lwon's share of these cases will be jary-verdict cases as
opposed 10 2 bench trial.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

It scems & liitle strange that 2 judge in a beneh irial would make an swand i cacess af $350,000,
ihem make & finding of his own, B wouald seem aulematic 11 be @ goisg bo make thal finding if be has
heard b case and determined damages to be within $50,000. He is going to say, “The reason | did tha
is because there was cléar and comvincing evidence.” I seems almost superfluous under thas
circumstance, but | undersiand why i i5 i thére,

ME. COTTOMN:

I s 10 a degroe because in some bench trials, if they have a punitive damage aspect, ihey will make
ihcir finding, and then make & subsequent finding, My perception is thal this would fall o that same
cacgory, although, those cases are very rarely bried.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Lt us have your anderstanding of how this will apply aod in whal type of sstusiion,

ME. COTTON:
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My undersanding of the way it will apply |s. tha by excluding paragraphs (a) throagh (g) type
situations, shoald physical Injury be caused by the doclor’'s negligence resuliing in enormous demapes,
excepiional circumsiances and ibere b very sirong evidence that this s something other rhan what normal
neplipence could cause, rather than being capped &t 5350000, the jodpe could determine an exceplicnal
amolent of damages oul of what otherwise would be nommal damages for this iype of imjury. Bui, he has
tr find by clear and convincing evidence, presented o the jury im ibe judge’s hearing, that there are
exceptbonsl circumstances, which fall into the range of catastrophic-type damages, He woukd have o
make that finding by clear amd convincing evidence thai exceplional circumslances exizied 1o find
catastrophic demages had occarred.

SEMATOR RAGGIHD:

Do exceptional circumstances refer @ the conduct of the practitioner? What woeald eaceplional
circumatances apply 07 Thas woald be o case, obwiowsly, where there was nol a finding of gross
negligence. What would be the conduct of the practitioner under paragraph (b) that would bring this into
Tocus?

MR, COTTOMN:

It wonald be meglipence &y opposed 80 gross malpractice on the part of the doctor. The iype of damage
incurred for that particular injury wotld have 10 be exceptional damage under the circumstances of the
case, such as catastrophic-type damage resulting from an injury we are unable to idemify here, There are
cases like thal where we would have 1o go back and pick and choose to pame the Iype of injury; bat
without regard 1o Ihe conduct of the doctor below a gross malpractice, it is exceptiona] and catastrophic
damage that iscurred, The judge kas o make that determination before be can cxercise this,

SEMATOR RAGGIC:

Even in that ¢ase, woald the limdtations sef forth m subseciion 2 still be applicable?

ME. COTTOMN:

The judge would still not bave the shility 1o go sbove the 51 million policy of the doctor.
SENATOR RAGGIO:

For (hat matier, 10 go above the hospital’s policy. Mr. Bradley, do you concur with what he ssid, and
div yiss wami o adid snything?

ME. BRADLEY:

I would like 10 add something.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Do you concur?

ME. BRADLEY:

[ cancur with the langaage.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

I do nol wand any misundersianding of what is being reprcsenicd 1o the commaries. What did Mr.
Cotton say that is nof to your understanding?

ME. BRADLEY:

I get worried when we talk abowt the $1 million policy limit,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Esn®i that what it says In subsection 27

MR. BRADLEY:

The language we should be referring 1w is whatever the policy Hemii s

MR. COTTON:
I agree that it should be whalever ibe podicy is.
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SEMATOR RAGGHO:
Wharever the polley i ks Okay,

MR, COTTOMN:
1| would like to defer o Mr, Crocketl for a moment because he has 2 good poim fo make that shoubd
be heard.

IR CROCKETT IR, (Nevada Trial Lawyers Associabhon):

With regard 1o this language sbout exceptional circumstances, | think the drafiers intention, probably.
was b0 deal, in part, with the constirutionall issues in arder W avoid, 1 lesst a5 pertaining io this section,
the contention thal ikis law is arbitrary in selting 2 cap. By allowing a jisdge io exercise discretion in
exceptiong] circumstamtes, il vents on some of thai charge by allowing the judpe 1o make a
determination, in the judge’s discretion, that there are exceptional circumstances. Therefore the cap
might otherwise be comsidered arbigrary and can be avasded in this panioular case,

SENATOR RAGGID:

Daes anyhody disagree with any of the satements being made 1o this commiftes a1 (his 1Eme?

ME. COTTOMN:
Mo, wee do mot,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Sometime, yeswerday, some enterprising lepislator sesl oul mastnformation & a pumber of people
indicaring that thls comminee was abowt o process 2 Bl mowhich a judge could override the verdict of a
Jury. Thas io me is clear znd deliberme misinformation. That & mof what | rexd paragraph (k) 10 say. This
applies only when a jury or & bench trial retoms 8 verdicl or 8 judgment in excess ol 5350,000.
Oiherwise, 1 do not read in this bill that the judge can override the verdict of a jury. 1 would like some
cammend on thal.

ME. BRADLEY:

We apgree with you, The only premise being that & judpe can always override a jury verdicl,
SENATOR RAGGID:

That is in the Civil Practice Acgif & judge finds there was nod proper cvidenoe,

ME. BRADLEY:
Absent thal circumstance, your sinbemend is carmect.

SEMATOR RAGGH:

The information was sem out, much 1o the chagrin of this Chakrman, becawse evervbody was asked o
camact me, a8 il 1 am the person driving this wrain. | miy be an engineer, bai [ am not dhal kind of an
engineer.

MR. BRADLEY:

Senslor Raggio, we know ke feelmg aboatl tryang 10 deal wilh misinfosinaloa,

SEMATOR RAGGEHD:

That is not the case, and that information should wot be mil there for ihe public. This section does not
authoree a judge, in this kind of o case, o override the jury verdsct, Is that understood T

SEMATOR O'CONNELL:

if | can make sure | am fdflowing what this language is abou, # is nol the action of the docior: it is
e ouscomse of the procgdure,

ME. BRADLEY:
Thst s exactly comect, Seasior O°Connell,

SENATOR O'DONMELL.
Can you walk me thaough a normal jary instnectson from (he judge? Inoother words, 1 wanl © know
when paragraph (k) i goleg o come ingo play. [ need to knew when the jury comes back and says, “We
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think the docior has done some kind of malpractice hese. and we are going to awand $1,500,000.% Do
isey know what they are awarding® Do they know whelber tsey are awarding noneconoimie damages of
economic damages, and are they instrucied as to whai the caps ane?

MRE. BRADLEY:

First of all, the jury will nol be {nstructed abouwt (he cap. Now. lel me talk o you a Habe ahoul jury
imsEnac ons,

SENATOR O'DOMNELL:

Wiy ?

ME. BEADLEY:

There 15 an agreement that if we star mforming purics of cerain mformation, then jurics should be
infornsed of all information. For example, if the claim is against the doctor, bul the doctor is insured,
why are we suing the docior? Why don’t we just sue the msurance coinpany? There are many things that
4 jury would, probably, meed 1o be wald sbour. The commen law in owr stale, for a Jong time ks been the
opposiie, &5 is the common 13w ina lof of staves. The jury B there 10 focus on 1he Hability asd damages
of the case and mt be distraceed by collateral evidence.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
His piher question was Soed the verdicl distinguish a8 1o whai pant of il i econpmic and npneconEmIc.

ME. BEADLEY:

Thas is up 1o the stvle of the lawyer. Let me sfan wilh the process. Al the conclusion of a trial, 1he
Jedge says, “1 am now going o send the jury bome for the night, and 1 and the lawyers ane poéng ko
actile the jury nstructions.® The instrections from the judge are the lw that is 10 be applicd 10 the case,
They are piven in & series of jury instructions that are wniform m the Siae of Mevada 1o addiibon w
ihose wniform instrections, both sides are entided (o offer special instroctions the deiadl specifle anexs of
law i that ease. Thoss are called the jury Instmections. The jury's role is o take the (sc1s they have
listemed t0 in the couneoodm, and then lake the law the judge gives them and apply the facts they beard 1o
the law given them by the judge m the form of jury insiroctions. Mr, Cotton and | will argue with the
Judge sboul the sructions T want given and ibe nstructions be wants glven. Alter the arguemenis, the
Judge says, “Okay, ['ve heard enough. These will be the instructions 1 am givieg. ® Those ane then given
ey bt Uy,

In this particular exception, there will be ne instructions given to the jury. The jury comes back with a
wverdict, After the werdict is returned, there will be an opportunity for both mides 1o file post-verdict
motions. IF the lawyer representing the injured person feels this is a case of exceptional circusnstances
and if the lawyer feels it was proven by clear and convincing evidence, the lawyer will file a motion with
the judge 10 &k that, under that finding, the awand be above the 5350, 000

SENATOR O'DONNELL:

Bdr. Bradley, let me iell you what my comcerns are. Yiou have a jury 1hal is not going 1o be instrscied
with the information negarding caps. The jury 18 going 0 come back and award 51,500,000, At thai
paink, you Enow that vou ase going fo get the jury’s approval for more than the cap. You are going 1o
kmonw that the jury, alibough they have not been instnacied aboui the cap, has pwarded more than, say,
even ihe policy Hmils and ihe cap combinsd, Slmillion for économic damages and S500,000 For
nopeconemic damages, AL that point, you are going o know you can go for mondlal thal point! But of
you know thal you are only poing fo get 51 million for cconomic damages and, say, 3250,000 for
poncconinmic damages, hen you know it 15, probably, not wonbwhile going abesd for more money.

MRE. BRADLEY:

I did beave ome imporiant parm oal. Mr, Cotion and | also argue about what the verdict form will ook
like, We will be saying things like, *We oeed o beeak it down Inlo the past damages which would
include past economic and poneconomic swards, and future ecomomic and noncconamic awands.” There
will be several questions, perhaps, that a jury is required to 2k, Did you find Doctor A negligent? Did
yoia find Doctor B pegligend? Did you Gnd Doctor © pegligent? There s raher a long questionnaine the
jury will answer and fill in the blanks where they fill in the oumbers,

10

145

ADD 0059



seqator O Dognell, in your example, whene the jury awards $1million in ecomomse damages, the ease
18 over if tse dEoctor's policy Limit is 51 million because the way this bill is sritten, once the economie
damages reach the defendan’s policy limis, that is all the plaintld is going 1o be ahle o recover.

SENATOR O DONNELL:
What il it is 52 million?

ME. BRADLEY:

As long as tha stavement is coafined to coonomic damages. Using vour examgbe, as long as he awand
is for noneconomic damages, the way the stabaie B wrinen, there will never be an award of mone (b 51
million in nopscopomic damages,

SEMATOR O'DONNELL.
Are scoaomic damages above thaf?

ME. BRADLEY:

Economic damages arc not capped. That was the specific intent of the language we gave you, Once
spain, this s a mistske we are all doang. 1 used the §1 million, but | do not wand b0 foces on £1 millien.
[ is the wop af the policy Emil of e defendae

SENATOR RAGGIO:

However, if the cconomic damages are $1 million, that amount is deducled 25 10 any nESECODOMIC
damages, so 1 think you made the peing. You might callect more than 51 milhon for economic damages.
Whatever thar amount is wonkd be deducted from any neneconomic damage awand under this bill. 15 tha
comect?

MR. COTTON:

As soon a8 you have an economic award, that is deducted from whatever the applicable poticy is. It
never can go above that for poscconomac damages. I the economic exceeds (hal policy amousl, there is
no award for noneconomic damages.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
In mosl cases. the special verdicts of the jury will reflect which partion is nonsconoaic and what is
SCOnHmic,

ME. COTTOMN:

Winh the stansie, the way it is phrased, tbe couns will almest be mandaced 1o have those broken down
on verdict forms.

If | could address an issue brought up by Sensior O°'Dosnell because i is an importand issue io
comsides. The reason voo do nol Ensruct 3 jury oa the cap, this is o problem (hat Bis arisen in some
states, is bocause it has been found (0 be, at 2 minimem, o parial deprivation of a person’s right 1o a jury
trial, The lagic of that being il you do mot el & jury about the cap, they will come back with an award,
Then the legislative determination thai they can only collect 50 much of that award has been made by 1he
cap, I you instruct them that the cap is there, you have created an arificial ceiling on their jury award,
Mow they are saying somewbere between zer o 5350,000, as opposed to whatever they might decide.
Yo are resricting i o thal extent which could, af beast asguably by the planifls bar i some sisles,
create an anificially bow verdicn and deprive them of their jury right. A comstinutional lafirmaty could
resudl i v give 1S iRstTBcloes 10 fhe jry

SENATOR O DONNELL:
You just made the argument against the constitutionality of this bill,

ME. COTTON:

I dov mot belicve 1 kave. The constinutionality of the béll ks public inftemn and public meed versus the need
of the individual. That is the balancing test. Yom need fo have he jury determing an award. The quesiion
is, how much colleciion of the amount determined is going 10 be allowed by the legislature of the siase
afier the fact, The judge is the one fhat ends up mposing the caps, not the jury
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SEMATOR O'DDONNELL:

Mr. Bradley. | read in ihe mewspaper where someone (rom the olher side siated this bill i
challengeable. With prior knowledge, do you know of amything in this bill tha ls consiroed as
uncanstitugionl?

ME. BRADLEY:

Mo, kowever, the last time | booked af constitutional Law was 21 years ago. | do nol profess or iry o
Iead anyone 1o beliews that my opinion s wonh the two pennics | kave in my pocket. 1 do pot practice in
thai arca. i iv & very specialined arca

ME. CROCKETT:

To s o what Mr. Bradley jost said, tbe ceason why no one can prognosticare whether a law would
be: found constirution of not by & court B becaise the court leoks ar the entire process (et bed up o ihe

culminmion of the vole and passape of 1be Law, Thal is sever done wntll i is done, Mo one can predici
thaa,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Adso, 1 think (e comnsines shoubd be reminded that if there is an apparent, constinsional problem o
infiemity here, our legisdative coumsel is mandaied 1o sdvise us of that, 'We have not recelved that type of

advice al this polnt. 'We have oot fnished processing the bill, bat | think we can rely om oar leglslative
counsel for ihat advice.

SEMATOR NEAL:
Does the phirase “exceptional circumsances” have g basis in case law?

ME. BEADLEY:
Mo,

SENATOR MEAL:
It is just some dreamed op phrase by you gays?
SENATOR RAGGIO:

Sknce we are alking aboat teominology, give ws your definitsors as to what clear and convinging
evidence means and how 1 differs from osdinary standards,

MR. BRADLEY:

There s a specific jury insiruction on clear and convincing evidence. We did sot bring the definition
but can cerlainly get it. In a civil case, the typical standsrd for the burden of prool, that evidence which
must be accepled, 5 what s known 3 “a preponderance of the evidence.” IT you fake the scale of
balance and it Tips 10 one side or e ather, 51-49 percent, that b a preponderance of the cvidence. I a
criminal case i1 is bevond a reasonable doubfwe are much more famdliar with that statement. Clear amd
convinting evidence s abave the tpping of poeponderance of the evidence but not 0 the standard of
beyond & feasanable doubt,

SEMATOR RAGGIOD:
Mr, Cotton, do you agree with thar?

M. OOTTON,

I do. Also with ithe undersianding from the history of the siate in the Legislaure and the Supreme
Court, clear and convincing cvidence is the same sandard of evidence that is required before a jury gets
punitive damages submitied o it which is of a significantly higher standard than the prepoaderance of te
evidence. I is not beyond a reascmable doubt bul it is down 1o ibe rasge of, say, coubd-reaionable-minds-
differ type catcgory. The imstrection 35 very specific, but it is also a very stringent standard ot often
applicd by the cowrts. Anybody involved in the system knows panitive damages are not often instructed
s,

SENATOR CARE:
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With e discussion aboul conduct and in paragraph (gh, gross malpractice, and the exceptional
clircumstances in paragraph (), do we all agree that this bill docs not comtemplage the inteatioea] 100t
with avaidability of punitive damsges! This hes noaking w do with thar [ that correct?

MR, COTTON:
Thas is correct.

SENATOR CARE:

Paragraph (h) only applics afier the jury bas renerned the verdict. Somebody has 1o file 3 moios,
mare than likely 11 i goiog 1o be defense counsel seeking reducition of ihe sward io $250,000. In fact,
under MICRA in California, the jary cam still come back with sn award of 52 mdllion, but thess s the
post-vendicl moteon o reduce il [ gather that is when you ged imo this discussion.

ME. COTTON;

As a practical matter, it would be the pubmission of a form of judgment o the coam based upon the
slafuge. The plaintifT would then have an oppormuaity o ohject w tha form of judgmeni depending wpon
their poswson, but thal is (he way 1 would be submitted to the cowrt a8 opposed 1o the court having
another hearing with a more evidence, That is why we inseried the words “admitved an trial,” as opposed
10 having a subsequent hearing, more affidavits and additioral evidence.

SENATOR AMODEL

Mr, Crocken, you have been talking about the record and potential constitwtional issues. In view of
lestimany, yeserday, you made the sialement thai if this is ever challenged they will look at the
continsuen of everything (hat has gone on al the south end of the building a5 well a5 bere. Do you bave
&n opinion &8 10 what vou tink of 1he record on this istee we are now discussing, particularly in view of
some Tairly powerful testimony by yoursclf and Mr, Hasdy, in 1erms of leaving 1be door open for fuure
challemges on the constinadonalicy of the cap.

MR. CROCKETT:

Ag Mr. Bradley said, | oo am ool 4 corstitutional lawyer, My last comact with constitutional Law was
when [ was in law school, There is a template applied when the oourt looks at this. The lempiate is, any
Iime VML &FC going o nestricl ibe rights of individuals, the oourt looks 10 sce whether or oot tha
restriction of individual rights, cstensibly for some improvement of the peneral welfare, i justifiable
based upon the means chosen 1o do 11 and whetber or nod the means chosen to accomplish that goal had a
rarional relabonship 1o the ohpective; and whelber of nol il wad what they called the least-drastic means o
scoomplish e goal, Those are (he standands, (be benchmarks, | 3o pol know what would have io bhe
citablished o ghow that 1o courl sstisfaction. These are the ingredients they consider.

SENATOR AMODEL

| undersiand that, | just wanl 1o narmow i1 i what 15 going o bere, | endersiand the disclaimers for
the constitutional law, Yesierday, | heard some powerful testimony (hat said caps are @ very bad ihing. 1
heard some powerful testimoay on what was wrong with MICRA (Medical Injury Compensation Refarm
Act) In Califormia. Do you feel the oplsons, as a resall of ibe record sow before us, are Bl Nally open
challenge the cap provision on a comsifehonal basis,

ME. CROCKETT:

I have always placed my confidence in the same constifuents that eleci people to the Legislatare.
Those same peapie who elect Assemblymen, Assemblywomen, and Senators are the same people who sil
on jurses and decide these cases. The same wisdom they have to make meelligent choices o elect you
folks o Carson Clty I3 the wisdom | trust for them 1o make inelligent decisions in (be courtroom.
Philosophically, 1 befleve caps on damages go agalesi the prain of leiming 1be jury make thelr decigion.
Omne of ke reasons the jury is noi wbd aboal the caps, in these cases, is so they can make 3 docision amd
award the full range of damages w which they believe the injared party is emitled. Then a iemplate &5
applied o top of that verdict by the cowrt, afier the fact, and (be damages are, in fact. carved down o i
within the caps. under @ MICRA sysiem, for example. The ose thing (hat is done here, which 1 believe
wak designed (o deal with (be arbilrary nature of the cap. was the opporumity to zllow the court 1o take
mic consideration exceptional circum#tances and say, “| know we have these caps, bat in this panticular
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situation | belicve this case i entitbad o po ousside the caps amd be cxempd from eem witkin the Jams of
the msurance palicy, and therefore, | am going to allow i.° 1 think that was designed oo address
comsisialional isyues Does il pass constitabional master? | don’t know,

SENATOR AMODETL

As a result of your testimony, do you think your oplioss are open o challemge thas, personally? Have
¥ e opinion, of do you think you have done ke best you can W foreclose your options based upon
siomar hackground on these caps?

ME. CROCKETT:

I really do not have an opiodon and do nod have the pecessary knowledpe o sndwer that

SENATOR AMODEIL
Thark you.

SEMATOR TITUS:

I really do not think §i is fair 10 ask people if they think this will be constitutional in the futiere, for &
aumber of reagoss. The consibslion s a changing docament, It is Auid, which is ooe of the sirengihs of
the L5 Constiigion. Secondly, the judpes who will be making these decissons are sometimes
unprediceabde, espocially when you have elecied judpes, You never know what they are going o do. Who
wonld have ever goossed that Scalia would shandon his positlon on sase’s rights in the Court's Last
decision afver the election? Finally, | think ope of the relationships you have 10 look ab when you
deiermine whether or not this is comstirutional, is whether or not the policy meriied the sction. We do not
know if insurance rabes are going o go down 35 8 resubl of this policy. That remaing (o be delenmined. |
think it is umfair to ask the pentlemen before us if this is going 1o be constituiional or nal.

MRE. CROCKETT:

Scnator Titus, | remember when | was in grade school, we had o learn 1o inject ihe phrase “wnder
God” in the Pledge of Allegiance because the Supreme Courl decided the was. appropeiate, Senator
Wiener will recall that too. Now, we ane tobd 10 withdraw it That is constimntions] law foe you.

SENATOR RAGGID:
I want vo hear from somebody representing the insurance mdustey al this point.

MRE. BRADLEY:

The only arca where we did nof explein (he intent @ with regard 10 the language, “per each
defendand. ™ 1s everybody clear on why tha new languape was inserted?

We wanted (o ensure that these awands, againg! the defendants, apply 10 each defendant in the acton.
If deere is one bealth-care provider there will be ome sward, b il there ane two, there will be ooe award
apainm each of them, assuming the jury finds them responsible in some mannet.

MR, COTTOMN:

On that itsoe, this is not & change from existing law a3 it stands today. Multiple defendants can be
Joined. 1t does not happen often, but 1oday, (here is the ability, with basically unlimited exposure, on the
pant af the muliiple doctors joined. This would pus the cap on that maliiple exposare withoat regard 1o
how many defendants are joined, Each defendam would have the benefit of their cap if they chose o join
multiple defendants. Bagically, it is no change an a1l fo existing law in terms of the ability to jokn mulipte
dieferlanis.

JIM WADHAMS (American lasurande Associaiioa);
1 am here today on hehalf of the Amserican Insurance Association

SEMATOR RAGGHD:

Mr. Wadhams, wou have been preseni during most of these hearings, beard the pestimony and are
familiar with ihe contents of ibe bill and s statug as it is now being proposed.

ME. WaDHAMS:
Yes.
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SENATOR RAGGH:

The ohyious question b, since this whole crisis has arsen from a lack of available, if you will, or
pceessibde medical malpractice coverage, are you propared to siape for the insurance indusiry whal
mzpact, if any, passage of this mexsure will hive of that shuatpe?

ME. WADHAMS:

I will do the besi §can oo address that, Senator, As everybody in this room and evervbody in this
process knows, this language has been available for & fairly shor period of 1wme. In reviewing i1, and o
the exient we can analyee it guickly, it sppears that W will kave a positive impact on insurance rates, The
issue of constitationality s critical. It & possible there will be an immedizte bepefit, and [ do fol mean by
the nexl day, bus over the course of the renewal eyele theee will be a sHght positive benefit, In will take 2
peril of thres o five years before these cases work through ihe process and It can be ascermaiped
whether or nod thes actually reduces the amoust of money that has o be spent. Unforansicly, this b 1o
be rouagh, baat the estemade is i would still, poteptially, improve premiums. The question the commitiee is
digcussing regarding exceplions 1o ibe cap is difficuli to answer. Do the exceptions crode the rube? | am
having some sciuaries analyre if, but it appears this would improve the siation in Nevada apd. over the
course of time, could resull in sigrificant rale Emprovement,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Have wou had any discussions widh the companies that fopmed part of this group as o what ihe (s
ol 2 bill such as this woald be?

ME. WADHAMS:

| hal preliminary discussions prior 1o seging (he language. Mow ihat the tanguage 18 outl, of course,
the details have o be carcfully anslyeed. That process is taking place right now.

SENATOR RAGGID:

I think the concern is we do pot want o go through 3 procedure bere, with the crisis thar has been
identified. and process a ball wih langusge (hs) has o pamber of exemptions from 3 Umslation on
damages dissimilar, for example, from the law (sat is now in California, called MICRA. To go ibrough
that process and find ow it kas litle or mo effect & wasting our time. We understand the rates are not
going to go down immediabely. ls there poing to be any positive impact. I your opindon, within the
foreseeable future, either on rate decreases, competition between insurance companics, availability of
miore iisurance coverage and the prospeci thal ihe rale percentage of incréases that have been
experienced will be curtailed? | do nol think apyone on this commities wants (0 go through this process
with linlke or no effect as a result of owr efforts

ME. WADHAMS:

I appreciare whar you are asking oa bebalf of the commibitee. Trying io make these determinations, on
the spot, is difficulr. In my opiedon, based on my experience, this bill docs improve the siwatbon. | think
vidi are dskiag fof more guastifcatbon of (hat improvemes than | am capabde of giving voa &t tas poim
in tEme. | think B improves (he shuation. U doss add elemenis of prediciabilioy, which is the sachwond
for the insuramce companies. If they canmot predict, they canped price. This does improve predictability.
Again, the discussion by the commitiee is what the actearics have 10 assess and how the exceplsons
change the rale. [ think there is improvement, Senator, bat obviously, | cannot give you a number, sy
4} percent, that this will improve rabes 40 percent in lhree years,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

I guess it pocs withoul saying that this s, obviowsly, mech more than now exists because there i no
cap whatsoever on poneconomsc damages. That seems (o be the crux of the argumens. We are searching
for a response that gives us reason (o believe this witl nol be an act of no comsequence.

ME. WADHAMS:
Let me say, the fact that you &re placing caps in the circumstances, pod in every one, lhere are
cxceptions o (hat, the existence of the caps gives an oppartunity for negoliation
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SEMNATOR RAGGID:

A cap of 51 million on poeeconomic demages with a deduction for economic demages is a significant
cap, is il not?

ME. WADHAMS:

It is a gignificant cap. The existence of the cap i eclf significant. The guestkon we are snapgling
willy, amd | think you are asking mee, is can | quantify the value of the cap with the exeeptions? Although,
I can el you [ think it is significant and, assuming constitutionality, 1 think it will develop over time.
Hewever, | am afraid 1 eannot tell you whal percentage il might be.

SEMATOR RAGGID:
When will the public see some kind of indication of a positive effect of any of this measare as a resuli
of oar efforts?

ME. WADHAMS:

That is an excellem question and stightly off the msurance subpeet. Wihen physicians ane comfortable
anid believe this has an Empact, the public will see il by a decrease, or perhaps reversal, of their tendency
i leave the Staie. Thad is the imporiand issee. The physicians are asking me the same question: How
mwuch of an effect will this have and will il be sudficiem? 1 have placed calls wo ory 0 get & more definative
Emswer,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

Let me follow that wp with @ question to the representative of the medical group regarding the opinion
of Mr, Wadhams, Having beard this opinion, are you siill comfortable in processing this bill with the
language indicated bere? Has it been discussed with those in the medical profession?

ME. COTTON:

[t has, amd once we gol down o 3 bill we coubd present, it was also discussed with peaple in the
imsurance indusury. 1 undersiand the reluctance of the insarance indusiry 1o el you this will save 30 or
40 percent becadse they do not want to bock themselves in on some record om iheir billing. Over a pericd
of time, we are hearing mimbers in that range, with po final quantification deermined antil they can
factor @ imo their computer program as 1o how much money they can make or koss on the deal

Mr. Byrd, from the state-owned companies, indicased that in the next several months there might be
an immedisie drop for deciors and a long-term drop, When we stan bearing thas from several different
enurces in the insurance industry and re-insurers, this bill with caps on doctos's exposure will encourage
re-insurers b comes back imlo the State, I is much more palstable (0 re-insurers (o come L0 & smaller
state, such as Mevads, where they do not have 50 much risk 8o spread out like they do n sasbern
California, W feel it will have a significant impact on premiuens,

SENATOR RAGGH:

Specifically. do members of the medical profession health provider groups that you represent
indersiand this will, af best, likely take three to five years for isese reductions fo occur or, 21 least, a
bessening of the percentage of increase in premaus?

ME. COTTON:

From discussions we have had, it is undersiond there will be a short-ierm, small fall and several years
will pass before the full impect will be felt. A large proportion of the doclors 1 represent ane pedple
commigied to this comenunity and willing so fough oot 3 shon period of time if there is a ligh at ihe end
af the tunsel. [ am nunping into problems persuading people 1o stick around if there @5 po lght a8 1 end
of the tuomed. That is the issue right there, In my opinion, & kot of peopbe will be sacrificing for a coupbe
of years because of a long-term benefit and ability (o stay here, | chink that is the incentive we have i the
bill,

SEMATOR COFFIN:

I am prohibited from selling casualty products inclsding medical malpractice of any kind, 1 do have
experience in ihe business and know what you are irying to gei al, and perhaps, this will kelp bring out
better answers. My experience is thal you cannot see an immediate drop because:
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I. This bl s nod rewroactive. There arg a ket of cases m the pipeline that will take years 1o resolve,
and we do nod know what the judgmems will be, That i knpartant becaase one of the faciors companics
base raies on is experience. Therefore, they will look a thetr expericnce and say. “Where are we with
elaims paid? We siill newd “x' dollars of premium o help keep us from losing mooey, s0 we will keep
ouT reinsurance companies interesied in rewriting or backing us up on the book of business rewrile af a
retxil kevel.”

2. There is light 21 the end of the enned for all physicians o this (ype of thing becase there will be
an expectation of some change, It will pot happen for all doctors immediately. | might be wrong, and el
e iF 1 s, bul it seemd b me that if & pew docior comes inlo praciice wilh no cases, bl Is capable asd
goes im0 & profession of medium risk or high risk, be will probably et a lesser rate than the doctor in
practice now if he is rated less, simply, because he had o malpractice claims against him, The new caps
will apply o those people; iherefore, recruiting dociors will be easicr,

There are many chements in forming rates, Do pot expect mirscles, especially m high-risk areas ik
havve cloims pending, and ibosc expecting 0 have clalma pending within the 1ail of tweir lietime conirsct
[ am trying to shed some light of it, bearing in mind | do not practhce this just as the brwyers @0 nol
praciice constitwtional kaw. This is along the same sori of caotdon Senator Thus brought up on the
cofmtitutional gouestion, For same there mighl be benefit, for some there might mot. A company will look
& itk total mumber of pliysicians and say, “Well, we are going to get a banch of new physicians. They
are fol going 1o get claims, or maybe. they are going io get lesser claims.” That could adjust the
premivm downwand, I is [ooking at 2 rate manual and then deviating from it They cannod give you an
agiswer, Ioday, bud they can give voo a probable ansaer. They cannot give you sn exact answer. We
wotkd be Foolish (o @Xpect an exact answer.

SEMATOR CARE:

Mr. Wadhams, we have heand there are dociors who have never been sued, or are with groups ithat
have never been sued, Cardiologists come w mind, | have a good friend who is a cardiologist who, unil
a manth ago, was nol affected by this crigis. Il seems 1o me, with (ke immedisie passage and cnacimen
af this statute, those doctors who have never had a claim filed against them might see some immediate
relief, [ am confused a1 how premiums are figured when you have a doctor who has been sucd several
times, and then another doctor whi has never been sued. | would like o know whether there would be a
way o reassure a doctor who bas never been sued that there would be an immediate benefit from ihis, Is
it even possthle?

ME. WADHAMS:

The physician commumity’s risk is blended among physicians ondy. Oee of Nevada's problems is i s
not ondy a small state but has relatively few physicians. It has been identified that we are 47" in the
omuntry, which is at the low cod of physicians-per-populalion. What | mean by thal is. we have relatively
few physictens, and, il you ke o specialiy, b 8 even smaller. Clark County may have a total af 2,700
pliysicdana: therefore, the doller impeet of medical malpractiee claims and senlements & spread over a
very small base. Senmor Coffin is correst because wie wrile claims-made palicies in professional Habikiy,
&5 opposed 1o cccurrence polkcies as we do in oo msurance. Mew praciltiosers will have & period over
which their premium will go up bocause they have no sctivity for which a claim might be filed i their
fizst year of practice. [t s also correect, as Scasor Coffla poinis om, that msurance companies ane based
upon caperience, When we make a change, 35 s comemplaied bere today, it 8 not only poing io be
dependent wpon the interd of the lawmakers making thar chasge, but the sctions of the judpges in
imberpreting those changes. Unail that shakes icsell throuph the system, nobody will be able to predicy how
this will work in terms of the sciaal variation o might cawse. From my experience im watching the
imsarance imbustry over akmost 30 years, this s a risk improvement and should bave some significant
bemefia. I amd having @ difficull time, and have bad for bt las several months, trying o gel amy
quamification of thal because the individual Feciors being considered by the committes are mol scparately
idemtified. 1n discusging (his with the phydscian commmuanaty. 1l 1§ understood that it will take lme bo s
hovw judges imerpeel 0 and whether of aol o & constitutional. | wish there was an esster answer bl rases
arg haed opon past experience, and ontil that past experience developd, one cannod have comphele
confidencs W sy rates will go dovwn 30 or 40 percend.
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Wi are alking shoul 3 stitic eavironmens. | know all the legislators have been reading the paper about
the cconcamy. Depending upon the cconomy, this thing could change quickly either direction, If the
economy gels worse, the sisation may ool improve. We kave (o look an this asteming everything else
stays the same. | think this legislation inproves the risk charscierisies and ghves some predictability. AL
this puxinl, until [ get mare specific advice from mdividual Insurance companies, | canmsl give you a
quaniificaon of thal, They would not b able to guaramies it uniil they scc how it plays out,

ME. BRADLEY:

In anmticipaiion of some of ihese questions, we provided an sdditional packet of documents, which are
on your desk. These amicles framed this debste. Many of you kave heand s day and read i he
newspapers, that we have o different opindon and believe it i closely ted 1o the econamy. It i3 closely
tied b 1he poor decisions made with respect b 5. Paul. 51 Paul was & bupe contribator, which s the

reason (e Governar imtialed an action against i, These articles help in framing the debaie with respect
ta Lk dssme,

MRE. BREADLEY:
The Last poknt | will make, as many of you are aware, Is & much more promimest problem in soulbem
Mevada, Martherners ane pot secing the same insapces by a long sireich.

SENATOR RAGGID:
I am going 1o take some questions from those who have oot previowsly asked any questions first,

SEMATOR O'DOMNNELL:

Mr. Wadhams, if paragraph () was eaken oo of ibe bill, would that give vou more encouragement in
terms of reduction of preminiens and payomns? Woukd nomake it a litle Jess onerous on insarance
companies?

MR. WADHAMS:

Let me answer e first part of tse question. Oonerous is really ot the issue, The issue is what they ase
going 1o have o pay. I think the simple answer is that if paragraph (h) was not there, it wouold be less of
an cxcepion o the mule of a cap, Ietuitively, common semse would indicate that it would improve
eomewhat. | have listened Mr. Cotton and Mr. Bradiey debare this, and Mr, Cotton has a great deal of
expericncs. Al this poim in tme, | am persusded that the standards will not ausoenatically be met
immedintely, and in ibe process of lifigation that excepibon does pod “cat™ the rode, w0 0o speak. The
simple answer 0 your question is i thel exceplion were not (bere. it would be ane bess exception po the
nale,

SENATOR O'DONNELL:
Then the premiums would go lower,

ME. WADHAMS:
The lendency S0 improve the premium would be greater: that is commect, Senator,

SENATOR O'DONNELL:
Mr. Coton, you are a defease anormney a5 well as a plaintiff anoreey. Why did you scquicsos and

agree 1o paragraph (k)7

MR, COTTOMN:

This is somewhat tied oo ihe question asked of Mr. Wadhams. If | ok out paragraphs (a), (b). (2},
(d). (e), (0. of (g), it would have an impact on premiums. There is somewhar of & balance or iraden(T on
constitutional issues and Bow you deal discoiminatorily with people who have had calasirophbe damages.
Yiou could have a gituation where a persoa has &n mjury that is nof ofganic briim demage or hemaplegia,
but could resudt in catasrophic damages tha could anack this act. The overall effect ks bl 95 percent of
cases are pot poing v fall isdo that category or any of those cabegorees. The fact remains ibhere may be a
claim ot there that would sulyect this acl o a constitutional challenge. 1 hate 1o think that whabever we
el wp with would he meaningles because we kefl i 2n exception that the ooe-percent cage wils be able
b kmock oul the enlire effect of what good we are trying 10 do. My concern in not having i in there is
that it would subject us 10 greater atack o constitotionality, | happen o belicve 1the way the acl is
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comstracied, oday, will withsiamd any comstitutional challenge submitied to the Supreme Cour,
pariscularly with all the evidence submiited o the commitee, The dramsic need n this Sade has been
outlined, asd | thiok i will be more than cpough for (he Supreme Court o sustain il

ME. BRADLEY:

Om the prediceability issue, we are talking about a policy lBnit. As you know, we have mainiained
From the beginning thar the palicy limir is the cap, and has always boen the cap, Paragraph () siill deals
wilh the podigy limie, therefore, we have not changed ihe predictability Issue here.

SENATOR O DONNELL:
It does make b 8 b more consginmional.

SENATOR WIENER:

Mr. Wadhams, 1 listersd 10 the language wsed in your explanation of the hesitancy of the insuracce
indusiry 1o come forward with some stsiisfics and predictions. | heard concern in your fesponss
regarding comstimtionality, which his been voiced by both the pasel and witnessees. | am concerned, as
yoru sabd, thay we will wakl and see on constitubtionaliny if &, indeed, becames 1he policy or praciice of a
conseTvalive kndustry. We are godeg o wikl snd sev unlil it enber does or does not happen, which may
standd in the way of redscing premivms carlier, With the wadt-and-see approsch, raber (hen expericece,
ihere may be more time that passcs before 1bere may be & rodection of premiums based apon what s do
here today. Cam you respond oo that?

ME. WADHAMS:

With permission from fbe Chair, | need o back up a hit to make sure | answer that guestbon wish the
right hackground. At the Govermors bearing on March 4, 202, the Insuramce companies indicated they
wiere not imterested in dokng business in Clark Coanty anymore becasse # &5 nol predictsbbe. 1o is like
saying, 1 wam to buy a house but do not know the price. You peed 10 know ibe cconomics before you
make commitmenis. [t is just that simple. What you are afiempiing io do here is esiablish some ecomomic
parameters. 1t is ood black and white. If it was lepislated. the cost of construction would be reduced
B pesoent, | could tell you with some certzinty that your fire-insurance polcy would go down. Thene ane
a ot of variables in liahility insurance that are nat darectly related fo what happens, It & bow B 0s
interpreied. I is ibe skill of the lawyers mvalved on thal particular caze,

Constinwtiooality is an issue, You have beand argaments that this is probably comstitutional or amight
be, bast antil ibe Supreme Count makes that decisaon, we will not know. The tsue with which 1 think tse
cammitiee 15 sSrugeling 15 s ithe mmprovemenl of the simalion suffickent for the acibon being aken?
Fortumately, 1 do nol have 10 answer thal question, you people dis. However, [ am comfonable in
advisang you, thal this is an improvement in (he stumbon becawse, umil the ccomomics begin o manklest
themselves, there is oo guarantes af how much relbel of Improvement will oecur,

SEMATOR SHAFFER:

Mr. Wadhams., there have been rumors that the Governor, depending upon paisage of this proposed
legislation, intends to ditect the insurance commissioner i dinect the providers 1o reduce thels premiums
by 25 percent. Being @ previous insutance commissioner, can you comment a8 1o whether or nog that is

ME. WADHAMS:

Some of you have served in this body kong encugh 1o remember ik passage of Senate Bill No. 220
when the Legislature rolled back awlo insurance rabes 20 percenl across-ihe-board, which was declaned
unconstifulional. | am pot saying this o challemge the isswe, bul this is a volumary marketpisce. Jus s
physicians cannol be foroed to stay bere, o lawyers for that mater, insorers are a business and here 1o
make a profit. 7 they cancot make a profil, they will not be here. Therefore, rolling back rates is not
appropeiste. Whal vou have in ithis law, and seversl members serve on ibe Commerce and Labor
Comrvitiee, |8 roe reguladon. 1 am sbsolubely cemain the Govermor will direct the insurance
commissioner to evaluate the raies of cach inearance company 10 make sure they ane pot excessive. It s
possible some pressare coald be browght, hat basically, you ¢aneot change the econpmics. You have 1o
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see what they are. You mast find out how misch the house is worth before you decide whether or nol you
can bay .,

SEMATOR RAGGH)
Is it foresecable, im amy way, |hal insurance polickes will be wrinen excluding coverage for
noneconamic demage?

ME. WADHAMS:

Those policies would not be approved for sale in e Suabe, and quite Trankly, | wouald be an expert
witness saying il is inapproprise.

SEMATOR COFFIN:

In 1968, the Legislare yielded 1o the wmpation 2nd passed Senate Bill Mo, 220 which fooled (he
public because i ended up, a8 | 3abd a0 thar time, being anoonstitmional o mandate 2 lower rate. We
camnot fioo] the doclors and (ke public sayving this will lower thedr rates immediately. It will find iis water
bevel.

SENATOR MILBURN:

Mr. Comon, regarding the tesimony of the theee 1o Five vear prediceability that insurance rases woald
g dewn if all bs well, how does that address our immediae veed in southern Nevada reganding doctors
who cannod wail three 10 five vears. oven though they see e Hght 2t the end of the tuanel.

ME. COTTON:

| campor sddress the ones who cansol wail thas long. The doctor's group, &6 a whole, indicaied 1o me
ihat there are significant numbers of dociors who, raber than keaving the stite, woubd prefer o stay here.
If they have & light ai the erd of the unsel, they will do so. Pan of ihe probilem with Barge rates is the
swilchover from existing companies and docior's having to buy 13l coverage. They will hive 3 one-time
hii amd have o shsorh it, but i they see iheir expericnce change and exhaust the risk on their il
coverage, after the three o five year tmeframe, this iz when their premiams will star dropping.

If insurance companses Bave the shiliy in 4 noncatasrophic case 1o iml ropeconomic damages 10 no
more than $350,000, they will have a benchmark on which o drew the line. Today, it |8 unlimied, and
they have mathing on which to base it, I is a floating number. Practically speaking, insurance companics
arg poing to set rabes high 10 prolect themselves when they quote premiums. They now have something
that will cap damages, bui it takes fime, trying lowswils snd negotisting sefibements, to obiain real life
experience. The practical impact of that cap gives some basiz o the insurers oo, of least, adjest their
compater programs 10 where (hey can make profit and make things availabde. Doctors are willing 1o
“eat”™ the tadl coverage in arder 1o stay here if somebody 15 willing to sapport them

SEMATOR RAGGID:

As a represeniative of the commiites's feclings, | offer this suggestion. If we go ihrough this process,
I sugpest the insurance indastry make A strong offon 0 see if some reasonable, immediste relief coubd be
given b0 some of (bese excessive premiums in as shori a time a5 possible. 1 think @ would beboove the
isdigiry fo show somse recognition for this effert and, cerainly, & woeld improve ke pablic relations of
the companies, We canmot order them to do o, but | would kope they derive a clear message thas if we
pass this proposal, with regard 1o the caps, even though we are oaly one of 5 states and among the
smaller, the inturance industry would strive 10 do samething s show soime recognition of this efforl and
the fact that there is 4 erisis in sombern Nevada. [ do not expect a response, but | am sending a strong
messape. Dvan the road, there may be ofher isswes in which the insurance indusry it imeresied, and we
wionld like io have some faith snd credil bn what their effone are 10 achieve & resull that & in the best
ingerest of the people of this Sale,

SEMATOR NEAL:

We do a lat of things in this Legiststure and pui all kinds of presumptions indo taw. Cidld we place a
presumplion, a8 part of this pamicular bill, tist upon passage approval, from thay day forward everyone
affected by i woubd be presumed o have & zero-bassd ratisg?

MR, WADHAMS:
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Mo, that would just duplicale what a predecessor body did, The angwer (0 this question &,
unforiansely, 3 b more complex. You have 3 local campany tha was formed by physiclans. There are
over 300 of them who fornsed their own insurance company. | canmot speak for (bem other than 1o say,
ohvicualy, thelr increst is in protecting themselves 0 ibe lowest possible price. They have ao outskde
sockholiders and are noi beholden 1o anyone else, The other probiem is, medical malpesctics insurance &
nat written by Sate Farm and Allstate. It is writhen by speckalty companiss typically formed by doctors
in other stabes and all they write is medical malpractice inswrance, | think the cribical (tor ke physician
community ks seeking is having these physician-based medical malpractice carriers willing 1o cone in amd
compete for bainess, again, asd brng prices down, Al this point in time, they ane pol, Unfortunamety,
they are not even here. [ am speaking on behall of an mdusiry that 13 nol bere,

SENATOR RAGGID:
Courstel advizes nee that (ype of language would be owlside the call of the Govemor's proclamation
aned would nod be appropriage.

SENATOR NEAL:
It seems (0 me il 5 language hal could be considered fo lower the prices because they are saying fhat
past claims would pod be allowed o be inclodsd in wrling funure policies.

SENMATOR RAGGIO:
I am going 1o rely on comsel,

EENATOR NEAL:
I think eoussel is all wel,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Until you show me your law degree. we will accept counsel’s advige, | think § would fird be
appropriale i enleTiain 4 motion a8 bo the amendments thal were propesed in section 3, Is amyone on the
commiltee uncertain of that language? Senawor Meal, in the motion | ask you 10 accepd an addition in
perminalogy aceeplable (o the lepiilalive counsel. We will have an oppartunity 1o review the amesdmeni
when B & formally sabmined i the molkon is adopted, 1T =iy changes are nocessary we will meke them.
Mo second i peoessary o motions n the Commiies of the Whole,

SENATOR NEAL:
30 moved.

SENATOR RAGGHD):

Is ibere any discussion on ihe motion? All those in favor isdicate by saying, aye; opposed, no.  The
mition is carried ananimoushy.

Does begal coansel have suffickent information to drafl that smendmend subject to approval of ihe final
version of that amendmend? Are there any other améndments proposed 16 the H? IF nol, 1 there 4
mation |0 approve the bill as amended?

SEMATOR RAWSON,

Are you taking this panl of W, or the whole bEr

SENATOR RACHGIO:
1 am sorry, 1 am talking about a modion o adopt sections 3, 4, and 5 of Senate Bill No. 2 a5 amended.

SEMATOR CARE:
So moved.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Is there any discussion? All those in favor indicaie by saying, aye; opposed, no.
The motion is carried unanimoasky.

SEMATOR NEAL:

[roes this mean, if we do nol adopd anyihing else. this will bevome laa?
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SEMATOR RAGGID:

Wi are going through ihe resi of the bill and do the same thing as we have been doing with each
azpect of it. When we get io the final vole, we will ask for 8 motion w approve the eptire bill with any
amnendments (bl have béen adopied bo any of the provisions, anless there s apother sugpesiion,

We will proceed next with limiting Fability for 2015 occurring in & government or non-profit cenler far
treatment of irauma, which & in section | of Senate Bill Mo. 2, Are representatives going 1o speak 1o this
iszue™ | hope bath he medical and legal profession are availshle,

ME. BRADLEY:
Am issue has arisen that has forced Mr. Cooion 1o leave the room, and | must leave the room as well,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

[hn you wang @8 o leave the room also® Is there amy pestimony off section 17 We had some callaeral
referems o this. Can someons nepresent the meedscal and legal professions In reference to agreed apon
provisions regarding the cffeci of this bill? Let me ssk stafl as o the effect of secrlon 1.

ME. WILKINSOMN:

Section 1 provides a limitsbon oa lisbdiy of $50,000 @ civil damages for care of assisiance
pecessitated by a sudden, uncapecied sitoation of occarmence reselting i a seriows medical comdnbkon that
demands immediase medical attention for which a paticet encers & hospital throagh the cmergency Toom
or trauma cenler. Specifically. the people rendering ihe care who moceive (hat lmdtation from Habiliny are
a non-profit irsuma cenier, an employvee of A non-prodic rauma center, a physician of dentls who renders
care or assistance in a non-profit iravma cenber, a physician or dentisi whose Hability is noi limied
pursuanl o sovereign immunity who renders care or assistance in @ governmental iraums cender
Esceptions to that limiation on Lability are amy act that occurs afier the patient has been stabilized and is
capable of receiving medical realment 35 4 nof-cmeTgency paticnl, and any acl or omission aanelabed 1o
the original medical emergeney,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Doex this apply 1o the 50,000 cap for an occurrence within the trauma sétting? ls it a cap on both
economic and soreconomic damages?

ME. WILKINSON:

Yes, that Is a cap of S50,000 toal, i civil damages, for any &1 of neglipence thar does not cross o
gross neglipence.

SEMATOR RAGGHD:

Il & my understanding, umder this provisaon, that ibe paties must ester the hospital through ks
EMETEERCy FOOM OF Lramma center. 15 hat correct?

ME. WILKINSOMN:
That is cormect.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Can somechody define “wauma center™ It is the understanding of the Chair that there are three
hospitals designated as trauma centers n (ks State, and thal Sesignation oceers from @ profiessional

1. A Trauma-| Cenier i8 currenily ai University Medical Cenler.

2. A Trauwma-2 Cenler is presently designaied a1 Washoe Medscal Center in Rens.

3. A Trauma-3 Center is designaicd a1 Fallon Hospital,

Those are the orly tbree desipnated rauma centers, Under this definiion, as & non-profil organizaison
in this bill, would each of those rawna cenlers qualily any person practicing in that irauma sebling s
being covered by this cap? Would somebody respond 1o that question?

GERALD GILLOCK {MNevada Trial Lawyers Association):

I participated in the Governor™s lask force and have been aclive bn working on some of the kanguage of
thiz ball, This would definiiely apply 1o those centers. [ think the trauma centers are defined siamtorily by
the Mevala Revised Stanares, This would expand it omly 10 e cxtent that it says, specifically, " mon-profic
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organizafion.® | think thal was added w0 funber define whal we are discusimg, Basically, this would
apply o both econcxic and noneconombe damages.

SEMATOR RAGGHD:
Theere would be 3 $50.000 lisbility for cach defendant as kag as the occurrence was within the rauma
sCriing.

ME. GILLOCEK:

That is my understanding, As you know, the municipalitics have a S50, walver of sovercign
immisnaly wp 10 thal amount; Glberdise. there would be complefe, sovereign immiunity for their actions,
This pus the pereon rendering care in those setings in the same standing as (he hospital,

SEMATOR RAGGIHD:

The sea-profit organiation language is & requisite for this cap 1o apply,

ME. GILLOCK:

That is correct.

SEMATOR RAGGH):

h 5 my usdersianding that if asolber bosptal which 8 nod row non-profil, somebow schicves the
designation of rasma center, e limit on Habdlicy woulld sod be available. Is thay correct?

IR, GILLOCK:

That 12 my understanding as well. 1 imagine you would have representatives of the hospitals bere to
fesiify on this isswe. In looking af this provision, (he doctors have had coneern over (be last few moaths,
They have wlked about the trasma centers Baving the 530,000 cap.

SENATOR RAGGIC:

That is why (his is an important part of this hill. We need w0 have somebody Trom the medical
orgamizations and hospilals appéar here before we congidér acling upon . Can you, Mr, Gillock,
represent this if it was part of an agreement that was structured or negotisted between those representing
ihe medical and legal profesmons?

MRE. GILLOCEK:

Yes. Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR CARE:

There are references on pape 2, Uoes 14 asd 21, 10 "in a hospital® which lierally means in a hospital,
Arc here ever clicumstances where & trasma doctor would be (Teating & person in 2 mass disaster that
has been referred o anodher hospital, or may be frealing & person in an ambulance? Does this mean,
actually, physically in the hospital? [ can see thal argament arising,

ME. GILLDCK:
Yes.

SEMATOR CARE:
On ling 48, “injury s0 as 10 alfect the life or health of another person,™ does that contemplase loss of
consentium where the life or bealth of a third party i affecred?

ME. CROCEETT:

Yeg, (o ihe question reganding ihe trawma center. I need clarification as to the second pan of the
question,

SENMATOR CARE:

Line 48 stapes: “imjury so a5 w0 affect the life or health of another person.” Refermnng 1o “another
persoa.” s thal limited o the paticed or can @ convenplaie & third party, such as a spouse. Loss of
CORSOTHLEM comes o mimd.
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ME. GILLOCE:

This is a provision in the past that has applied. A person would have the same cause of actons they
woubd ordinarily have bul with the Hem#ation. There could be a circumstance, for cxample, where a loss
of consortmum or wronghsl death case conbd resubl.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
We wanl someone from the medical profession 1o preven! misunderstandings betwesn yous vershon
and theirs. We will be in recess for ien minutes.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

This comminee will come bhack o order. In order o procesd as cxpedidously as possible,
represeniatives of the medical ardl begal professions, &8 well as interessed others, need 1o be bere during
e comimittes meeng. | reallee the other house b8 xleo helding bearings, however, we need
representatives here who can speak suthoritatively for esch of these professions while we po (krough the
remakning scctions of the hill, 1s & understood. peplbemen, that we muast have your prescece bere. 'We
rely upon what you have to wll a5 aboul the Bsue,

We are discussing section | of Senate Ball Mo, 3 that limits Hability for scis ocourring in amy
povernmental ar non-profil cenler for trawma treatment. Sénator Care had asked a question. as o the
definition of “reckless, willfol, or wanion conduct,” which would exempt them from the proposed cap,
and whether the language oo page I, line 48, “resubl in injury w0 as 1o affect the Life or healib of another
person,” would isclode somethbng like loss of consortiom. The Mevada Trial Lawyers sabd, in theis
oplnkon, that type of ssue would be incleded as somcthing 1hal would be recoverable under tha
language.

SENATOR CARE:

That was my question, Mr. Chairman. Algo, whether the language “in 2 hospilal™ meant physically in
# hospital as opposed 10 a paibent trardporied (D a trauma cender or overflow af a trawma cenler,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

1 weald like 1o hove farther response From edtber the legal or medical profession as 0 whether that 15
the understanding or agreement.

ME. GILLOCE:

This section concerns reckless, willful and wamon misconduce. If 3 wrongful death or catastrophic
claim resalted, there would be a claim by & spouse for loss of consostium. On a wrongfal death, @ wold
be loss of sockety, comfon amd companionshipithe pormal sspecis. The cap would not apply for that
conduct. That represents the undersianding we had berween the panies.

MICHAEL DAURBS, M. [y, (Concerned Physicians of Nevada and Nevada Onbopedic Society):
I am an onbepedic surgeon practiciag in Las Vepas and Invodved with the trasms cenler.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Can you speak suthoritatively for the medical profesison”

DE. DALURS:
Yes, af this time.

SENATOR RAGHGIO;

15 ihad also your understandsng of what tha language encompasses?

DR. DALBS:

The conduect deemed “reckles, willful oF waston conduct by the physician” would fall o of the
S50, 006 cap,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Is there anything in section | that is contrary o what your representalives nogoliated i putting this kil
ingether?

. TAALIBS:
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There are two issees at the UMC Trauma Center:

L. It is a stale mstitation and s prolected wnder the soversign immunity cap.

2. The majority of physicians thal provide trauma care and emergency room care, 25 well a5 imdigen
care st UMC, are not under that cap, Therefare, it represents a disproportionste risk %0 the physicians
wha are volunieering 10 cover palicnls there.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Would the physicians who perform in the trauma cenber at that bospital be ander this cap?

DR, DAUBS:

When we are on the trauma call schedule st UMC, we also cover the emergency rooe, which means
we carg for any imdigenis who come there as well, Wih those patients, we sill bave the same
disproportionaie Tisk, and that i5 & concern (o piysicians,

SENATOR RAGGHD:

Your point ig, that this section does not cover, under this exp, physiclans who are performing other
services, ewen though they might be om duty st the traama cemer. [T they perform an sct in the
emeTgeney roum outside the trauma cemier, they are not under this special cap ard remain lisble, joimtly
and severally, for econdbmac damage that occurs outside, That is my wederstanding of the bill

DR. DAUBS:

It is my ondersianding. They are nod provecied.

SENATOR RAGGIHD:

Mo doctors are protected under this a0t for scomomic damages. There is no cap o0 economic damage
i e ball wharscever, Is thm correct? They remain under the proposed ball, joandly and severally, lable
for ecomomic damage. 1s that cosrect?

hE. GILLOCK:
Mol in the rauma cenler.

SEMNATOR RAGGIOD:
I know. Forgel the trauma cenler, | am talking abouat oulside 1he trauma cemer,

ME. GILLOCK:

You are sbsolwely correcl. There 5 no cap on economic damages. This provision, giving the
sufpeons and dociors e same protectbons as UMC, does include apy damages. It says “civil damages.”
I belleve section @ addresses the issue of & padent who comes in ihrough the cmergeacy room. Section 2,
line: 26 says, “thal in good fwih renders care or assistance peccssitaicd by @ sudden onexpecied sHuation
of occarrence resulling i & scrious medical comdition demanding immediate atiention, for which the
paticni emers the bospital through its emergency room or trauma ceoler, may not be beld liable for more
ihan 550,008 in civil damages, " That covers bath ecopomic and noneconomic damages,

SEMATOR RAGGI:
Wou are saying, cven ibough the pelent comes i and the desipanted traumsa doctor treats that patieni
in (he emergency room, it s il eovered wnier this cap.

ME. GILLOCK:

That is whal is says.

SENATOR RAGGIOD:

1 do pot kmow whether they have o separace Eacility for (be Irsuma conler OF CMETEENCY TOHM, O
whether the designation as a \rauma center covers any part of the Bospial as long & it is in & irsuma
setting.

MRE. GILLOCK:

There is 3 separate facility but they are in cloge proximity 10 one another and @ person can walk back
and forth between bem.
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SENATOR RAGGID:
Your understanding is, ai UMC, if a wrauma physician treats a person, whetber in the designased

(rauma arch o the emergency room under a trakms seting, the physician would be protecied under the
cap. |s thar what you are iefling us?

MR. GILLOCK:

As long as the care occurs before the patiest is stabilized, In other words, the limitation provided
under secibon 2, beginning on line 34, staes: “The limatation on kHability provided.. docs oot apply o any
Bl remdering cane...: (a)Which oocurs afier the patienl 18 stabilivod and is capable of receiving medical
[reammeEnt 45 & NONCMEngency paticni.

SENATOR RAGOIO.
O, It b5 unpelated 1o e original medical emergency,

MK GILLOCK:
That is correct,

SENATOR RAGGID:

That ie the language in section 2 (a). Dr. Daubs, do you want o comament on thar?

DE. DALUBS:

There are many questions régarding stabilbhy, 1 am a spinal surgeon. Masy Umes, Irima surgeons
will ssabilize ihe patient from a life-ihreatening siuation. The patienl could them, posentially, be
tramiferred 10 anoiher hospital with & brolken spime thal would be cansd for by me. We feel dhere shoald
be a comiinual process of iraima care at that insfiution. The other point is, as & private physscian, |
would take care of those patiepts al UMC &5 trsuma patients, bt they would reccive fallow up care @
my office, We need some type of lamguage thai follow up care woald continue, Obvicasly, a5 a
physician, | fieel the care should be continued until the patient i stable from their injury

SENATOR RAGGID
Is there somee banguage agréeable o both prefessions here? Can we accommodate that concern?

ME. GILLOCE:

1 can affirmatively state, Mr. Chairman, there is oo language available (hat would acopmmodaie that,
nor was that (he istemt a1 the time we agreed upon the language, 1t should be very clear 1hal this occurs Lo
ireatmenl rendered 10 2 trauma unit OF SCCRENCY roarm, to someang who i ol stabilized,

SENATOR RAGGIHD:

Is there a clear understanding in the legal or medical profession as b whal "stabilizabon of the
patient” means? Given the example Dr. Daubs provided, what is your understanding regarding when a
patiem becomes stahilied?

MR. GILLOCK:

That is o medical term, nod a begal term. 1 helieve ibe significance that is, generally, sttached w it s
ibey are sbde 0 maigtain life functions. Their vital signs are stabilized, dnd they are no longer io an
"emergent” gituation relaed to the original injury. However, 1 do sot Enow, | am not a doctor,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Ii i the Chair's understanding thar this was desipned to make cemain that dociors auhorized o be ina
irauma cenver come into perilous, sadden, and emergency situations where they muost act quackly and
make prompd decisions. Under ofdinary circumstances, ibey do nol have an opportunity to mike ihe kind
of decisiors that otherwise might be appropriate. There it a reason why we ane talking about trauma
cepters where a person must act with real dispaich and get something done quickly 1o save a patient. |
thimk all of us want to naake sure that kind of care is available, We do not wam o pass a bill where the
language is 0 restriciive thal we are nof golag (o be able o ensure this kind of care under those
cacepiionl, qubck amd decisive npes of cases. We do pot want w provide & disincentive for that kind of
care o be glven, Thercfore, we need o komow ihis will be addressed approprimely. When 1 hear
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“stabilization,” | would like tw know what ihe dociors intend it 60 mean, and where it may pead 1o be
amended in some way,

DR. DAUBS:

My podl is 1o keep the Las Yegas trauma cepler open. The treatmend of 4 (rauma patient is a bexm
effon and multiple specialists are involved, YWhen a patienl first comes in, tbe ranma sargeoas are on the
fromi fine to stabilize them, but there are also neurosurgecns, spinal surgeons and cothopedsc surgeons,
Sometimes paticnts can be siabilized in the firs balf boar or doring the first 24 hours, bui still be critical
from a blood pressure standpaint and some oiber ises. However, all the other faiors or injuries need
o b greated,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Az o medical doctor, whal is your enderstanding of the term “stabilization?™ What dogs it mean i
meedecal parlance!

DR. DAUBS:

For me, a irauma paticnd being stabilized mesns all imjurses have been addressed, and sot jes in the
first half bour or hour. kb means we have addressed their fraciured bome, legs, everything. | woald then
copsider them stabilizsd from their iniial acute injuries.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

We seem 1o have a difference of opimlon a8 w wha sabilization in this bill means. 1 woald like o
hear more testimany.

SENATOR COFFIN:

[ i possible fhis language limis cuiending coverage (o a veme t which a patient goes, when it might
b e thay nany trauma doctors go o the scene of an aceldent and begin carne at that location.

DR, DALUBS:

M1, nivl En odar system,

SENATOR COFFIN:

What if a doctor poes 0o a scenc and addresses care, perhaps in an air ambalance. amd # % nal known
whether the patiemt will go 1o the travma cénder or ¢mergency moom anbil they arrive théreT They may go
to the trauma room first and then the cmergency room, or vice versa, Arne these potential coafugions
addressing this kill?

ME. GILLOCE:

Thas is sddecssed under the Good Samaritan stataie. We already have a statole in place thal gives them
complele immuniy in those situations,

SENATOR COFFIN:
There will be no splitting of hairs in terms of where 2 doctos or other caregiver enters into the sceoe?

DR DAUBS:
It fis also my oplnbon that would mot be o consideration, | agree.

SEMATOR COFFIN:
They do not go oat and sometimes come backT

DR, DAURS:

B0, Our svsiem i sl up where, wie ihink, we can thesl paiients beter ot the traema oenter. Hois what
we call “soop and man,” where we take the padent (rom the site of injury to the hospital a5 quickly as
passible.

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Is the present language in thi bill agrecabile 10 everybody? [s there mutual understanding between the
medical and bepal professbons?
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DR. DAUBS:
1 would say no at this time. but | think we can get together on this and change some of the language

SENATOR RAGGIO:
We are poirg 1o have to do it this moraing.

DE. DALIES:
I understand rhad.

MR. GILLOCK:

This i e first | kave heard a problem with ihe word "stabilize. " The language was obuakned from the
doceor's represenlatives and placed in this bill, This & a serm of art used by (he medical profession, and
since | have heard in sl my Gie, | assiumed they had an ides o5 10 what i@ meant. We can work on furiher
defining it

SENATOR RAGGID:
I am going 10 ask you io do thai. | do nof koow when vou aze going o do i because we noed your
presence here while we go throoph the bill,

DR. DALIRS;

Inn all vespect o Mr. Gillock, 1 disagree thal the medical commuaity was lavalved in the language on
this pan of the bill, When we booked at the details on this part of the bill; there were some lmmediane
issues that woull be af concern B0 a irauma surgecn sich as mysclf,

MR. GILLOCK:

Perhaps, they could give me 3 definition of the word “stable,” amd we could Mmsen il & an
amendlment.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Is there 3 medical definition of the wond “scebilizaionT™

DR. DALRS:
Mo, 1 ihiek i1 s @ Broad lenm.

SEMNATOR RAGGID:

If this becomes a liigated masier, will there be a question of the judge advising the jury, for example.
as ko what the berm means” Somebody is gomg bo have 1o define this term.

ME. GILLOCK:

Assuming 3 wmuna surgeon would get swed In ibese circemstances, whicl is highly umisual, thenc
svpld b s medical doctor who would wstify that the patient was stable or not stabbe, and the next
quesiion would be o el the jury what is meam by mable, The désermination woald be made ol that tme.

SENATOR RAGGIO-
Is there a better word or phrase than = sabdlization?”

DR. DAUBES:
I am niot & lawyer and &6 nol know what would pass the fest.

SEMATOR RAGGHD:

This s & medical berm.

DE. DAUBS:

The issue In southern Mevada @ all ie physsciaas workmg in the trauma cenger must feel comfonable
that they are on an even playing fMeld. There are physikians cenployed by the Sate, with ibe nodical

school, that are under this cap. These physlclams are part of & 1eam, &nd if onc team member s capped
and the oihers are pod, ihen that is an uneven playing field.
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SENATOR RAGGIO:

b s going o appdy the samc way, If the docrors who are emploved are under the $50,000 cap, b will
apply the same way for dociors who are nol emploved and, as | undersiand (o, are operating s & trauma
disttor in e trauma scoting umil (here s stabflization of the paticst.

DH. DAUES:

Correct. [T we use the language of stabilily o mean e inital iraams surgeon bas sabilieed the palient
from & bood pressure mapdpoine, all the rest of the physickans involved kn the care of that paies, which
we wiolld still consider as trauma care, would nod he covered.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
That s correct, but thst @8 the way the bill is drafted.

DR, DAUBRS;
That peeds to be addressed,

SENATOR RAGGID:

A this poimt the commiite: understands there & mof agreement between the legal and medical
professions om this langoage in the bill, 'We need o have some discussion on it. We will take questions
om this spedt of 0

SENATOR MCGINKESS:

Unless | am reading this wrong, line 34, page 2, ialks aboai ibe limilation, "Which occurs afier ihe
patéent ks stabilieed and is capable of receiving medical treatment 25 @ nonemergency patiend, ondess
surgery is required 35 a resull of the emerpgency within a reasonable time after the patient is siabiliced, in
which case the limitation on lability provided by subsecison | applics to any act or omission in repdering
care or assistance which occiars before the stabilization of the patient following surgery.” W looks (0 me if
§ patient is stabilized in the trasms center of grpergency noam, then you, Dr, Daubs, ane nequired to
provide surgery. I books like you are still covered by (e cap anfil the patient & stabilized afier the
surgery.

DE. DALUBS:
‘That is corpect. That is cur underetanding as well,

SEMNATOR MOGINNESS:
I wooild dhink ik ahoabd sover you theowgh the surgeey afier the palst of the rawma.

DR. DAVUBS:
1t 15 broad rather than namow.

SEMATOR MOGINNESS:

1 thought |t covers you up 10 ihei poini.

SENATOR RAGGIO

The point 1% n subsecton 2a), oven after ssabilizabion, the cap would apply if there 15 suTgery
regquired as a result of the emergency, and & ocours within a reasocable time afier stabilization, That 15
ihe point Senator MeGinness is making, Does tha afleviaie some of your concerms?

DR, DALRS:
I think, il addresses my concerns. | guess, the ward “slabilize, " medically, is nsch o broad wornd.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

That seems fo be the agreement unless you can give ws a beser word. In any case, when it comes
before the court o & jury, they will determine based upon cxpert testimony which would come from
medical providers as 10 when stabifizagion actually occwrred. In ihe opinion of the Chalr, wnless you have
cne, | dio nog (hink we can pull some ofher defmition of sabilization oo this b 1 would geess it means
soenething different I cach case insolar as the patiem 5 concemed. There may be some (hings, like
bloos] pressure, hean rae, whatever, that may be taken inio consideration as o siabilization, bat most
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CiMartd i juries are poing ko rely on what medical restimony there &5 a8 10 when stabilizaton oocurmed.
Am | confused !

DR. DALUBS:
Condd | have jost a lew minubes with oar legal counsel before we completely apgree an this?

SEMATOR RAGGHO:
As | sand, we need o proceed this moming, 0 make some arrangement 1o pel this done.,

DR. DAUBS:
Tt will be donie guickly.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Diber questions? Senasor Tinas,

SEMATOR TITUS:
If there is an sccidend on the highway and an ambulence pheks you up, o 14 5 determined whether
yioru are taken o ibe Irsuma cemer or lhe emergency room af the nearest hospital?

DR. DAUBS:

There are several criteria used by doctors insofar as the mechanisen of injury, what the damage 1, and
bow critically injured the paticot could be. They will call one of the emergency rooms, say, Sunrise or
Valley Hospiiad im Las Vegas, and those physicians desermine whether i oould potentially be a serjous
injury, them trauma sclivation coours.

SEMATOR TITUS:

Have you fallen prey to the problem of divers with all emergency rooms? Would that be a probicm
with the irauma center?

DR. DALUBS:
Level one (raumas may be oo divert for the standard emergency room patiest & any ofber hospétal,
b thee tramma patient will go 1o he trasms cenler,

SENATOR TITUS:

In section 5 we added, “from each defendant, " Does that apply bere w0o? Do you get 530,000 (rom
cach person who i involved, and the bospsial, or is 550,000 all you can get because it 8 2 povernmmend
entity of o moaprofi?

ME. GILLOCK:

Mo, Bowould be 550,006 from sach wnrifeasor,

SEMNATOR WIENER:

[ have 8 concern shout the provision rased by my collesgise, Senstor MoGinbess, 1o respond 1w Dy,
Cramha® comcerms. I subsequent susgery s requined, the wmbrella prolection exends o it | am comcerned
st because ilbe protection extemnds to @ subsequent surgery which may be a resubl of the original rauma,
a5 a safety issuc for the doctor and i 6 i & judgment call, ihere may be weatnent that might sddness ibe
issue as well, but surgery offers the protection. The westment may be comroversial versus surgery,
which would be better progection in terms of the 530,000 cap.

DR. DAUBS:
Meankig that we secd to nean the patiest, bal sl pecessarily with surgesy?

SENATOR WIENER:
Right, and o the prosection woubd not follow based on the language,

DR, DALBS:
Those are concerns that oeed 0 be addressed oo make 20l physicians. who provide tramma care
comforiable g0 they wall comtinge 10 provide volunieer services al the rauma cenier,
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SEMATOR WIENER:

Maoy | follow up on the word “volameer.” There b langusge o section | on lines 16 and 25,
® pratwitous or for a fee.” T want o be clear that “for a fec” is a fee paid from the nongrafit iestimution (o
the doctor, yersus a foc that may mean the patlenl |s insured and the fee would be coming Ffrom an
msurance comipary. | am concerned that, & some poini, there may be shifling of pavieats 10 the porprofis
or viee versa. Facility shifting is a concem.

ME. GILLOCK:

The reason (hat language is there is 1o eliminate 1he distinction between an mdigent patient and a fee-
paying patient, Whar this sccuon basically docs is take trauma surgeons owl of the liligation process
because no one will take cases throwgh the lRigaton process, amd through coart, with a 550,000 cap.
This includes not only grangicons services bul services where they receive a foe and send ibe bill po the
patient. [ includes all the services thal were rendered during the trauma situstion. That is the reason that
language is there.

SENATOR RAWSON:

| wanted w rederate, a5 you ger mogether and discuss this, om lines 36 and 37, @ s preoy definahle
whether 8 medical treatment 15 &n emergency of mol, This specifically alks aboutl wheiher a perscn can
receive medical treaiment &5 A nonemergency patienl; therefore, sabdlizaion is fairly delined in this. 1
wirald hope you would go abead with thai.

I want s raige another issue. | do not want 10 confuse it and realize if there is no agreement. il ks on
msue that does nol need 1o go any ferther. W have the pateniial for mass casumlty or mass disaster which
coubl be asything from a planc wreck 10 a ferronst iscident thal cocld casily overpower our irauma
room, Consequently, other trawma rooms would become volved. There i a public perpose w0 make
guick decisbons and move those patienss along, | am oot trying 10 open up the Tfull bare of profil trama
FOoMS, and 40 0f, under mOfmal circumdtinces, bl o ihe mims: cadually sAalion, i serves a public
puspose 1o ey and move those poople theough quickly. | would like (o theow thal issee out 1o hath sides.

SEMNATOR RAGGID:

I think that is an excellent suggestion because it could ocour when there i5 a mass, catastrophic
meident, such as a terrorsst altsck, or someihing, We certainly do nod want to bave a law that would
provide 4 greal disincentive for specialist medical providers o deliver that kind af service on a much
needied, quick-aciion bagis,

ME. GILLOCK:

We always base the future on the past. We have had those kinds of disasters in Las Yegas on a fairly
consisignt hasis, We had the Pepeon explosion, the Hilton hogel fire, the MOGM Grand fire, and there was
ahsdlutely mo IRigation ansng ot of any of those disasiers agamsl any surgeons or medical providers,
Evervbody in the community recogized the situation,

DE. DAUBS:

Oibwiously, if we hisd that protection, we w'oald like it,

SENATOR O'DOMNNELL:

1 will being wp am awe tha [ Brought op befofe. It fevalves arocnd e $50,000 cap. | heard My
Ciilbock say, mo arlomey would ke & case will tbe limitation of $50,000. It would never come b0 coun
becaase theee (s 3 $30,000 cap.

ME. GILLOCK:
[ cannot say, ibere 13 Dot someone out ibere thay might take the case, but [ cannod Imagine a docior i
2 trauma siiusbon with this cap ending up bo the Inigation process.

SENATOR O'DONMELL:

Do you find that readly unfais i |, of any one of my children, were in 4 car accident that requined
irauma care, and because 1he Irsuma cenber is bocabed on & governmen! facility, | would be limled to,
basically, no redreas? | know how mach it costs w go throagh a rial. 1 think the doctors feel differemiy
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tham what you ane projecting. Doctors wanl medical malpraciioe insurance because they know if they are
ap umfil two o'clock in e morning, then have 1o get up at six o'cleck in the morning for anather
surgery, are working bhack-ro-back and happen 10 make a mistake, they winl thal patient covered,

ME. GILLOCE:

1 think altorneys have lo make the core issue balancing the peeds of the commumities. | have had the
andfortunate experience of holding someone’s hand in the trauma center and observed ihe patienl being
cared for at lighiming speed. In arriving at this provision, we bascally have recognized that these doctors
move quickly, and unbess they do something egregious, such as being drunk or daing something reckless,
careless, or wanton, which &5 complete isck of any degree of ciare whilsoever, we musl consider he
issue. | am opposed 1o any cap on damages for amy reason oiber (han when eight people sitmg o iha
box el me, you win or you lose, and the person is emtitled 10 a5 moch compersation. Yes, | fnd this
offensive, but [ think we have 0 balance the issue. | wenl o the (rauma center on the founth of July
weckend and made a great desl abowi the facn i was nia open. | thought il was a harrible thing ihe
dociors dul in milling out af the traama cenier om thai weekend, In locking back, | think they probably
agree widh me. | think we have a real halancing situation here. and it is anfortunsie when someone dpes
e have a remsedy. We have some of the best tramma plyysicians in the coustry in Las Vegas,

SEMATOR O'DOMNELL:
I thimk | will get & medical bracelet that says, “Take me to Sunrise if [ have a trauma, ®

SEMATOR COFFIN:

Using Dv. Dauhg as an cxsrmgle, as | understend . vou are & $3500000 cappod docior when you ke
practicing in your office. The minute you eross the street o the trauma unit from your offiee, you
become & $50,000 capped doctor. Correct? You are & sovercign immanity doctor &8 you work on that
person im the traema unil,. Mo dispetes, so far?

DR. DALES:
Mo dispates, g0 [z

SEMNATOR COFFIN;

Afer you have worked on this person, it may happen that you will become that person’s contimung.
care physician, You have dooe the initial scabilization and may have performed surgery or one of several
surgerics (o come. When do you bose sovercign immmbiy protection wnder this bill as i 4 wrines®

DR. DAUBS:

My understanding is the day the patient walks inbo my office for folloa op, whatever il is, 1 am not
protécied. This is of concern o me betanse care of & patiest involves pot ondy the initial surgery and
stabilization, but also care undil they are wWiimately stabilized or well. That is what we do.

SENATOR COFFIN:

That & wisst, | thask you were ying (o pel 8l in your earlier staemend, bt | could not quise
undersaand it so | had 1o pa il in byman's langeage,

DR, DALRS:

As a privaie physician, [ do pot have a clinle o UMC, [ volunteer at ihe trauma cemier, take care of
patients, and they do iheir follow up in my office. I is & contimuation of care. That is what we do. [ ihink
contimal care should be covered after developing & relationship with that patient at the frauma center.
These shoald be reasomabbe continuantbon under the imtial cap. This would not include new issees sach &
a hamd fracmre or somcthing of that nature. Contimual care is standard for amy ivpe of surgery or
treatmend of & paticat

SENATOR COFFIN:
That is vour opinsom. | think thar has o be worked out then.

MRE. GILLOCK:
Far the recond, 1 think we coulil say that sould be sireschang the level playing feld beyond any means
ol reality. | do not (kink thal was the imtem of this raema Bill, The intent was not 1o provide & doctor
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total tsolation in continged care of their paticnes. | think, wha the Scaste did earlier (his moming and akl
day yestenday. sufficicaly, addresses the issuc.

SENATOR RAWSOMN:

Juse a5 & clarification, [ seems to me that the doctor i this Follow-up care b8 not simply beld o oa
higher siandard, he is beld to & sandard of peudent care of &n sversge peactitioner (m thal spectalty, of
whatever, If a bad resuli stems from the acthon during the protected phase, i secms o me hal is 2 non-
suit issue. IF a bad sesuli comes afier tbe (ollow-up care, then i i that level of sandard care by which he
is judgped. | understand his degire io do that,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Yiou are right on the wording a1 the present tims.

SENATOR NEAL:

Let me ask you a pia-lawyer type question, if | may. The UMC hospial doctors work in the maama
area which is somelimes extended 1o the emergency toom. Does this cover the doctoes i the emergency
room, who do not work wauma?

ME CROCKETT:
Dactoes who work [or UMC are covered onder the povernmenl immunity cap regardless of wherne
they ane working o what they are doing.

SEMATOR MEAL:

I am comterned because the language on bine 21 says, “Who remders cane or asidstance in a hospital or
a poveridmenial colny (hal has been disignaled a5 a center for the treatment of Eriema” that language
could be bnterpreted 1o eliminate doctors who do nod work in the irauma situation.

ME. CROCKETT:

Mo, Secator, this i considersd a further refinement of that. We know from other laws that all doctors
wha wirk at governmentally owned hospitals, UMC for example, are coversd by the 530,000 sovercign
imamumity cap, This bill Further réfines that and includes doctors working in the irawma cénter who ane
mil pecessarily emplovees of UMC, those doctors are going 1o be extended that cap 1o,

SENATOR NEAL:

O, BDaubs, if ikis was pt into cffect would you anticipste privase hospitals, soch as Sunrise, Yalley
and Women's Hospital, when confromied with an emergency-type situation, woald tend o refer (hose
individuals to emergency cane at UMC po avoid being sued?

DE. DAUBS:

1 do mot see thal happening because (here ane so many provisions thet essentially categorine @ trauma
patiens. However, should our valley grow as large as it may, should one of tbe other institethons open a
trauma cenber, it slsould have the sume proteciion.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

I ihink f(hat opens a good question. 'Why b the bill limifed (o 2 nonprofil organization if, kn fact, any
Bospital s designabed a3 & cenler of ireatment for rauma in the manser in which that is designated? The
bill mdicaies the Administracor of (he Health Division of the Deparmeni of Haman Rescarces designates
it Why shoildn't 1his apply 10 3ny hospitad (hat is desipgnated &5 a (rauma center under thas processT Why
ghouddl fit just be & povernmeental o sonprodit haspltal

DAN MCBRIDE, M.D, (Mevada Muual Lishiliny Company):

1 am & general surgeon in Las Vegas, | was one of the firs crasnass surgeons In Las Yegas, traincd o
the rasmks cenler, and am a TLS-cemified imstrocior. | mo longer provide irauma serviee at UMC;
bowever, we are called wpon regularly to provide irsuma care al every other facility in Las YVegas, A
gunshol patient may be brought 1o any bospital, oot necessarily by the EMS, but usually, by somebody i
a dlrive-by shooding or a person who B shol at bome is browght by car 1o Sunrise, Yalley or Sutnmerlin
bospitals. That person is a trawma paticsy and is, every bit, an emergency as if they were brough o
L'MC. We have no sovercign coverage for taking care of thal trauma patienl, but his injdry is jus) &
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severe and life threalening. We cannot transfer that patent. That is a vielation of federal law, It s an
EMTALA (Energency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act) violation. Those patients must be cared
for at the Facility fo which they are taken under emergency circumstances, In my opinion, all provisions
and coverage supplied 10 ihe (raima physicians at UMC ghould be apphed io emergency case al any
Facility in the Staie of Mevada. That would be the case in 4 mass-casualty circumsiances,

SENATOR RAGGID,

That & a suggestsm then. Would you go further and siy whether or not the facility has been
designated a5 a tranma center? IF the injury is somelhing b iy freated in an emergency’ moom, would it
nod cover almos) everything? Evervbody comes ingp the emergency room, dom”t they?

D#E. MCBRIDE:

They come lmlo the emergency room, but in these circumstances, we are talking abool essentially lile-
threatening injurics. Wi are nof talking abowl a bumg on the head. There sre some artificial distincrions
being muude

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Are you saying any cases where there s Life-threatendng injury, umtil the patient s siabilized, those
ought to be wnder the same limitation on damages?

DE. MCBRIDE:
Coerect. Even if you stabilize a paticnt. Senmor Raggio, you are nod allowed o iransfier thal patient to
the comney facilky. You are responsible for thal pasient’s care at the private facility until be is discharged,

SENATOR RAGGID:
s this something that was discussed i he process of segotiation considered, nod eomsidered orF
rejechsd? Do youi knoaw?

MRE. CROCKETT:
That is why [ was a liide taken aback at i being Droughi ap at his poant, This Bnguage supposedly
reflects the joum consensus ol opimion.

SEMNATOR RAGGID:
‘This commitiee is nol boumnd by whal was negotiated. We are trying 10 understand what was pegotasied
asud why this bill Is balanced as it is. That is the mason for the question,

M. CROCKETT:

I did noll mean o Infor, in any way, that whal we said hes any binding eficet oo the Senate, 1 meant 1o
say, Im verms of the megotiations thai weni on between ibe parties ihai were discussing the bill drafting,
anid =0 (oo, snd the Enguage 1o be incleded, all those issues were discussed

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Why shouldn®t this be provided? Why should it just be lmited o 3 governmenial or nonprofic,
propesly designated rawma conter when a similar 0t or occurpence in onether facility under the same
circumsiances would not be covered? What iz the distinction?

MR. CROCKETT:

The digtinction was (ke reason for closing the wraams center to begln with, as brought up by
Dy, Daubs, A doctor can be working shoulder-1o-shoulder in 8 surgical thester alongside other doctors,
sorme of whom are employed by UMC and are, iberefore, covered under the umbrella of the S50, 000
sovereign immunity. Perhaps, Dr. Dawbs happemed 1o receive & call that day o0 come in, and he, a5 a
privaie physiclan, is working alosgsidé ihe UMC emploves, bul because he happens 10 be a private
phiysician, be (s on an unleveled playing field, as he refers to it He would be freaied differently, Because
UMC had a sovereigo-immunity cap of 350,000, which Dr. Dachs did not have a8 & privae physician.
The physicians felt they would, in fact, become a deep-pocket arget because they did not bave the cap,
and therefore, people would look 1o them a3 a source of recovery since the $50,000 sovercign Immunicy
cap was such & discouragement 10 suil, The surgeons refused o repurn io the trauma center and allow that
situation i contimse, They saad they could nol operste under hat kind of pressure and shoald be treated
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the same as their colbeagues with whom they are working who are coversd by that immunity, The traumia
centér at the govermmsent- immansd facility was singled oal for treatment to specifically address the
trauma center clasure,

MR. GILLOCK:

Ome farther commem, we mest remember e sole parpose for the S50, 0060 soversign-momimity
limitatbon i 10 proiect the public funds and public treasury of the Sate of Nevada and taxpavers'
exposure. That is why e cap i thete, and the only reason it i5 there. [ would be 3 wiad calastrophe 1o
anybody injured fo extend that coverage 10 privase hospitals and, all of a sedden, el private hospitals
they have the same protéction a5 tax payers and pablic fands. [ do nol think that would scnd
chestitulional musier,

SENATOR RAGGIO;
There are compelling arguments on bolh sides of (his issue,

DR MCBRIDE:

In mos major metropolitan aress the siee of Las Vegas, there s more than one trouma unit. There
may be a level-1 trauma umit, or @ kvel-1 trauma unit, Tn Tuceon, Arizona, 1 believe, there are three,
Ooe 15 cloging, then there will be two. One i 3 private facility, amd one is a poblic facidny. The care
given 1o the public i the seme in both Facilitics. There & no distinction made aboul the responsibilities of
a physician,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

You wanted 10 go Rirther and say that even if 1 was not designated as o trauma censer, IF they are
treating the same kind of life-threatening injury, it should be covered. That is moving far beyond what is
im tkis bill.

DR, MCBRIDE:
[ undersiand, Scnator, bui yes, that is my belief and my feeling as a inesimg physician. Wi are oa (e
line no matier where we are called,

DE. DALBS:

Trauma cemict physicians at UMC are privae, independent coniractor physicians that are noé coversd
by e cap of the emergency room physicians. There are some trauma surgeons that also fall wader the
cap, bur they sull carry nsarsnce because they are nok guile sure whether or not they are coversd by the
cap and need thelr own profection. If you are considering extending ihis, there are chear definsizons in ibhe
stamites that define a irsuma patient; bowever, that is another isue beyond this

SENATOR RAGGHD:
Could there be some lumher agreement between the two groups?

DR. DALBS:
Nod in miy oginian,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
We will wake that under consideration. Are there other questions at this poant? If pot, are there any
others who wish to offer 1estimony on this issue?

BILL WELCH (President, Mevada Hospital Associason);

I want o thapk you for the opporbanity to speak. | would like (0 follow op on the prior discission.
The associstion has surveyed s membership, and we recommend modifying the language In sections |
and 2 by climinating the language that specifies the profection for trauma s linited sobely 1o mon-for-
prodit or public hospitals, As the discussion ensoed, 1 was chearly demansirated that trauma-level patients
are presenbed Al any medical facility, The issees that are associated with what is addressed bere will
potentially apply fo those facilities as well. As physickans in ihe community recognize they will be
prosected in one environment only and pol in another, we may fisd ourseives with a shifting of medical
giaff, which would limit the ability of patienis oo socess health cane across-the-board and throughout the
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entife commumity, We recommiend you limi if o patients who mest (he NAC (Nevada Adminsstrabive
Coxde) requirements for trawma, which is defined in the statuses.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Is Ibere a precise definitbon of a trauma-level patbent?

MR. WELCH:
Bodh the MAC and the Amencan Colbege of Surpeons sre used as the standards for estabiishing rmima
designations,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

You woald recommend the cap apply in any hospitsl with respect 1o a trauma-pevel patient care upder
ihe same limitations that a cap would spply wp wneil sabdlizatdon or for the exceplion following sufgery
within a ressonable period, |s that what you ane saying?

MR, WELCH:
Than Is correct, Sensior Raggho.

JTANICE PIME (Saint Mary's Heallh Negwark):
In Hees 26, 27, 28 and 29, it would be easy 1o deleie cenain of those words and sdd: “An injury to a
patiesl meeting treuma guilelines as defined by NAC.™ That would cover it

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Do you differ from the definition we alked aboul with regard o 8 trauma-level patient? |5 tha
differem language or is it a different situation?

M5, FINE:
I thimk “a patiént meeting irauma guidelines™ would probably be cleaner. There are different levels of
traumi cenbers, amd the gusdelizes are the samie for all (he cenbers,

SEMNATOR RAGGIO:
Are you saving. cssentially, be same ihing as Mr, Welch?

M5, PINE:
Yeg, | was just irying tooffer you concise lamgusge.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Is ihere any other testimony on section | of Senate Bill Mo, 27

DR, MCRRIDE:

I am predidest of the Mevada chapler of the American College of Sufgeons. They do tfausma
cenificalion scross the county for all wraums cenlers. Mr. Welch madde a paini that one problem may bea
reduction in hospical sl feom physicians wishing w0 protect themselves from possible lability exposare
for raking care of trasns patients. Sunmse Hospaial, the largest hospital n the State with the buslest
emergency room, has the fowest oumber of general surgeons om s staff of amy mapor bospilal in Las
Viegas., Thero are 16 peneral surpoons taking call. Surgeons have dropped off from siaff, resigned and
taken leaves of absemce, precisely. for (his reason. 'When the trauma cener closed, (Tawma paticns were
taken fo every (acility i the Las Yiegas area, My panticualar group was on call for five different hospitals,
We were responsible for approximately 20 percent of the frauma patients a1 every facilily, day or aight,
mn addition to our other patients. When surgeons drop ofT from slaff, there are fewer phiysicians o take
calls. The physicians remaining o0 call mus (hen assume the barden of care for these patiemts m addinion
b any contraciual obligations or workboad they already have. They do thal based on their ethics and
principals as physicians. It alen exposes them lo isordinate rigk, son-compersated risk and son-volieniery
risk.

SENATOR RAGGI:

Under the Governos's proclamation the: Legislatare s aniborized w0 consider lmmiting lisbiliy for acis
ooouwrting in 4 governmental of nonprofit censer for the reatment of trauma, [ would appear tha §f we
atiempted o extend (his 1o oher thin goversmental of sospeofll centers, W would fequire the Governog
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by imswe another proclamation suthorizing us 1o pass that kind of legislation, If ibe commattee wanis o
request that, we can pass it on o the Governor, bul @ the presend tdme, i | omside the Governor's call
umbess | am told otherwise, What is the opinion of counsed?

I agree, Senator Maggio, and | wurge this committec o 4o just thal. Trauma pabieots are oot
distinguished by what facility they are in.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

We will ke tha umder advisement, bul &t the present time, 1 woildd have to role 0 oul of onder. ks
thar eorrect?

ME. WILKINSON:

Mr, Chairman, based on our review of case biw in Nevads and ciber stales comoeming the ssue of the
calil of 1be proclamation, 1 beliewe that would fall within the generl subje¢t matier of the prociamation
fram e Governor and would nol be outside the call

SENATOR RAGGID:
Even though B says, “cocuming s govermnmental or mosprofil center?™

ME. WILKINSODN;
There is spme discretion in inierpreiing specifbc provisions of the proclamarion, There i sl pocm for
SOme Expansing,

SENATOR RAGGIOD:
We will allow the testimsoay then. 1= there any other public sestimony 2 his poist?

ROBERT A, OSTROVEKY (Lake Mesd Hospital):

Lake Mead Hospital services a lot of trauma patients, We get many gunsboq and stab wound victins
because of the location of the hospital, They are ranms patients. | would urge vou 1o comsider what has
been proposed, today, becaisie, as even the tral lawyers admit, trauma surgeans work al lightning speed.
They do not do (he kind of workups that maght be expecied before surpery. They make [t minole, quick
decisions about what body parts 1o treal because they secen (o be the most seriously iejured, bypassing
what may have mreed osl laer o be the most serbous injury. Fegandiess of whether a physiclan s
standing in a peofit or soaprofii hospial, we belbeve he or she makes the best medical decisiors and faces
the intended risks. We suppont e hoapital asseciation’s position. Thasnk you

SEMNATOR RAGGI:
I there any maore tlestimony?

SENATOR COFFIN:

Al whai point does the Good Samaniian Law begin and esd? Can dociors ember an emergency room or
& non-traama center and be under the protection of the Good Samaritan Law? Docs (bist happen™ Has i
happened” Do we have any case Law?

ME. GILLOCE:
The county commission can declane an emergency siaalion, and at that point, rauma surgeons come
mder the Good Samaritan Law,

ME. WILKINSON:

Mr, Chairman, NRS 41 5305 5 a Good Szmardan stsnne which peowides thay any person laoensed
under provizions of chapiers 630, 632 or 633 of MRS, or a person comsing from amother stsc who has an
cipaivabent license who renders cmergency care assistance o an emergency, grafstously and in good faith
is nod lisble for civil damages a5 & result of any acl or conissson amousiing 1o gross negligence in
rendeTing emergency carg, That does oot excase a physician or nurse from lishility for damages resulting
from acts or omissions occurring im a licensed modical Facility rebstive 10 a person when there B a
preexisting relalipnship as o patient. The key there i thai these are services being rendened gragitoosly
and in good faith. There i no payment there.
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SEMATOR RAGGID:

I 3m not clear on that explanation. SRS 41,505 applies 0 3 person who gives instruction or provides
supervision, for example, to an emergency medical aftendant or registered nurse at the sceme of an
emergency or during (he Iranspartstbon of an Hl or njured person from the scene of emergeney and i mol
tlable for damapes unbess ihere & gross neglipence, ks thas correct™ s vhat what §t says? What does It say
olberwise?

MK, WILKENS(N:

That is acyuslly subsection | vou are reading Subsection 2 is the provision po which | was referring.

SEMATOR RAGGID:

You xre pot Hable for civil damages 35 a resall of any act or cenisseon if 1t is pat gross pegligence in
rendering emeTpency care or assigtance, Right? To provide or arrange for farther medlical (reatmenl does
nod excuse 3 physician or nurss from lability for demages resulting from acts o omassions which oocur
in a licemsed medical facility relstive (o any person with whom there s 3 preexisting relabonship as a
pariced, bal if there 1= no preexlsing relationship, does i appdy? That is the way | pead B

MR, WILKINSON:
The other key Fachor k& thal services ane rendered gratusiously. Thal i3 in suhsotison 2.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Gratwitowsky angd in good fadth, right?
ME. WILKINSON:

Correct.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
I applies iF a person renders cmerpency CAne OF MEINARCE N an emergency, pramipusly and in good
faith, amd there ks nol a precaisiing relationship berween ihe physicim and paies.

BE. WILKINSOMN:
That s correet.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Dioes that answer your question?

SENATOR COFFIN:

Yes it docg. It mecans a physician is being paid 1o be oo emergency staft without recovery. Althoagh, |
suppose il & physician happened 10 be an the premises or nearby, was nol being pakd to eilber be on call
or part of the emergency room feam, happencd e be called in immediately, had no comnection (o the
patient and was not heing paid a fee, that person wouald be coversd.

SENATOR RAGGICO:
17 it mees tha defimition.

SENATOR COFFIN:
Iv soumds ke in is not in this low and would need a separase low,

SENATOR RACGIO:
Was there some other comment here, Doetor?

DR. MCHRIDE:

I need some clarificstion on the Good Samaritan principal. Insofar as | am aware & a physician
reating emergency patients, 1 have pever been koown o fall under the Good Samaritan cap or Good
Samaritan provision providing emergency services when | am called upan ai &n emergency-rocm {acility
I gan undersdnnd i, a8 exiendsd, if [ wee sn scchdesd By the side of the road or wilness 4 (raumatic
mciden somewhens, bul in the emergency room setlmg, as far as | am concerned, the Good Samaritan
Law diocs oot apply 10 us. [ wish i would, | would ercourage (his body o endorse that principal if they
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would, but 1 do not think that provades s any protection. If it dud, there would be no need for a cap at
LIME on irsuma surgeons hecausse they would already be provided for ender the Good Samaritan Law,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

While we are on this subject, yesterday, while the Governor was bere, there was some question (o
which he responded thal hes some relatipnship 0 what we are discussing, What aboul physicians who
provide pro bono, services withoul compensation, graiuwitowly? | do pod koow whal setling we ane
referring 10, bl where, for example, mdigen paticnts of something of tha kind are being caned for,
there was some discutsbon abow an immunily provision. [las tbere been some discussion on thar? 18 tha
a sinastion (el meeds o be addressed?

DR. MCBRIDE:

I would like 1o expand on i a [inle because you brought up @ very good point yestenday, Call services
for surgeons of any physiclan are compulsory in those circumstances. We do nod have the cholee of not
taking call in an emergency room. I is part and provision of your saff privileges. We ke call a0 sl
mapor hospitals. When we pet called on a pstbent 1o provide emergoncy case for them, whether it is
tramms of appendicitis or whatever, we 1ake care of them,

SEMATOR RAGGID:
ks that grarudloos?

DR, MCBRIDE:

It is grabaitous i the sense (hid we do nof ask them whether ihey have insurance or cash or how they
are going 1o pay os, We have 1o ake care of them, by law, and we do it by ethical slandands s well, We
cannol tramsfer that patiem 1o anotber facility, We cannol send that patient 10 the county at UMC and say,
“You do ool kave insuranoc. | am oof socing you.™ We are responsible for 1aking carg of i indigent.
That is gramubious in the seose thal we have no conlraciosl arrangement with them. They can pay us il
they choose 1o pay us. Most of the dme they do show ap in our office for & follow =p visit, and we pever
see bem again. That & pan of what we do.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
I think we were talking about a situation where there was oo payment of any kind, expecied of not.
Am [ talking aboal two differem ihings?

DR. DAUBS:
I hasically and completely support the provision that the Governor was lalking abowt as far as work al
a elimic where we can do pro bono sork.

SEMATOR RAGGEY:
You do not get paid for that, do you?

DR DAUBS:
Mo, and we would eompletely suppon teat,

SEHATOR RAGGHD:

That would oot excuse you ablogether il there were gross negligence or wanion reckbess mistonduct,

DR, DALBS:

Mo, [ would mol, and we woubd agroe with that, 1 ohdnk it sliows us, and the lawyers have also agreed
an this, #0 go oo those clinics and treat those wnforiunate pateents who do not kave care,

SENATOR RAGGID:

I do ool thiak ibat |s covered i this B0 and | do noed know whether or oot it s covered under the
cxisting proclamation. [ think the Governor was amenable in his remarks 1o adding it 25 a pan of the call.
I there is no real disagreemeni over [, maybe something can be done.

DE. DAURS:

We support thal,
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SENATOR RAGGIO:
I= ibere amy obpection o thar?

MR. GILLOCEK:

I think the countless howrs spenl geiting this o yoo was designed (0 address the bssues of (he
Crovernor's proclamaton,

SENATOR RAGGID:

[ understand that, bt we have linited time here. This is not & rubber-stamp body.

ME. GILLOCK:

I umderstand. That ks why | cannod andersiand why, all of a sudden, Dr. McBride comes in wath his
“doctor’s ba® and says, “We wam fo extend this 1o all privaie hospitals.™ Thea in come the other
doctors o say, “We wand 1w go pro bono.” We have w think through ithis becaunse these have
ramafications on people’s rights.

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Im fairmess, | ihink | ralsod the Ssue of pro bono with ibe Governar, yesberday, which 8 why 1 asked

the questbon, agaim, lodxy. It spunded like there was nol any real iype of obpoction io that, bul ke will scll
i i1 there i5.

MR GILLOCK:

I siggest we do mol jump into something that will affect a lor of righie. Perhags 1 ls something s
shonibd address i a subsequent scsslon, IF we get imo the pro bomo lssue, we mus ask, where does it
g1an and where does it end? | have no problem meeting with the dociors snd attempiing o resolve this,
bt | canmol make any represemations to this committos tha can b dooc in an hour or o of cight,

SEMATOR RAGGIY:
While we are on that subjeci, s thene, now, any femaining meed to sddress the stabilizsion Ssue, or
can we act on the bill a8 preseendy wrinen? There was some ongoing discuszion abow that part of the bill.

ME. GILLOCK:
From the atioroey”s standpoind, we can act an the ball

SEMNATOR RAGGIO:

What about the medical standpoint? 1 think we hed a fairly complese discussion about this, and | am
nial going te go theough i all sgain.

ROBERT MCBEATH, M. D, (Nevada Medical Liabilicy Physicians Task Foree):

Was it something specific?

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Section | provides the 50,000 cap in a trauma setting umil the pavient is stahilized. We discossed
whal stabilization meand, and 1 do mol wam te go through the whobe dislogise. Tt is someihing that would
be delermined in cach case, There is 4 medscal inderstanding thar medical experty would sestify as
when stabilization occurs,

DE. MCBRIDE:

That ks correct. There i3 no firm nole or pattern to determine what iz a stabde patient. The
imberprecstion is subjective,

SENATOR RAGGI:

D we nocd w0 change this langaage? I this something on which we agnee”

DR. MCERIDE:

I, personally, do oo belbeve we need oo change (0. [ thiek it should be in the opinion of the experis o
treating physician as 1o what is siable,

SENATOR RAGGE
Doctor Daubs, do you disagree?
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DE. DAUBS:
1 would like 1o ke 10 minales with our counsel just v clarify.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
We do pot have 10 minutes. Are there any otber lesimony or questions on this whole issue?

SENATOR SHAFFER:
| am curious whether the physickans working in the irauma cener arc pasd on salary?

DE. DALUBS:

Typically, as o spimal srgeon, [ am not on g stipend it paid for o 24 howr period: 541 an hour for
2d-howr coverage. Should 3 patient have insurance, they dre hilled for treatmens.

SENATOR SHAFFER:

Il the patiens needs folkw up @ ihe docior’s private office, can the dotlor charge whakever fee he
wanied?

DR DAUBS:

Typleally, how & works in the msurance industry, §f 8 pateent 5 billed for surgery, the care is
cortineed for 90 days, and there is no olker foe.

SENATOR RAWSON:

As proposed yesterday. 1 would like i ask the pamics w consider some strbet definiibors on pro bono
regarding free work in 3 medical and denial peblic faciliy. Mot free work done in an office, not wriie off
or bad debs. bul where there are specific free clinics set up in a pubdic facility 10 handle people with no
other access, and there s o0 intent W0 ever bill, A tremendous pablic service could he done BF we could
open that aspect a litthe bit, 1 would like fo ask tbe atormeys 10 comtider some area of tha,

ME. CROCEETT:
Wiheen vou say “public facility,™ do you mean a govérnment-owned faciliny?

SENATOR RAWSON:
Yes.

SEMATOR RAGGHD:
A clinle of thar namre,

SENATOR COFFIM:

I have a thought regarding a person switching from one liabdlny cap 1o another. In the case of Dr.
Drauhs, if be 5 o0 call and takes a patbent with a spinal imjary that s covered under the cap at the trauma
cemier. because of palitical praciicalities acd time Hembs, he probably would por be probocied i e inests
the persom outside 1be haspital, | am inclined 10 think he will not win that batibe. [ think a person would
remain in the bospdial bager, incurring larger biills because thal would proiect the doctor, That is what |
wiuld do. As 3 physickan, | would no recommend discharge undil | knew the person wias really siabilided
and ready o comse into my facility, Then, of course, there would be problems with (he utilization-review
peopbe and the capacity of the kospital,

DR. MCBRIDE:

Tor wrap this wp, from oar perspective, a docior’s arrangemend with a patient i basscally a comrac. 1§
ihe docior s agreed o ke cane of a patient in the hospital, he or she is requined by law (o corntioue the
care oulgitde tbe facility until the injury of condition is reated. 1 i called ahandonment 3f a doctar doss
ol [Teal ar see & patbent,

DE. DALBS:
Ethacally, il goes beyond that. We all feel an cthical obligation to ireat those patients.

EEMATOR RAGGIO:
[ wind 1o clear up another ssue radsed by staff | asked Scon Yousg to sddress the "stacking” issue.

SCOTT YOUNG (Principal Research Analysik
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The siacking issue poes back 19 & response fo Senator Care's question, [n MRS 41,035, the stataie thal
provides @ 350,000 mmmumity cap o sale enlities and cmployess of political subdivisions. There &
Innguage thal says 1he imitation provides a $50,000 cap exclhusive of interest compuied from ihe date of
judgment ta or for the bepefit of any clabmant, The understanding amongst the slaff is it his been
iperpretad o allow maulikpie claimass, o plainiilfs, w sach seek potentially $50,000, In 1he hill, on
page I, lines 30 amd 31, the langumpge speaks of mol being keld liable for more than S50,000 in civil
damages as a resalt of any &1 or omission in rendering that cane or assistance, ‘The clarficatbon we ane
secking is whether the panies imend, under the banguage in e bill, 1o allow the potentlal for maliiple
claimants o seek 550,000 ogi of any individual occurrence. la olher words, the language in the bill is
meant o say there can only he a masimum recovery of 350,000 for any incident regardless of the
munher of claimants.

ME. GILLOCR:

Thee way 1 read it, there wouald be 3 530,000 cap for civil damages resalting from any act or omission
in rendering care. Therefore, any damages would be totally limited to $30.000. ki changes under the
section regarding reckless, willfol and wanton misconduct,

SENATOR RAGGID:
The quesiion is whether tbere comld be more fhan ome plaingiff.

MR, GILLOCK:
More than one plaineifT, then there would be more 1than one $50,000 cap, yes.

SENATOR RAGGID:
You are inerpreting that (o mexn 550,000 for each plainsidT. Is that what you are saying?

ME. GILLOCK:
Right. That is not 2 change in (e law. That is the way the Law i now,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
We wanl to make B clear. |5 it corsistent with what is in the other provisionT

ME. GILLOCK:

Since we are using different language, namely benefit of any claimam i NRS 41,035, we wanl 1o be
sure we e not repeating that language in the bill. By the way, the provision i the bill would also be in
chapier 41, We wanted 10 avaid any misundersianding or confusion, perhaps by a courl, why we ussd the
language “benefit of any claimant” in one instance and did not repeat it in ibe other. Perhaps i wiowld
suggesi io someooe thal we meant o freal plaintiffs differencly. | ibink ibe imentlon was 1w make it
consistenl.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Is thai everybody"s undersianding’

ME. GILLOCK:

It was supposed to be made consisent with existing law,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Is that 1he doctor's understanding?

. MCBRIDE:
We are ol sitorneys and ibe sttomey who did e negotisting is not present. [ would have 1o defer,

SENATOR RAGGH:

I think the way we approached (he cap sistion as 0 ¢ach defendant and cach panty is preity clear oa
ihe record; however, If we ane poing 0 amend it in amy way, perhaps, the language should be clearer 2
to imicni.

We will recess until 12:30 pom., and in that period of wme, [ will ask the pentlemen 1o gel together on
these issues. The Chair anticipaies that we will hear from you on any ssues that have been raised as 10
whether or not they shoubd be included in this measere. Specifically, whether or nol (s commitiee wants
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o provide immunity in the type of pro-bopo simailon in a public facilioy, Le. a clinic of some patire, 1o
provide immanity for ordinsry neglipence not smounting o gross peglipence, of something af that kind,
Aleo, whether or nod the bill should be amended o have the 550,000 cap also apply in a sHestion awhere 3
Irsuma-bevel patient B Envolved whether or mol it i in & governmental or monpeodit fecitity. The
commitiee may have other amendments they wish 10 propase and you will be informed regarding it.

If there is modhing clee at this tme, the oxmmiteee is adjourned amil 12:30 p.o.

SENATOR RAGGID;

The Committes of the Whole will please come back 1o order, The committes has been provided a copy
of the draft of ibe proposed amendment (o Senase Bill Mo. 2 sdopied ihis moming. Let the Chair know if
ihere are amy objections o (ke language appearing therein, | am going &0 ask cither Brad or Jan whene the
suggested language, particularly where the section was nod mbended to limit the respansibility of aay
defendam for ihe 1olal economic damages that are awanded, appears, Is it subsection 47 Has the asdience,
o the Individuals al the witness table, had a chance to ook a1 the proposed ansendment?

MR, GILLOCK:
Yex, we have, Mr. Chairman, and we approve the language.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
How abiw the dociors?

GUS W. FLANGAS (Anorney, Physicains Task Forcel:
I was just hanced a copy of the langaage. At this (e, our group is sull mesting 1o kok over the
language.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

I smggest, wou pgef i o bem quickly &0 we con make any neoded changes. We will retum 1o our
iliscusteom

SENATOR SHAFFER:
Have we 1aken care of the anesthetins in the Hh?

SENATOR RAGGIO.
AncsihestologisisTThey are medical doctors. Does somoone want b0 respond 1o tha? Are they covered
inder this?

ME. GILLOCK:

Anesthesiologhsts would be coversd. Umnder the stalute, | think murse ancsithetisis are geperally
considered to be nurse praciitioners. | know they fall umder the category of @ medical-care provider.

SENATOR RAGGIC,

Did that respond to your question? AlL right. Let us refum b our discussion oo Limiting lability foe
BCks OCcurring in & governments] and nonprofit center for trestment of trawma. [e there anything further
o be brought forth on that isue?

MR GILLOCK:

At the direction of the Chale, | prepared and submitted a propossd drafi of langeage for pro-bomo
services for saff io coosider should the commities decide hey would fike 1o have ol in the bill, We
suggest the language be put in the exisling section Lol the bill,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Plcase read i im0 the recond.

ME. GILLOCK:

It says, “When o physician or deniist provides care or assistance b0 patints withoud réquesting or
receiving or expecting compensation or consideration for said services in 4 cling or public facilny, thal
phy=icsan or dentist shall ot be [Bable for civil damages as a resull of any acl of omassion in rendering
that care or assistance if the care or sssance B rendened in gpood falh and ina manoer pol amousling 1o
gross neglipence or reckbets or willful or wanton condusct, ™
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SENATOR RAGGIO:

It appears 10 the Chalr, that language would meet the outline of the discussion subject to the hill
drafier puting it inw whavever language (hey GoEM DOCELEARY.

SENATOR WIENER:
I hawe a spelling correction if T may offer it. On line 3, “libel,” should be “liable.™

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Serator Wiener 15 correot. 1t should be *liable.™ Are ibere any furiber comnsents from the comminee”!

SEMATOR O'CONNELL:
| belbeve, and Senmior Cane alse mentbomed this, ksl in Hew of (he ward “provide,” you might want to
uss “remlered, ” which is the language usad.

SENATOR RAGGID:

If we socepd the idea, (@ should be lel 1o 1he discretion of e bill drafter to pul @1 in suitable language.
Are there any olher comfents?

SENATOR CARLTON:

During the beeak, | discussed this issuee with a couple of proponents. Last session, there was a
volunieer doctor’s bill regarding practice in a federally qualified health facility. 1 koow some of ouar
communily bealth centers are “look alikes™ of thar, | was cursmes whether or not they are provided the
same accord under federal s, [ also found this will still be nosded becaise there are Organizations fhat
dio ot meeet federal standasds. | would 1Eke (hal qoestion answered.

ME. GILLOCK:

I have been seeking a copy of that Bill bt have not réceived it. B is my understanding the federal
mandse applies to clinics other than federally owped and operated clinkcs in ensuripg that indigem
patients receive care. 1 do nod know the breadib of thai provision

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Are there any other comments on ihis? 15 there any other estimony 1o be presented on the ssue of
limiiting lability for acts eccurring in tragma cenlers?

ME. FLAMNGAS:

I am o mative Mevadan, born in Ely, raised in Las Vegas. and have been down soath for many years.
The trawma center in Las Yegas is extremely crucial to ihkai emire anea. nof ondy Las Yegas, bui the
surrounding wwns as well, As you are well aware, the trauma cenger closed recemtly due to Habality
isses acing doctors who essentially volunteer their time to work there, When | say volanteer, I wse the
term joosely becasse docoors are wot only wolunteering they are acroally paying 1o work at the irsuma
center. Their premiums increase when doctors pui UMC on their inserance. Becduse of the casential
nature of the trauma center, il is absolutely crucial that they fall under the Lability cap offered at UMC.
Ome of the issaes fcing dociors when they work at the trauma cemler is they ane reguired nof only o
wiork @l the trauma cemter while on call bt they are also required b work in the emergency room a8
well, This is for a 24-hour period. Any bill should not only provide protection under the cap when Lhey
are working in tbe rauma cefter on Lfauma cascs bt should exiend o any cases ihey deal with in the
emergency room, whether Iruma of mon Wraums. Agaln, they ohe cssestbally voluseering and paying an
imcreased presmiua W be thene.

In additeon, once a doctor wems an individuad, cither in the trsuma cenicr of cmergency room, the
person treated bocomses the dociar's patiemt. The docior has a professional obligaton 10 confinue with
that treatment. Thercfore, after a doctor's 24-hour period in the trauma center. be must provide follow-
up care, Follow-up care may be @ the bospdial m UMC and may inclade care seversl wecks later in the
doctor's office. It is absolotely critical the caps apply fo the doctor even when doing follow-op care in his
office because be did not have the opportunaty 1o choose the patiend. The docior received the patienl
becaise he was on call af the trauma cemler.
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SEMATOR RAGGHD:

We approciste those remarks, boi & we beand carlier, this whole bill has been the subject of kengthy
pepotiations between representaiives of both the medical and legal professions. We have discussed, in
depth, the spplicability of the provision in seclion 2 where il applies the $50,000 cxp lmit in & traema
situation, Thai limited coverage i requiresd uniil the patient i stabilized or if surgery i5 required as a
pesult of the emerpency within a reasonatle hme afier the palient is stabilized. That apparently was the
agreement, and [ do not know whether it shoald be reopened. Although continuing care was suggested,
there is a point where we need o draw the line, | do not want w re-plow ground that has already been
covered.

ME, FLANGAS:
| unlersiand that, Mr. Chairman, but this issee 15 0 crnial o Clark Cousty and southern Nevada. It
is am isswe thay will evensually permeae all through he State.

SEMNATOR RAGGID:

I think the higger issiee is leaving ibe limited Liability up 1o the poind of stahilization, or the excepton |
stated. The hagger question is whether or nol the same lmitation oo Hahility should be extended 1
physicians when they deal with a fraunas-level patient, if thal term s endersiood, when Booccurs in a
faciliny or hospital mot designated as a trauma 1, 2, or 3 facility. [ think that is the issee we really want wo
wdidress at this poant. 1 &0 pof want (o col you ofT, o we have already plowed throagh this, kowever, |
webcome your commenis. | hope you underszand

MR, FLANGAS:

I appeeciate that, Mr. Chairman, and support what you just mentioned. Because it & absolulely
miandatory ihal a doctor whe treals a person i the brauma cenler provide Follow-up care, we ane
concemned the doctor might lose protection wnder the S50,000 cap by later seeing the patient m his office
for something that happened af the tragma center

SENATOR RAGGIO:

The physicians who are employed otherwise are nol going 1o be invobved in continuing care,
therefore, the cap does pot apply, as practical maner, once they leave the hospital. | am just irying 1o
draw a parallel 1o some extent,

ME. FLANGAS:

A docior who is not part of UMC and volunteers his time at the trauma centér providing essential cane
ks required to contimue that care afier his term of doty. I may be a couple of weeks before the doclor secs
the patient in kis office.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Are yvou saving the doctor should remain wnder ibe cap if he commits an act of malpractice at that

MR, FLANGAS:

Yes, | am concerned e cap wall nid apply 1o semething thas happened at the traama center by the fack
that the doctor met with (e patient vro weeks [er in his office 1o provide mandasory follow-up care.

SEMATOR RAGGHD:

Under this bill, even in the trawma center and after the patiest i stabilized, a doctor would kose the
protection of the cap,

ME. FLANGAS:

That is anodher thing we would like fo address. 'We woald ke fo remove some of the langsage abouat
stabilizing and pat iz 10 “onge that person receives medical memment ™

SEMATOR RAGGHD:

Let me understand, are you speaking on ihe official position of the medical professton on this Esoc?

ME. FLANGAS:
‘That 58 correct.
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ME. GILLOCK:

Mr. Chairman, the reason rawma surgeons cessed working al the trauma center ai UMC was they
comsidered themselves the deep pocket due o the fact other employees had o S50,000 limiiston. They
gzid, “Pass tort reform,” which this bndy did this moming, “or we will mot go back o work.” The
Ceowernmor, al (heir behesl, calbed the sesaon. That is the rexson for ihis provision. | think this langusge
wias well thought oul, written and rewriten, both i conjunction wilh their legal répresemiatives and ibe
il drafters for the Governor’s commuiee, [ would be opposed to continuing @ 1o their offices. Today is
the first tifne | have heard it suggessed.

SENATOR CARE:
What bappens in the everd a palient is treated at the trasma center and when the time comes for
follow-up care the physician is on vacation or unavailable? Wiould the cap cover a substimte physician®

MRE. FLAMGAS:
A substitute physician would not be covered by the cap.

SEMATOR CARE:
Thar docs nod make sense. Wiy woukd one physician be covered by the cap and not (he ather?

MR. FLANGAS:

The persan who is working in the traama center is the one af risk. The poist 1 am trying 10 make is,
ofice a paticol has been trealed at the irsuma cemer, 3 conbicuily of reatment is 81l required. | am
concerned thal when a docior does the follow-up care afler Ifealing o potbenl at (he tranma cenber, he may
lose iz liabdlily protecibon for what happened a1 ibe traama center,

SENATOR TITUS:

When you talk aboot volenbeerig, it sedms b me | nead in b paper, afler the tratms center clised
and there was pegotiation, that they paid doctars 31,000 a day or 53,000 a day or 55,000 a day just 1o be
of call 16 come hack 1o the Irsuma cender. Whene does Ukl [ iso your sotion of velunabeering time? 1 do
B aederatand (.

ME. FLANGAS:

Thai i5 the reason | ased fhe term “volunicer™ mather loosely in my earlier commeni. The doclar's
contrac] was 539 an hour to work tbe trawma cender, which docs not cover their overhead of cxpenses.
The dociors are nod oaly, using the 1enm boosely, volumeering, but they are paying an increased premium
iy provide service al the insuma oenter.

SEMATOR TITUS:

This morning we pat caps in place. We have never had caps before, These are $350,000 caps. which
are in the mikldle range of 16 o7 so saies (hat heve caps; therefore, a doctor's Rability is already capped
for anyihing outside the trauma cenier. That never existed before. As | undecstand it, MICRA and g
of the other strict tort-reform bills 4o not have this special provision for tragma surgeons, Ane we going
above amd beyond wilh this 550,000 pratectionT | know il i something we mod 10 dio because we should
proteci fhe irsuma cenber, bui let us nof lose sight of the things we are dmng in a4 positive way, &
apposed (O saying it is nof enough.

ME. FLANGAS:

Thee bill provides caps, but you must bear in mind the caps are on noneconamic damages. Should ibere
be ccomomic damages, the surgeon, doctor or physician working ot the trauma cemer is sull lishie for the
coonomic damages which may exceed his coverage, That is whiy we are Jooking 10 fall under the 350,000
cap offered ot UM,

SEMATOR TITUS:
That s an economic and noneccosomic cap of 550,000, Correct?

ME. FLANGAS:
‘That s correct
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DR. DALIBS:

I would like to make a few comments on . The issue af the trauma cenler is thal the dociors wani
b be on level grownd with the instinglion and the rest of the team members with whom they practice.
That remains the crucial issue Ffor us,

SEMATOR TITUS:

I agree witlh that asd support pusiing the traama doctors ander the 550,000 cap, however, expanding i
s0 far bevond ihe irsuma situation is mroubling w me. There are so many iMerveming variables, and when
you siaf expanding protecibon o follow-up care, | do sob see how you can define it 22 o iraumatic
situation, That does nol seem to pd vou on equal grownd. If seems 0o ghve vou far and sway mire
protection than anyoms else,

DE. DAURS:

Speaking as & physician, [ never think of 2 one-time visit as treating a patient, It s treating a paticnt
over fime. Let us say a person has a broken neck. | fix them; and they leave the hospatal, 1 do not have &
devision on those patients. They are on our docsstep. We ke care of them, and we should because
sochedy oeeds il My concem ig, if | discover something in my office (hat s nol right, somcthing is
dislsdged or (here is somethieg that | pecd 0 fix, where docs ihm f8l? It is comtimuad care, nix an
bsolated event. Afeer 1 treat a patiend, | comtinee o care far them. From a physician’s standpoint, It is not
a5y 10 asceriain whether an evenl occurred when a patient is quickly trested and stabilized. Thas B my
concern, Senator,

SEMATOR TITUS:

1 usdersiand and sympathize, I seems o me, il you fixed 3 broken neck and the patlent came © you
for follve up then you saw somscihing wrong that happesed in ihe treuma cenrer, you would be protecicd
by the $50,000 cap, Would you want malpraciics that occurred in follow up o be wnder the 530,000 cap?
That is not a trammatic satuation.

DR. DALBS:

I am asking for coverage on contimuation of treatment provided 3t the (rauma cenber a5 well as possible
complications. If | found the patéent also had a broken arm that needod 1o be addoessed, | think, that
weidald still be part of it 1 wouald not expect a separate Bsue o be coversd.

SENATOR TITUS:
Wiald it be coverod the way you want the bill chinged?

DE. DALTBS:

| ikink it would cover the issses treated af the trauma cenfer in follow-up care. We look 21 | as
follow-up care until the patient & stable, In my miod, @ patient is well at the point | can descharge him
and kel him lead his life. | am ool 2 owyer. [ am telling you my concerns from my siandpodiod.

ME. FLANGAS:
We would also add the stataie be drafied o show follow-up cere mast be directly nelated o fhe
ireatment at the trauma cenler.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

A suggestion was made that limited liability coverage should zlso bhe exiended, whether or not it is a
trauma facility, o amother Fecilicy iof treannent i for, what one persos calbed, 3 “trauma-bkevel patient,” or
in another case, a “patiend mesting trauma guidelines.” Do thoss 1wo devms mean essentially the same?
What language identifies thad type of paient? Cap soméope give us sl information? Is there as
understood meaning 10 those lerms? Should we extend this beyond designated facilitics? What is the best
nomenclature to use for that type of patbent?

MR, WELCH:

In response fo your question, there are specific guidelines within the NAC that the Buresu of
Licensure, which is the admimistrative code, that define trouma patients. That is used by emerpéncy
medical services for the purposs of tracsporiing pabients o (he mosl appropriale sefting bassd upon their
imjury or diness,
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SEMATOR RAGGID:
Do we have & definitbon that would be workable for these circumstances?

ME. WILKINSON:
NAC 4508.770 provides the procedures for imifial enufication and care of palients with traemas. I
weis out protocol (B seps ad to when patests need bo go 10 franna centers and when o ranspor (hem,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Whal would be the correct ferm, a patient mesting the trauma goidelings or something like thas?

ME. WILKINSON:

K is diffscull to =02 exactly bow ithis should be worded, There are a namber of soenarios as w 1ypes of

ws, fypes of modor vehicke accidents and falls, | think we could pot something sogether wing that
#Habule,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

If we process this section. would the commitiee be amenable (o zsending the language 1hat wiowld
apply the 350,000 cap, under the same siteation, o olher facilities where the physician is treating paricnts
that meel irauma guidelines, and under the same situation whether or pod we decide it s up to 1he point
of stabilization, or whatever, What 15 the commities’s feeling? How many would be in favor of cxiending
i in thase facilitiesT Lel us have a show of hands, please,

SEMATOR COFFIM;

I would like to know the defindion of “trauma.”™ We still have not answered Dr. Daub's problem. We
are geitng ibe cart hefore the borse, |f we want o let others m on i, we had berier make sure we know
what it is. We would then be extending that definition to those physicians in their privaie practice

SENATOR RAGGID:

1 want w0 fknd ow whether ibere i an amenable commities on whsever we decide limitstions ane
under this cap, whether o (he poim of subillestion or whether it goes fumber than that. I these 3 fecling
on the commatbee 0 exiend W beyond facilinies offickally designated as traums cealers?

SENATOR COFFIN:
I would tedl you mavbe. | have an open mind as [ wid the represemiative from the Hogpisal
Associabion. Bat, | wani io know moee abotal the defindiion of “rranma” in the stansies.

EEMATOR RAGOID:
That is just what 1 asked Mr, Wilkinson. 50, can you give us any funber defindtion of thar?

SEMATOR COFFIN:

There must be phases of rauma. Phases that are progressively less thoeatening where we can make a
S50.000 doctor a 5350000 doctor. IF 1 hear those things, then | can say 1o wou. “yes, | am leaning
toward (ke thought™ ar, “no, | am not leaning oward §."

SENATOR RAWSON:

I am wosdering L we can provide some bevel of comfort in our definitions, Physiclans are concerned
there might be some the o fiaure bad resalts doe o foliow-wp care. | suggest we put in the language some
rebutiable presumption or clarifying language iha indicaics 3 presumption that the person wias covered
umder the cap. umless there i a clear example of malpraciice afierward, [ whatever standard or legal
langaage ks used is clasified, everyone shoubd be made comfortable.

SEMNATOR RAGGH

Are vou talking aboul whether i gocs beyvond siabilization™
SENATOR RAWSON:

Yes.

SEMATOR RAGGHD:
Whatever we decide on the fraama Situalion, how many on the commitice wani b consider extending
it jo odlver Facilitics rather than just irauma 1, irauma 2 and irsoma 3 designadions? How many want o
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extend it e olber facililies under tbe same conditions? Let us have a show of hands on that, Apparently,
there is 3 majority of (be committee who would waal 10 do that; (hereflore, assuming we process it
further, thar would be included in an smendment.

SEMATOR COFFIM;
That was pot in the form of 3 motion, Yoa were just testing the waders to go fumber. | may go there
with yout, but | still want to know what those wasers are.

SENATOR RAGGIC:
I just wanled 1o decide how many wanied io consider i, Oiherwise, we will jusi reject i,

SEMATOR COFFIM:
Obwiously, you have cnough s conglder 1o

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Apparenily, the majority wanls 1o do that,

SEMATOR TITUS:

I realiee this came op when | was mesting with Assembly leadership, and | apologize for that. | would
li%e the record to show that | object 1o tkas, | think it broadens the scope beyond what the Governor sasl.
He said we would keok at governmental enlilies and noaprofits, and mow we are broadening it 1o inclade
profits, If we canoot broaden the insurance part 10 look a1 insurance reform wiven all of this discussion
has been about insurance and, obviously, that is a big part of the problem, | do not think we should be
broadening this ehber without the Governor sayimg b will broaden his proclamation. | just was the
record to show that,

SENATOR RAGGID:
Connsel has 10ld us thad, in thear oginion, this would be within the scope, 1568 is, that is fine

SEMATOR TITUS:
I realime that, bat | ohjeci.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Let us go to the bigger question. Arc we going (o change the language in section 1 o go beyond the
cap appying oaly 1o the poisd of siabikization, or in the one exception where surgery is reqaired as a
resuli of emergency within a reasonable time after the patient ks stabilized; or is there other language tha
shoald be added to {7 We thoaght there was agrecment between the legal and medical representatives on
ibe language. We are now iold there is not. 'We are poing 10 have o make some decision if we process
il hall as 1o whether or nof (o accepd this language or amend it in some way. I there & seggestion from
ihe commitsee?

SEMATOR RAWEDN:

Can we glve some level of comfort here? | think e polbey as presented in the lanpuage b8 predty
clear-cu. They want o glve the cap In an emergency situation, but @ some point, it is no lonper an
cmergeney sltuation and normal mbes shoald prevail. In the event there is a bad resuli bater, can we s¢t a
higher sandand or some standard (hai is chear and convincing thak the problem developed in after care,
nod froen iniial care? Does thm give amy level of comdiort?

SENATOR RAGGID:

What woild be your spicific suggestion, il any?

SENATOR RAWSON:

I am talking aboui adding simple language that, in the evend of fulure litgaibon arsing out of this

tragma sHuaon, it would be presumed to be o result of Imitial trauma; in other wonds, under the cap
wnbess it is demonstrased clearky otherwise, of 10 some clear and convincing level.

SEMATOR RAGGI:
Can counsel sugges! any way to acoommodae thst suggestion?
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ME. WILKINSON:

[ believe we could draft laoguage thel would casry owt the concept. | might need to talk a linls mone
about exactly how i would woark, 1§ ssems 10 me that you are saying in the event someons filed an acticn
and ibere had been subsequent care, there would be a rebuitsble presumption that the injury arose out af
e origingl care a8 opposed o the subseguent care.

SENATOR COFFIN;

I think Senator Rawson said the origimal cansation could last for vears, As a layman, | think of my
own experience with a fractused spine. Af first vou are stabilized to make sure you are alive and oot
hieedang 10 death: then your fracture s stakilized; then there is usually an operation, bl pof adways; then
you pet to ancther point, perheps what is calbed in layman's terms, the therapeutic phase. AL this point
you are dealing with the same onginal imjury, but now a whole set of different devisions are made. |
think 1 could go along with cniending coverage through a period of eoleving inbe a new phase of
InesIEmesL.

De. Dawbs, in your profession. & ibere perhaps a swerm that defines a phase or change {8 treaumneni
wherein & doctor might be responsible for an crror msde in therapy for the origlnal mjury becsuse that
mjury may have been tresied for years. This cannot be am open ended, forever, kind of exemption. There
musl be 3 bright-line definsion somewbere.

DE. DAURS:
i agree wilh you, Senaror. I is not my or my cofleagues” intem o not be responsible for decisions we
may make later.

SENATOR COFFIN:
It 1z o the Eame injury oow, the same spot,

DR, DALES;

I have a difficult time saying cxactly what the wording would be, or with a specific tme. | think if
¥ou pud language thal i i the original injusy; | really have & bard time with (hat | do not know what the
bepalities would be,

SENMATOR COFFIN:
My back is still sore. | mill need therapy,

DR. DAUBS:
I 1hink that ghould not be applicable. 17 vou just swant 5 time, it assally mkes show 3 monihs,

SEMATOR RAGGIHD:

Arc we Irving o say someihing like, “continaing care required as a direct resalt of a prooodure that
accurned in the trauma selting. ™

DR DALUBS:

Yes, the incidem. | goess. is the wand,

ME. GILLOCEK:
Mr. Chairman, the languape nepotiated with the doctars covers i, | believe, in section 2(a), which
pomis om the tiee a8 which the cap no konger applics.,

SENATOR RAGOGIOD:
Wht line are you on?

MRE. GILLOCK:

1 am on line 36, It says, “which occurs afier the patient is Slubilieed and is capable of receiving
medical freatmenl as a nonemergency patient.” Once we have cleared the paiiens theough the emergency,
they are covered under the cap, under o reform, (ks was passed carlier wday .

SENATOR RAGGID:
1 understand that, bui would you abject so having o only apply if he occusrence was during the
irauma seling and any continuing care required as 3 resudl of that procedure dinecily?
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ME. GILLOCK:
I ibink it i8 overly broad because & ot of negligence occurs during follow up. The only exposure they
wiould have, for example, would be failure o find an infection.

SENATOR RAGGID:

We are wrying to reach a simuation in which the fiest priority would be o assare thal capable and
qualified practitioners are available to serve in prauma serangs. W cught to be able 1o provide some
assurance ihat cven though a person reaches sisbilization, he or she can siill be in rather severe
circumstances, and the doctor is required, ethically and oflserwise, o continue the care for & persod of
time directly relased to what occurred in the trauma setting. That ks my enderstanding.

MR, GILLOCK:

| sugpest the Banguage be oo the effect that the cap will apply 1o any &t while (reating ihe patbent 3 the
trauma center, even I the symploms of the acitton do not appear wnil laser. Do you see wha | am
saying? Maybe they have done something negligent ai the traoma cender thai does nof become visible
usitil 6 4o 8 maonths Iater. They woald still be wnder (be cap if the act occurred 8 the trauma center. IF the
patient came to (beir office, was mjecied with a dinly neslle and got an imfection, the negligence woidld
have occurred af the doctor’s offior and would fall under the cap. I vou say they are going oo provide
follow-up care for that condition, you have eliminsicd noglipem acts that oocur owtside the cmcrgency
situation. However, if you say it occurred al the trauma cemer, even if the symploms do not appear laer,
there is rebuttable presumption the 201 occurred a1 (e hospital

SENATOR RAWSOMN:

If we =e the language, “rebutiable presumplion,” it would allow the patiest, or their representalives,
o prove something if it & chearly demonstrable,

MR. GILLOCK:

That would probahly sclve the problem. | ikink, we could work thoough it

MRE. FLANGAS:

The proposal just offered will oot resolve the problem, What Scnstor Rawson sel forwand addresses
the problem adequately. I protects the doctor for fllow-up care and gives rebasable presumplion that
says i1 19 presusned that any injury happened while ihe procedure was performed s the trasmas cenler. I
it can be ghown by some standard of evidence there was negligence that occurred during follow-ap cane
urelated 1 wha happened al (he raama center, (he physicisn would be ender his or her own msurance
and procesd accordingly.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

o would you suggest we stae the rebunable presumpaion i we process this iiem?

ME. FLANGAS:

Something similar 1o Senator Rawson's suppestion. You would have io put in the somse that they
remnain imder the cap for follow-up core., 1 have some language that is ficdy close,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Led us iry 1o sccommesdase their concerns as well as yours. Try 10 meet in the court wilh a rebultable
presunapilon of whai? Give us some language.

ME. FLANGAS:

The language could say, “ibe Hebation on liability provided pursaand o this section shall inclsle all
mecessary and relsied follow-up care provided by the physician or dentist wheiber the follow-up cane is
provided at ibe hospital or at the physician’s ar dentist’s office,™

EEMATOR RAWSON,
Can we have staff repeal the way be plirased i
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ME. WILKINSOMN:

I did not hawve this woriked oo exacily. | was writing, “in the evemi of [higabon, rebuiable
presumpiion a5 created that injury was a result of the originad medical condition for which the person
sought assistance.™ | am changing that slightly. | did mot really finmish i (ke frs ime ascand.

SENATOR RAGGID:

I think what we are all trying 10 say 5, if the ofiginal procedure occurred in the tradima cenler, oF in &
irauma seiing, there will be 3 presumpiéon the any damage resalting from continued care direcdy relabed
io thai procedure will be within ibe limits of Hability. That is rebuitable presumpibon; therefore, they can
rethut 0o show (hat the neglipence, if it is (hat, was not directly related 1o the procedure (hat occurred in
the trauma sefling. | think that is what vou are both tryving 1o get at,

ME. GILLOCK:

I think sp w0y Mr. Chainman. We should simply add a sensence tha, should the njury be as a resalt
of negligence occurring independent of the original reament, i shall nor be covered by the 30,000 cap,
That would cover if.

SEMATOR COFFIM:
[ am it an meosney or a doclor, and [ do not know some of the tenms you kave Been wsmg.

SENATOR RAGGIO;

Rebuniable presumplion means (Bal il is presumed, in this case, if an infury ocourred diring contimed
cire of & comdition tesulling from the ofigios] procedure, B 18 sull covered snder the cap. Thal s
reluitabibe, and they can bring In evidence to show it was nod directly related 1o that, o somelhing of that
kimd: They can robul that peesumption. They bodh seem wo think thar is adequare.

SEMATOR COFFIN:

1 have to thiok in terms of anecdotes, so forgive me for my shortcomings all you professionals. Let us
suppose that John, in bis practice, bas got me fixed ap, af beast a8 far as my imjury, and 1 am able 1o walk
amil do every lonctbon thal was damaged |0 & reasonable degree, Mow, we gel inilo a tserapy phase, and
be provides fhe wrong therspy or gets me suned on the wrong therapy, It i the same imjury, buia
different please of meatnsent. Which stasdand should he be held o under the proposed langaage?

SEMATOR RAGGID:
I am nat proposing the language. | am restating (e language.
SENATOR RAWSOMN:

As | soc this situstion, down the road, you were reasonably comfortable, but now, you are in therapy
There is & wrong decision made and that is under the olber cap. It i not under the 350, (W [imig-

SENATOR COFFIN:
Even though it i the same ajury?

SENATOR RAWSON:
It i the same injury, bui it is 2 different decision process and a different phase of it.

SEMATOR RAGGO:

I will accepi a motion o amend section | o exiend the limit to olber than designated traisma cenbers W
include hospitale or Facilitics involving a paticnl who meets the trauma gaidetines and to add the langueage
establishing a rebuitable presumption for continuing care béyond sabilieation or other persod which s
row appicable, | would accepl a medbicn 1o tkat effect.

SENATOR O°CONNELL:
S0 moved,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Is there any disenssbon on the mofion?
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SENATOR CARE:

I you are hit by a car, you can sise depending upon palicy limits o whabever varsous amsoants and
damages are available. If vou are bit by & cop, you are capped st $50,000, That is unfair, but that i3 the
way it if. [ understand the situation with he trauma center and have read most of the material gives me,
bt | do mol fecall reading asywhene any discussion aboul (he necd 1o expand any tragme sobalion W
fnstingtions clber than UMC or the designsied posmprolit governmental eslives that handle raama
patbenis. Yet, now, we have dome that If you remd that in conjuncton with the other part of the
amesdment where you get into follow ap and therapy, it is oot oo difficult vo foresee the sinesion where
someans goes o Sunrise, Lake Meade oo Valley for trauma and the doctor is covered by the 330,000 cap
to include, io some degree depending on the circumsiances, the folbw ap, | thought | knmew whai ibe
agenda was going 1o be when | came up here, and 1 owill tell you that it looks o me o (hough there is 2
situation happening where an entity of 2n nteres! growp has decided o ke advartage, sponlansotsly, of
the situation by expanding the agenda, Frankly, before | came up bere, | was disgusted by the public
debate between tral lawyers, doctors and others. | preity much tuned it oul a month ago. | kave seen
gome all it here wday. | hope vou all kocp bo the agends as it was supposed 1o be and nod ry o slip
sometling in that was ot contemplased when the Governor osiginally proclaimed this special session.
Thank you, Me, Chalrman.

SENATOR RAGGID:

A pood example woald be someose sulfering & gunshol wound, The person may nol necessarily be
taken o the (rsuma center, bul may be taken o a privace facility. The same 550,000 [imi ought 10 be
applicable o the docior who ineats thai person under ihe wrauma guidelines o the exient that §i applics
olberaise. That ks wheee | would jastify it

SENATOR CARE:

1 raised that myue this moring when | Elked about the patbent who is beang (ransporied. Thee goesteon
began when [ said, are we going po stick with the language “in the hospital® because that language is
specifically bn section 1, twice. That is why | rased the issue, | appreciate the Chalrman’s comments, but
it s=erms 00 e that (his is an flem you can légitimately raise in a regular sestion. It would scem o e,
froms what [ have seen, (hal we have pome far a field, but | appreciate your consideralion.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Are there any odber comments or discssion an thal motson?

SENATOR RAWSON:
There oagit o be a lule choser delimitbon of irauma designation.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
My suggestion woald be, if this motion passes, that we will have the same oppartuRily 1o review the
amendmenl 4% we did earfier,

SENATOR RAWSON:

The physicians may be able 10 belp. There are level-1 and bevel-2 trauma centers, and fram that, |
would presume there are level-1 and level-2 traumas. We cught o be lalking about life-theeatening
irmema here, really emergent franms, Bo jUst cvery cmergency.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Is there & definition of beved-1 and level 2 trauma?

SENATOR RAWSON:

I would be talking abowt fife-threatening or emergend situations.

SENATOR RAGGHD;
Lt o have il incloded o the motion. s tha satisfacory? 1s there any furber discussion’”
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SEMNATOR O'DONNELL:

I will support the motion; however, ket me just say thas, | think what we are haveng irouble with is ibe
fact thal we are nod irealing everyone equally. Under the constingtion of tee United Staes of America,
everybody is suppased 10 be ireated equally. However, iF you go 1o & counly hospital, vou only gel a
£50,000 limisation for lisbiliny. I you go o any otber hospital, vou might pet a $350,000 Hability for
pain anid suffering, or bevond, depending oo ihe exieni of the injury. 'Whar we are wying io grapple with
here is whether we should help the dociors or lawyers insicad of helping the paticat. The problem s a
crisis because doctors are leaving. §F we do not do something, it is going o get worse guickly. | am
going fo support (s madion, e | aeald really like to address the (et that we ane resting paticnls
differenily and giving them different levels of compensation for the same ireaiment. That i blatantly
umiair and un-American,

SENATOR NEAL:

Apain, a5 a non-Lawyer speaking, as | understand the question being proposed, we are attempting o
run section 2 imo sections 3, 4, and 5, which we have already discussed in teoms of the liability ssues
imvalving doctors. We ane now irying oo exsend the 550,000 cap found within gosvernment bospitals o
individuals that would normally have g come under the sectioas we have already adopled. | agree wish
Scnawor Carc thal we seem w0 have gone far a field on this particalar isswe, If we want 10 limit this o
three bevels of trauma, then why don't we say that, leave i a2 that and por try fo extend this imo the
doctor's office of the doctor’s howse or places Hke ihat. We Tave laaguage (hal was agreed 1o whach
saated clearly im section I, lime L4, “in the hospital,” described in paragraph (), and whetlher care or
assisiance was rendered graaiously or for a fee. | think (hal language should be comrolling, amd we
should pof go ouiside of thal becaase once wi 2ot 60 the point where we begin (o add everyibing o this
bill, we will be here until next week. | won's be here until next week becagse | am planning o leave here
at the end of this wesk.

SEMATOR RAGGIH

“The meation, as the Chalr undersiamds it, does eot extend (his Ambed labdlity b0 a seiting olber tham 2
kospital. You mentioned a doctor’s howse, of something of ket kind, but @ exended it ondy o 8 bospizal
providing it is a patient mecting the irsuma puidelines, whach will sppear in the smendment when B is
shown 1o ug. Are there any odlver commens?

EEMATOR MCGINNESS:
[ ikvapht we were Balking abost extending thig (o all emergency and Irauma cenders.

SENATOR RAGGHD:

The bill pow does that, and it would be ncluded im the amendment that # would cover all frauma
cemiers, and algo apply to oiber hospitals even thowgh they are not designated officially as ragma cenlers
if a situation is such and the palient meets the trauma, geidelines

SEMNATOR MOGINNESS:
Dhoes ik maotion also cover extended care being requeested by the dociar?

SENATOR RAGGIO:
That is the rebuttable resumption. Yes, it is in the motion.

SEMATOR MOGINNESS:
I would feel hetter if the poso things weng separsied; alibough, | will support them. | think ibe language
i seclion | s sort of & muddie ground, and now, we are gomg a beyond that.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Il the Senator who made the motion wanly 10 separaic the molions, il is Gne with the Chair
Senator 0'Connell, do you wami the motion a5 is, or 30 vou wanl il separated” We can 1ry the motion a5
i%
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SEMATOR O'COMMNELL:
That would be my preference, Mr. Chalrman.

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Mo further discussion. All in favor, indicate aye, Those opposed. Let the record reflect those Senators
who voted B on the motion ane Senators Care, Carlton, Matkews, McGinness, Neal, Titus and Wiener,
The molion carries.

SEMATOR AMODEL

I would wrap up, Mr, Chainman, by saving thal if we stan crestmg differsnt levels of mnmunily and
extusal within healib-care providing facilities within the Sate, you will have setious staffing probiems in
those that o not have them. I we are going o create them wigh level-1, =2, or -3 [rauma cenilers, we
have the ohligation 1o ke a look ar it from an operational sidz and say, “What are we doing 1o those
ancas that do wol have, or those facilides tha are not desbgnated a level-1, -2, or -3 center, Whai are we
divdig o those siafT eare providers? What ane we dodng in these commuaites? What are we eheouraging
them 1o do in order 10 gt 1hose potemtial paticers o fecilicies that &o enjoy this so they do not have o
worry abowl that?™ [ think we have leamed that kessom with what has pome on at UMC. That doss not
lead to any specific answer, but (he operations] concerny are something we mbed to think about in terms
of setling the policy.

SENATOR RAGGID:

If the motion is now part of the bill, for cxample, this would eover @ situation o Carson-Taboe
Hiospizal wheee, i somebody camee in with a genshot wousdd, as | saggessed, it would be covered,

JAN NEEDHAM {Principal Depuly Legislative Counsel):
As a point of clarification, we were discussing clarifying this provision 1o make sare the $50,000 cap
was for each claimant g0 it would be consisient with existing law.

SEMATOR RAGGED:
Is that the understanding of everybody, for each claimani?

ME. FLANGAS:

il we are poing 10 do what was included in the amépdment, we have o rewrite the whole section
because the sectiom, the way # is writien, does not [imif it (o traoma patients, 1t says all patients. You
have linited the liability of all the hospitals for any patiend admitied 10 o 550,000 cap,

SEMATOR RAWSON:
Mo, 1be amendment dealt with that as a special case. The amendnsent, as wonded, used this langaage
and was then extended for ihe troama patlents in ciber hospicgls,

SENATOR RAGGID:
Thai i the miend of 1he amendment. | s going o ask the bill drafiers o prepere a draft of the
amendmenl and distribte it We will consider any ohjection (o the amendmset,

SEMATOR MATHEWS:
Will we have an opportumnity o discuss ihe samendment after il @5 in written form?

SEMNATOR RAGGID:

We will have the opportuaity 1o determine whether of not the amendnsent, as drafted, is compatible
with the sction of the commitiee. Are there olber amendnaents to the bill? Is there additional lesumony an
section 17 | will now take a moiion e adopl wction | as amended.

SENATOR RAWSON
1 move 10 adopi sectbon | of Senate Bill Mo. 1 as amended.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

All im favor say, ayc: any opposed?
The maoliin is carried. Senavoss Carlion amd Meal vosed 5o
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We have reached another midessone, For a bill that was considered pretty well accepiable, we are
mirving right alomg. The nea hiems for dscmsion are sections 4 and 6, adopling a several Labality
stangard for medical malpractice cases when npopecopomic damages are considencd,

SENATOR NEAL:

Cotild we, & some poant, have (ke Research Division give 18 a list of all the hospitals in the state that
woull pos be Incloded usder the provision we just adopled.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

We will ask the Research Division 1o compile it Lot e go 1o preseniations on ssctions 4 and 6. 1 will
ask Mr, Wilkinson to give us 3 geperal overview, We would like (o know how chis ball, as proposed in
sectlons 4 and &, differs, &0 @ all, from what 8 sow e law and wha & pow (e law in California usder
MICREA, ibe veforn a1

ME, WILKINSOMN:

Section & of 1he bill provides that in an action for damages Tar modical malpractice cach defendant is
liabée for noneconomic damapes severally onby, ool jeantly, 1o e plantifT only for the partion of the
judgment which represents the percentage of negligence attributable 1o the defendam. Cuarrently, n
Mevada, in an actlon For medical malpeactice, a defendant would be poently and severally liable for the
cntirety of the judgment, which would mean & plamncdl could collect up w100 percent of the jud giment
from any defersdam regardless of the spocific percencsge of mepligence anributable to that defendamt. That
applies to both econemic amd noneconcmic damages. What this wouald do is provide for several liabiliny
with respect o poneconomic dumages which would mean coch defendant would oanly be liabde for that
specific percentage of negligence atiributed 1o him by the jury,

SENATOR RAGGID:

As | undlerstend it, as a practical mseer, when a jury is asked o rewurn 3 veedict. they will be asked 1o
retum & special verdict which indicates the percentage of negligence of & particualar defemdam where there
are muliiple defendams im @ medical malpractice cese. As an illustration, if Doclor A s one of the
defendanis and the jury finds, and the court acoepis, ihe verdict thai that pariicular defendani is 25
percent respansible for the malpractice, if this s enscted, the defendant doctor or practilioner, as the case
may be, would be respossible for 25 percent of the damages which were assessed. Is that the
undersianding of everybody? It has poé changed with respect @ economic damage. This is only on
roBecononic damages.

ME. GILLOCK:

That is the wnidersamding

SENATOR RAGGIO:
I% that your undersanding, Mr. Flangas?

ME. FLANGAS:
That is my understanding of the hall

SENATOR RAGGID:
D yosl want to make ibe preseniation on this? Is this the provision 1hat, in (he nepetiations, was
agrecd wo by all sides s the discussion?

MR. GILLOCK:
This was agreed 1o by all sides w ihe discussion.

SEMNATOR RAGGID,
How does this differ from tbe Caltfornia MICRA sinetion™ What is the law tbere?

MR, GILLOCK:

| think it is the same as California MICRA in terms of cach person only being severally responsabic,
separately responsible for their share of nonecanomic damages based an their shase of the Habiliey, [F a
phiygician were sood whom the jury delermined, even though he was one of foar phytbcians who wers
narmid 1a & bBowsuit, was megligenl free, he wouald pot Bave o pay any porison.
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SENATOR RAGGIO:
Mr. Echeverria, can you quickly tell us whether we are on rack bere,

JOHN ECHEVERRIA (MNevada Trial Lawyvers Association):

The abeogation of joinl and several lability in California was nol part of the MICRA package
SEMATOR RAGGID:

| masspoke, What is the sifuation there?

MR, ECHEVERRIA:

It was done by a proposition or an infistive. This suaes, as | understand o, the California version of
joint and several liability.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

On poacconomic damages &5 well as economde damages?

ME. ECHEVERRIA:

There & several liability a8 16 nomeconomic damages and joant lisbility &5 1o cconomic damages in
Califorma and usder thie hill.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

This will bring us in line with current law in California,

MR. ECHEVERRIA:

Yes,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Thst 15 what | was asking.

MR. ECHEVEREKIA:

Ag v medical negligence cases,

SEMNATOR RAGGIO:

Medical malpractice. Is that vour understanding of this, Mr. Flangas?
ME. FLANGAS:

Than is correct, Mr. Chairman, I i3 oot part of the original MICRA package in Califorma. It was a
separate propogition. ‘This ks oo line.

SEMATOR RACGIC:
Does either growup have anything larther to present on (his?

MR, FLANGAS:
Mo, thank vou, Mr. Chairman,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Are there any statemesls of questbons from e commines?

SENATOR CARE:

In reviewing case law, | have three quesiions,

L, How would comparative negligence play nto ihis?

2. Whay do you do when you have joint forifessors, and there is a setilement agreemend, and one of
the defendants agress (o, in emence, pay 3 grester figure io 2 scttlemend agreement that, down the road,
ihere i & judgment 1hal 5 much smaller?

3, What does this do 10 vicarious lability? That s to say, when one of the defendants is an employee
of the hospital and (e jury says, 25 percent is e faull of the cmployes, 25 percenl is the bospital, thas,
that, nd the other, Would the hospdial =il be liable for the 25 percent porilon of the jodgment thal goes

to ihe emploves?
Those are the ihree issues | sce bere.
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MR. CROCKETT:

The three poids You rased were comparative negligence, sciilements with mulliple defendants and
wicarious liability,

L. It will mad have amy impact on comparalive neghgence. These will be a change in the law becase i
used 10 be that joant and scveral liahiliy only exisied in medical malpracice cases where the plaingiff was
complewcly blame free. If you had an wnconscious plxiotiff on the operaling table and neglipence was
performed, everybody undersinod the plaasthl could not be nepligent hecasse he was unconscious, he
was ashecp, Unider those circumsiances, liabdlilty was joisl and several. The proposed change would sy
that from now on it is only several as to noncconomic and jolnt & o cconomic. Under existing law, if a
plaintiff was in & circumstance whene they coubd be comparatively noglipent, joiml and several wem ou
the window and liability was proportioned based wpom the plaimliff®s conrihsory negligence and
evéryboady £lse’s contribetion. This changes the Law in that respect. 014 law, comparsive segligence did
away with joant and several; new law. whether the plaintifl was comparmtively neglipenl or mot, docs pot
alier the joint and several respomsibility. Does that answer your guestion?

2. Om s2ttlements with jomt torfeasors, | know you are an atiomney, and you ste all the multipte
Rayers that this creates, and it does, and the permulations are way 100 aumenoes (o even begin (o discass
bere. All I can say b5, il you seule with one defendant in a muliiple defendant siustion, negotiations
always completely reopen when you come to the second defendant to talk becawse everyhody wanls 1o
talk about what effect the previsas seqtlement had upon the second setibement

SENATOR RAGGIO:
We are going 10 Bave a distussion on collaleral 1orls soom.

MR. CROCKETT:

Yiow are right. Mr. Gillock reminded me of one thing ihat must be done in order for a defendani o be
given a complete release from o seitlement when they have mubtiple defendamis, You have to go 6 court
and get what i called a good-faith seillement approval to make sure the court secs that one defendant did
not queckly seitle out nmder the prefeose they were paying their full amd fair share. The coart geands
against that being a sham or a rouse. You cannid get a complete redease undess the court approves that |2
was what ibey call a good-faith settlement, That will remain, Nothing is done 1o change thal. Does that
answer the guestion?

The third peast aboul vicanions liabdlity, the emplover of a peglipenl emplovee is always responsible
for that emplovee’s neplipence s long as the negligence was in the course and scope of the ensployment.
There may be a circumstance where, on top of that, the employer could be ncgligent for someihing they
didd directly, separate and apant from their emplovment. In that case, they woubd have respoastbility for
i emplovec's ncgligence, and ey would have responsibility for their own negligence. An example
would be. I 3 nurse were ncgligent in something ske did which fell below mandard that caused injury or
death o o patient. 17 she was working he course snd scope of her emplovment, ber emplover &
vigaripusly Lable for her scthoms. Bul if hey employer supplied ber with a negligently malmatned phece of
ciuipment that was not properly cared for by a different department of the hospital 2nd also comtributed
i the problem, the employer would be dingcily responsible wo the injured party for the employes"s direct
neglipence on that equipmeni, This deals winh the gquestion you posed: What il the coployer is
responsible for the emploves's neglipence and their own dircei negligence? In which case they would be
respansible for hoth,

SENATOR CARE:
We are jusl trying fo get some legislative iment here. That & ibe way | read it and if the docior's read
it thar way, as well, | am satisfied

MR. FLAMGAS:
I apree with his definitions.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Are tbere any olher questbons oF slatemends on this?

SENATOR WIENER:
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Deaes vicarns liability creabe two causss of action?

ME. CROCEETT:

Ys, it docs becanse cach one is free sianding. For example, U you oaly had the nursisg negligence,
that would be one claim, I¥ you ondy hed the un-maintaiped equipment, that would be one clalm. The fsct
that they bath happen to cosxist &t the same (ime does not deny their two separale existences,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
ks there any addnional public iestbmony on das?

SEMATOR NEAL:

You seem b have gotien ingo agency in vour explanation of tbe employec-emplayer relationship, |
would assume, based on the emplovee comminkng an act of negligence that led 1o an injured person, the
cmployee, i (his case, would nod escape fall lisbiliny

MR. CROCKETT:
Yiou mean i eerms of the cap discussed earlier?

SEMATOR NEAL:
Yes.

MEKE. CROCKETT:
Mo, the emplovee is covered by benefin of that cap oo,

SENATOR BRAGGID:

Is there any addidonal public estimony on the tssue on several |Esbiliy for poncconoamic damages?
Are bere any amendments o be sugpesied by the commiitee? I there & motion w0 approve adoption of
soction & amnd sectbon 4 & it relates 1o section 67

SENATOR RAWSON:
Zp maved.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
There is & motion by Senator Rawsen for approval. bs there discussion on the modion?

DAVID P. HAEFHER (Nevada Association of Norse Ancsthetisis):

[ am a certified sregistered nurse anesihetist. | would like w make a point of clanification, and ask the
comemittee for & point of clarification, 35 it perains w section 6. 1 am from Las Vegss and the chiel nurse
anesibetist al Lake Mead Hospital. Mr. Gillock siaied ihal purse anesibetists ane murse practitioners. They
are nol. Ceriified Repistered Murse Anesthetisis (CRMNA) are recognized im Mevada Revised Statutes, |
believe, the stamte is MRS 632.034, Members of the committes were responsible for that stalaie in the
1989 and 1991 Legislatere, The paint | would like 1o clarify &, &0 thess caps apply to murse ancsibetists?
The reason | ask is because we serve an Wrban area & Lake Mead In addition to thai, the extire niral
area of Mevada is served almost exclusively by certified registered murse anesthetisis. There are four
nurse anesthetists in Elko, By September 1, there will be ix. There are two in Ely, two i Winocmucca
and twa in Fallon. Without them, there will be no surgery whatsoever, [T we are [eft a5 a décp pockel
and nat bell in these caps, | foel the rural areas could be an risk of bosing those providers.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
I think the lestimony we heard and relied on was that youo eere included.

ME. HAEFNER:
I would Hike 3 point of clarificstion for the recosd.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Can siafT belp ug on thar? Doey anyvone know the answer?

MR, WILEINSOR:
1 think ibe discussion of nurse apesthetiss came up in the coolexl of section | perimming W caps in
EFaMima CEnbers,
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ME. HAEFMER:
Mr. Gillock said we wene nurse praciitioners. We are nnd.

ME. GILLOCK:
I think, | said they were medical care providers,

ME. WILKINSON:

With respect to section & and several liability for nopeconombe damspes, that applies 10 an sibon for
medical maipraciice which is defined x5 a case nvolving a physician, hosphal, or eenployee of a hosphal,
bagically fhe same ibings thai are before the sireening pamel ioday.

ME. HAEFMNER:

I usderstand ihat, but we are mot employecs of the hospital. | bad o senle 3 malpractice suil w0
moniks ago because the physician did oot have insurance. He did mot notfy hds carcier. The carrier
refused, and he was at fagl, Because of joinl and seweral, T would have been on the ook for the entire
jisdgment had it gooe 1o court, The arbitraios, Mr. Boojover, iold me. *1 can’t believe how unfair this is
for you, but if you don’t setle, you are looking at 4 million-doflar setilemem.™ That is my concern with
joint and several,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Is ibere a suggestion” Do the legal representatives or doctors have some desire wo assist and clarify this
sitmaiion?

ME. GILLOCK:
1 think he coald ke a greal deal of solace in e provisions of section & wherels be wouald be only
severally lable on an action for medical malprscibos.

SENATOR RAGGID:
Dioes seetion 6 apply o cenified regiaered nurse anesiberius?

MR, GILLOCK:
I does mot say that, | guess | have not sddressed il before.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Apparently, it does nol. Should they be incladed?

ME. FLAMGAS:
[ would ihink hey would meed 10 be incliaded, My Chalrman,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Is i the sense of the committee that if we say 1his group should be included, there will be a long list of
ciber groups that we need (o think aboun?

ME. HAEFNER:

Off hand, the ondy oiber grosp | can think of would probably be nurse midwives, | thimk all narse
praciiticners probably come under i employes, bat | coald be wrong. Nurse practitioners muast have
collabarating physiclans. CRMAs, by NRS, may adminigter anesithesia fo amyone o the stase that s
licensed a5 a physician, dentist or podistrist

SENATOR RAGGIH):

! am tald by coursel that in all our discusssons, pamicularly ander scetions 3, 4, and 5, and sow 6,
that ihese caps and restrictive limiiations apply only to hospalals, physicians, and cmpboyees of hospitals.
Yoor group would mot be covered a5 6 stands nght pow under that sistion. I wosld B2 up o this
commitnes as 10 whetber there ought o be any others mehuded within these limizations, 1s tha permissible
under the Governor's proclamaion?

M5. MNEEDHAM:

Since these seem o be lkmited o physhcians and hospitals, there is a question as fo whether they cousld
be included.
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SENATOR RAGGIO:

Do you understand what 1 am saying? The (overnor's proclamadeon limils of 0 the matlers we can
consdder. W can, of course, sugpest io the Governar thal something else be included, but 2 this poist in
lime, we are preciuded from comgidering thal mater,

SENATOR O°'DONNELL:

I think if we do pot inchede these critical carggivers who work Sde-by-sule with doctors, ey will
then become the deep pocket, 1 woald ke o suggest we approach the Governor, im a kind way, as we
see this in & new Hight, snd ask kim 10 secomgider 1hal.

SENATOR TOWNSEND:

[ gaess ibe question s for staff. IF botk houses pass somelling that 15 oot quite inssde the proclammion
limits and the Governor signs i, is il voad?

SEMATOR NEAL:

Ma.

SEMATOR TOWNSEND:
Why doa’l we just pul i what we wal 1o pia in.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
I haven't seen Scoaior Keal's law degres

SENATOR TOWNSEND:

1 &m just frviag o be practical,

SENATOR NEAL:

My law degree comes from 30 vears of serving in this body and having five special sessions under my
belt.

SENATOR RAGGH):

Then 1 would question the credibality of your degree, et us ask counsed. The questhon was, if we pass
someihing that is nol whhia the Goversos's proclamaition and he sigas the Bill, constitutionally, could &
be challenged, or does the Governos have to send a subsequent prockemateon? As | read the Constintion,
ihe Governor mexy do that even while we are in special session.

MR, WILEINSON:
If something i passed thal is oulside the call, the fact tha the Governor signs it docs not render i
constifutionsl. Tt would s6ll be subject 1o challenge,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
You are overruling Senafor Meal, as | ondersiand 8.

ME. WILKINSOMN:
‘That s correct.

SENATOR MATHEWS;
Within the actbon, we extended the S50, 000 Labiliey Limir, is that oumside the call?

SENATOR RAGGIO:

We pod advice from counse] that il was, in their opinion, reasonably within the call, Than &y why we
proceeded. If there is a motion to adopd section 6, and it passes, 1 will bosor a motien 1o roqucet the
Governor 1o issue 3 new prockamation that woubd include, as 1 understand the request, centified registersd
nurse ancsthetists and midwives. 1t i5 my underslanding bl we can do that. We can ar least ask the
Governor 10 issue a proclamaticn to that effect.

I3 ihere a malion o adepl Section 67

SENATOR TOWMNSEND:
I move bo adopt section 6 of Senate Bill No, 2.

6l
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SENATOR RAGGHY
is there funther discussion on thal motion”

BENATOR CARE;
To lay down the legiskatve intent. may (he parties submit documents. We have not discussed ihe
pecessity (o adopl section 6 and T think we need that for Jegislative insend.

SEMATOR RAGGICH

Iz it in the backup material? | think there is something {rom the legisksive subcommanee, I8 there
something in here on several liahilaty™

ME. GILLDCK:

I think the doclors are ihe opes who were siroag behind waniing ihis, Pechaps Mr. Flangas has some
material for tbe recond thal reflecis our agrecment.

EEMNATOR RAGGIO!

Could you make & representation for the record that would justify & public purpose in adogting 1his
section.

ME. FLANGAS:

As we stated carlier and a5 has been estsblishied, this was ot really part of the original MICRA
package, however, it is considered under what is called MICRA plus. This was an additional measure
thai was added some years ago in Californla that has resulied in 8 downwand movement of insarance
premiums

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Is that & coscise enough fatement for you

On the motion, all in favor indicate, aye; any opposed,

The moson 1s exrried unankmowsly.

I fiorgou o take up the langaape on the pro-booo siuation. The laagusge given o us lb oer diseussions
esgentially reads, “When a physician or denlist provides cane of sSsisiance 0 palicsts withoud requesting,
receiving or expeciing compensation or consideration for sasd services inoa climlc or pablic fscility, that
physician or dentist shall not be [iable for civil damages & o resuli of any act or omizsion n readering, ®
and ihere was some discussion about thai word, “care or providing care or assistance I i care or
assislance i5 rendered in good faith ond in & manner mot amoumiing o gross peghigence or rockless,
willful or wanson comdact. ™ [ think that was generally agreed wpon. Iz thar correct?

ME. GILLOCK:
That 15 correct, Mr. Chainman.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Is theere & isotion b adopt that provissa™

SENATOR RAWSRON:
1 mwive o mdopl the pravision

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

Is there any further discussion on the moton? Hearing nose, all in favor say, aye; any opposed.

Thie metbon ks carrisd unanimously,

I dhx nodt kenow wheere thar goes in ibe bill, but | will leave it o e bill drafiers. We are ready now o
o 1o presemations regarding review of the meedical amd denizl screening pacsels,

SENATOR TOWNSEND:
Do you wani 3 matien with regard vo midwives and certliied regisiered nurse anesthetises?

SEMATOR RAGGI:
I'm sorry | overbooked ikt | will take 3 motkon,
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SENATOR TOWNSEND:
| woald move that we ask the Governor Tor an addition (o il proclkamation 1o inclede thase (wa in owr
deliberations,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

There is a motion o request the Governor, inessemie, 10 issue & call or proclamanion fo add 1kt Wem
for potenilal comsideranion by the Legislare. 15 there forther discussion? AN in favor indicate aye, any
opposed

The maticn is carried anankmoaaly.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

We will now go o the tssise on medscal and dental scroening panels, It is the Chair's undersianding
ihat it imvolves sections 10, L1, 17, 24, 35 and 38. Does the commince noed & recess befare we go lmo
ihis phase? We ask the represemiatives of both ihe legal and medical professbons 1o be available for ibis
discussion and any cthers who hive an inegest.

Let me ask counsed, do you know ihe $latus of the amendment that we approved om seetion 17

kS, NEEDHAM:
Yes, | e-mailed the request o the Legal Davision, and they began working on # immediaely

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
While we areé walling oo (his other Bsug, Senator Rawson, you indicated some language o be
proposed as an addition to (he preamble. Do we have a copy of 07

SEMATOR RAWEDN:

¥es, M, Chairman, | will kave it passed oot now, Whal T am proposing is on page | of the bill, in
the preamble, (hat we add another “whensas,” The idea of this is 10 develop a rathonal relationship and
help in e constitutionaliay, It would read, “Wheress if is recognized the patients who have been injured
by medical malpractice must be afforded appropriate sccess 1o legal remedies foc their imjuries and ibe
Judicisl discretion s render decisions in malpractice actions isvolving exceptional circumstances must be
preserved. ™ The sdea is that we are being a bit restrictive in this legisiation, and this would demonsirate
that we sre still orylog lo protect jodicial option and people’s right to redress,

SENATOR RAGGIC:

Unless there is an objection, [ will stoept & motion to amend the preanthle with this language.

SENATOR RAWSON:
S0 moved,

SEMATOR RAWSON,
The motbon 55 by Seamtor Baweon. 15 tbere any dcussion?

SEMATOR CARE:

1 appreciate the spirdl in which this is offered, but | must ell yoo, with the buzz goiag on in the
bulding right now, 1 would have w sce the final ball we are voling on before 1 cowld agree 10 this
language. Thank you,

SEMATOR RAWSON:

Im response to that, | appreciabe the congern. Certaindy, o the fnal analysis, we have o look at the
hall @nd all pieces of §l to approve 3 or not, | am presenting this with the idea of frying 1o strengiben 12 a8
we g0, piece-by-piece fo strengthen it 1 am sure all of us will reserve thal right 1o the end, whelbier or
nal i is acceplable,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Is there any further discassion on (be motion™ All in favor indicate, aye; any opposed,

Senators Care and Carlian vobed no,

The mation is carried,
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SENATOR NEAL:
[ do pot think ihe Democyatic side had an spendment, Everything we propased ssemed 10 be outside
the call.

SENATOR RAGGI):
I wous makie one that is, we will accepl il

SEMATOR RAWSON:
Whale we ane waiting, may we ask queestions aboul section 11, subsection 3

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

Is thig under ihe agends Hem we are discussing?
SENATOR RAWSON.

Yes.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Let us have Mr, Wilkingon give g5 an overview of (bhe sections involved, As | understand @i, they are
sections 10, 11, 17, 24, 35 and 38, What is the effect if we adopt the changes reflected in this measiere s
o medical and denmtal sereening panels.

ME. WILEKINSON:

These sctbons repez] the existence of the screening panel, basically, for actbons that ane pending
beflore 1be panel in which the panel hat oot made a determination. A claimand will have the opporumity o
camemise on and have 3 delerminalion made by the panel and a repeal of these provisions will pob have
wny effect on that paricular case. A claimant can abio decide nol 1o proceed with the panel, af which case
s clalmant can file an scthon in (he dastrsel courty.

SENATOR RAGGIC,
This woalk! bevome effecive Otober 1, 2002, il enacied.

ME. WILKINSON:

Thsl is correct.

SENATOR RAGGIO;

What does the change do 1o cases (158 occur belone Ociober |, 20027

ME. WILEINSOMN;

Section 38 of the bill addresses cases thai are currently pending. 1T those cases have already had a
determanation made by ihe scréenimg panel, 1hen the repeal of this section is not relevard. For cases ibal
are currenlly pending, the clasmant has the right boopl m or opt out of the screening pans] provisions,

SENATOR RAGGIO
s ikar wp o the clakmant™

ME. WILKINSON:

That iz wp the claimanst, yes. 07 the claimant decides & opt out, Fikes an action in the court and prevails
at thal, the claimani is also entided po taxes, cosis and the fee padd o the division for fling the
COmpRIAL

EENATOR RAGGID:
What els?

ME. WILKINSOMN:

Section 11 is one of ithe seclions pertmning 10 the screening panel, but | believe we aré poang to be
addressing the subject of changing the statule of lmmLations 35 4 SEparalc Bsuc.

SEMATOR RAGGID:

That is why | wanted you i give an overview of the whale thing. 15 that also in that section!
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ME. WILKINSOMN:
That is section 11, Basically, all we are doing in fhese seccdoms is repealing all ihe provisions
pertaining 10 1be scresning pans], and the other sections have insernal references 1o provigions specifically

SEMATOR RAGGIC:
What happens 10 cases occurring after October |, 0027

ME. WILKINSOM;

Adver Detober 1, 2002, somebady would simply file an action in disirict courl. We have oller changes
periaining 1o actions for medical or dental malpractice (hat are filed after the effective date of this bill,
bagt | beelieve thise were gpoing 10 be addressed afl o later time.

SENATOR RAGGID:

I think, even though there ane staiie-of-limitaion changes, we had berer undersiand what b in these
seciions

ME. WILKINSOM:

Afier the screening panel is repealed, oo of the new secions pertamning 1o this type of action |s
ssction 7, which provides for fam wrecking of these actboms. I provides for mandsiory dismissal of
medical or dental malpractice cases if they are not brought to irial within three years alter ibe dale on
which they are filed, until 2005, On Oowber 1, 2005, the pericd will be shornened o rwo vears,
Diismissal of an action i a bar o filing another scifon: iberefore, it 5 2 mandapory dismissal unbess pood
cazge is shown for the delay by the plaintilf. This section also provides ihat the district oot will slopt
court rules to cxpedite the resolution of an action invalving medical or dental malpractice.

SENATOR RAGGHD:

ks that called *fast tracking™"
ME. WILKINSOMN:

That & correct

SEMATOR RAGGID:
Section 11 states provisgions that provide the slatute of Hmalations. One i5 for three years after the date
of inqury, o twa vears sfier discovery. Is thad conmect?

ME. WILKINSON:
That is cormect.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
I5 that the whole change?

ME. WILKINSOM:

The other change in section 11, whene the languape 15 stricken, is referring o (e tolling of the satute
of Limilations while the complainl is pending before the screening panel, Since the screening paned 18
beimg done away with, he tolling provision 15 no longer pecessary.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

What aboud section 127

ME, WILKINSOM:

L&t me go back 1o sectlon 9. Section % provides (hat in any actions for medical or dental malpractice,
the plaimiiT, the defendant, the represcpdative of ihe physician or dentist insurer and iheir alomcys are
requited b abend the mandsiony settiement conference before a districe judge, other than the judge
assigned 10 the case,

SENATOR RAGGID:
That is sctually ouiside of the scope, isn'y it? | jumpsd inlo seciion 12, | puess we should be boking 2
sectbors 10, 11, and 17, What about seciion 17 as it applies to ibe medical/dental panel?
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ME. WILKINSON:
Section 17 i an intermal reference 1o the medicalidemtal screenang paned which will no langer be
relevant afier it is repealed,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Section 24 sirikes existing language &5 1o screening panels?

MR, WILKINSON:
Thal is correct.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Section 157

ME. WILKIMSON:

Seciion 35 @ the section that scheally repeals all die dectlons, Section 38 s the translory proviskon
which provides the right o opl n oF o

SENATOR RAGGIO:

We now have representatives from both the medical and legal professions here, We are dealing with
the msoes o he bl reganding review of ihe medical and dental screcoing pamel, Let me ask you
gentlemen, s ihe language in ibe ball that, in essemoe cepeals fw future cases (he medical and dental
screening pancl, something tha I agreed upon betwoen the wo professions as this bill i processed?

M. GILLOCK:

e, it reflects an agreement reached by the parties.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Mr. Flangas, s that your understanding?

MR. FLANGAS:

Thar is correct.

SENATOR RAGGIO.

It there anyibing in the language addressing this in amy of bose sections that mesds (o be amended m
any way?

MR, GILLOCEK:

Mo, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR RAGGH:

How shoul the moedical side? Mre. Coblon, we want o welcome you back. 'We are booking @ the
review of the medical and dencal screening panels in the applicable sections. The Chair just inguised
wikether of nol any langoage im scctions L0, 11, 17, 24, 35 or 38, which deal with the medical or dental
secreening pancl, i essemos repealing it as o actions occurring afler October | of this year, needs to be
amcnded or changed,

ME, COTTON:

| kave mo amendiment language this morming because | have had only 3 minates (o think in the last
several days, | percetve a logistical probéem with all of these issucs coming out &L cnoe as opposed (o
slagpered in terms of ke load on the couns ammd (be practical koad on plakntiffs and defense lawyers.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
The claimants have an option if Usey have an existing case. 18 1hal correer”

ME. COTTON:

My understanding is they do,

SENATOR RAGGID:

Is there a problem with opling oul of the streening pagel?
MR COTTON:
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There are abom 250 cases siong in & pane]l rght pow. IF (bey all decide o oopt omt on Ocsober |,
02, we would have a foad of 254 cases dumped on the couart system and anomeys with a fas track on
itop of that This would probably creaie a severe problem with admimstration of the count svsbem with
thise cases,

SENATOR RAGGIHD:
Fast iracking would mean they would have 10 accommodale, o the best of their ability, giving thom a
priogity. Is thal your understanding®

ME. COTTOMN:
My urdersianding = 1here i3 a priorily sysbem.

SEMATOR RAGGID:
The courg 15 suppossd 10 adopt mules for that parpose under this bill,

MR. COTTON:
Ag long a8 we have that undersianding, the coun will adogt mubes along (hose lines. Ouher thn chat |
have po probilem with (he langaage.

SENATOR RAGGH):
Is there anything we can do otherwise?

ME, COTTON:

The oaly mechanism is somebing about which 1 would have 1 ealk go plaistill™s coansel in onder 10
S0 soame time frames for the cases to come o in a more orderly fashion should they elect out, bassd on
data Mlings or something along those lines, so we would not thearetically have 254 cases coming ot of
il We may well have 200 That 5 a sigaificant load oa 3 judiciary with about 18 ar 19 judges, all &
onge, even if we put them oo a try-o-do-your-best effon 1o pet them moving. In ome day, a significan)
boad of cases could be filed which would have a sipnifican impact on the eniire courn syswem.

SENATOR RAGGH)
What comes w0 your mind as a possthle solution?

ME. COTTON:

We should establish some type of Slandard movement oul on a month-by-monih basis per daie of
filing. For example, if they are filed in May 2001, those cases could come out the next month. The nex
cases could come oul, if they opted out, and filed by month. Then they would basically be coing out &
the pace they come ous today. They would mot all be coming out on lop of the court sysem all af onoe.
Thal b8 my concern,

SENATOR RAGGHD
Duoes ihat make sense (o you, Mr, Gillock?

ME. GILLOCE:

I beleeve we have alresdy accommodsted ths concern in this bill, ancer secton 7, reterred 1o By
legislathve eounscl earlier. Section 7(a) says: “Theee years from the date the action is Mled if the action &5
filed on or before Ocsober 1, 3003 bat aiter Ociober 1, D005 We have given a three-year period po get
ihe cases tnio eowrt for those cases presendly filed or ibar will be filed before 2002, The cases filed afier
20405 will have to go 10 coart in & period of oo years. Even though 250 cases sound like a lot, we have
over 25 courls, so that is only 10 cases & courl, if you want 1o break B down that way. | know it 18 an
niflitional losd oa the court system, bul | believe the reason we megotiated (be theee-year perbod before
we 3¢t in the fast-iracking system was so we would accommodate those addilivnal cases,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Than is dismizsal if the case i not broughd to trial, bul sometimes il i pol within control of gither the
defendant or plaintiff, & it?
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ME. GILLOCK:

That is whai [ mean. Let's 1ake a hypoibetical case. It comes out of tbhe panel, either you bring i cut
of the panel or you file & new case tomorrow of October 15 or 16, The coun has three years io adjus its
caleadar and modify its case schedudes 1o sccommodate the cases, wheross, if B &5 filed Later, they have
oaly twda years v fin it inn the sysicm.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
My Impression was 1he so-calbed fas-racking procetare was not bed 6o the motion for dismissal,

MR. GILLDCK;
In (ke bill, a1 is tied to the motbon far digmissal, It says the court shall st substanilal rubes © slopt this
gxupediied resolulion scheduls,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

I understand 1hat, That is the fast racking. His concern i we have 230 cases now pending, mone ar
lesa, within the process of the medical and denial screening pancls. IF they opt oul, as they ase entitled 1
dio umder the banguage of this bill, all at ence, there is no way all those cases coald probably be broagh
1o trial within three years, is thene?

MR, GILLOCK:
1 would think so. If there sre 250 cases filed to come oul, historically, there would ondy Be two 1o fve
percent that wodd go b0 court and trial,

SEHATOR RAGGIOD:

[ am oot thal familiar wich the trial calemdars im Clark County. What b5 the usual delay onee i gels olal
of {he strecnmg pangl?

ME. COTTOM:

Omce i gets oul of tbe sereening panel, & It is not an xped person of someone dykng, it can ron oul 1o
a three- 0 five-year timeframe, PMus there are other cases, for example, constructlon dofiec cases and
others, backing up the system. Thai |s my only concern. They ane backed up right now. 1 uried a case o
wieks ago thar had been in there for six years.

MR GILLOCEK:
The purpose of ibe fas-tracking syitem is o gel the insurance comipanies” money back o them fasier,
I became a proponent of the [ast tracking, three-year system @ the imtiitence of Mr. Coflon,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Wail a minuie, Thai weni by me. The parpose of (b fast irack s o get tbe insurance companics’
maney back i them?

ME. GILLOCK:

Thai is right. One of the fedsons msurance companies complas aboul the slation In Mevada is doe 1o
the lemgth of time i takes o get moncy back, three to five years a8 o which Mr, Codton jiast referred,
because during ihal Gme, they have 1o reseeve a loss. [ they post & reserve, the loss has o sy posied
for three w0 five years, It was Mr. Coton’s suggestion thar we fast mack these cases similar 1 anothey
giate with which be works.

SENATOR RAGGIHD):

There seoms 0 b gencral agrecment that medical asd demial scréeming pancls hasve not been as
effective as onginally boped, Tha & generally 1be understanding. You think #'s betier 1o fast track these
actiops and have more certainty of an earlier trial date, | guess we are ready o, maybe, adopt ihis
language, but pow we have pome hesitancy thal, as a practical maiter, the Bmguage will pat accommodate
this, Can you help us here so we can move alang?

ME. GILLDCK:
1 would sggesi if a case is fled before a medical/deptal séredning paned before the year 2000, of
which there are many cases. that i come ol of the panel and be set for trial within the next tao Years,
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Them if it is filed before the pancl afer the year 2000, the courd, at s discretion, coubd exiend the three-
vear period p o the vear 2006

MEBE. COTTON:
[ think that would expand (e lime enough 1o give some realistic adjusiments by the court if & lot of
these cases come oul.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Do we bave the right 1o dictate 10 a court in statue?

ME. GILLOCK:

W have ibe right o dictsie Il a5 long as we give them the discretion, at ihe agreement of eflber courd
o coumgel, o modify i,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Does counsed agres with that? Please indicsie thar Ms. Needham nodded yves.

ME_ GILLOCK:
Wi have & provision in Mevada where if someone i over 70, or expecied to die within | year, they
et preferemital setiing. We would wang 1o sill have that available,

ME. WILKINSON:
Weuld vou please repeal the question’

SENATOR RAGGIO:

As recommended, do we have the nght 1 inclade a provision that cases (lled before the paneld peior 1o
Oclober 1. 2000, would be set for trial within thees vears if they opt oml. Any filed after Ociober |,
2000, would be brought to frial within foar years from Ociober |, 2006, unless they qualily far ome of
the systems with priority seftings.

Mr. Gillock and Mr, Cofion will vou both gei togeiber and pui # in writing if it is 1o be considered by
this commiatiee, and then we will look ai i,

ME. GILLOCK:
We can do that,

SEMATOR NEAL:

There iz & mandatory requircment tha judges be wrained in handling malpraciios cases i section 15,
Where woald this fit, in teems of dumping all teese cases Into the judicial gystem? Would the ralning
come before, during or would there be a period time i which it would take place?

SEMNATOR RAGGID-
Would coursel answer that gquestion”

MR, WILKINSON;

Section |3 requires the Supreme Coirl to adopd courl mules providing for mandatory, appropeiaie
fraaning concerning comphos issees of medical malpractice litigation for each district judge of whom
actions imvolving medical malpractice are assigned, Basically, this provision leaves to the discretion of
the court the method by which this rraining is goirg 1o gecur and whal the raining is going o consist of.
Certainly, there ate already judges who have training and expersence in medical malpraciice actions, so
ey may nol reqaire (be same sarl of iraiming. This @& kel ap o the discreison of the courl as o exacily
oy i will eceur.

SEMATOR MEAL:

I umderstand that, e after lisliening to 1he attosneys, my concern is thal there i afready a backlog of
these cases, and | undersiand them 10 be saying, there are 254 cases now before the screening pancl
which within the nex) theee vears will be dismped tnbo ihe coun sysiem. We also reqgisire judpes o be
wralmed amd masdabed, secording o this lamgespe, that the Supreme Court will esablish the rules far
iraiming. Arc we sayimg e will, leave it & that asd ol do anyiling of pel a Gme miton i sinoe we ane
trying b0 help the system get these cases resolved?
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SEMATOR RAWSOMN:

As a practical maner, we have 1o deal wilh this issue whenever we make a change, 'We have 1o deal
with the traming, and it simply bas to be worked oul whenever we do it | am asking whether this has w
be a stopper?

ME. COTTON:

In Clark Coanty, and Mr. Gillock can correct me if | am wrong. | think we have conservatively
amywhere bevween six o eight judges of e judiciary who are expericnced in medical malpractice and
havie handled and tried & number of cases over the past four or five years, There could be some allocation
of cases, instaniancously, o judges who alresdy have some background caperience, and iraining could be
implemented at a later dace, | believe there ane enough expersenced judpes 10 handle the mial thoust af
cases referred w by Mr. Gilleck.

SENATOR RAWSOMN:
Dies that give somse level of comfior?

SENATOR NEAL:

I hope so. I would not like i be voting on something that will clog the system by saving (he judpes
mist ave raining, amd when we put it ima law, if they do pot have the fraining, | would assume be
citkzens woald have some [ype of fECourse,

ME. GILLOCK:
If we pass thad statube, ke Supremse Court would then bhave the duty bto determine whar sdditicnal
iraining & necessary,

SENATOR RAGGIOD:
They wiould pass a nele. They would enact a mle.

ME. GILLOCK:

I woald simply be siending & series of classes s the judge’s college. 1 agree with Mr. Cotion thal we
have several judges expericnced in handling these cases. In fact, as a practieal aspecl, one of I most
recenl jidges who hes only been on the bench 2 weeks, 1 understand did a really good job in handling a
very complex malpractice case. | think it is something the coun would work ot

SENATOR NEAL:
So you Jon’L $60 3 problem i erins of hacklog and cligging the System

ME. GILLOCK:
Mo, 1 do nm,

SENATOR RAGGHD:

Lot me indbcaie that Mre. Andereom, Chair of ibe Assembly Select Comminee, indicaied there is a
problem getting represcitatives from eitber the medical or legal profession in both Heuses o these
hearings. Odwiously, there are more than ome of you on each side, Thevefore, | think you meed 1o
gccommodab: hoth Howses in this regard. | wonld suggest vou decide who is your authordative
representalive 1o appear in both Howses, You may have io do this at the same ime.

MR, GILLOCK:
They decided | wat most gualified and wanted o 1 2ay beee.

SEMATOR CARE:

Ooe of the experiences | enjoy beast i when 1 5o 1o onart, and before the case geis called, 1he judge
calls me b the bench and says, “Did you know what you were doing because this has had such & effec
on me of us™ | guess we ase not godeg 80 heas from amy chiel judges wday. Has anyone consulied the
judiciary regarding their sttitude shout the mechanisms in this bill, inclisding the motion (o dismiss with
prejudice. peding rid of the screening panel, increasing the caseload and manduory training?
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MR GILLOCK:

For the record, | have discussed this issue briefly with two judges. Mandatory dismissals creale a
severe Bardship, more s on the parties than the court, In Clark County, the count has developed an
overflow system whereby a court may oot handle the case assigned 1o it bul may assign it lo anotber
diepariment to seeammodate the overllow, They have also found they can w21 between 15 and 20 cases for
e same Monday moralag and oaly bave one of twio thal are enber ready o go or do nol resolve by
sefilemaend. The court takes the cases in which they are bess inlbmstely mvolved in terms of aciial
kmowledge on substantive motions, amd then move Ibose cases. 11 has boen working,

MR, COTTON:

If | may respond, Senater Care, | talked with several judges in Clark County, ncluding one heading
ihe commitiee on court rulés, vosting my concern about délays in Clark Coumty and propesed [ast-irack
regulations. | was sbout ready 10 take them (o the cour and give them 1o the judpe when | epded up here.
They are very much in favor of asything that will expedite the eotire process, | can speak from my own
personal experience in working under the mamies of the count rales in Arizona ander fas irack. I moves
cases along and stops & lod of dilaory conduect on the pan of lawyers. (1 gets things brought to a point, I
also has mandatory setilement conferences where, quite frankly. a good share of cases are resodvied rather
than clogping the court system. This is pan of the reason | have been advocating and trying 1o work with
Mr. Gillock. For the past vear, we have discussed wavs o0 speed these things gp because we are both
frustrated with the way the sysiem siands today,

SEMATOR CARE:
Why not have a ikree-vear male for all civil cases, insicad of five? Why Llimit i1 1o medical malpraciice?

ME. COTTON:
I, persomally, have no problem with thai. My problem 18 thar | do not deal encugh caslde of medical
malpraciice and corporate Mmgatkon that | could spesk for everyone €lsc o their cases.

SENATOR RAGGIO-

Iz there any mose westimony? 15 there sdditional poblic westmony on thls sue? The psue i medics)
and dental screeming pancls, andior (he issue 10 secion 15 in regard (o (he Supreme Counl providing
traiming by court nae,

MAURY ASTLEY (Exccutive Direcior, Mevada Demial Association):

We appreciase being comsidered in this legislation, particalarly, on behalf of oral susgeons. Al this
time, mos| dentisis are pot aifecied by ibe issue, but we know the bill i needed, However, we would like
0 retain the demtal-screening pamel which has been effective for uws. We have mol seen ibe kind of
complzints being experienced by the medical side on this issoe. Theré are approgimately 1) 1o 200
medical cises per vear while there are seven 1o cight dental cases per year. We would rather not be
thrown into the mix of 2 back Joad of 200 court cases on medical malpractice if these 1 a way o keep the
dental-screening pancl. We think it has served a good purpose. It also has helped when patienis call our
assogiation regarding their choboes, and we el them they can go through this process or the peer-review
process. They can will go through the dental-screening panel or sue. They have those opteors. This was
ariginally 3 medical-scfeening pasel, and vou may fecall, we were added. ln 1999, the sunsel was
refmoved 50 we could be 3 permasent pam of this. 13 has beén cffective for us, and we wrge you 1o retain
the dental-screening panel

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Let me ask the begal profession representative. What s yoar fecling about retaining the panel for
demdal malpractice?

MR. GILLOCK:

I have mo problem refainimg it for demal malpractice. | do nod know how it would work
administratively for the slage. An agency wouald bave (o be developed o handle seven or sight cases, If
the dental-screening panel could be maintaieed & anolber agency, of & sub-agency of the insurapce
commigsioner's offbce, or something. if could still be maintained withowl présent @affng bevels. Perhaps,
it wonild be fEnamcially possible. | have no problem with . Ohviously, when you sée seven or gight
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cascs, there are few instancos where 3 gentist has & case where the injuries ane subsianiizl enough for
people v purses them In couart,

SENATOR RAGGID:

We recenily authorized addition of personse] 1 beef up the nurmber of panels for this purpose. | know
the Commissioner of [nsurance is Bere. Would you, or someone from your office, care vo commend on
this? It has been sugpesied tha the bill would ultimately do away with the existing panc] and a request
has boen made that it be rersined bat anly for demal malpraciice.

ALICE MOLASKY-ARMAMN (Commissioner of Insurance):

We came before the Imerim Finance Commitiee in June and sought four posBtions 1o be dedicated o
ihe screeming-panc] process bocause we felt, with those additional stalf members, perhaps we could make
the process mwwe cificient, We had, and sl have, a wemendoos backlog. Additional staff were
approved, However, pending the special legislative session, we have not filled the positions and do not
ingend to. of course, uniil we know the outcome of the panel . An the present time, our $aff in Las Vegas
consists of two-and-one-hall people, a research analyst, an sdministrative stsisant and 8 hallainee legal
secretary. In the porh, it consists of a hall-time begal secomary. All in 2ll, cur existing stafl consists of
thoee perfons, | cannot say (bat oumber of gall would be necessary for the number of dental cages we are
seemng. | know we currently have 27 ool cases repanding dental Uahility between both momivern and
southern Mevada, Five of those seven have alnesdy pone ihrouph the panel process o e point where
they are ready for a panel 1o he calendaredBithres in the oonb and two in the souwh. In fsc1, as we speak,
i 1wy i thie south thay have aleeady been sel for o pang] hearing. | am not cenain as io the aging of
those cases. The oldest active case for demtal goes hack bo one thal was filed January 26, 2001,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

Yo are |logking at something like 17 cascs proceeding through the process, &nd you are requesting the
demtal-screening pane] be retained. The lawvers anc selling ws they see no malor probiem O that were
dome. We just dad away wilh the medical-screening panel for medical malpractice. Am | hearing this
right? The Commisgioner of Insurance is telling us that, presently. there is something like three-and-one-
half 51217 currenily assigned to this process,

M5, MOLASKY-ARMAN:
A iotal of three.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
‘Thal may mot be necessary i i s just the dental-screeming pasel. Am | hearing this righe?

ME. GILLOCK:

1 understand that Mr. Mobray, who has more imvelvement with dental-screening panel cases, may
diszgree with my pogition,

JEREY H. MOWRRAY (Anorney):

1 practice in Reno. | kive kpown many of you over the years thromgh the practice of law and other
arexs & well, Over the last ten years, | filed &t least ten medical malpractice cases and received large
verdicts on some of them. lo fact, one of the cases on which | oblained a verdict i the reason dentists
were pit in the screening panel. What the s¢réening panel has considered in demial malpractice cases are
oot large demages cases. They are 550,000 cases, We have beard testimony as o ibe expensivensss aof
this litigation, One of (he reasons filings have gone down on dental malpractice cases is nol because there
ire no meritorious cases. When a person sees a Lawyer and requesis tbem to book a1 a case, the case will
be reviewed by a dentisl who might say @ iz meriorious bt the damapes will be only 325,000 or
530,000, The prospective chient will be oobd @t will cost a1 least 510,000 o get the case through the panel,
and anoaher $15,000 1o 525,000 fo iry the case. As 2 resull of the cost facoor, the cliem will spend 58 1o
gt 57 back. What the panel has done for people injured &5 o result of denal malpraciioe s dise o W
percenl of dental malpractice cases having 3 value of bess than 525,000 to $30.000. Those cases are no
fibed beciuse it is nof cconombeally feasible fo go 1o conet doe o such an expensive process. The dental
associEteon wants it in there bocause ihey know when injured people sec an mitoeney ihey will be tald
what | explaimed fo you. Cuite frankly, | was cocfacied by people who work in the office of the
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Commissioner of [nsusance when the initial dental malpractice legislation kad & sumsct provision pui on
ir, ft was enacted in 1995, and the sunset expired it in 1999, People in the office of the Commissioner of
Insurance were calling avorneys and ssking them to festify i the Legislatare to gei rid of the panel,
There are few dental cases, and exlsting ones are small damage cases, It was a classic example of people
having their right o go o court wken away. 1§ a person comes in with 2 550,000 case and you say it will
cost 530,000 in cosis just fo gt the case ready for trial, (here 15 pothing ledt for the client, A demal
malpractice crisis has never boen demonsirated.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
You said vou have been operating wnder (hal situation.

ME. MOWBRAY:

Since the dental malpractice panel bas béen pal o effect. T have filed a total of three cases since
1995,

SENATOR RAGGI):
15 that when we pisl deniests nder tha?

ME. MOWBRATY:

They became effective October [, 1995, A lawyer dobng malprascisce work has o iell tbe chienl that
should they have o claim of $50.0(0, they will be upside down in the case whilh no rocourse. Thal s
reality when irying these cases. They are expensive. | think the Governor's suggestion 1o climinaie panels
for physicians, a& well as dentisls, & a good proposition. | would aleo like w poini ow, before the
screening panel was made spplicable o dentists, there was oot a Mood of Inigation against demists in
either Washoe o Clark County. There have been o bof less cases since then because of the chilling effect
of 1be cosl involved in presenting Ibe case 1o the panel,

SEXNATOR CARE:

I listened o the Governor's remarks yesicrday amd have beard oiber commenis in passing about the
need b0 pet rid of (he screening panel, or words to that effect. Looking ot & case apnodation under MRS
A1R.006, Jane v McFarlard, 109 Nevada 465, 1993, that says the purpose of screening panels is to
minimize frivolous suits againsl doctons o encourags setilement and lower the cosl of malpractice
premiidms =nd health care., W seems b0 me, the only reason o get rel of screening panels is becagse ihey
are doang what they were imended o do, | Bave pot heasd any lestimony aboul bow (ke original
legislation of screening panels is nod decreasing the nusnber of frivolous Brwsults, There has been nolbing
o that. | certainly wam 1o hear something aboal that befare | volbe an this.

MS. MOLASKY-ARMARN:

When the denfal pang] was formed in 1993, we did nol recedve any additional saff at that tinse because
of it, | want t0 assure Mr, Mowbeay that if anyone called from my office advocating either in favaor af
ihe panel insofar as denists are concerned, or in oppositbon. ibey had no authority to do so. | would like
you o know (hat because we did nof takie s sdvocacy posilion oo that,

ME. GILLOCK:

Theoughanat the last four monshs, physiceans have taken & very vooal position about the fact, based
upom the matistics of (be screening paned, that they are nol discouraging frivolous Bowsuis. They said a
large perceninge of the number of pane]l findings ihal come oul wilb a no voie siill go to courd, | ikink
imsurance compamnies for defendants, Mr. Colton can speak (o this, feel the expense of thee sereening pared
has nol really ferreted oul caseseven though defendants, as well a5 plaingiffs, are requined w0 spend
S20,00K]D 1oy 5340, 0000,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

The copcerms they have expressed, here and elsewhere, is that the majority of cases where negligence
is not found or it i6 determined i cxists, ang fled. Cases in which there is no decision, ind thal may be a
bot. still go dn graal,
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ME, GILLOCK:

Perbaps, | was oot clear when | s5d no findings. When a panel comes out with a findiag of no
pegligence, there is will a large percentage going 1o trial. That is why doctors insissed the screcning paned
was oot doing #1E job. As a resull of nogolbstions with that group, we came o the conclusion that we
woiald do sway with the screening pancl, put them on a fast rack and give the court ihe option to develop
rubes speeiflically for medical makpraciio im arder 10 cul expense and maximize the speed 1o get the cases
b (riad,

In apswer to Senmor Care’s question, you can find people on both sides of 1he issue as 1o whelber or
nif it sereens oul frivolous Lawsuits. Cenaiply doctors are saying i s nol doing the pob,

SENATOR CARE:

With mo screening panel, the plaisiill will Bave no chosce bul o ke a lawaet, 1§ would seem 1o me
the advamtage of the scraening panel i like arbwiration oader the mandatory program. I you win, bose oF
whatever, It pives you some ides wheilhtr you ought 1o roguest a il de nove, It gives you semething o
think sbous, | would think ihe screening pancl would serve the same parpose, bal we bear we need o gel
rid of i for doctors bl keep b for dentisis. Lasi sessbon, we had a bill tha would have cresied o
screening panel for construction defect litigation thay 1 thowght was & [idy worthwhile ides. Mow, 1 do
ool kpow' i [ have any fasth in panels at all,

ME. GILLOCEK:

In my experience many cases have been resolved faster before the screcning paned because, in order 1o
prevent a lawsuit being fled, insurance companics move more quickly. Under the provisions of ihis
emergency measure, an affidavit would be required of a physician in the same or similar field te be filed
with the complaint at court or it will be subject to dismissal. [ think insurance companies will address
these cases faster., These may be as many as len cases that have been seitled and resolved regardless of
the degree of pegligence or clarity of 1he issues under the screening panel. Cases have been filed ansd just
st until the screening panel heand the case, This way they will pot have that choice, Therefose, | think a
lot of cases will be gesolved [aster, The delay ag the pang] o present is anywhbere from gight o 18
maih.

M5 MOLASKY-ARMAN:
I would like to coprect ibc pamber of dental cases | gave you are resdy for ihe modical panel in
noribem Mevada, The actual 1otal number of dental cases 2 12 ot 27.

EEMATOR RAGGH,
Is there zny more ledimony on this subject, either the medical or deémal screeaing panels of ihe
Sopremie Courl rule on irzining of judges?

SENATOR NEAL:
I would move to adopt secticas 10, 11, 17, 24, 35 and 38, along wilh section |5, of Senatc Bill No. 2.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

Leave section 13 out of the motion. The oither sections pertain (0 the medical/dental sereening pancl
The modion wouald be w adopt the existing language in those sections. Does everyboady understand the
mofion? The effect of that motkn would be 1o do away, under (he applicable schedule in the bill, with
medical and dental screening panels. The motion would also mchude, in section 11, the 1me Hmits for
commencing actions and, in section 17, the language that removed the refercnce. Whial about the statute
of limitstions? What section is that m? Where are the motion for dismissal, e staime of Imitsions
comrmencing in action and the moton for disenissal within teree years? That ks n section 7.

The matbos will also include seetion 7. Then section 24 |8 deleting reference 1o the screening panel.
Section 35 15 the repealer section, and soction 38 & the iransitory language. Does the commities felly
undersiand the motion™ 1s there sany discussion on the motion?
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SENATOR CARE:

[ was wondering if Mr. Wilkinson could discuss section 26, which is the effective date of the kil Is
discusses actions that accrie on or afler October |, 2003, as opposed 1o the langusge in section 11, which
discusses wronglul death of &0 injury thal occurs on or after October 1, 2002, My question is, whal docs
this di oo the [mjury that oceurs before Octaber 1 of this year, bt the injury is not discovered or does st
manifiest isell wnil February 20057 How does il i with wthat we sre ahoot fo do?

ME. GILLOCK:

That would siill fall under the old statute of limitations, and the screening pancl provisions. Since we
are abolishing the screening panel, i would go away unless they filed the action before Ociober |, 302
| think that provision has 10 be the way it s in ocder 1o preserve the constitalioaatity of the satute.

MR, WILKINSOM;
I belleve that analysis is correct with réspect to the applicabiliny of that section

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

It applies 1o sections | o 6 inclusive, and section 11, peoviding (hst those seclioas only apply o a
cange of action (hat occurs an or after Ociober 1 of this year. Is that your reading of 17 Does that satisfy
v, Senator Cane?

MR, GILLOCE:
Yes, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR CARE:
Yes, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR NEAL:
Could we mnclude that as part of the motion?

SEMATOR RAGGID:

I think since (hat applies olberwise to other soctions, oace we o through all these amendmess and
have a final hill, we can adopd all the remaining sections, and that would Be isclasive. Wouald tha be
approgriate?

Oms the motion, all in favor indicaie ave. Any opposed.

The malion is carried unanimounsly,

The posted agenda albows us 1o take up amy asd all provisions of the bill. We will iry to do thal as we
go along. Therefore, [ will ask for a motion on ssction 15, on which we had a discussion,

SENATOR TOWNSEND:
I move to sdopt sectien 13 of Senate Bill No. 2.

SEMATOR RAGGIOD:

s theere any discussion on thal mobon? We are dealing with section 15, the Supreme Counl providing,
by court rule, for appropriste iraining concerning complex issues of medical malpractice ligaion. s
there any public lesuimony on scetlon 157 On the motion, all i favor indicale aye. Ane these any
opposed.

The maotion is carried unanimously,

Lei us go now o ihe dem reganding sirengibening roponiing requitemenis relfating to disciplinary
actions, claims, selilements and swards against physicians. This is dealt wilh in sections 14, 19, 20, 21,
I3 23, 25, 30, 31, 32, 33 and M of Senake Bill Mo, 2. Since you are both present, | am going fo ask you
genllemen 10 give os your understanding of whay the effect of the languzge would be with respect o the
reporling requirements relaging o disciplinary actions, claims, setflements and awards, Who would like
10 diseuss ghis?

ME. GILLOCK:

I think ibe purpose i to stremgthen (e réporting reguirements o gain additional sccountability and
better {racking of physicians and any iracking of, what we might wasl o call, a bad doctor, of which
there are wery few [ might add. We wam o be sure this sysiem is put Mo place I onder that
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responsibilities. of the hospials and coures are coordinated. The coart hag a responsibility 10 repon o
stae agencics which coondinale the reporting system. Wi have present wihh us someone who would like
o achdress that as well, Mancy Peverind is familiar with ibe reponiing systems in Califorsda and other
slages, She wants 00 briefly pddress the issues,

NAMNCY PEVERIMI (Legislative Counsel, Consumer Atorneys of California):

‘We worked on this issue in Californla for quice & long thme. 1 wand 1o poin out that when the MICELA
statwie passed in 1975 in Califomia these were fwo components, (e was te forl pelonm paition, and the
other portaon was o beel op medical board reporting and the abllity w discipling doctors, On the one
hand, there would be ton reform; om the other hamd, the public should be prodecied by a swshstantial
abiliy of the medical board (0 review and receive information abowt physicians who have not acied
appropriately. 1 wiould like jo point ot on this section thal these provigions, although necessary, | think
are inadequate. In California, the fine for kospilals that Fail 1o provide medical reporting is 530,000, The
S100000 bevel was found madequate, and 0 was raizsd. Furnber, ibe public @ California bas access
through o website 1o the medical boasd reganding disciplinary actions and information the board has
received. Therefore, a member of the pablic can access the webale and look up information abow a
physician. 1t is Importent for te public (o be ahle 1o prosect themselves with information in arder o
chisose 3 doctor who coald beat help thelr family.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
1 am not sure | followed everything, Are you suggesting changes 10 the langoage o the bill?

MS5. PEYERINI:

I o nol speak for the Nevada Trial Lawyers Association, bui 1 thenk the 510,000 fine for failure o
report B inkdequate. | recommend an increase 1o 550,000, which s consisent with California’s law for
boapirals that Fall 1o report changes in physician privileges.

SEMATOR RAGGID:

The sanciins = 1his bill were imposed on hospitals, was it pot, and upon Insamace companics?

M5, PEVERINI:

Yes.

SENATOR RAGGID;

There was no fine on doctors i this bl Am [ correct bn thar? What is the sasetion on doctors whe
Taill py repart?

MR, COTTOMN:

My understanding is (hat if does nod invelve sancbons mvelving doctors; i @ haspitals. socichies or
imsarance,

SENATOR RAGGID-
15 ase S10.000 fine for cach occurrence™

MR, OOTTON:
That b8 the way it 18 wosndied,

M5, PEVERINE:

[ am pointing owl that under the similar w im Califormia, i a hospital has a change in physician
privilege, the fine for Failiere to repont i3 $50,000.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

What is your feeling on that? Mobody is here representing the hospitals or insurance companses. 15 this
what was agreed upon?

ME. GILLOCK:

1 will make that represencatson for the commities, This reflects an agreement and discussion walh all
parties involved in drafting this,

Tb
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SENATOR RAGGIO:
Let ms go throwgh it 5o we know what we are talking about, | know it will take a lode iime, but let us
look at it Section 14 1% the first reference. Is that correct?

MR COTTON:
That is correct.

SENATOR RAGGIO.

The new lingeape indicaies thar by Pebroary 15 of every odd-numbered year the oour sdminiseeaor
will submit 10 the Governor and Legislabure, for the next regular session, & writien repon compiling
micrmation submitted by the clerks of the court for statistical purposes. There will be po information
with regand 1o particular doctors, This §s for statistical pusposes. That is the purpose of section 14, (£ 1
am nol reading it right or enderstanding it right or the committee docs pot understand, ot us know as we
go along. 1= thal your understanding of (ke purpose of sscison 147

MR, COTTON:
Yes Mr. Chairman, that is our undersianding.

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Is section 19 1alking abowt the Boand of Sedical Examiners? Is that cosrect? That boand i reguined by
the same date to submit o the Governor &nd Legislauee any repomn of disciplinany action taken agaknst a
physician for malpractice or negligence, That is striculy disciplinary action, right?

ME. GILLOCKE:

That is correcy.

BENATOR RAGGID:

Any information that is reporied (o (ke board during that 2-year period purseant o those ssctions will
include informathon for statistical parposes. | do wot know which specific sections they are, Somebady
il have 1o tell us. What kind of information is requingd under fhose sections?

MRE. WILKINSON:

The mfarmation referred 0 are actions or claims of malpraciice filed against the physician and the
disposition of those claims,

SEMNATOR RAGGID:

Is that your undersianding. pentlemen?

ME. GILLD{CEK:
Vs, Mr, Chairman.

ME. COTTON:
MRS 630,307, subsections I and 3. réfer fo suspension of privileges and disabilities, mental amd
otherwise, of doctors on staff.

SENATOR RAGGID:
Has this been agreed w?

ME. COTTON:

That b5 my understanding,
SENATOR RAGGIO,
Section 2,

SENATOR CARLTOMN:

Before we go on, | wani 1o make it ¢lear thai this information is ned available 1o the puhlic. I &
informalion disclosed jusi for staiistical and demographic reasons,

ME. GILLOCE:

That Iz my understanding. Therefore, the board, ilse Governor amd the Legislative Council Buseau
have informatica availabie & (o whelber or nod slditional action would be warranted or necessary. There

T
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Wik A communication mix up that was nod discoverad umtil the malpractice crisis came into heing. The
canerts, for example. (5d ool realize there was o staluie requiring them 1o repont cases 0 the Boasd of
Medical Examiners. They were called on the phooe the olbher day and sked, “Where are 2l the cases lor
the last 13 years™™ They sabd, “1 don't know what are you talking abour®™ They were then Informed.
There was a wwal mix up berween the cour and ibe bosed. We are dodng this o srengthen tha

SEMATOR CARLTON;
As 3 consumer, could | contscr the board and get mformation sbow! what doctors have behaved of
mishehaved?

ME. GILLOCK:

Under this siadute, a consumer could mot get information regarding a particolar docior, There
already an éxishng Hatute, and this is adding some beefed-up language. The use of the mftrmalng docs
nist change im terms of the owside public, My understanding is ot s for the purpose of (e legislarare and
execialive branch 1o develop policy in the fanire.

SENATOR CARE:

Hew can the informaiion be confidential when ibe clecks Forwand Imformation thal |5 gathered from
public documentsloomplaints, answers, alfidsvils stsched lo motions, this, that, and the olber. How can
thal ke decmed condidental T

MR. GILLOCK:

As it praciically exists, a persan can si down wilh therr compuier and go through coun files and, n
Fact, finsd ot how many cases have been fibed at districy court devel against a particular plysician. 1 ihink
the disposition of some cases by way of seiflement are subject v very stringent coafidentiality
agreements, and so forth, Therefore, state agencies have nod been given access 1o this information.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

Section 20, wilh the new language, requires physicians to sabmbl & list of all actons filed or claims
submitied 10 arbitration or mediation during the two-year period for either malpractice of negligence,
whesher or not there 5 a setlement. Is that cormect?

ME. GILLOCK:
‘Thai is correci.

EENATOR RAGGIO:
I woulil be reguired of the physiclan himself or hersell, Section 21 is ke disciplinary action sscin
where you can be demied licersare. Do doclors have vo be Heensed every year? What is the situation?

ME. WILKINSON;

It is a lbenmial regEraion every fwo yodrt,

SENATOR RAGGID:

This would provide, as a mafter of discipline, faflure fo comply willh the requirements of
NRS 6303067 That is the same reference we had in section 19, Is that corpect?

ME. WILKINSON:

That i# correci. The effect of this provision is 10 also shorten the reporting period frim 90 days o 30
iavs.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Secibon 22 applics to the insurance company. Do you want o bricl us o this? What docs this change?

ME. WILKINSON:
Bection 12 of the bill amends NRS 6303067 10 clarify thar insurers snd physiclams must report o the
Board of Medical Examiners any sctlon filed swithin 30 days.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Both the imsurance company and the physician?

8
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ME. WILKINSON:

That is correct. Bath have o report widhin 30 days after an action 15 fibed or a claim is submitted o
arbitratiom., They alio kave b report the disposition of thal action of claim. A furiber reqeirement 1S the
Board of Medical Examiners report any failure o comply with that subsoction by an msurer W ke
Division of Insarance which 1hen, Eollowing a hearing, can impoge an sdminkstrative fine of not more
ihan 510,000 againsi the lnsurer for cach such falhire 1w reporn.

SENATOR RAGGID:

I an imsarance company fails w© report all that infosmasen 1o the Division of Insurance, there o 8
hearing. Afier that Bearing. if it &5 determined there was Tailure o comply, the divislon may impose &
fiee of nol more thin $10,000. iz that eorvect?

ME. WILKINSON:
Th#t is correcl.

SEMATOR RAGGI:
Is there any sanction if the docior does nol file the informalion”

ME. COTTON,
I they do not repom it withis the roo-vear timeframe, the ngurer has the penahy .

SENATOR RAGGID:
That was the previous reference we b

MR. COTTON:

Right.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

What is the effect of section 237 A hospatal, climic, or ofher medical Tacility has the sanse reqainensent
10 repor within M) days if there i change in privileges or dasfiplimary action & taken, and that s
reporied o whom, the healib division™

ME. WILKINSON;

That is repomed o the Board of Medical Exaniners. IF they fail 10 make that repary again, they report
that to the health division,

SENATOR RAGGID:
What sochery does chan refer 107

MR. COTTON:
A medical sochey.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
If there is a hearing and they determine than ibe Macility, the hospstal or ather has faded o comply,
they may impose a fine up to 310,000 Is ihat the underscanding™

M5 PEVERINI:

This is ome of the provisiors on which [ was focasing. B is crucial should this legisisture decide 1o
pass gome 1ype of cap, there be peblic protection by the medical board, We found in California a strong
hammer was required bo get hospitals 1o repord changes in stafus. The medical board does oot have he
ability to track and monitar repest offesders, people who need 10 be disciplined and weeded o of (he
system, We Found it importast (o increase penalties 10 encoarage hospitzls g do e right thing.

SENATOR RAGGID:

At the present time, we do pof have amything in this State, This has been hammered out fo some Exient

by apreemend, and | dhink the focling would be lhal we san somewhere. Yoo know, 550,000 in
California is peamuis compared to $100000 in Nevada,
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SEMATOR TITUS:

I agree it sbowld be higher. We should do an amendment (o raise the fine, maybe, not 1o 550,000 but
more than $10,000. Semetinses, they will pay $10,000 just 10 get rid of the nuisance, Al the very least, |
think tsere shoald be 3 graduated (ine i tsere iz more than one of fense.

ME. COTTOMN:

I represent a ol of doclors in disciplinary-type adiions with hospitals and have found there & lilkle
besilation m reporting them 1o the boand because then | end up dealing with the boand. | have ol
experienced gross delays, Most of 1he time, @@ 8 a clerical error when ey do ool gel reposied, and
510,000 is pretty hefiy for what i probably a clerical ernod under the cincumslances, | have Bl seen any
imentional, non-reporting of doctors. Plus, ihere afe other provisioans wherein dociors have B0 reporl
themselves under those circumstances. The combination would still have imgmct with a 10,000 fine.

SEMATOR TITUS:
What abosil Encreasing it 10 $25 000 for the secomd or ilird offense?

MR, COTTOM;

I smgpect the medical board has enough sanction shility of various ofher varieties, thal should they find
4 hospital deliberately doing something hike that, (he hospatal would probahly have some difficulty with
13 lseense.

SENATOR TITLUS:
15 that true?

M5, PEVERINI:
That kas not been our experience in California, We have had whole hearings from our besiness and
professions commities regarding detailed problems with hospitals nol recording.

SEMNATOR TITUS:
Can 1he medical board commment on ihis?

SENATOR TOWNSEND:

The medical board has no jurisdichion over facilities, 1 has to report 1his o the boand of healih or
health division in the Depariment of Human Resources, That division then takes action over the hospial,
Sov 10 weoald have 1o be the Sape Health Divigion.

SEMATOR TITUS:
Wh takes the license away?

SENATOR TOWMNSEMND:
That would be ke Stae Healih Division.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
That & whom this i reporied w07

SEMATOR TITUS:
Maybe we shoubd hear froms them i they take th likense away,

EENATOR RAGGIO:
Wie mre trying v avosd depariare as much as possibile from what has been agreed upen. We might see
if this works, and i it does not, we can always augnent the penalty for subsequent offenses,

SEMATOR TITUS:

1 appreciate that. This potnts oul “oo msoee than 510,000,% so it might ot even be SI0.000, We do
B wan w cause complications by changing what has been agreed upon, bai as we have seen throughow
the course of the day, very liitle thai has been agreed upon has stuck. When somchody makes a
sugpgestion, other than certain panties, it & nol appropeiate, but when ofhers malke it, it s,

SENMATOR RAGGH:

I do nod think thar is the case here. [ ikink we have been opersiing pretty well on a bipanisan basis,
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Wi have o much 10 do. Let us continue with seciion 23, What i the additional change in subseciions
3 4 and 5, Apain, we arc 1alking aboul the Board of Medical Examiners, ibe cleck of the coun in section
3 reports to the board, that is in the law now, i made within 45 days. B that the change!

ME. WILKINSOMN:
‘Thar is correct.

SENATOR RAGGI:
Hiva: abiout suhseciion 47

ME. WILKINSOMN:

Thee board keeps that information confidential ualess a coun ssics & subpoena compeliing ns release,
andl subsection 5 provides (hal the clerks will submit tha v the office of the courr admintstrator, which &
serving as the clearmghouse for that son of imformation

SEMNATOR RAGGIO:

That sddresses, in part, some of he guestsons Senator Care and Seaxtor Carlon had aboul enformalion
being kept confidential. Were you concerned about whether these are public records? I looks Iike it =
reachable by subpoena jo compe] the release of information.

SENATOR CARE:

I see thai, Mr. Chairman. Specificaily, it was the information culled from documents fled publicly,
thai imformaiion heing considered confidential.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Worukdl tha address i under those clrcusnsiances? As 1 anderstand i then, if this were processed, the
information would be confidential regandicss of public record staus unless it is reachiéd By subpoena.
Thean is the way [ would resd i1 Is tha coreeet?

ME. WILKINSON:
Thad 1% correct, Mr. Chatrmin.

SEMATOR TOWNSEND:

The Boand of Medical Examiners, or any ofher licensing boand, are required ander our curment stalsie
o report publicly any achons they take over a licensee, That is public information and a suebpocna is nod
needed 10 ped 1. B 18 nol always posied, bul if you ask, that is something we iried o accomplish in the
last legislative session. [ think there is probakly a great deal of suppon for having public nofsce. IF
disciplinary actiom i% laken, il should Be publicly noliced on a wehsite, or whatever, Thal is cuarren
public information by all licensing boards once disciplinary action o 2 ruling has boen made, Complaints
are not public, but adons by a board are,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Scott Young has provided the information on Mevada's bospitals with emergency departmsents. They
are: Baitle Moumtain General Hospiial, Bagile Mountain, Boulder City Hospital, Inc,. Boulder City;
Carson-Tahoe Hospital, Carson City; Chorchill Commumity Hospital, Fallon; Desert Springs Hospieal,
Las Vegas: Grover . Dis Medical Center amd SNF, Calieme; Humboldt General Hospalal/Harmony
Manor, Winnensucca; Incline Village Community Hospital, Incline Village, Lake Mead Hospital Medical
Cenier, Morth Law Vegas; Mount Grast General Hospital, Hawiborne; Moumtainview Hospitsl, Las
Viepas, MNortheasiern Mevads Regional Hospital, Elko; Monbern Nevada Medicsl Center, Sparks; NMye
Regional Medical Center and Skilled Nursing Facility, Tonopsh; Pershing General Hospaal, Lovelock;
Sainl Mary's Regional Medical Censer, Reno, Soulh Lyon Medical Cealer, Yerimgooa, 510 Rose
Domandcan Hospital, Hemderson: 51 Rose Dominkean Siena Campus, Henderson; Sammerlin Hospigal
Medical Center, LLC, Las Vegas: Tahoe Pacific Hospital, Sparks; Usiversity Medical Cemer of
Southern Mevada, Las Vegas: Valley Hospital Medical Cemer, Las Vegas; William Bec Ririe Hospital,
Ely and Washoe Medical Center, Inc., Reon,

Whal about remaining sections 29, 30, 31, and 327
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ME. WILKINSON:

The remainder of he sectbons merely mirror the currenl provisions for odher physicians and apply
them o oseopathic physicians who were st previowsly covered by any of these provisians.

SEMATOR RAGGIO,

Is there any other testimony on these sections peraméng (o the reporting requiremenis?

DENISE SELLECK DAVYIS (Executive Director, Mevada Osicopathic Medical Associarion):

We are neither représented by the coalition or 4 part of i. We find ro objection o thils. Cur Hoensing
is done yearly, amd we operate under a separate board, Our board works hard o see thar all comsplaims
are amaweted. They work m a fast and competend maoner and do o very good job ar disciplining
physicians.

SEMATOR RAGGHD,

What do you find objectionabde if these requiremenis are zpplied o0 osrenpaths?
M5 DAVIS:

Moching w all.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
You are ssisfied and comfortable wilh the language, Is there any other sestimony an thess issdcs

sirengihening the reporting requirements? The sections mvolved are sections 14, 19, 20, 31, 22, 23, M,
30, 31, 32, 33 and 34, Is there any mone esimony on those seelions?

LARRY E, LESSLY (Executive Director, Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners):

Mr. Richard Legarza, our Geperal Counsel, is present, as is Dr. Paul Stewart, our Secreiary-
Treasurer, and Dr. Donald Bevber, who is a public member of the board and not & physician. Wish
respect 10 those sections that penain 1o the Nevada Saare Board of Medical Examiners, we support them,
Thsere are o conple of lEnguage issuwes kel Mr. Legares can afddress, bal we agree wilth the concepl bere.

RICHARD J. LEGARZA (General Coumsel, Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners);
Lol af sections 20 and 22, which are il requirements for reporting.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Is it the requirement thai a doctor physician can sobmit a list of claims in acton?

MR, LEGARZA:

Correct. The language 15, “submined o arbitration or mediation, ™ 1 (hink that was housecleaning and,
maybe, was in an original kL. [ do not think there is mediathon asd arbitration involved anymore @n these
thimgs. That would be b secthons 20 and 32 where the language b8, “must report things iha have boen
arbirrated or mediated. ™ | think &n isival desfl inclsded some mediaion or arbitration, bul | do nol sce
that amywhese in the corrent legisksion. It may be redundant lanfoage.

ME. WILKINSOMN:
I am mod ceram 1 understand exactly whal (he poinl i,

ME, LEGARTA:
Asx | s=e if, this bill does nog ealk aboui arhitration or medistion,

SENATOR RAGGID:
This is the original bill.

ME. LEGARTA:

There s no arbitration or mvedision in this bill sber than requiring people o report. Are they golng o
be arbitrating or mediaing™

ME. WILKINSON:

Mo, they are requingsd o feport 7 a claim i sshmitted 10 arbiéiration of medwaton. There is Bo
mandatory basks for ihal eccarring.
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SENATOR RAGGIO-
But it can accur.

ME. LEGARZA:

Wilh respoct o section 22, | have a questbon in regand to where §osays, “The insurer amd 1he
physician licensed under the chapeer must report o the board for malpractice of neglipence against the
physician and the scitlement or awand or judgment of disposithon of the sction or a claim within 30 days
afier the action was filed or the claim was submitied v arbiration or mediation and the disposiiion of ihe
setlon or claim.™ If that iz conjamctive then, they have the right 1o wait umiil the claim has been disposed
af. 1 would suggest vou consider changing the langaage o, “The action was filed within 30 days the
action being fled or swbmiited (0 arbéiration or mediation sndior the disposition of the stion or claim,
whichever occurs first.”

SENATOR RAGGIO:

I think that is & valid paint. When is the réquiremen 1o fibe this? 13 it 30 days afier the action was filed
or the claim was submittesd, or do (hey wail urtd the disposition® Or is there a requarement that both of
thase things be filed witlin 30 days?

ME. WILEINSOMN:
The requiremeni i that hoth be filed within 30 days. Thirty days afier filing of a clalm or afier i s
submitied |0 arbitration.

SENATOR RAGGID:

There is a doubde requirement thar when ibe sction is (lbed of a claim is submiteed for this purpose. it
has o be reported withm 30 days, and then afler there is a disposition, that has 1o be (bled within 0
days. That is my undersianding.

ME. LEGARZA:

Wiak all due respect. | disagroe with that legal consimoction, be that as B may. IF you age talking aboot
piving the informatkon o the Bosrd of Medical Examiners as soon a8 possible, why naol pet il upon the
time of filing, which is in ancber section where the couns are requircd o mosify the board after a
dispogition of the case? Wiy pot make thal when (b case is fled?

SENATOR RAGGIO:

I think this gives them a reasanahle time (o do that; otherwise, we wonld gay within an hour, or two
days, or something, | ihink it % just 4 magter of 30 days, whether that is a reasonable (inee or not 150
Th_:.’ﬁl::lﬁm-

MR. LEGARTA:
That i all | bave,

SENATOR O'DONNELL:

I think it would be far maee efficient if you had the coart noify (he medical board, as well as the
Legislature, of whatever clse they misst report (0, instead of having o enfity repont (o the medical board
then the medical board has o report it to somebody else. Why not have it go to two places at one fhne?
Change the other pari of the law,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Arc there any comments? [s (bere any other public restimony®

SENATOR RAWSOMN:
There 15 a reason for the medical board 1o have the information. There 5 also a reason for the other
enlities 1o have the information, | think thar is why there is the double requiremeni there.

RON KENDALL {Paticnt, Carson City):

I would like 1o share my thouphis. Two years ago, | went in for & simple, same-day simus surgery,
which umed out to be a medical disssver, Poar days later, | bad 8 seimure, Over 3 six-weck period in
three didlerem hospitals, i was depermuned 1 had ebecirolyte deliciency and Enfectlon. One year later, |
got oy mind back, put the records together and founkd 1 had 51 differens medications over & six-week

83

<15

ADD 0132



period. After | was home, | was detosed, did not have brain damage and am happy 1o repont | am
healthy, wealthy and wige. Do [ have a lawsuil? [ prohably do, People have said [ do, b | will not go
ikcre. That is mot amything | want s pumswe. My manira is that evil occurs when a good man does
nothing, I am a1 that point where | can @ik 1o cibers and make it known what is wrong with our medical
svetem. It is nod the doctors. Dogtors are good dogiors. There may be some bad docors. The main thing
I am concerned ahoal s malpractice insurance. 1t is exorhisam. Doctors are beaving duwe Swe, and thar
affects all of us. My question is, are attomeys and sccoundants required (o camry malpractics insurance?
You may med be able 1o answer that, but | think it is worthwhile to think abouat it

SENATOR RAGGIO
1 do ot know if sitogneys &re reqiined fo, but 1 think it would be a foolish sieorney that did mot, 18
ihere a requiremend for atbarneys fo carry malpraciice imsurinoe?

SE. WILKINSON:
Mo that | am sware of.,

SENATOR BAGGIO:
I dom’i Enow akbdngt scotumans,

MR. KENDALL:

I am nod irying io darect ihis at any particular profession, but | think it odd that dociors ane mrgeied,
There ane doctors who are leaving because medical malprictice insurance fees ane so high. It does not
make serse o me. It seems a beer way 1o do this would be mandalory, binding arbatration. [ koow hat
has been discussed, bur this iz something [ wouald ask youw (o think abowl [l might be a more effective,
reasonable and cconbmic way fo handle the problem. T could go on with many mone things (hat 1 see
wrong with the medical system, st | will nod do thas. Thiz ls the one messape | wanted o get out. |
appreciate your time and palience (o listen 0 my concerns. Belleve me, 1his b not ditected ot anyihing
oaher than the sysiem itsell.

O odher thing | will mentéon 5 we have a shortage of nurses and (hal needs fo be taken care of. |
gpeni lime in the Marine Corps, and 1 can iell vouo that it is the NCOs thas make o7 break an organization,
Io ihe medical sysiem, it b the nurses that will make or beeak an organiesiion. You do sway with thar
yioul cut down om i, and vou ane shosting voursell in i foor. Thank you very much

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Drid Senator Mathews (ell you bo say thal abown ibhe Durses?

SENATOR MATHEWS,
[ said, Amen® | wrole thar!

SENATOR RAGGID:

Your kleas are certaimly good. We have covered some of this in previous discussion. Some of (hese
issues are nod within oor province during this special session, bug | 2m siere ihis issae will be revisiied al
length during the regular session thal comvenes i February, You might make woarself available at that
fime,

ME. KENDALL:

Perhaps, you coubd think ghout reducing (ke cap on the malpractice insurance asd what a new daclor,
is i 51 000,000 minimum, has i come ap with?

SENATOR RAGGIO
Unider this ball, it would be required, io keep their lboense, 10 have & mintrrum amoont of $1 millon
per oocurmente and 53 millios in the aggregate.

ME. KENDALL:
Thi trath of the mager i, | &m oaol &0 accountant, bal if vou sedy s cost o the paten w pick up
i slack, In the emd, we are paying for [t

SENATOR RAGGICY,
1 think there will be a ot more soooanams these days having malpractice insurance

B4
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MR, KENDALL:

1 wanted wo start with Enron and Worldcom, That was a blessing for us because it was a wake-up call.
Wie movwe have our o wake-up call right here with malpracisce,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Thank oo for your time, |5 there any more peblic teitimomy? We ame dealing with reposiing
requirements, s there any other discussion?

SENATOR CARE:

I shoudd have asked this of Mr. Codton, who is & lawwver and also repregents doctors. T seems 10 mo
sectiom 3 of Sensle Bill Mo, 2 provides doctors something that is given to mo other profession, and thai is
caps, Ye do nol do this for altorneys, veberimarsns, accouniants or anybody else. A resull of high
imurande premimms, part of which & | understamd it, comes from the so-called rare, bad doctor. Under
this bill ibere i oothing that enbances a futare patient™s, or potential patient's, ability 1o find out
something aboul & doctor in which he may or may nol have an interest, Mr. Colion, you are an allosney;
do you know Manindale Hubbell? Our peers rate us "A,” “B,” *C." or "no rating.” and (ke public can
fimd it out. | do not chink dociors have the equivalens. How do | find oul anyihing abow a decior | am
Ihinking aboul using? What do [ do? There 15 no Bewer Busingss Bureau | can go o, There 15 mothing,
There cught o be something.

MR, COTTOMN:

In tbe Las Vegas area, there i an anoual poll by doctors af olber doctors who they consider the best
in Las Vegas. They vole, and most of the caegorics of physicians list anywhere between 10 o 20
different doctors, That & the ondy thing of which [ am aware @1 the presemt time. | am nol aware of &ny
regulalions thal would open up praciitboner data banks or anything of that nature. That may be a subject
for a diiferem day,

SENATOR CARLTON:

Earfier, | asked these pentlemsen and Mr. Lessly aboul the reparting fsctors, They were right, and yet,
they were wrong. A bill was passad last time that doctors have 1o repor. However, in pulling ap the web
page and looking at the names of the doctors and information provided, 3 consumer cannol distinguish
what a doctor is being disciplined for reganding 3 medical procedare. 1T i was 3 revocation or a
violation, they were supposed io hasd sometbing over. Information is available if & docior misbehaved in
anptluer sate, bul there by no nformasbon on how the doctor may have boen cleared or disciplined in an
aciusl medical procedure. | belleve the poblic s more interesied in how dociors behave in their actuad
practice,

ME. LESSLY:

We have a toll-free number, staewide, and any citizen can pick up the plone and call us. We will tell
you where & doctor went io medical school, when be was licensed, his specially, where his office is and
any reported malpractice, 1 believe you are peiting ready 1o sirengihen the reporting process (o us. We
will tell you whether we have ever taken disciplinary action sgainst 8 physicien and send 8 copy of the
complaing and the order sefling ot exactly whal happened with that physician. We have 3 wehsite, up
and running, tha wells about disciplinary actbons through owr newsleners. Check that websiie noxt momih
becanse i s being upgraded 1o the point that you will be able 10 get maore specific disciplinary action,

SENATOR CARE:

When vou say any person whi makes (he phose call can find out aboal malpractice, are you talking
abow a jedgment of a complaint?

MR LESSLY:

Whatever has been reporied 1o us by the insurance cacriers, hospitals or coans. I think thar will gei
beiter if this legislation is passed. We casnod tell vou for ocrtain that it 5 complese bocause we cannol
guarantee all those reparts have been made o us.

SENATOR O'CONNELL:

Would you mind giving us the (oll-free aumber?
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MR. LESSLY:
To tedl you the trush, | do not know i

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Is there any more public pestimony on this phase of the bI? Are tbere any proposed amendments o
this porison of the bill? | will take a motion o adopt seclions 14, 19, 20, 11, 22, 23, 29, 30, 31, 31, 33
amd 34 of Senate Bill No. 2. all regarding the sirengihening of the neportng requiremnents relaling o
disciplinary actions, claims, setilements amd/or awands against physicians.

SENATOR O'COMNMNELL:
S0 moved,

SENATOR RAGLGIO:

Is there any discussion on the mogon™ Al in favor of the mition indicate, aye; opposed.

The motion |5 carricd unanimowsly,

Noxn, we are geing 60 address section 13, which allows for periodic paymenl of filure damages, We
ang going W recess until & pom. 1 ask that any amhoritative representalive of the insurance companbes be
present at that time. | wani further iestimony from them oa the effect of this bill, asd we will akso
contirue in the evening (o take up any additionsl sections of the bil. Hopefully, we can conclude it this
evening. 1 wanl io compliment you all on 2sking good quesiions, and | thisk we have made considerable
progress up 10 (hig posnt, Is (here anything furher before we recess? Otherwise this commities is in
recess until & p.om,

The Commbites of the Whabe will please come back o order. First of all, has the commiftes had fiane
o review this proposed amendment that covers Wbe trauma sefling = well a5 the pro-bono sitaation” [ am
wld thar the Govermor will specifically inclede the language covering both of Ihese in 3 new
proclamation. D you wanl fore Gme 10 look ai this language?

ME. GILLOCEK:

M, 1 have read the langexge and it seems to be consistent with the actions of the comanitiee. The oaly
thing | think we waml o be sure of i that w have the presumption language that Senator Rawson sought
be pud in there. The Good Samaritan apphies fully

SENATOR RAGGIO:
We cam wait on fhis. Do yoa think we will have that this evening. or are we going to wail uniil baer?

M35 NEEDHAM:
Senator, we are working on that pow, As long as we are i here, | think you can bave them laver.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

The definitions of frauma ihst are in the NRS as well as references i (be administrative code have
been distribused 10 1be commitiee. Let us go nexi 1o section 13 which allows a jodge, al the discretion of
cither party, 0 enter a judgnsent providing for periodic payment of future damages. I am not certain the
bill is drafted fhat way, Is i drafted b0 pead "1 the request of the claimam?™ Mo? Counsel will you
enfighten us oo what this provides?

ME. WILKINSOMN:

Mr. Chairman, under the currenl law a claimant can request an award be made in the lump sum of
ihrough an annaity. The change that is made in tbe bl is that at the request of the claimant the courl has
the discretion o decide whether the payments for futune economic damages will be made in a lumgr som,
in an anpuity, thropgh the posting of 4 bond or other security by ke defendant, The discrction as to
whether that eccurs lies with the coart father (hin beang a8 the clection of the claimae.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

I thiok. originally, it was contemplated that either pany could make the request. This bill would
continue the prosent siuation where any election kas wo be made by the clabmant. It glves the jodge the
discretion &3 10 the manmer and the posting of the securiy. Is thay correct?
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ME. GILLOCK:

Yes, Mr. Chairman, What this bill docs is it gives the clamant the asthority 1o ask the coun for that,
bt what it really adds is the opportunity for (be defendant in subsection & 1o post a bond or surety if the
court 80 directs and allows them o &0 that, This was language thal was agreed upon by both
representatives of the legal and the medical fleld. It = pam of 1be segousied agreement thal leads w the
language comaimcd mot oaly in this secrion but the olber sections. Wi feel | i m the best imlerests of the
claimant who may need lump sums &5 opposed o long-term payments and e have thal decislon making
process in their own kands,

SENATOR RAGGIHD:
Unless rhe claimant reqisests otherwise, the claimam will get the reward {6 a lump sum,

ME. GILLOCK:
That would be correct.

SENATOR O'DONKELL:

This poes 1o the heard of an award 1o an indivadual. IF you have a fixed-dollar award of $500,000, it s
perwdically paid withoul any escalator, withowt any imerest on that award, The present value of the
S300, 003 paid oul over a Ikbyear time frame is still $500,000, Now, an annuity is different from what 1
am reading here, correct mbe if [ am mistaken, The presend valoe of an annaity will be greater than the
L300, 000, 1o other words, when you pet on awand, you get a cenain, fixed amount of maoney, b i you
gei tha over me without inverest, then you ane penalizing ihe victim and penalizing the Lvwyer because
the lxwyer (5 nod gaing o pet &8 much. [ aat what this eays?

ME. GILLOCK:

I do nod believe so, Senator. | ihiok thal what this does is # allews an annaity o be purchased. In
subsection 5, it says, “If an anguity is purchised pursuant 1o paragraph (b) of subsection 3, the claimas
shall select the provider of the anmaity.” What it does is that it gives the claimant (he opportunity b have
an imvestnyent teal (alls under conn supervision, 10 (5 8 (ood de some clalmans need 1o have available to
themn. They and thedr representatives need o make thal declsion. As o he presenl value, | illak & works
a kit so the opposise. The present value of $500,000 soald be $300.000 not more than.

SENMATOR O"DONNELL:
It would be kess than, bal the award is a S500, 000 award.

ME. GILLOCEK:
The award wouald be a 530000 award, and § is assumed the ammuity would make it so thal the
plaitiff would receive more than the $300,000. They would be petting ibe hepefit of ibe investment,

SENATOR O DONNELL:

Bui, as | read this langaage, and | wouald inviie you o resd it x5 well, in subsection 3, it talks abowi &n
mnnuity. It is specific m the word “amnuity.™ However, in subsection &, it looks at the words "bond, ™ we
all knew what that is, and “olber security” which could be anything. What you ane allowing the cowrt 1o
dio for the victim is post a security of 3 bosd paid out over timeé. It does ot mention amything aboaut
imleriest.

MR. GILLOCK:

I think e inlenl of this amendment is o place an annsity or a bond usder court supervishon, bub ag the
sarmee (kmee, what B does is the most signdflcant aspeet of this provision is it releases forever the defendant
ardl his insarer from any ohligation to make perindic payments pursaant o the award. The claimants
would ke concermed about the deferdant’s msurance company having congral over or being responsible
for making them additsonal paymenis when if becams necessary for them to o 10 cour e get justice in
the first place. What this docs is w0 allow the court o give tbem this annuity and, 3 the same fime,
berminate any résponsibility for the physician o the plaintiff,

SENATOR RAGGH):

We should mot loose sight, Senmor and those who are addressing this, of the exsting law that is oot
being changed. It pertairs (0 periodic payments ans provides in subsection 4. “thal if a claimant receives
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perindic payment, the award musi ol be meduced o s presenl value.® The amoums of periodic
paymeents gre equal o the iolald amourst of all fenere demages. The suthority for an anmisity &8 in existing
law, What this adds, is that the couri has the right or the defendant has the right if the request is made
under subsection 3, paragraph (b). The coart has the discretion o require an annwity, That is existing
law, or by other means of a bond. This gives an abernalive 1o the amuity that it can either be a bond or
securiy wn ensune full paymem. There 15 post judgment mierest, How is thal affected in any way by this?
Is the imerest continming (o ren on periodic paymenis?

ME, GILLOCK:

Mr, Chairman, it is my undérstanding that once the clection is made then the defendant and his
imsurance company is relieved from any responsthility under the judgment. There would be a satisfaction
of judgment fibod with ihe court, and the funds would be dispersed either through, a0 a lump sum which
has been reduced 1w present value or b an ansuity. The post judgment ingerest would stap at that pain,
and the claimam would begin gening investment on thelr annudiy oF their lump swm nvestment,

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Din woea umderseand it that way too, Mr. Cotton?

MR, COTTON:

I understand (he mechanics of il 10 be thal same way. It would facior into that in that ooce the
payments san (o be nade, the iotal lump sum that is going 1o be pakd out into an apmueity sineaibon is
guaing to cover thal anyway

SENATOR RAGGID:
You represent the claimant. Is thaa & good arraignmem for the claiman?

MR GILLOCE:
It can very well be im many circomstances. You might have 3 minor child who has parents in whom

you have guestionable confidence. You wanl w be cenan you ane protecting that child, or vou mighi
have 2 sepior citleen who nesds continued care. 11 could well be a iool that would be very effective.

SENATOR TOWNSEND:

Thaik you, Mr. Chairman. 1 koow that ihis &5 ool changing the currenl siructure, bui | dm a lade
confised as 1o what the henefif is corremly viga-vi the rising cost of premiums,

Let me he gpecifie, | would tisk that e way 16 help the premium problem as well a3 the claimant's
moeds would be that payements would be made in (ke following magor: they would all be pericdic excepl
for expenses ibe clabmant ipcurmed 1o bring the action, laeyer fees Se. 0 be pald in a lump sum. The
remainder woulld be paid in installments over thme including inlerest 1o make cemain ccopomic damages
were covered every month, whatever they were, unless the coun said it is in the best imicrest of the
claimani that st be pald entizely in a lamp sum.

There ane rwo things kere. One, you musst be able to cover vour expense of bringing the action, then
fwo, you musi make certain the claimasil gets their econemic damnages paid for each month because those
emcompass many things, usually swbsiantial medical care. The court would have the jurisdiction 1o say;
“Whatever remains to be pasd ot in pericdic payments could be pald in a lump sum upen the clkaimani
fiking with the coun.”

I thank your point is well made. | am not cerixin someane would always ask for a periodsd payment if
they do nol keow that it might be in their best imerest. 1 think i should be flipped becanse il gets (heir
expenses paid. I provects the claimamt 10 get all of their sconomic oos1s paid oul oWer tme o make
gertaan their medical expenses arc pakd, unbess the coun decides il is in ibelr imesest hat the nest of il &
ikl

That is what | am asking [ think 0 i backwards. | am trying 1o be lopical amd make cemain their
expenses are paid, their costs ncurned o bring the action are pald and ibe remainder for their economic
betelits be pabd usless the coun dechkdes 048 im tbeir interest that they receive the remainder n 4 lamp
AU
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ME. CROCKETT:

Mr. Chairman, rather tham have the court or the government be (hat paternalisthe, whene ibey dictale
that, the existing law and this Law allow the latdude of chalce. If you bave a siuation as Mr, Gillock
described where you need fo protect agxinst the risk of imprudent investmenl or you have a senior ciliren
who is single amd docs not have anyone clse o sdminiser over thelr poods oF o watch over hem and
you need a court appointed guardian o waich over their funds, then 3 snuciured pay-oul may be the bes
approach, Howeveér, if you have soameoss wiho is a sophisticated pereon who may wamt o take ihe hamp
sum, iwvest it and wha may choose to buy an annuity or may choose (o buy &8 cemificase of depaosit, tha
person may sy, “do nod tell me bew o iovest my mosey. | am a sophisticaled person. | can lake care of
i1.” This aliows boih oplioas without paternalistically telling someone "you must do i @ certain way. ™

SENATOR TOWNSERD:

Mr. Chaimman. 1 do noi disagree widh Mr. Crocken, | am jost making cenain in my own mind the
claimant’s expenses are plways prepadd bhased on what it costs o bring the aoion ind that there is moaey
these s that their needs were met unbess they go 0 the court and request that they manage their own
money. The impiriance 15 o make cortain that the clamment oof only paid his expenses, which are wseally
incurned by your firms, experts, eic,, 1o bring the action, bat that there s enough moncy 5o at the time
they will have their needs met, | am ihinking of the worse case scenarios

MR COTTON:

The prsctical problem is that the sequests are almost néver made. | think the Chairman mentioned be
thoight it was ar the fequest of either party and that the count could award if, but as a practical matier, 1
o nod knew ihat the requests are made that often. 1 thick, along the femms you were talking abowd, if it
was down 1o a savings sination asd if the pany requested it and it was paid up front, that might have
soene kmpact, but T do not know iF il has o huge impact.

SEMATOR O'DOMNMNELL:-

When you podt a boad, you do pot hdve o pal op the money, You just have o post a bood proving
you can put up the maney. A bond is different than actual cash. If you ask the count for a $500,000 bond
b b paied ot over 10 years that person may get 550,000 per vear for 10 years. The time value of maney
does not equate o he $500,000 award, Basically, the victim technscally gets paid less in real money,

ME. CROCKETT:

The bond s mouch like an appeal bord. 1 15 designed 10 establish security so that the persom kpows
that there will be cnowgh o pay off. It is not i the precise amount of the jedgment. Instesd, what 5
analyzed is what will b the total payosl on this judgment in the course of time. I is a bond 0 gearantee
payment of the toial sum. 1§ i oot o bond in the amount of the jodgment. You mentioned that @ bopd is
Jusi proof you could pay the money. 1f nwos definilely has to be so heavily callileralized that as far as the
injured party is concerned, they do not have to worry aboat it because the bond will 1ake care of them if
all else fails,

SEMATOR O'DONMELL:
Where did (his language on subsection 6 come from? Did it come from the atlorneys or did # come
from the dochors?

ME. CROCKETT:
AT knaww &5, it was agreed 1o by both panies.

SENATOR O'DOMNNELL:;
But you do not know where it came from,

ME. CROCKETT:
I it was agresd 1o by both paries, i is & joist product.
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MRE. GILLOCK:

The way | recall how this lamgusge came down, was than the defendamis and the plainiffs
representatives worked diligently on subseciion 3 and subsection 3, paragraph (B) 10 make ccmain thas
ihey reflected a simation where the coart would have the authority in the right cases to issoe ihe bond and
the surcty. That was one of the roquirements that the medical group really wanted in there. I would give
ihe coun the discretion 1o let the defendant and his merer oul of this equation. Once they were satisfied,
ihere would be payment.

SENATOR O'DONNELL:
All right.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Any other questions or comments, Any public testimony on this pomion of the bUIT Any amendments
required on section 137 1f not, | will accepd a motion. Motion was made by Senator Rawsoa 10 adopt the
language in ection 13X, I8 there discussion on that motion? Al in favor indicaie by saying, aye; any
Opposnd.

Motion b8 carried unanbmaomsly.

We will address the one word chasge in section 16 m the exisibng law. Thig i on the mwoe of making
it mandsiory for an attorney 1o personally pay addibonsl costs, expenses and foes if there {8 unreasonable
comduct defined as “wnreasonably and wvexatiously cxtending a civil acibom™ that is existing law.
Fresendly, the court may do this. This change as we anderstand i, “would mandste the court to requine
an aflormey b pay that upon a fmding that the Fking of an action is not well grownded i facl, &5 mot
warranigs or made in good faith or is unreasonabde and vexatious in exiending a civil acton.™ Tha is
exisling language. As | understand it, what this does is that imsicad of giving the count discrétion, if the
couirt makes that finding and the court would have to make that finding, then it would be mandatory as a
sanction against thai mitnrney, 15 that the understanding?

MR, GILLOCK:

Mr. Chairman, il is my undersianding ihat this could be called ibe “lrivoboas fw-suil provision, " The
omly Ehing different is that you will nofice in subsection 1 it says, “files, maintained or defended a cavil
action”™ becsuse it hes been found over time that in many instanges there may be o great deal of expenss
that was unmecessary and has accreed as a resalt of vexatioos actions by 8 defendamt or defendana’s
council, This is language that was 2grecd upon by the panties and applics both wayvs.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

As | would understand this, [ want 10 be carcfol how 1 phrase this, there can be anomeys who over
the cowrse of ikme and | think they become kmoan o their collcagues and we have hed screening pamels
for example thal fle cases whether of ot there has been sy finding, and probably some of their owmn
colkeagoes feel that a lot of those cases are vexatious or frivedous and are ot brogght in good Fith or,
for that macter, deferded in good faith. That & existing language. Is that what we are afier?

ME. BRADLEY:

Seonjor Raggw, because | was involved, T know the word was chanped from “may® o “shall® io tike
away the discrethon of the judge. If the judpe fecls (hat there was that type of conduct, he mus! require an
wlomTy Wy pay.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

len"t that what 1 =007 1 ihink 1ha is what | updersiand. | wanied o make cortain ali the membees of
the commuines had that ssme mpression. Is ibere any need o change this language? 15 there any pablc
Eeslims0ny o (hie mmadter?

SENATOR CARLTON:
Ciald yoru give mie an example, 38 a lay person, ad (o what vexsibous may be,

MR. GILLOCK:
Mr. Chairman, in response to that question, it would be actions that are wsed 1o recedve some 1ype of
revenge or 1o take some type of action that is nol warranied under the circumstances. Il mns up ithe
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litigsison expenses causing the pamies 10 expend fusds hal would ood be necessary o spend. For
exmnphe, sEppose you file & Lawsud and someone decides they want 10 make it difficul for you, Yeu had
a grade-school teacher in Mew York, and you bad 8 high-school teacher i Los Angeles. Because they
had questions shoul how well you might do in the future amnd becsuse vou said in your moviag papers hat
you iolend o become rehabilitated apd thai vou were goiog to ohiain funber edecation, ibe atiorney
wioald go o New York and take the deposition of vour grade-schood ieacher, and go to California o take
the deposition of your high-school wacher. Al of this couald be decmed by the coun oo be unneoessary
al very expensive. That would be the tvpe of conduct we would be frying to preveni,

MRE. COTTON:

We find fhai in bodb sides of the kssue, whether plaisiilfs snd defendancs, thal you do have cases that
peniadically come wp that are truly spite cases on one side o the other, They are “I- don’i-like-thai-
person” cases, and they will go foreard. Some of those are fairly obvioes, On the whole, most of the
cased are nol going to be in that situation, | have had pancl cases where there werne 16 or mons
defendunts, and when we came ol of the panel, there were only two docbors who were actually sied,
Mow, thal the pane] is being eliminated, sending a case direcs 1o 1nEgation, our e was 1o meke certain
we do mot end up with this grab-bag of every docior who happens 1o appear on a record énd up in district
courl. Someons must do their bomework before they file a wsuit, 1 was our meend, in looking ol (s,
that there would be some Wil in the law that would serve the same purpose as the screening panel.

SENATOR RAGGID:
Mr. Echeverria, is (his peculiar lo Nevada, or do they have this in California, also?

ME. ECHEVERRIA:
Fortunately, | have niol had experience wilh this section in California,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Does California have anything similar to this?

ME. ECHEVERRIA:
Peo chat | am aware of, There 15 something 1m California simidar 1o our Rile 1],

SENATOR RAGGLC:
This is exising language, It will still require a finding by the jodge if that exists and | be does make
thai finding then if is {y

SEMATOR CARE:

Thank you, dr. Chairman, 1 was nod here in 1995 when the current stataie was cnacted, but | think 1
have beard discussion of this when it came out of the Senate Judiciary Commities, This is one subhpect ihe
chairman of the commitiee, Scnator James, and | have always agreed on, Give more discretion o (he
court, bul now we ane taking discretion away from ihe courl, We always bear abou the frivobous lawsuait,
and 1 slways say the frivolous lovsait is amy fime you get soed. That 15 a frivolous fawsust. A lawsai
widl merit 15 when you sue the other person. That is a good lawsait,

Have any of you or your collcagoes ever filed a molin for sanctiors wnider the existing starte. I you
did what happened? Wene you dended the sanctions and why? If you got the sanctions, | would Hke o
know who were the other attorneys, Does anyone really use this thing? There ane no case annotations m
ihis staluie, There is also rule 1] under discovery. These s already 4 mechasizm n place. Mr. Gillock,
you have talked abow going 10 New York for a deposithon. bul the discovery commuissionsr can handle
i, You have a prosective ofder. You can seck sanctions.

ME. GILLOCK:

I have sought sanctions in many cases, and 1 have alw, though not under this mie or this staaie,
songht sanetions under Bule 11 and had the coun grand sanctions and prant substantial fees in insiances
where the diseovery was propounded snd the depositions wese deemsd mol bo have been warransed. But, |
think thai ome of ke reasons thal this language s reguested by the defense when we started hese
nepiabons was bicause we &0 nod really bave a track recosd on this. The doctars have been saying in
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ihe press, “frivolous, frivolous, frivoboes,” so we said i there ame (rivolous |lowsaits, then we ane going
1o give you a lood 10 belp us take care of that problem,

ME. BRADLEY:!

In response 1o Senswor Care's questhon, | brought fhiz siamee o e aflenbon of o prominen
miedical-malpractice defense lawyers within the kast 30 divs because of this discussion. MNeilber oo of
ibem wee aware that the statue exised. They are both planning on using them 1o cases, and we offerad,
on behalf of our organization. io provide expens in their cases,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

Any other iestimony? | will accept a motion by Senstor Townsend o adopt the language in section 16,
Any discussion? All In favor isdicate, aye, any apposed?

Motion s carricd unanimowsly.

Section B is new language whese an action &5 brought and fled in districy court for malpractice, the
woart mst dismiss the action withous prejudsce. That means, it can be brought, again, before the court if
the action is filed withowt an affidavit supporting the allegstions conlained (n the scton. which is
submitied by, a medical expent practicing in an area substantially similar 1o the type of practice engaped
i at the lime of the alleged malpractice. May we have your commerds on this change? The change was
agreed o in the negatiations. 1s that correct?

MR, BREADLEY:

Yes, thai is right Mr. Chairman. This was introduced hecagse of the abolition of the screening panel.
The s¢reening panel fles are required and the expert affidavil is sehjeni o dismissal. We want to make
certain that when these was 3 complaint filed thas il is filed im good faith, The way ke do that is with &
summary affidavl from an cxpen in a substandially similar area indicating that the expert has reviewed
15e recopd.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
I there were an action agains an onbopedic surgeon, vou would expect that an affidayit would be
pespuired Froms seenéone who was an orthopedic surgean.

ME. BRADLEY:
That is corpeet.

SEMATOR RAGGID:
O sonse similar doctor, if there is one, 11 coald nog be 8 general praclitioner,

ME. BRADLEY:

Agreed, For example, spinal sergery, bath orbopedic and reurosurgeons do the same type of surgery,
somenne who is familiar with ihe same standard of care

SEMNATOR CARE:

Thask youw, Mr. Chakrman. If you e a lowsuil and il there 3 po screening panel, the clerk is no
pring o kpow, who, them, makes the delermination (hat this expert is the eapen requined under this
section. When is that debermbnation made? As [ read this phease, “medical expert who practces,” |
wionder aboul the medical schood professor who does nod practice or the recently refired doctor who is
nioi practicing. Ciamn he not be an expen witness?

ME. BRADLEY:

Those are both good points. We have tried 10 work om (s a bit, but we have oot had much progress.
A recenily relired, of someone Bn a meedical school seiting. i they meet the olber qualificalions, we
helieve woukd be appropriase for an expert,

ME. COTTON:

Mr. Gillock and 1 were pusi discissing that if we change the word on page 4. line 34, it will make
MOTE SERSE.

SENATOR RAGGID:
What would you suggesi
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MRE. COTTOM:

In response 80 Sepabor Care's question, change # w “practiced” with a "d® at ke end inssead of
“prachices,”

SENATOR RAGGH):

He could be a professor who may not be engaged in practice.

ME. COTTON:

Mo, i &5 that they practiced or (hal ey qualificd &t the time of tbe alleged matpeactice. If (hey were
practicing in 1998, but they may be retired, voday, ibey would still have been practicing st thai tme,

MEB. GLLLOWCE:
Basdcally, the mvent of this language was to change the calsiing sinsation,

SENATOR RAGGIC

I thimk the poiml has been well made, Let us say, you have a person who is a fellow in the American
Coflege of Surgeons, and yel, be may not practice in that area, He may oot have practiced in that anes af
the tlisme of the incides and s now & professor a0 the unbverdity medeeal school, but e (s & fellsw.
Shauald it that person be suflicient for 1his purpose?

MR, COTTON:

There is a problem with that siemion, | have Bad ot happen several fimes in the last six manths. One
doctor was a neurgsurgoen wio had sor praciced for 20 years befpne the incident occwrred. He was a
neurodurgeon, but he had not praciiced for 20 years.

SENATOR RAGGID:

1 suppose you coull have a newrosurgeon who & not gualify o be a fellow in the academy even
ihough the doctor is practicing. Could you?

ME. COTTOM;

Yes, you coubd. The probiem is the Mbyear differential, There have been so many changes in practice
ihiat have mken place, the doctor would be 160 remote from the time of e incident. Cur concens i (hat a
person cold be called in whoe really did mot have knowledge of what wis going on # that time. That is
nol an umasual evest 1o see that hagpen

SENATOR RAGGIO:
How are we golng w solve this?

ME. BRADLEY:

If the commattee is willing 10 give some recoEnilion B a fellsed physkcian thes we oould say something
nplong the line of, *who practices or practiced.” 1f the concern ks that you wanl o avold thal 20-vear
lapse, il is going to be very difficult.

SENATOR RAGGR:

Whai can you agred on b help us?

ME. COTTON:

I think what Mr. Bradley said, “practiced or practices,” ling £,

SENATOR RAGGID:

You would add, “who practiced or who praciiees man arca.” Is that sutisfactory o you?
MR. COTTON:

Yes.

ME. BRADLEY:
Yes.
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SEMATOR CARE:

How is the determination of whetber this medical expert s indeed an expert is made. If | have an
expert who fHles an affidavil anached to the complaint, does (ki mean 1 can wse him as an expen i the
erial. Are there differest sandands for that? Who says, “Yes, this i2 a0 expert?”

MRE. COTTON:

The judge almost always bas o make thal desermingtion ¢ven al the Ume of ielal, They always
determine whether or m someone qualifies fo tesify a5 an expert in a medical malpraciics case. Today.
they have o dov thal. The standards have been esiahlished for that in a lot of different cases and decisions.
They will be familiar with the standard, which bas 10 apply whether they did it 21 the beginning with the
filing of the complaint of five minutes sher they have béen on the witness siand, Either way, they have 1o
enake (hat determination on a fairly well defined standand recognited by 1he judges.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Section 12 concerns the medical expen lestimony. Is that same issoe involved bere? Expen medical
bestimony m a tmal, is that right, “may only be given by a provider of medical care who pracises in an
arca substantially similar.” Should thal have that change in 17

MR GILLOCK:

Mr. Chairman, yes. Section 12 is the existing law with (he adding of “cxpeni.™ | think we need fo
malke thad change again oo line 44, “who practiced or who practices.”

SEMNATOR RAGGHD:

Can we take cane of that o, Mr. Cottos?

MR, COTTON;
1 ihimk that will be appropriabe,

SEMATOR COFFIMN:

Hevw much does it cost 16 get someone o do the action in seciion 8 since it is a lnile differemt from
whal we are presenily doing? Mow vou are Il].'l:i.ng: about finding ssmeans who i m agaiosl one of
hisher colleagues perhaps m this community or in the commurity 0 which ihe actbon ok place.

MRE. BRADLEY:

Tt is myportant that this discossion akes place. If vou go o a full-blown affidavit, ot is a 535,000 1w
55,000 minimum cost. The problem i be only thing that iz available 15 the medical record. This was one
of b shorteomings of (he screening panel. We believe it 15 unfair to require a full-blown affidavit
because there is such limited information available in the record without the ability to ask anyone what
happened and wiy was there not any reconds for this past day. We would like 10 see more of 3 summary
affidavit, This is meant o serve, aboag with the lawyver pays, a5 a deterrent to just filing an acton 10
extort or do something that is not done in good faith, T go bua Far would defeat i § hope it is the intent
of this body not to wrn this into a war at the beginning of a case as (0 whether this expert was qualified
Or noL.

SENATOR COFFIN:

It worries me a bid because you are cither going 10 have o spend & ot of mobey or you ane goiag 1o
have 1o find a characier out of a John Grisham novel o fill this role,

ME. BRADLEY:

1 will #ell you, we are finding younger physicians in specialtics are more willing to gt volved
However, &t the same time, you are secing universitics seraling 0wl profoccds that their physicians are oo

bomger albowed 10 serve a5 experis. [i is a chellenge o get a good expert. I you have good comtacts asd
you are respecied on both sides, as Mr, Coiton 5 and as we are, you can get them. It is expensive
Apgain, let us nod lurm it inso a hattle on the front end.

SENATOR COFFIN:
This dioes pot compel that the person had 1o have examined all of the docomens

ME. BREADLEY:
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This affldavit should say that they have reviewed the medical recosds, amd based om that limiicd
informateon, il & thar cxpen’s opindon the there ks 2 merilorious case

MR, COTTOMN:

Crur posirbon ks mor thar,

The pamel is removed. The panel was perceived by this Legislarure as an impediment to [rivolous
litigation, Our position 18 they need a substantive affidavit from an cxpert, That money does have o be
expended on the front end in a meaningful fashion with an alfidavit supporiing their allegaiions of
negligence, Mot jusi an " [-ihink-fhis-person-commified-malpractice affidavit,” This s going 1o furn os
backward on whal we are ancmpling 1o do by reisoviag the panel, We are going 1o experience high-
volume fiings if they can get by with a 5500, one-line affidavii.

SEMATOR COFFIN:
What docs {L cost now o file?

MR, COTTOMN:

The screening panel has 3 irue-thought process where they ase frying to persuade twi lawyers: and
throe dociors 10 mile in thear favor so (bey can get a favorable finding. So am 1. [t is the same thing in
that simation. Practcally speaking, a onc-line affidavit is nol going 1o be particularly successful. Owr
poaition is that this is the same subsianiive type of affidavia that will be requined 3 the panel in onder W
pass musier on this dismdssal,

SENATOR COFFIN:
1% this poang o wrap ap the cosl (or e imtal enlry ok ke begal :fsl.ﬂn?

MR, COTTOMN:

Much the same way it wraps wp the costs of the screening panel that was parl of the intent of the
sereening panel that they did have 10 have expen affidavits, It was a requirement that they would have
sccompaniment of an affidasil by an expert, and the practical mpact of nol having one would be a resuli
of finding & no reasonable probabiliny of malpractice. This is basically the only guard we have against a
jacking up of flings and cases. If there is oo Impediment a1 all oa the frant end of thess cases, there are a
number of lawyers oul there who file a lot of claims if they can get by cheap 0o gel 1t on file and 10 see il
ey can move the case o thal direction. That 15 something we were very mbent abog trying to avosd. If
w¢ are not going to have the panel, then it had 1o be substantive at that point. The realsty is, they can lmd
cxperts. That happens on a regular basis on & MeTiiorious case,

SENATOR COFFIN:

This is the equivalent of & buge Qling lee

ME: COTTON:

I Is the equivalcnd of ihe scrcening panel costs that they imcurmed anyway

SEMATOR PAGGIC:
[1 was required m 2 scréening processT

MR. COTTON:
They had to have an affidavit of an expert for the screening panel. Not only, an affidavit, tut one that
would prove to six people that they had a case. They had to run that cost up already.

SENATOR RAGGID:

I would think as a peactical matier woless a claimant could get some kind of lestimony like that in
affidavit form, | do not (hink many cases would be able (0 proceed. There would Bave 1o be something
Hie that. Wouldn't there?

ME. BEADLEY:

Yes, however, realizing that ondy the medical records are available when that Lerge affidavit comes in,
now, i have something that has the ability 1o be subject 1o impeachment becaase (he reconds were Bl
thorough, There are problems produced by thas, amd | am tryving 10 aveed that buge baltke, IF you have
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two or three defersdamis and you need io bring in an orthopedic surpeon, a wauma surgeon and a
specialioed purse, you can spend 53000 fo 55,000, i becomes very expensive

MR. COTTOM

The practbcal mavier is, the nsodscal reeords were all (ha bey had available @ the screening panel.
They nocded io submic 3 substantive affidavin in onder (o previal. Those costs have been prescnt in the
system since 1985 or whenever thal 31 ook place and are a barrier 1o frivolous litigation in the medical
malpractice field. It is something perceived strongly, not just by the doctors but by the panel, as kecping
the numbers of claims down when the [requency rating |s calculsted on these thisps. This is an cssential
issue. If we are going o drop the panel and then twn around and incresse the frequency. we are
defesting 1he whale puspose of trying o cul down on litigation. In my opinion, it is a serious mistake o
not have both sides. Eliminate the pancl, bul require a substantive afMidavit. If someone is going to
prsUE A case aEyway, they are goang 1o have to get an expenl who is going to review all the records amd
substantively come up wilh legiibmate opiniins & opposed 10 a ope-page affidavit sayving, 1 think there
is reasonabde probability of malpractice.” Then 16 months later, they come (o with 3 dufferent expert 1k
now has a substastive affidavil a5 oppossd 1o knowing in good faith b a stromg affidavit from an expent
it they had a legitimate case from the time that they filed.

SEMATOR CARE:

Becawse the stalwie does nol impose the limitatien, [ am assuming the expent can be outside the
jurisdiction or from owside the Stave. We all understand that this expert can then be called o irial by the
defense if ey chose 10 do so. s that correct?

ME. BRADLEY:

Ma, i 1 bring an expent in and he 35 from ol of seate, there @ no way Mr, Colton can bring him in
also,

SENATOR CARE:
Let us say there is @ jurisdictional issue with another county, perhaps. IF | file & lawswit and 1 list an
aiffidavit expert, the apposing party may waal (o depose him to testify ag mal,

ME. BRADLEY:

If 1 conlimie e use him as an expen through the course of the tnial and disclose him, ba Mr, Cobion
is cormect. Al ibe screening panel, we have o file an affidavil and so did the defense. If we are going o
be required to file one aloag the lines that Mr. Cotton savs, then what is good for the goose is good fior
the gander.

SEMATOR CARE:

What arc you going to do on the casc where you have multiple causes of action? Malpraciice is one o,
say, five cawses of action. That complaint still has jo have the affidavic?

MR, BRADLEY:

o, ke question in the case ia wieither ihe care of the defendant was below the standard of cane. Thai
is the delermining factor. You are koking al (e potential of who may be bnoa case. There could be & loss
of congonka claim, of there could be many children who are asking for @ wrongfal death claim, b these
are separse camses of action. You do not need experts on ihose. You peed experts o look ot the standard
of eare of the defendams invalved.

SENATOR O'DONNELL:
Would this langusage prevend onc side of e other fram having the expen be a person who dots
nolbing but make thear living wraveling anoand being an expert witness.

ME. BRADLEY:

There are those experis, and they are available 1o both sides. Mr. Colton 15 sman endugh not (o bring
uny professional wilness indo his cases, and most of us are sman encugh nod to bring them in, becauss
they do not willstand cross-examination yery well. If you show that out of thelr imcome ax retwm of
S180.000 a year, 5170,000 was made westifying across the coumtry. N i not & wise decision w bring in
that kind of & witness,
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SENATOR MILBURE:

On the question of verblage on section §, you sald, “practiced or is praciicing.” That still does not
negate the docior who peacticed 20 years ago and who is nol practicing now. Wha about “necently
prachiced?

MR. COTTON:

The 1ail end of that ks =& the iime of 1he =lleged malpractice.™

SENATOR MILHURN;
Clasified, thank yoa,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Is there any other public lestimony on sither section 8 or section |27 Any amendments required on
dither af those sections? | will actept a molion from Senstor Ravwson (o approve the language as amended
in section B and section 12, Add the words ®practiced or practices or is practicing. ™ All in favor indicaie,
aye; any oppoted? Senator Coffin voted “no. ™

The mettion carried,

The lasi hem we are going 6 look a1 is the senlement-conference language m sectson 9, page +, of the
ball. This is entieely mew |language. Gembonsen, please eaplain this section.

ME. GILLOCK:

Mr. Chairman, wnder seclion 9, under the new rules, we will have a mandstory selenent confenence.
Al thal podnd, the sendement conference would be of no benefil 1o anyone if the party was allwed 1o
avtend without thedr insurance company represcatative, That is the nale, What we wanl to do s add “all
the defemidants representatives” bevause the language on line 38 fafled o pul m “a hospital’s,™ and
opposed (0 saying “Bospaial or doctor,” we should say “all the panbes should stend and all defenidsnts
imsurance companies.

SENATOR BAGGID:

Are you supgesting some addiliomal Banguagze?

MR, COTTON:

U lime 38 where it says “physicians of dendisis insurer™ if we jusl said “defendanti{sh insarer” iha
would encomipass all of the defendanes.

SEMATOR RAGGHD:

That would cover amy medical provider If it were a hospical, their insurer &lse would kave 1o atieml,

ME. COTTOMN:

1 ikink as a practical matier even outside of those cases with hospital, doctor or dendiss, \bere may be
entities that are nol necessarily bealtheare providers, When there is a problem with having & seitemen
conference and you do not make all of the defendasis show ap, B ends op being somewhs meaningless. |
kink we should say “deferdant’'s imsurer.™

SENATOR RAGGID:

I we enaci thas, M#mhﬂﬂﬁﬁmmﬂﬁﬂ“ﬂrﬂhm!ﬂmiw
who are not parties 1o the action? Would this language sulfice™

ME. BRADLEY:

W think that is a pood recommendalion. We would encourage that. We would also sagpest that on
page 5, sabsection 4, the semience read “the faildre of asy party, his inswerer or his attormey™ willoul
peiting imo the issue of bad faib, This is ol mlenl,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

Mr. Cotbon, div you sgree bo that?

ME. COTTOM:
[ think thal would be sppropelate,
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SEMATOR CARE:

You are (emiliar with the Mevada Supréme Cowrt's mandate, 1 they want o, 1hey can cafl a
sefilement conférence, The language “participate in good faiih"™ is sciually in ihe Supreme Court raling.
only For matiers on appeal. The setilement judges in those matters are nod Lowvers: they are mormeys. |
am rebermieg bo 1be Suprense Coust seflbement conferences. My question is, why is it pecessary that ibe
settbement judge actually be a district coart judge? There are pbenty of aforneys who will not have an
imerest. They could do 2 good job presiding over a ssitlement conference.

ME. BRADLEY:

Yiou need fhe black robe because the person who is o sitting judge brings a certain deconam, respect
and expersence a5 a judge. The parties are more impressed by thet nstbority. Plus, that judge is sithing in
Use same district and has experience 'with juries i thal districl, has experiencs with the parties amd has
experience knowing what juries do. We would sirongly sugges! Staving with this “disirict court jodge.”

SENATOR CARE:

I would suggest that you expand that. You probably all Knew him. the late Judge Becko from Tanopah
wis outside Clark Cousty, but | had him as a settlfement padge once. There are many senior judges,
retined jodges who di oo seton the bench mow, bud woubd make excellent settbement judges.

MR. BREADLEY:

They would amd we stipulate o them all the time, but | do not think se for this purpose, W can
always stipulate o someone else, bul if we do mot stipalate, it ought to be a districi count judge who is
experienced in thaet district,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Is there any public icstimony on section 97 CQuestions from the commatiee? Are there any ofber
pmerdmenis o be sugpested? Senator Hawson moved 1o approve sectiom 9 with the amendmenis
clunging ling 38 by changing “physiciins or dentists™ o "defendant’s imsurer” and sdding in subseciion
4 s include ihe insurer as well, Is that ihe onderstanding?

ME. BRADLEY:

“That iz carmect

SEMATOR RAGGID:

Any discussion? IF nod, all in favor say, ave; any opposed?

The motsn is casried umaninsasly,

Let vy book at amending section | of the Senate Bill No, 2. We mead o receive the language which we
suthorized on continuing Care, Aside from that, is thene any objoctbon i his language?

SEMATOR TITLS:

I wias speaking with Dr. Painl Siewart from the board and aid there ane different bevels of ragma.
There i severe trauma, which is the most sericus type of trauma. 18 there a definition somewhere that is
more accuraie ikan this “life threatening medical condition?™ Could we use that severe tramma definithon®

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
These are all of the laest definktbons, a5 | understand i,

DR, MCERIDE:

Trauma 8 ldentified in severity on an EMS calegorization based oo someone’s wilal signs and
presentation ke feld, Youa do not have a caegorization based on fype of injury, per se. [t 1§ inirassos
mbe a vehicle, death of & passenger, roflover e, There is no distinct category ¥wou can place an that,
Severe, life-threatening emerpency would, in my opinicn, serve as a betler phrass, a betier cawcgorizaiion
of this type of patient,

SENATOR TITUS:

When | msked the goestion carlser, about hew &0 they know whether (o lake you fo an emergency
FOOM OF 10 & frauma cenier and vou said they call in and are given certain information, is there & paint as
which someone pocs 0 the most serious [ype of rauma center and SCameong Soss 10 an emergency room’?

98

<33

ADD 0147



DR. MCBRIDE:;

Yes, if you are mvolved in a car accident, bump your head on & steering wheel and have a small
bruise, they are Bol golng 1o take you b & raums cenber. I vou have a crosh mjury, ¢losed-bead injury,
are imeonscious, someone kas died g the scene ardd have 1o be extricated from ke vehicle wilh the jaws-
of-kife, or there are wnstable vital signs, then you are iransportod o the raums center. If you kave a
sprained ankle, then you will be ireaicd and released or thken o ke facility of your cholee.

SENATOR TITUS:
This is a call between the EMT and whomever they call in (he emergency room. There i oo

DR. MCHRIDE:

The defintion is based oo the fackors | omlined which would be: a roflover accident, death of a
dismemberment, ¢c. Those are definile indicstions which are met and nod only do they take yoa bo (be
trauma cemer W they radio shead and activate the traama leam welling them vou are coming In wilk
severe, life-threatening infuries that reqaine everyooe 1o be there.

SENATOR TITUS;

I worry tha this definnsen “acuee, life-threarening medical condimon demanding immediave sention™
cpuld be interpreded w include something soch as swallowing 3 picce of speak and jusi needing ibe
Heimlich Mapeuver and thar sinuation suddenly becomes wrauma and coubd be life hreatening. [s that
really tragma?

DR, MUBRIDE:

Correct, but, a1 that point, you make that distinction later, You determine what the mechanism was
lager, If it armed oot that someone swalbowed a piece of steak, fell, hit their head amd vou think they have
a closed-Bead injury when, scrually, (bey were choling on something. that {2 something you Msd oul
lser, You take care of the patient and determine il clreamsianoes laler.

SENATOR TITUIS:

Anyvone who goes (o the emergency room thinks their situabion i raumadic, or they would pot be
there, They think they are baving a heart attack becsuse they Bave chest pains. [ coubd be potentially 1afe
thresiening #0 they go 10 an emergency room. Suddenly, everything thal goes to the emergency noom
will comse under this definition of trauma. 1f seems o me there oughi to be 4 mare specific definason if i
really exists, As wrilten, 1 think this means just about anyihing in an cmergency room.

MK, BRADLEY:

Senator Tisus has made a good peint, As an example, a middle-aged man or woman with chest pain is
brought to the hospial and the decision is made not 10 kave an EKG and they are seal home with some
antacid. They dic a1 home of 3 massive heant aack. | do not 1hink you intend o inclede that, Based on
bow 1 beard your definition. 1t is oo broad, pow, for oar concemns.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
We were irying 10 address the same occwerrences, which are presently, now, covered under lbe
lamguage if they are in @ trauma cenber. We are irying to make i the same. 1% this the same?

ME. GILLOCK:

Naving been hene this afersoon snd having beard the testimony, | agres with cthat, | think (his
definition does open (his up to & hospital stempting to get the 550,000 cap on every single person who
walks imo their emergency room if a problem develops in their freatment. | (hink we need 10 have
langoage like that.

SEMATOR RAGGIY
Is thal what ihe exisiing language in the bill does as far & 1be desipnated rauma center & concermed?
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ME. GILLOCEK:

Mo, we are falking sbout those patients who are tréated by a tranma feam, which has been activated,
That is whad Ibe original mbend of the lnguage, we submitled, angmally dad, It was only afier we staried
briving o expand § that we ran into this problem, The definition of severe travma and o case where a
Irawma team s activated as a frauma team could be added that would parrow this down. As | indicated
this aflernoon, we are opening this up 1o a severe, constitutional attack because 2 350,000 c2p is 3 waiver
of sovereign immeniy. I {5 niv meant 1o be a cap on danages.

DR, MCBRIDE:

Wie make an artificial distincrion between o patient who is struck in the bead with a baseball bat verses
a palsent with a ruptared aneurysm in his briin. That ome i more deserving of emergency care than the
oiler, or that one should be covered under a cap and one shoudd be excluded under a cap. Urnder botl
circwmstances, the nesrcsurgeon 5 called in w rake care of that paodem regardiess of 1he mechanism of
imjury. The mechsnism of lajury shoald nol be determinam facior as o whal renders emergency care
under elrcumstances fham which (hey provide pratidtons care of requined. compulsory call.

SENATOR TITUS:

A definidion was handed (0 me A patient will 8 majos trauma 15 defimed as “someone who his
sustained an acute injury which has the potential of being fanal or producing a major disability and &
champion trauma score of less than 11 or an mjury severity score that i greater than 15,7 Is this not a
more speoific definiion? This iz in MAC 4500, T,

ME. COTTOMN:

The problem we ane munning inbo is that we are ool going 10 be able 1o pel any dociors 1o 2o o he
UMC trauma center or their emergency roam for an acale life-threatening, situation if they e going 1o
be perceived as the deep pockets for the $50,000 cap for the hospital. This is the problem we are ruaning
imo, They need the protection. “Acwme, lifeabrearening medical condithon requiring mmediate medical
atrention” i a fairly definshle erm. 1 have doctars whio | cannog begally adviee (0 walk down thene and
expose themselves t lrabdlity n & simiation where they are working tryimg fo help cul in the emerpency
rosomn @nid trauma center of county and noa-prodil institutions,

SEMNATOR TITLS:

The traums cenler ) UMC iz the highest-level irsuma center. 'We are covering them under the
S50,000 cxp, and we afe trying o expand thay $5300000 cap w people who do the ssme thing in other
emergency rooms. Why will you mot define what they do In an emesgency room a5 (rauma 3 the same
kevel you define it for the UMC, povernment facilizy? 1= pot thal what we are talking about?

DR. MCHRITIE:

Pertaps, [ can clarify that. In general, if 2 pasien is brought to UMC with a life threstening injury a8
youe describe, that patient would be picked up and iransported by the EMS service. In general, a patien,
who is brought to Sunrise, Desert Springs or & commanily bospiial such as Sparks, who presenis a life
thresfering emergency from a (raumatic incidest, either injured themselves & bome, was brought in by a
family member, was a viclim ol a drive-by shooling or someone who basically comes b an emeTgency
without the services of an EMS service, may be as critbcally imjured, but they will not be scomed
approprisiely by the passerby who picks them wup. To acquire a definition that is based upon srict
emergency medical personnel’s criteria, documented oo a chart, B something that will not be ohizinahle.

SENATOR RAWSON:

It seems bo me thal if sonweone comes into the cmergency room and they are stable, this is & soa-izvee,
B is already i the definilion thal s have alked about. I it is a life-threabening situation and they are
umstable, until they are stabilized, tha I8 whar we are really aiking sbout, We have defired thn,

DR. MCERIDE:

Carrect. That is one of the things we are trying to address. From a physician's polni of view, someone
may be stshle, en rowte fnom the acchlem either by Belicopter or by ambalance. They are in the
emcigency room, Their vilad signs ane siable. Then fvn minwtes |ater, they kave crashed, Their spleen,
Liver and soma have ruptored, and all of & sudden the stability that you dogcumented nftially is no looger
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ibcre. It is a fluid state. To try (o narrow this dowe and o b oo precise aboanr & resuls im poscnial
harm to paticnes,

SENATOR RAWSON:
I whey overlonk the bear attsck by mot doing the appropesate wests, | suppose, we wolld iben heve an
issue of gross pegligence. I seems o me thal some things speak well for themselves.

ME. BREADLEY:

Senator Rawson, absohsely mot, When | gave you the example las night, all of you looked at me and
said, *Well, that i3 gross malpractice for Mipping an x-ray.” Mr. Cofton will il you that in the 20 vears
hie has been peacticing, he has never seen @ case of gross malpractice mor i the 20 years | have beea
precticing, have 1. 1f yoa do nol get an BRKG, Senator Bawsen, (hal i5 a0l grosy malpesctice oF anywhene
near to it

SENATOR RAWSN;
In thi spifit of what we are trying (o do. We are nod irymg bo cxcmpt évery failure 1o diagnose a Beart
sitack that comes inte any emergency room. We ang trying 1o define this a5 the seriously injunid person.

SENATOR RAGGID:

The intent of the commities, and lef me get back 10 that premise, was 10 afford the same lisbaliy lomie
under the same circumsiances when it occurs owside of a designaled trauma center and in anogher
hospital, That is what we asked for. It appears 1o me that is whai this does.

How masy cascs are there poing o be? Our biggest concem 8 deiven by the facq thal usless we
prowide some kind of a limil, a cap, on those who have o perform (n a wrauma selting, whetber & s ina
desigraied (rauma center of in another (acility, we are not going o have these doctoss willing o da this.

1 broughi up the case of the pumbal woend, Are we going 1o maks that dectar el them o take that
patbent scross own, 20 mibes, when they coubd ake him aceoss the street or down the block 10 & hospiial
just because they are afrasd they may be under this type of cap? That is what we are trying 1o gei jo. Let
s pot be picky sbout this. Let us look at this realistically. We are trying 1o give them the same
prodection wnder the same circumsiances. Why ase w'e arguing abeut that?

ME. BRADLEY:

Because, we will be doing exactly wha Scnator Rawsen said. Even Senator Rewson was saying a
“merhows” medical impary. If thai is the mvent, bere, thal s somedhing that s much betier than (his
banguage, which will do exsclly wha Senstor Rawson said and exonerate each and every chest pain and
rraamatic injury.

SENATOR RAGGIO;
1 cannoi see what you are saying. Whar am 1 saying thar 8 erronepus? This bill covers a irsuma-
designaied facality, Does i3 nin!

ME. BRADLEY:
Yes.

SEMATOR RAGGID:

[t provides a limi of liabHisy. We have all agreed o that, We have all agreed thal is what the bill docs
under its prescot sate, This amendment would provide the same limit of lighility for the sasme activity in
ik same or similar seiting lor those cases.

DR. MCBRIDE:

I canmat think of a single circumstance whore 3 physician would mistake a heart atesk for a gab
wioumnd 1o the chest of 3 traumatic Enjury 1o the chest, The distinclions they are making where you would
Ireat someone with an abdominal complaint versus someone who has been invalved by history either in
an accadeni of some sor@a fall, a molor vehicle accident, a gunshol wound, & stab woundiibose are B
going 1o be distinctions that are difficelt 1o make. Your poist is, the injury ls the same no mater where
they are taken. To be a1 Valley Hospital, which 15 500 yards away from UMC, and not be covered for
providing eMErgency care 10 a trauma patiest bl providing that level of cap coverage ot UMC across ihe
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parking 104 is an artificial distinction, I pumishes 3 surgeon who iz providing emergency care i the bess
of his cifcumslances.

ME. GILLOCK:

The definslion is missing b word “traema” or *a qualified rauma patbent.” We are nol comstrmed
abowl the trauma surgeon who is placiog himsell on the firing linc. We are concerned aboail the hopitsl
being a safe haven,

SEMNATOR RAGGID:
1 ihink that is what the bill drafiers did. They assumed this langeage mwl the definiion of a gualifbed
trauma patiend. Can [ bear from the bill drafiers on this?

M5 NEEDHAM:

Yes, Mr. Chairman. If you use the word “trasma,” you 2re going to have lo defing # in some manos
W cannol just say “scvere Mauma, " We have 10 define thal somelw.

ME. COTTOMN:

We have 2 defimbson of the hospital a5 “desigrated 33 a center for the treatment af tmuma, ® In sechion
2. wo say “acute, life-threaiening medical conditions demanding bmanediste medical atiemibon, ™ I my
clienis cannot go into thai simatlon & “on-call doceoes™ willing o take the 3:00 am,, 4:00 am. call or
whenever it is, and o sacrifics thelr own time o go in (here, they are going 1o come to me. This is not a
doctors” decision 1o chose trauma cemters. | will take the blame for tha becsuse | would commit
malpracisce if 1 wold the doctor o walk @ there and do that, exposing himsell o Hability on a pro-hono,
initial run down thers io oy w kelp someone. B does nol make sense for hese poople 1o risk their entire
career and everyihing they bave worked for & a service (o our comamaaity, That B my usderstending of
what we were trying o accomgplish. [ believe we have,

SEMNATOR RAGGID:
Does the committes feel this proposed amendment neeeis the sense of the amendment? Is ihe
commitise willing 10 accepd this Banguage and this amendmend?

SENATOR Q" DONNELL:

Maybe, | can come up with a compromise here. | think the problem is that we have a §50,000 cap,
which is a safe haven, extending out to all of the hospitals. There is an appetite in this commifiee 1o do
that Flowever, on balance, maybe it would behoove s to look al, for just this instance. rassing ibe
soversign cap bo S100,000 1o eqaale beter ihose individuals who have © go 10 one Facility or the other, |
do nik know I there i3 an appetite in this commmifee o do this or nol. We can argue usinl the cows coma
bime a8 o whetler or pof we should extend this immunity cap o the other hospimls, What you ane
hasically doing s saying, =Should we give these peopbe immunity?® These poople do not Bave immunity,
and that is not fair. Maybe, 8 compromise is to book at a $100,000 cap and fo extend i1 | would go for
iheat,

ME. BEADLEY:

By using the language, you are wsing with the cap of 350,000, You are probably beiter off saying, “h
is the intend o give them mmosity, ™ bocause that (5 what you are dodeg here. s over in e emengency
room, and if it s the istest of this comminiee, iha s fAne. 1 ageee with the bill drafier. We fecd
“rraomia” should be I bere. We ddnk that is the imtemt. That was always (he ntent of the original ball,
Frankly, if we are going 1o be required o go ol and get a 53,000, $5.000 or §7,000 affidavit, we are
down to $43,000. so just give them mmanily.

SENATOR RAGGHO:

[s this proposed amendinent before us acceplahle to ithe commires? Does i conform o ihe modson that
ibe commitiee sdopied? Show of kands in favor, opposed, This will be the zmendment accepishic lo ibe
commitice.

We still pead Ihe Language on ithe other mofion that was adopied on “rebut tablde presumption.” That
covers, W the Chair's understanding. all of the issues in the bill, | would like (o call on Mr. 'Wadhams
He has indicated (0 me he has more recent information that has come to his attention, [ understand it i
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rebated o the Assembly. The lssoe i5, the effect of this measure & B iz adopied & far 25 the insarance
carriers and those companies are concemed. What §s the newest informaibon on thar?

ME. WADHAMS:
| spoke earlier this morning and promised that, when [ bad maore lechiical of currem infarmation, |
wonkl bring that information back to ibe commiiee.

SENATOR RAGGHD:

Your testimony, a5 | recall, paricularly in reference 1o section 5, was that even though it was 0ot a
complete cap, you felt there was & subsiamisl kmpact that waould result if we would adopt this measire. 1L
might not be reflecied immediaely, snd there might sot be a reduction i either the premiums or in a
reduction in the rale of increase in the premiums over a period of theee 1o five years. That it might nol be
felt, but hat it woald increase (he pobentisl for competithon and also would hive that kind of a salulary
impaci. The doctors organizaiion’s represencsives foh that even though it would nod have an immedise
impaci, There was lighl & the end of the funnel with this kind of an action. 'What can you el us ai this
poia?

ME. WADHAMS:

Let me restase that a Intle. The variation w just a bit off of that, | do foel tha this package is passlive
and does improve the sitvation. What | was comcemned aboatl, particudarly under careful questioning by
virious members of your commitiee, was on the caps themselves. How much would these change
premiems? | kave received an oral opinkon from one aciuary that they feel the excepilons eliminate the
vilue of the caps as to rates, 1 felt # was incumbent to bring that information back sinor the comminies
was concerned abhoul the value of the caps, That is a part of the bill ax & whole.

SENATOR RAGGIO:
Would you reiterate than again® Your information that came back from the compardes was w0 wihs
cffect because of the caps?

ME. WADHAMS:

b hag been difficult o get informatkon, el | did et o phone call from one aciuary shorily afier | lefi
e commitiee who sakd in their view that the exceptions would eliminzie the value of the caps In section
5

SENATOR RAGGHD:

I would, secosding to thar opinios, have o Impsel oa e ssee we are addressing. We are lalking
abwout provwiding a climane as & resull of our scthons that would assune. & much as possible, that accesaible
ansl affordable medical makpracisce coverage would be avallable

ME. WADHAMS:

Yes, Mr. Chairman, | andersiand that o the ek before this commates. T do ol have the techiiical
information in hasd, My opinton on the bill, as 2 whale, is ill thag it is 3 positive siep and does have an
impact. The particular question in cection 5 where I was westifying was focusing on the value of (he caps.
The comamibiee had soaee concerns aboul the exseplions,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Yiou sxid yoia heard from one company, Which company?

ME. WADHAMS:
The actaary for Mevada Mumal Insurance Company,

SENATOR RAGGIO,
i thar a company now doang business in ihe Sue.

ME. WADHAMS:
It is & compasy that was just formed o do business in the State and has approximarely 300 physicians,
They have 2 represemative bere, nol an aciusry bul & representative, who could speak.
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SEMATOR RAGGID:
Is be here now?

MR, WADHAMS:
Yes, he is here,

SENATOR RAGGI):
Br. Wallace, youare familiar with the contents of the bill with regard to section 5, at leass tbe versbon
which has been sdopied by this commanes.

CHARLES “CHIP® WALLACE (Nevada Muoual Insurance Company, Communicalions
Director/cofounder):

Yes, e Chalrman, that | the langoage | referied o last night, | absalutely comcur with
Mr. Wadhams.

SENATOR BAGGI:

Whal doss thal giedn? [n your opinion g% far as the company vou fepresent and speak for, what do you
think the effect the lamguage on the cap with the cxemplions indicated will have on your company’s
ability wo provide aflfordable amd accessihle medical malpractice coverage.

ME. WALLACE:

The language is to0 constraining o liberal a2 its worst, [0 provides o0 many loophales, and becasse of
that, il negates the value of the cap. In conversations § kad soday, there will be a 2 pencent net effect on
the ciost af the premiom.

SENATOR RAGGID:

You mean ibe presert high bevel of prémivms would be reduced by ondy 2 percemt, immediasely or
over a perid of time?

MR. WALLACE:

That is over a period of time.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Whar portions of (he exemplsns in section 3 does your company foel caused this opinion 1o oocur?

MR. WALLACE:

It i% nod oar company, However, osing the video ag a demonsiration, il we look ai each of ihode cades,
such a8 when a patient is seplic and their life s saved bt they are left 3 double amputer, they now
hreach (he $350,000 cap, for example. To answer vour question, 10 gross, all of the exceptions contained
in that ball negate the vakoe of the cap.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Let me press this a hii. | know you are speaking for only one company. Mr. Wadhams, have you
heard from any other company representatives an this?

ME. WADHAMS:
The only other Information | reccived was from a irade ssockation which [ do sot represent maile up
of physician-based inswrers. They expressed a similar opinion as o the caps,

SEMATOR RAGGIO
For the same reason be expressed?

ME. WADHAMS:
Yes, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR RAGGID:

This i& very dusallusioning (0 ihis comumitice. | assume the Governor has also beéen given this
information. For s 10 go through a1l of 1his procedure with & representation from the legal profession,
ibe medical profession based oo what | undersiood o be some fepresentation eiber formally of
informally from the insurance mdustey, that if we did (his, this world fesult in a very much improved
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environment e woubd cause reliel from (he ncreasmgly high cost of medical malpraciics premiums at
beast in the forcsecable fobare. Thal was my undersiamding during discussions wih the Governor, with
members of the other house. that the bill here before ws with the S350, 000 cap, albeit the exemptions,
wak poing 1o have a salalary effect I was poisp (0 be percelved i that fashion. An (he presei Hme, we
do nol have any cap whatsoever on porcconomic damages. This provides 5 cap of some sort, | admil
there is a list of exceptions, bat where did we pet off this wwack or where did we begin this process under
a false assumption that there would be a resub?

ME. WALLACE:

Mr, Chairman. | can only respond as a basinessman. This Is my setond msurance company ia the
young cxreer | have bailt at 37 vears old. | buali an HMO when [ was 28 years odd.

With all do respect, we sought legal counsed and coupled with that | sought oui insurance cxperts with
current-day expeérience. In (his project, in forming a malpractice company. we found someone who
happened to be ooe of the founding members of EW, Blanche, the largest re-insurer in the Unibed
Stades. [n lhe comthined parinershep and with ibe direciors of this company, they have placed over 41
percent of the re-insurance in the Uniled States. They were not available right away. Unforianately, Ut
ks why In ook the project so loag 1o get off tbe ground. When they were available, we chode ths
expenase. Unfortunately, with three days motice, they were o available to come 10 Carson City. We
hiave asked them to engage conversation within the indusity o gasner somse off-the-cull support, some
blanket answer, [ could come in here with in respomse w0 Senator Care and Senator Townsend®s request. |
have been ai ibis since | befi here, vesterday, irying io gef some suppont. | was looking for a woboe o say
wie wiold save 10 percent off (his current bill, and | was unable to find it

[ think this is an excellent framewark. This is nol something the Governar put ot in five minubss.
They worked lomg and hard on this.

SEMNATOR RAGGH):

We do not want w beave bere with the belief and understanding and with ihe affecoed medical
providers understanding thar we bave dope something in an oousus] special session called for this
puapose, and then fmd outk afler we leave here tha the insurance compaenies feel we have done pothing of
2lmust pothing. That it is nol going 10 resell in any improvement in the sifestion.

We are Ded with a crisis, apparently, in scuthern MNevada ths may result in a staiewide crisis where
doctors wha are affedied by high increases in their premiums are leaving the Siate. Wi are pot going o
have dociors who provide servetes particularly for pregnast women, the OB/GYM, trawma physicians
and whoever clse may be cxperiencing Ihese high premiuwnss. You are here. and | hate 1o ride you or
anyore else, but this is disappoiniing a1 this stage of these procesdings 10 know that we have come this
far, spend This amount of money with this effon, the dociors ane expecting for 5 10 do something, oaly o
firmd oat that nothing has been changed. Whas am | missing owt of this?

ME. WALLACE:

MNothing. 1 just hung up the phone with & surgeon at Sunrise Hospatal in Lag Vegas. They bave a copy
of this bill amd are reacting emofiopadly. We are all here rying lo negotiate and come op with a
reasimable compromise, [t s difficalt if you have never been a part of this system o appreciale thal.

SENATOR RAGGID:

You are here with Mr. 'Wadhams, There is 5350000 cap wilh a limit of policy coverage in
noneconomis damages. Let us look at the excepuons. | do not think anyone will argue, nor woold any
imsurance company argue, that in & case in which there is gross malpraciice that case should mot fall
under the cap. Would 1hai be because we provide an exemplion for gross malpraciice? What wosld be
yiorer opimion on that?

ME. WADHAMS:
My opinion is that it should oot have an effect. You jusd heard lestimony from two éxpenenced
atlorneys who have not seen gross malpractice, so tha shouwld not be a problem, Mr. Chairman,

105

240

ADD 0154



SEMATOR RAGGIC:
If we had a cap of 5350,000 and the only cxgeption was for gross malpractics, what, in your opinicn,
wondd that da a8 far as the infurance companies ane concemed?

ME. WADHAMS:

1 would have o defer 10 an insurance company &ohaary © make that cstimase. | can speak from my
experience, and | think that by eliminating the exceptions excepl for gross negligence, (hal changes it
cloger 1o the MICRA staime in California. The change is dramatic.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Whai if we had pasagraph (h) which is “any case where the jury conses back wih 3 jsdgment in
eaces: of F350,000 for exceptional circumstances andd the judpe fAmds there is clear amd comvincing
evilence.™ [ do not Know if you were here, but 1 (bink # was explained, earlier, that the Language would
protect against a constiuisnal challenge. Does that make serse

hME. WADHAMS:
Mr. Chairman, | did hear tha sesiimony. It was, ar leass, compelling if Bt perseasive.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

That could cover a lot of sivations. If | recall the restimony, we were alking abou the exoepeional
circumsiances tha were a resull of ihe shestios, rather than the comduel of 1be docwor. These
circumstances resulied in a decision by the jury. The jury reruming a verdict woald noy know the cap
limit. They are nof obd that. Let us sav we did not pat the other list of special demages in the Bll. we
just limited the exceptions 1o paragraphs (g) and (hh. What would ihat do?

ME. WALLACE:

I agree &1 a minlmam (be wsimony was compelling regarding parageaph (h). However, i is aleo quise
compelling when you are alking io a surgeon who is taking care of crack babies irying 1o gave their lives
aeed is engaged In frivobous lawsiiis by mothers who have been found guibly of gross child neglecs. It is
diffscudt for me w0 book a phisician in the eye and say, “this is nod 2 loophole; this & a coastitutional
foremality, and you are pot going o et raked over the coals,”

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

In some siabes, where they have passed & genesic cap without excepiion, wntke in Califorma as you
know, thoae couns have held the caps o be unconstilutional. We do s wanl o do the either. We do
nid wasl o pass something Bere thal will mol pass constimitonal musier, of a challenge of thal kind

MRE. WALLACE:
1 think we¢ need 10 he careful,

SEMATOR RAGGID:

They are nod in this dimension, here. | am only asking st what point in our effor s this gong 1o be a
prosduct that helps as reach this goal. The goad &5 W0 have insurance companies available 1o provide
reasonahle and affordable coverage for cvents of this nasure,

DR. MCBRIDE:

1 will pust on my insurance company hat as the Chairman of Mevada Mutual Liability. The problem
with trylng o guote solssrial races based upon the list of exchugions included En this bill wnder & $350,000
cap in comparing that o & strict cap, such 3 MICRA of 3250000, the list of exclusions precludes any
actuarial ability to make a dewcrmination that this would resalt in lower rates, If yoo struck out the
exceplions, then you would have something that actuarially would stand up o what MICRA has right
now, It may nod be the same level of reduction that you have seen m Califormia, but you could reasonshly
predict that there would be 5 reduction in raes based an the level of the cap that is included kn this bill.

If you include paragraph (h) with exceplional circumstance and sirike all the other exocpions. the
altorieys could argue thal every one of those exceplions i3 now imcleded andee paragraph (hj,
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SEMATOR RAGGID:

I think that & true, but there would have 0 be finding that the award in cxcess of 5350000 was
supporied by chear and coavincing evidence, It is nod expelly ibe same. There is a higher level of a
standard of evidence that would be required for the jedge to do that, 18 would soem o me, sinoe we are
arguing this, that if we pass ibe bill and delete parapraphe {3} through (f) and lefi a5 exceptions
paragraphs (g) and (h), that should pud ibe bill ina postere © make i more likely that there would be 1his
type of coverage. Tell me if | am in ertor.

MR, WALLACE:

I believe that, in the direction you are going, we are gelling closer 10 something | would be more
comforiable selling not bo just our compamy bal within the industry, However, when we are tlking about
age justificd under these circumstances, can we be more gpecific, gross neglect, gross neglipence?

SENATOR COFFIN:

When Mr. Wadhams sared he had spoken w0 an actuary, | was hoping it was for a large company with
experience. | had expecied someéone 1o step forward when Mr. Wadhams sxid be had spoken 10 ag
acfusry. Are you an sciusry, Mr, Wallace?

MR, WALLACE:
Mo, Sensor.

SEMATOR COFFIN;
You did nod sy you were nod an actuary when you siood up. You indicawed you were director of
communscations, 1 guess you are a silepman?

MR. WALLACE:
I Feel like it today.

SENATOR COFFIM:

1 want o know whial your qualifiesiions ane o determine whal rates e This i 8 sefious stber. You
have expressed a strong opdnson thal lead 1o an méense discossion and Tormation of opimion, and yel. |
suspect you are nol qualificd, other than in oplnloa, 1o really il us wheter this is golng W =dd or
subiract fo relcs. Aoy person can sec i you col oul some benefins you are goang (0 change a rase, bl you
are not an schoary. You work for 3 small company with no loss experience, Yoo have merkeling
experience, i you are not & fellow of the sowsrtal sociery. You are noe gquakified, 1 [ might say thar,
mid a6 A insuln, bue | wam o estsblish for the record vour goalificxtions,

ME. WALLACE:

You e absolately correct, and | do nod believe anyone in (his oo is an actuary, However, | have,
in good faith, engaged the market as | promised 10 the Seamors @0 this hearing as 1 was requested under
esiimony vesserday. [ would nor arbiiearily do this,

SENATOR COFFIN:

What [ was geiting af was thal your stalements in the beginning s¢l 2 tope, and | think we showld have
determined your qualifications, simply, because | think this bill has been worked on and worked aver,
and oo, all of a sudden, yoo come i al the Est minale with an opinson.

We all know this is pot going to reduce rates immedisely. 1 think thay Mr, Wadbams' initial word
when asked this morning aboal what the fesults would e, was the one wond andwer *predictabiliy,” |
hlak. It is in your bifercsts since you are an owser, | gather, or have a stake or lnlesest in redecing these
TALCE.

ME. WALLACE:
No, Senmor, that is counter. Absolmely, [ disagree with you with all respect. Would it pot behoowve
mie 10 keep rales exploited and as high as passible?

SEMATOR COFFIM:
| am moq sure what yoar position is. Are you arc a salaried person?
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ME. WALLACE:

¥es, | am salaried, and it is capped under an arrangement with 2 managemem Company.

SENATOR COFFIN:

Did you talk to an achery when Mr. Wadhams asked you o get some information? Which actuary did
yiola speak with?

ME. WALLACE:

Yes, sir, however, | am nod @ sharcholder, | raised almost $3,000,000 for this project. | do nol own
one ghare of siock,

SENATOR COFFIN:
He: is pii answering.

ME. WALLACE:

I will amswer. | was answering your peevines assertion, and | wam o clarily o the panel so 0 i
chearly staned.

SENATOR COFFIN;
I need o know i you talked 1o the consultant. The company probably has 2 consalting actuary.

ME. WALLACE:
e, Sir.

SEMATOR COFFIN:
And whao is thar?

MK. WALLACE:
I spoke 10 Andrew O'Brien whe is one of the directors of the company.

SENATOR COFFIN:
I be a flow? 15 he 3 member of the FEAT Is he a person you found?

MR, WALLACE:

The person | founid ks absobutely credibde. He bas the most where-with-sll in the indestry. 1 woald ne
be willing 1o miest 1o his credentiads, specifically, as @ whether be has his LUTC or is a fellow member
actiaary,

SEMATOR COFFIMN:

LUTC is Life underwriser traming, (v 45 mot & at all.

MR, WALLACE:
I apaloghes, | meant fellow,

SEMATOR COFFIM:

The reason you have o withstand some scrating, here, For your statements is hecause by stepping up
1o the podium, you porirayed vourself as am actuary,

ME. WALLACE:

1 have ot porirayed mysell a8 an sciuary.

SENATOR RAGHO:

He sxid e had spolen with an aCuary,

ME. WALLACE:

Yes, | stated my position wp front, IF thas position as Comamanications Director i misteading, |
certainly apologize to this panel. In mo way should 3 persom who mandates a5 3 position of
cominupications for a company ever assert that they ane an acfuary.

SENATOR COFFIN:

We shoald probe a lisle ferther info this becanse we need soane actuasial advice. | do not think we
Bave ir. T think that would be helphal for us belfone we make 3 decision.
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SEMNATOR RAGGIO;

Let me ask this, Senator Coffin, s Mr. Bob Byrd here? Mr. Wallace would you step aside for a
mament, please. Mr. Byrd, pledse come down io the podiam and state voor e, alfilimion, apd your
experence?

ROBERT BYRD, (Medical Liahility Associstion of Mevada, Chairman)

Currently, | serve as Chairman of the Board of the Medical Liability Association of Nevada,
Previously, prior to retirement, | spemt 23 years a3 CEOQ, Presiden and Chairman of the Board of
Mevada Medical Liability Insurance Company. In thai capacity, | carried the final word on all large
cames. | reviewed all claims in the State of Nevada presenced o our company. | personally wias tnvalved
in excess of 1,100 senlenents or son-setlements, the final disposition of claims, Those are Nevada
claims. [ bave some qualifications as 10 what ihis bill will do. | am moi an actumry, bu | do have a
significant background in medical malpractice.

SEMNATOR RAGGIO:

Are you familiar with the bill, what i provided in the bEll, and whal we have heen discussing on the
cap with the exceplions as indicabed?

ME. BYRD:

Yes, lam,

SEMATOR RAGGIO:
Dy you Bave an opindon’

ME. BYRD:

I was originally asked 1o stalc an opinion on this hill based on o descripsbon of wha the bill contairsod
by a group of atrorneys who had been working o it at the request of Governar Guinn. In addition o
that, 1 was agked 1o stae that same opinson 10 a group of doctors who were slso working on it That was
vesterday mosneig. | beleve that théwr representation as (o the confents of the bill, which I had not' seen
a1 that time in &1] meaningful ways, were accuarabe. | said without quslification, *This is meaningfisl won
reform. ™

1 would be happy (o answer any gueslions as 1o why | came oo that coaclasson. | am sl of thar same
opinion,

SENATOR RAGGIC:
Pleage pell ux why you came bo that opindon,

ME. BYRD:

I came oo that opinion primarily becsuse it changes the playing fleld. Instesd of working uphill all day,
we have a more level plaving field in the scillement environment. I is that senlement environmen which
[ thank is the key issuc and has pof been addressed bo my knowledge by anvone who has spend &ny time in
it fromm the insarance companies” standpaint,

Acidaries do nol seitle cases. They respomd and analyze what kappens afier the case, CEOs do nid
narmally spend time seitling cases. mor do markeiing representatives. I s very difficullt so find someone
whi's fiscl are i the irench and who teally knows what bappens when thal case is before them, Today, if
we have a cue where we believe, and [ am using “we” as an insurance company. that there is mo
culpability, or very questiocable culpability, one io which we cannd recommend 1o ibe doctor that be
mh.mwmmmuﬂmmmeynm.walnuﬂﬂmmmuilwe
£0 to courl, and he does ot wam o admit culpability and we agree with That, that case if we lose it could
excend his policy lmas.

SENATOR RAGGIO
You are talking about the area of noncconomic damages,

MH. BYRD:;
1 am talking abouwt fingl ssilement, NONECOMMIC OF SCMNMIC.
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SENATOR RAGGIO:
Char cap is limited 10 poneconomic,

ME. BYRID:

Yes. | undersiand that. [ am irying 1o explain what the envitonmen B, woday, prior oo this B 1 that
doctor says, “My personal asscts are at risk if we bose that case,™ snd ihere &5 mo guaraniee in a disputed
case that you will win it, 1 herchy demand that vou settle this case without regard 10 culpabilicy. 1
demand you protect me. That is whai 1 paid you to do.™ The insurance company is saying, 1 have a case
I shouald be defending, | cannot go (o counl. The courts ane denied o me because if | do go and | kose, for
this is & huge judgmen, | am going 10 end op paying the whols thing. [ will settle, pow, if | can for
something within the policy limits.” All oo ofien, thai is the case. Mow, wilh this bill and the same
spaabisn arkses, | have somee measure of what that final responsibility may be. | have a prediclable
environment. | have something 1 can price. Something | can make judgments on. It is a significam
change in the seiflement cavironment. That is very maportant.

SEENATOR RAGGID:

However, | wand to make the distinction again that the policy limil only applies, s | enderstand the
ill, 10 the neneconomic damages.

ME. BYRD:
The cap ondy applies o nopeconomic damages, that is correct. However, the maximuam responsihility
will be 51 million unless coonomic damages exceed that amount

SEMNATOR RAGGID:

Am | missing something kere? You are talking abowt the owerall settlement. The overall satlemem
mciuding both economic and noncconomic damages, as | understand i, &5 not Bmized 1o ibe policy limil,
Is that cormeciT Mo? Tell me why? On exonomic and noneconomic, it says under sabsection 2 “in an
action for damages for medical malpraciice the noneconomic damages swanded must pot excecd the
amount of mocey remaining umder the policy after subiracting the economic damages awarded 10 the
plaingiff,” If the econcmic damages are 52 million the judgment will be 52 million.

ME. BYRD:

Thaa is comect. The noncconomic damages are nol & factor in that,

SENATOR RAGGID:
AL least, vou are going oo know thal in 4 seitlemen) tha the wp will be 51 milllon, but ikal ondy
applies (o e noneconom: damage.

ME. BYRI)

Correct, bowever, | can still measure those coonomac damages. 1 still know' what my exposure will be,
I dis i have that umknows,

SENATOR RAGGID:
Then, 1 know, | am reading the bill righa

ME. BYRD:
Yes, you are, Mr. Chairman.

LONNIE HAMMERGREN, M.D. (Neurosurgical Associales of Mevada):

I testified, yesterday, in relation 1o the exemptions on ihe cap and how | ihoaght they made it difficul.
1 will tell you specifically why. The ones exclisded are the high-tkcket fiems. With an OB/GYN, where
the child, whether bramn ijured @ barth, Imjured by infection or whether the mother ook cocaines,
whatever it was, had brain damage, it has cassed buge scnlements. | understand abowt the 51,000,000
cap in tese discussions. These are the kigh-ticket ifems thal inclode paralysis and hlindness. That = why
they were included for srictly economic reasons. That is why they were excmpled. They thought the
money would come from Lawsuits. That was the only reasoa 10 exclode those high-tcket dems.

My faibier was president of Casaaly Underwriters Insarance Company in 5t Paal, Minnesota. | was &
licensed insurance agent in Mimnesota, | bought my Nevada medical liabality policy from Bob Byrd 20
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years agn. | have tedified here before on malpractice issees seven years ago, [ currently am presikdent of
another Nevada medical malpractice insurance company called Nevada Doctors Mutual, We were late in
ihe game. Mevada Mutual gon fueding from hospitals and other sources, but olberaise we are fully
licensed 1o solich mzursnce in the Swae of Nevada | am the president of thal company, We havé no
capifal, and therefore, we are ool selling sny policies. | have been studying this particular problem. What
has proven that works I8 MICEA becasse we have 20-plus yvears experence with it, As [ szid before, the
laaryers proved ibeir own poiml when they said MICEA doss not work. One lawyer stabed his soan had
died, and he wamed a malpractice Liwsuil filed im California, bt he could not find an aforsey 10 soe for
malpraclice because there was not ensugh money in i for the attormeys taking the case. Thai shows
MICRA works.

SEMATOR RAGGHD:
Mr. Byrd, can you tell us if you woubd recommend &y change in ibe language in section 5 (bat would
make this mare appealing to the insgrance companies 10 provide adequate and afiordable coverape?

ME. BYRD:

That is a very difficult question. I | had my druthers, | would ellminste 2l of e exceplions. That
would make W a stronger bill. You can lake paragraph (h) oat, it would make b bill beiber. | &0 ot
think you can predict bow this bill will come outl and how it is poing 1o cffect the prices and the
avaalabitity of msurance until after we have had & long time working with it. One of ibe things worrving
me i the eliminsion of the medical equal screening panel. | think the frequency of claims will change.
Oaly time will tell for certain as i0 how much frequency will change. The bill can be made stronger by
ihe elimination of one or more paints, but [ could aol pick one that would be more appropriate (han
anpaher.

SEMATOR CARE:

Thank you, Mr, Chairman, Let me pus this in perspective from my personal poing of view. My wife
and daughter are in a resort in Tucson, | flew out of that resord i Tecson Sunday night 1o come bere. |
have read, studied aed deciplsered everything thal has come across my desk of come thirough the mail. |
hawe sat here. 1 have been non-partisan. | am philosophically opposed to caps. Today, 1 voled for caps. |
have been a part of ke give amd take here, | am dumbfounded that we get 1o this poini in the procecdings
and no one in this building seems 10 have an idea as 10 what impact this legislation, as it i now befare
us, will have on inserance rales. | am appalled &t that. [ eard D, Kaho say, yesterday, there ane stadscs
ol thkere somewbere, | do pol know i he aied the soures, that if you raise & cap a cerlam fumber of
diodiars, then the raes will go up a3 certsin perecmiage. | do not keow where be got thal, | cangol believe
that there are ool people standing by who have looked at olher jurisdictions amd who have seen
exceplions, have seen cap numbers go up and down and have some ibes of what this legislation will do. |
am insulied.

ME. WADHAMS:

Senatof, | gusss | need 1o shoalder some of that burden, | appear 10 frong of this commiftes foatinely
[ try & bring a8 currenil nformation as 1 can pertsmning i the bill as B (st appearsd yesterday aflernoon,
I do apobogize. Mo nsult i3 intended.

Ag vpia can see, there are differing opinjons on this. [ can only say that my personsl opinéon is thay the
hill bas a positive impact. Can it be made mose positive? Yes. You seo differcoces here. Ome key
differemce. this pentleman sitting immediaiely 10 my right has had experience in the Nevada markeiplace.
Unforiunately, many others who are casting opinioes are doing i, not based upon MNevada experience.
That i= the point | believe 1o be impartant. 'We have o see how these things work. You have o iry
anticipate how they are poing to work. Hopefally, we can get enough information so that you can maks
ihst devision. 1 apologize.

SEMATOR RAGGIO!
Is it practical 1o expect that in & shord peried of time you cowld get any additional information thal
wioull be more helpful 16 this commites in making a decisionT
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MR, WADIAMS:;

The difficulty is that we have very few inswerance companics that are active, [i has been very dilficalr,
like pulling teeth. That i the job 1 ook on in behalfl of several of the groups trying 1o do this, trying 1o
gel the information, The carricrs thal were active have siated they do not have an interesi now. That is
what makes it difficulr.

SENATOR RAGGID:
So they do not have an interest in coming into this market regardiess of what is done here. [s that what
i & saying?

ME. WADHAMS:

Mo, well, the hope is that if something is done, they will booome active again. Bal, & & difficals 1o gt
them 10 participate. They have indicated they bave no interest im the marketplace. We have one active
company, | will do (he besd | can 1o get more desailed information. | wish it were like amo issurance
whete we have dozens of companies with lols of information

DR. MCERIDE:

I spoke 0 (be aciuary, Andrew 'Hrien who Mr. Wallace spoke o & well, We discussed the
provasions of this bill, The protdem in inerpreting what actions this bill migh have on fanare raes 5 that
he said il would take, and he &5 an actuary and | am mot, & least two to four weeks of study, They would
have 1o take the provisions in this bill and apply them retrospectively o every case in Nevada over the
past 10 years 16 come odl with any reagonable assessmeni of whal sctunrial slandards would be wiith ibese
provisions, I the timeframe we have bere, that s impossible. With respect 1o Seostor Cane, we
apologire for nof havisg (be information more timely than that, but we did not have this information uniil
vesterday, oursclves. Wi had no way of looking a1 ibe provisions of this bill and the exclesions. The
only thing that we were tld was that based on the MICRA slatate if you took 1hose cap numbers at
5250,000, $150,000, ec., vou could then exirapolase 0 ressonable reductions in the Mevads curren
insurance ratcs and make &n estimate in s predictable manor. Based upon thal data, if you (ke 3 srEel
$350,000 cap withow the exclusions, you could reasosshbly estimale thal msurance rales would come
dorwn significantly in the range of approximascly 20-2% percemt. That is a guess and do pot hold me 10 it
Thai is an approximale, and i is the last data that we bave based on taking informacion that we kmow
exssts from other markets,

SENATOR TITUS:

Thank you, Mr, Byrd, for being bere. | think yoo are (he expen on this, and we appreciale hearing
from you. We hesr & lol aboul Bow we only had this bill a few days, how we did mot have thme 10 ga
people here, Bul the imerim commines has boen mecting for months and we kave been iryiag to get
imsurance compankes 10 show up. [ was almost the poing of having o lssue 3 subpoena io get them o
come and iestify. The resson for thai is the insurance companies are very wise. They know ibey are noi
popalar. Mo one likes irserance companies. Bveryone loves his/her doctor. Yoo put your doctars out on
ke fromi fime 10 carry the water for the insusance companies.

It amazcs mee, Mr. Wallace, that your math & very murky when you talk about what kind of benefits
will acerue. You say, “Well. we do oot know. T depends on the ecoaomy. It could be this. B could be
that,” Yet when you talk abowt why this will not work, you are very authorigative amd say, specifically,
“0h, it will only raise it abool 2 percemt.™ | do nod know why your math & good in some indances and
0 bad in cibers.

I kave oot heard anyibing abow whal is poing 10 be the meduction in the rabes for rauma doctors. We
Enow ahsehaely thal is a 550,000 cap, no exceplions. There should be drasiie reductions in insusance
rages, bul | have not beard anyome membon thatl coatribution we kave made.

DR, MCBRIDE:

1 would like b respond io your last point on the reductions for tradma doctors. “Trmima dochon™ 18 &
generic destgration for a namber of different fypes of physcians: peurosarpesas, epane surpeans, gencral
susgeons, orthopedic surgoons and emergency room physiciams. 1 wish | coudd be mare specific with
you. 'We have soen such volathity in this marker and such volatilaty in the lepal climate tn ihis Siate that
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you cannod make any predictions based on asty cap at this poant. The circumstances have changed in the
Lzsi several years,

SENATOR TITUS:

1 think that is very differensl from what you have been saying, You canmol make any prediction hased
o any cap inchding MICRA $250,000, including a hard $350.000, including $350,000 with this. You
Just said that you cannot make any prediction with this. You also said that your actuary said i would ke
you two b four weeks to figure out what the tmpact of this bl would be. That is a bot different from
coming befone us mow at this late date and saving, “1kis will not make a bit of difference. Gt rad of those
exceptions, because i will mat help.® | think those are twd very different kinds of answers. Which i u? 1
thiink it is the former and not e labler.

DR. MCBRIDE:

Let me retract some of my last statement, i was made in the heat of the moment. | am not an acteary,
and | do mid want o presest mysel! a8 one, [ would love 10 gel ibe infarmation 10 vou a8 accurslely a
possibbe. What [ can 1ell you is that the elrcumstanees we presently face in (his Sate make it difficult 18
predict with any acenracy how the rases will be affeciod. Yoo are making lepislabon that i dramatically
differenl from bogisdation thal kas been in place for years and has been shown o work and effectively
bower rmes. When you change the recipe so drasmically, wvou aber it so completely & o make It
anrecognizable, amd therefore, wih all deference 10 you, | cannot el vou thai isese rates will go down,
amd odir actuary cannol fell voua based on these circomsiances that they will go down significanily_

SENATOR TTTUS:

How can vou compare the Mevada marker scross the boand o the California markel and say if you put
in plece in Nevada what they have in Califomia, that you will have the exact same results bere? Is that
D just as spuricus 3 finding?

DR, MCERIDE:

| woisld argoe thal slandand of care in Callfornia and the qualifications of physkcians and (be kind of
injurics or Hincsses meated 0 Califormia mirror Mevada exactly, 'We are beld 10 the standard of cane that
California physickans operaic under. Why wasuld it nor make sense o bold us o ihe same standards of
liability exposure

SENATOR TITUS:

| am ealking sheut 1he numbers of doctors, the markel and the rales. Sarely, you canniod Say that B0se
things are nod parl of the eguation,

DR. MCBRIDE:

The other clement is the unpredsciability in the Nevada marked. This &5 3 very small markel, We have
approsimalcly 2,700 physicians in the southern Nevada area. It is difficult 1o make accurate predictions
based on & small market shane.

SEMATOR RAGGIO:

Any other questions?

I am going 1o state myy opinion on this poim, because, like Senstor Care, | fiogl somewhat used in this
process. We have come to this point afier two full, long days and evenings. We know the work we have
game through and the effort put forth. | am trying to keep mey calm as | discuss (his, | am definitely upse
Owur parpose, here, s nod to help lawyers. 1 is nod to help dociors fmancially. Wie are here 1o belp the
public who needs b have sdequate and affordable health care, 'We need o kave the avablability of health
care, particularly, in these critical areas of practice we ane hearing about. 1 do not want io repeat mysell
or fake the committee”s time.

Frankly, | am disappoinied in some of the presemations on all sides of this issue, We were bed o
belseve thal there was 3 complese scoond beraween all partles that would resule in the goal being reached.
That poal wad 1o meel 1he orisls, o provide an smesphere where there would be aflfordable nsusance
coverage for medical malpractice for practicioners who were faced with a crisis. Streams of doclors are
indicating 1hat they are going o retine from practice or remove themselves from caring, particelarly, foe
expeciant mothers, | have heard from large pumbers of patients who say they camnol gel care. We
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thought we were coming bere for & special session because we thought we had the means o provide
something thal would be adequste, bul we could have wahed untll the pext rogular session and argoed
this for momths. We have o leave here wilh a bill, witk a cap of some kind on nopeconombc damapes
suated g 3 form (ks i msosl liely o achieve that result

The way we have this in the bill. now, does mid do thar. In subsectlon 3, we lisi all of these
gaceptions. | am mot going o look &l 8 from the standpoint of the Rsurance companies oF docliors oF
lawyers, bust from the perception of the public 1w whom we have the resporsibility to serve, mirdful that
every ong of these excepltions is a catasirophic eveni for the individual oo for the {amily of the individual,
We have iried o understand that and to considér that, We have imposed the cap and provided the
EXCEPLONS in Iwo areas, a case in which the conduct of the defendant is delermined o constituse gross
malpractice. [ do nod think anyoce can argue with that, or paragraph (h), a case in which folbowing the
rédum by the jury or a (inding by 2 court in a bench trial, a case in which that verdict or determinaion
determines by clear and convincing evidence which 15 a higher standard, thw an swand in excess of
£350, 00 for noneconombc damages ks jostified under exceplional cincumstances.

I we Kb the exocplions 1o thote twvo ancas withow all of (hese other specific instances, we would
accomplish ihe poal as far a5 we possibly can. The reason for dhat is that under the lamguage in paragraph
ih) akmeost &ll of those other specified injuries could or would constitee excepuional circumsiances, We
said this did nod apply to the conduct of the doctor et to the circamstances of the resull. The difference
would be that m those cases, aml the piry is not told there 15 a cap on noneconomic damages, the jury
coubd rerurmn a judgment in excess of $350,000. The court would have to find, and there would be an
additional standird there, that the verdicl in excess of the cap was justified by clear and convincing
evidence.

Maybe it is 0ol a kot of movement, bat 1 think it covers the situation well from ail aspects, and having
listened 1o all fhas for two days, @t would seem (0 mc that 1t woubd be the best that we coubd do, Other
than that, [ imagine someone coubd angue we could just pass a generic cap al $350,000,

The reason | am suggesting paragraph (h) is thixl we have heard enough evidence that Bt s a safety
valve, That type of lnguage would Bbe 3 defense 10 & constiubonal challenge. Thar would be my
sugpestion. I we just pass 4 penerle cap of $350,000, wih the chasces likely that &t would be nsled
unconstibntional, we will have achieyed nothing. If we pass a bill in the form that it s, it seems to me the
{ikelihocd is not gpreat that there is going to be much relief or change made. There §s nol going fo be a
reasanable assurance of reduction in the fomre of inserance premiums, | have given a long oration
hecause | am thinking as | am talking, bui [ think that i where | would go with this measare. Maybe,
that is something no one likes. so mavbe, that is & good idea.

SENATOR O'DONNELL:

Thank you, Me, Chairman, | am perplexsd & you are reganding chis whole issiee. | umderstand that
although an insurance company may be willing w come up here o iesiily as w the acuarial data they
may be able w hold, they may look st Nevada and not wani 1o do business here. Why would they even
bartber 1o employ an actuary fo take the tme o look st the bill to determine whether or not they waould
lase money oF reduce premiums i ihey were to do business here? W s ridicalous 1o think they are goang
10 come 1o the tzble bo bell us, YWe have very few companics left in Nevada,

| think your comments régarding taking out the exceptions is a common-sense appooach o determining
the value of a premium. If we cap this 21 3350,000 and we wse pasagraphs (gh and (b) 28 responsible
pieces of legislation to allow the courts and the judpes 1o determine what 1% reasomable and acceplable.
then 1 have to believe, as an elected official, thal we will reduce the prémiume and take the pressore off
physicians 10 move ol of siate because they cannot afford to do business bere anymore, 1 am going o go
with my gui feeling. We have to do the hard job of deciding thas. My decigion has been made. | am
going 1o go with siripping off all of these exceplions and allowing the couns 10 delermine those cases. |
will beave paragraph (B) which allows the coums discretion on what may be beyond the scope of the
£350,000 cap.

SEMNATOR SCHNEIDER:
Mr, Chairman, thank vou. You know we cannol g0 home and have the rasma center shut down, have
ORAGY Ms nol working, What & i poisg b0 take 1o get be insarance companies back here? What do we
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have 6 &0 b sweeten the potT | sat on & commities with Senatar O'Coanell, 15 the 38ate going o have 1o
wrile the insurance? Are we m the business? I the insurance companies do nol pome hack, then we ano
goang w have 10, Mr, Chairman, we have 1o eutioe the mgurance companses hack, | am oot poing home
without healiheare for my considsents.

SEMNATOR BRAWSON:
1 would move that an secibon 5, subsection 3, thal we strip oul paragraphs (a) through (0.

SENATOR RAGGIC:
That we deleie lmes 31 through 37 of (he bill?

SENATOR RAWSON:
That is correct. We had ope other issue they were developing banguage for, bul bet us deal wilh this.

SEMNATOR RAGGID:

All righe Discossion?

SENATOR COFFIN:

As this discustion has ensued and there have been opinions expressed by members of the commitice
they will vole for the bill becase these first five or &ix listed damages were Hmbted and will be sirppod
oul, does thal have an impact on the decision of a judge or any court on the elficacy of awanding &
plaintiff under paragraphs (g} and ()7 In other words, would i exclsde the first theee, (a) though (1) by
taking ihem ow? 'Will the sciboa of this commines indicate or send 2 signal to the couns that these ane
things thel are nol W be considered & sonsebing that woeld Ball usder paragraph (k)7 We are osiablishing
ihal ntent. We want o make cortaln that e judpe eould szill award in ibese cases if that judpe fell a
need 1o do 20, Can we gel an opialon on thal?

ME. WILKINSOM:

Mr. Chairman, Senator Coffin, in tha circemsiance in which a judpe were atpempting to interprer the
laniguage of the statute, Uue judge may wish w book an the legisladve history =nd seeing tha Llanguage
deleted may factor tha [n, in interpreting the meaning of (e statule &5 it exisis.

SENATOR COFFIN:
I am ood certain whag that answer meass. 18 sounds io as if a claim orginating ofT of one of the firs
six or seven accidents listed is being excluded from contbderaiion.

SENATOR RAGGH):

Since | browght ihis up, for the purposes of the legislative history, it would be my undérstanding that
under paragraph (h) ibe language that we said justified as exceptional circumstances could necessarily
include amy of those types of injurics that we are suggesting be debeied as specific infjuries and would not
be limised merely 1o those injusies. The difference is that i that situstion if any one of hose imjurics
occurmed and the courl feli in its opision that (hose were exceplicnal circumstances, there would have o
be 3 finding by the court under clear and convincing evidence standards, we heard discussed here, that
the award in excess of 5350000 was jusificd. | wand o nake tha clear, If we do this, tha is the
Iegislative hisiory om this. The intent is ot 0 say (bose cannol under any situation be considered as
exceplional circumstances

SENATOR CARE:

Mr. Chairman, for the recond for legistative irtemt, 1 wanl bo say | resd it the same way. We should
ol overiook the fact that we are sending these jodges o malpractice school. As an example, loss of a
limb, there will be cases when someone has los two limbs a8 opposed o someone who has lost one limb,
That siteation would engage the cowrt"s employment of the higher standard. 1 read it the same way.

SENATOR TITLIS:

Thank you, 1 find myseli in the very unusual pasition of defending the Gowernor's bill. The Govermoe
sxid, today. on television that you have to have a beart. We knew that all pood policy is & resubt of
compromise, give and t2ke, by partisanship, lots of different insercsts at the tabbe, and it all works out in
wome kind of compromise, The Governor's original bill was & good compromise. 1L combined bead with
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hear. It was sman in that it pud caps ia place for rauma dociors and olber doctors. I crcated a
predictable commumity, a predictabbe environment. It would work w0, amd 1 believe we have heard
enough evidence, bring down rates. In the bomg man, it was the Light a1 the end of the wnnel. The bill that
the Governor proposed also had heart, [t recognized that there are cemain circumstances that shoald oot
have the price cap of 5330, 000 imposed. Yoo tel] the parents of a dead child, =Soery, that is capped.® Or
you tell a person, bke dhe ldy whoe was here who bost bolb legs, “Sorry, that is capped.” The
Governor's bl was a good bill, It was a comproauise bll. [t should be left the way it is, senl down the
hall wilthout thai anendmacns,

SENATOR RAGGIO:

lcan oply respond oo thar by saying | do not think thal &s the simation because if we did i this way the
Jury is poing 1o hear these cases. They are nod going to be todd there is & cap of 5350000 for brain
damage or ot blisdmess or apy things which we all agree are catastrophic. They can meturn their
verdicy. Thep the coun can say that regardiess of 3 5350000 cap and in finding clear amsd convincing
evidende can sustain ihat verdict and led it stind. | would take exception o the commenis. | think we are
improving on the Governos's bill, We are ot cxcloding those kinds of things. We are not pulting a lesser
value oo any of this, We are making the bill, and the resull we are all trying o reach, a bot mooe
&chbevable. |do pol think il is appropriate o say we are nol approaching it with beari. We ase irying 1o
sooormodate that, but af the same time, if we pass a bill that does not have any effective result, then we
are not accomplishing anything.

SENATOR NEAL:

Mr. Chairman, you and | have been around bere for a long tme. We have dealt with this particular
language, and | have dealt with the likes of Harvey Whinemare for years, asd [ koow the tricks he wiies
imio the varous laws (hal come before ns. One of the (hings abowi (his Bnguage, amd | do ol have any
problem with ellminsing paragraphs (&) through (f) bocause omder our ride of law whatever s stated,
oacluded or anything might appear somewhere im the future is the problem of not having all of 1be
statules before os. 1 we go with (be languspe thal B pow being propossd in paragraphs (g) and (), thene
i nathing |\ other pans of the stamse ihal impacts what we are dodng. 1 would like the logal seaff to give
mi & clarifbexiion of that,

ME. WILKINSOMN:
1 do not believe there is anolber slatute elsewbere m NES that would effect iis in & way that has ot
been discusied here woday,

SENATOR MEAL:

Understanding that, | would like that to become part of the intent of the proposal because if that i,
then we might be hung out 1o dry in the futare, We will get home and someone will look at this and eell
us we did something we did pot intend 1o do, | do pat wanl o be Feoed with that becanse 1 had tha
happen during the first fiew sessions that | participated in, 1 vobed on bills | thought | had read, cormecily,
then found out we were talking about something else. 1 just wanted oo make that clear (hat under our rule
of law thai e lnguage that we are pow proposing docs nol have anyihing thal woeld impsct thet
language in any other pari of our stabule, This is what 1 have beard our legal stall say. Do you agree,
tod, M, MNeedham?

M5, NEEDHAM:
(Mods affimmadively. )

SENATOR O'DONNELL:

I hope | can convince ibe Minority Leader with my experience. | am the father of a dead chitd. 1 los
my child in 1987 from congenital heart discass, | have w0 ask whether or oot he would have had the
dociors who ook care of him for the six vears of kis life, if we do oot do something sow, If we do ot
do something for the Stare of Nevada, In foday’s siuwtion, my son might nod have had those doctors. My
son would have had 1o fake many maore trips 0 UCLA, It tore our family spart, and [ do not wang that,
That is why 1 did this.
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SENATOR RAWSOMN:

Clarification, that language included the language as we have amended it already. | want that 1 he
clear.

SEMNATOR RAGGIO:

All thuse in favor say, aye; all opposed. Senator Titus voted po,

The meion carried,

The only thing réemaining is the language on the retutiable presumption. Do wie have thal available? T
i% im section | . Plesse ook al i and &1 subsection 4, 1 will reasd it iglo (e recond.

=“If

ia) A physician or dentist provides follow-up care w 3 patiest o whom he rendered cane or assstance
peirsuant vo sabsection | or 2;

(b} A medical condition arises during the course of the follow-up care (hat s directly relaled 1o the
original medical condition for which care or assistance was nendered pursuam 1o subsection 1 or 2;

{c) The patient files am action for malpractice based on the medical condiilon tha arlses during ihe
course of the follow-up care, there is 3 rebuttable presumption that the medical conditlon was cansed by
the ¢are or asfistance rembersd pursiaant to sehsection | and 2 and that the limitation on labality provided
by sabseclion | or 1 applies wilh respect to the medscal condition that arises during the course of 1he
fiol hvw-up carte, ™

ME. GILLOCK:
Mr. Chairman, [ think we need io take “deniist™ owi of paragraph (a) because 1 do not think we have
even lalked shout a dentist providing trauma care. That definitely needs 10 be removed.

SENATOR RAGGIO:

‘Wouwld there be an oral surgeon invodved in a catastrophic sccidem? It does nol bum o leave i in there
i nha should occur, does i

ME. GILLOCE:
I sssume if a deniist is part of & trabma hewm then they mighl. | cannol emviskon thal happening. A
demtisl ks different than &n ofal-masillary sargeon.

MR, COTTOM;
We need b0 leave the flexibility open. There are situations where a demist or an aral-maxillrcy
surgean would fngat & patiensi.

SEMATOR RAGGH)
I wonald raibecr niot make chamges if il is not absolwicly necessary.,

ME. COTTON:
The language is fine.

SENATOR RAGGID:

Are there any objections from the committes? | will take a motbon [rom Scnator Bawson oo adopt the
proposed amendment 1o section | of Senate Bill No. 2.
Any objections? All these in faver Indieate, aye; all those opposed. Senators Carlbon, Tins amd Carg
violed no,

The motion Carties.

1t iz ihe Chair's underslanding kil w¢ can now comsider @ maotion b adopt Senate Bikl Mo, T with the
action previously taken on 1he secihons which have beem wdopied and on the amesdmenis which have
been adapicd,

Senator Rewson moved to amend, and do pass as amended, Seaxte Bill Mo, 2,

SEMATOR TITLUS:
| am going io absiain from this motion umtil § see the bill on ibe foor. We will go back 1o the fioor o
visde on i agein, s thal corpect?
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SEMATOR RAGGIY:
Al some poist tomorrow morning. we will have the bill in is final foom:
ME. MEEDHAM.

Yiou will have the amendmert. You wall need o adopt i, and hen the bill will go o repring
SENATOR RAGGIC:

With that underssanding, all those in favor, mdicase, aye; all those, opposed. Senator Titas ahstained
from the vole,
Mution carried,

Cin the motion of Senator Jacobsen, the commines did rise and report back o 1be Sonate.

118 253

ADD 0167



O m @B B N E

18" Special Legislative Session
Senate
7-30-02

Senate Commitiee of the whole - 5.8, 2
Proposed Amendment to 5.8, 2
Amendment, Number 2, tin 5.8, 2

. AB. 1 First Reprint = Only page 1

Sign in sheet Exhibit B, and “If You Are Testifying” (sign in shéet)

BDR 3-13 - Only page |

. Comparison of A.B. 1 (first reprint) and 5.B. 2 (Proposed first reprint

with Amendment No. 2)

. Misc. Amendment

Leading Causes of Death in the U.S. (graph)

Tort Source - The Tnsurance Cycle; Misc. Articles - Only page 1

. MRS Definition of Trauma and Certain Nevada Administrative Code

Definitions Related to Trauma
Proposed Amendment o 5.8, 2

Page 255-256
Page 257-258
Page 259- 266
Page 267
Page 268-273
Page 274

Page 275-288
Page 289
Page 290
Page 291

Page 292-293

Page 294-299

254

ADD 0168



s,

_. ! ___ . i "-""'..ﬁ!.;-'
SENATE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOL

DATE: July 30, 2002
TIME: 8,00 am.

./1- Continued Discussion of, and Vote on, sections 3,4 and 5 of S.B. 2:
Regarding Establishing Limits on the Amount of Non-economic
Damages in Medical Malpractice Cases

_}" 2. Presentations Regarding section 1 of 5.B. 2: Limiting Liability for Acts
Occurming in a Governmental or Non-profit Center for Treatment of
Trauma

Questions and Statements by Committee Members Regarding
Section 1of S.B. 2

Public Comment Regarding section 1 ¢f SB. 2
Vole on section 1 of S.B. 2

-J 3. Presentations Regarding sections 4 and 6 of 5.B. 2: Adopting a Several
Liabilify Standard for Medical Malpractice Cases When Non-
economic Damages are Considered

Questions and Statements by Committee Members Regarding
sections 4 and G of 5.B. 2

Public Comment Regarding sections 4 and 6 of 5.B. 2
Vole on sections 4 and 6 of 5.B. 2

4. Presentations Regarding sections 10, 11, 17,24, 35 and 38 of 5.B. 2;
Regarding Review of the Medical and Dental Screening Panels

Questions and Statements by Committea Members Reagarding
sections 10, 11, 17, 24, 35and 38of S.B. 2
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EPuEhli; Comment Regarding sections 10, 11, 17, 24, 35 and 38 of
E-__.- - a

Vote on sections 10, 11, 17, 24, 35 and 38 of S.B. 2

5. Presentations Regarding sections 14, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 29, 29, 30, 31, 32,
33 and 34 of 5.B. amwmmgmm
Hﬂqummnnfs Relating to Disciplinary Actions, Claims, Seftfements
mdmrﬂmnﬂsﬂgnmﬂmym

Questions and Statemants by Committee Members Ragarding
;&;ﬁnﬂs 14, 18, 20, 21, 22, 23, 29, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 of
B. 2

Hﬁuhmnﬁewdmmﬂ 18, 20, 21, 22, 23, 29, 29,
30, 31,32, 33and 34 of 5.B. 2

Vote on sections 4, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 29, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34

L~"of 5.B. 2

6. Time Permitting, the Committee may also hear Presentations on section 11
of 5.8. 2: Regarding Shortening the Tima Perod Within Which a
Medical Malpractice Case May be Filed and,

H,Sut:tiﬂn 13 of 5.B. 2: Regarding Allowing a Judge, at the Discretion
of Either Party, fo Enter a Judgment Providing for Penodic Payment
of Future Damages.

And any other provisions of the bill.
The presentations will be followed by questions and statements of

members on each section, public comment and a vote by the committee
on each section.
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Proposed Amendment to 5.8, 2

Sec. 3. “Economic damages " includes damages for medical freafment, care or
cisfodly, loss of earnings and loss of carning capacity.

Sec. 5. [ Except as athenwise provided in subsection 2 and except as further
limited in subsection 3, in an action for damages for medical malpractice or dental
malpractice, the noneconomic damages awarded to each plaintiff from each defendant
miiest mad exceed 3350000,

& In an action for damages for medical malpractice or dental malpractice, the
limifation on nereconomic damages sef forik in subseciion 1 doex nof apply in ihe
SJollowing circumstances and fypes of cases:

(a}) Organic brain damage;

(b Hemaplegia, paraplegia or guadraplegia;

¢} Death of a parent, spouse or child;

{d} Total blindness;

e} Actual physical loss of a Hmb, including a foof or hand;

{fl Permanent loss or damage fo a reproductive organ resulting in steriliny;

(gl A case in wilich the conduct of the defendant is defermined to constitute gross
FLpEaCiice; ar

il A case in which, following refurn of a verdict by the fury or a finding of damages
i a bench trial, the court determines, by clear and convincing evidence admitted at
fril, that an award iy excess of $250,000 for noneconomic damages i justified
because of exceptional circumstances.

3. In an action for damages for medical malpractice or dental malpractice, in the
circumstances and types of cases described in subsections | and 2, the noneconomic
damages awarded to cach plaintif)l from each defendant must mot exceed the amount of
mroney remaining under the professional liability inswrance policy limit covering the
defendant after subfraciing the eoomomic damages awarded fo thar plaintiff,
Irrespective of the mumber of plaintiffs in the action, in no event may any single
defendant be Hable fo the plaintif)s in the aggregale in exceéss of the professional
lighility insurance policy limil covering that defendant.

4. This section is nol intended to limit the responsibility of any defendant for the
fotal economic damages awarded,

5. For the purposes of this section:

fa) “Gross malpractice” means faflure to exercise the reguired degree of care, skill
or knowledge which amounts to:

1] A conscious indifference fo the consequences wiich may result from the gross
malpractice; and
(2} A disregard for and indifference to the safety and welfare of the patient.

(B “Organic brain damage ™ means e person has documented orgamically cawied,
permanently impaired cognitive capacity rendering him incapable of making
independent, responsible life decisions or permanently incapable of independently
conducting the activities of the person’s normral datly lving,

Legal Division i

a7

ADD 0171



fcl “Total blindness" means a person's visual acuity with correcting lenses does not
evceed 2200 in the better eye, or whose vivion in the better eye s restricted to a fleld
wihich subrends an angle of net greater than 207,

Sec. 18. Chapter 630 of NRS is hereby amended by adding therelo a new section lo
read as follows:

A physician licensed pursuant fo this chapter shall not practice medicine in this stafe
unless e mainiaing professional lability insurance in an amount of

1.  Nor less than 51,000,000 per occurrence; and

& Mot less than 33,000,000 in the aggregate.

Sec. 25. Chapter 631 of KRS i5 herchy amended by adding thercio a new section 1o
read as follows:

A denvist lcensed pursuant to this chapter shall not pracrice dentisiry in rhis sfate
unless e maintains professional liability insurance in an amount of:

1. Notless than 51,000,000 per occurrence; and

2. Naot less than $3,000,000 in the aggregate,

Sec. 27, An osteopathic physician licensed pursuant to this chapter shall not
prachice ostcopatiic medicime in thiv state wnless e maintaing professional Nabifiy
ERSWFaRCe in arn artounl of

L. Nor fess than 31,000,000 per occurrence; and

2. Nof less than 53,000,000 in the aggregate.

(=]
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3 ION {18th ASB12

Amendment No. 2
Senale Amendment to Senate Bill No, 2 (BDR 3-13)
Proposed by: Committee of the Whole
Amendment Box:
Resolves Conflicts with: N/A
Amends: Summary; No Title: No Preamble: Amend  Joint Sponsorship: No
ASSEMBLY ACTION Initial and Date | SENATE ACTION Initial and Date

Adopted O Lost O | Adopted 0 Lost O
Concumred In 0 Not O | Concurred In 0 Mot O

Receded 0 Not O | Receded ] Not O

Amend section 1, page 2, ling 6, by deleting “2™ and inscriing “37.
Amend section 1, page 2, line 15, after “whether” by inserting “or nof”.
Amend section 1, page 2, line 30, by deleting:
“as a resall” and inserting;
“ exclusive of interest computed from the date of judgment, to or for the benefit of any claimant
aristng oul .
Amend section 1, page 2, line 34, after “2." by insening:
* Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3 and NRS 41.505:
(a) A hospital other than a hospital described in paragraph (a) of subsection I

(b} An emplayee of a hospital described in paragraph (a); and

LH/BIE Date: 7/30/2002
5.B. No. 2—Makes various changes related 1o medical and dental malpractice.

UNTEnAa .
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FLUSH

Amendment No. 2 1o Senate Bill Mo, 2, PEE

fe) A physician or dentist licensed under the provisions of chapter 630, 631 or 633 of NES who
renders care or assisiance in g hospital described in paragraph (a), whether or nof the care or
assistance was rendered grafuifously or for a fee,
that in good faith renders care or assistance necessitated by a sudden, unexpected situation or
eccurrence resulting in an acute life-threatening medical condition demanding immediate
medical attention, for which the patient enters the hospital through its emergency room, may no
be held liable for more than 50,000 in civil damages, exclusive of interest computed from the
date af judgment, to or for the benefit of any claimant arising ouf of any act or omission in
rendering that care or assistance if the care or assistance is rendered in good faith and in a
manner not amounting to gross negligence or reckless, willful or wanton conduct,

Ao

Amend section 1, page 2, line 40, by deleting “subsection I and inserting:

“subsections 1 and 27,

Amend section 1, page 2, line 44, by deleting “3." and inserting:

o, Ifs

(a) A physician or dentist provides follow-up care to a patient to whom he rendered care or
assivtance pursiani o subsection 1 or 2;

b)) A medical condition arises during the course of the follow-up care that is directly relaied io
the ariginal medical condition for which care or assistance was rendered pursuant to subsection 1
ar 2; and

e} The patiens files an action for malpractice based on the medical condition that arises during

the course of the follow-up care,

260

ADD 0174



FLUSH

Amendment Mo, 2 1o Senate Bill No, 2, Fuﬁ

there is a rebuttable presumption that the medical condition was caused by the care or assistance
rendered pursuani to subsection I or 2 and that the limitation on Kability provided by subsection |
or I applies with respect to the medical condition that arises during the course of the follow-up
care.

.

Amend section 1, page 2, line 45, afier “I" by inserting “or 2".

Amend the bill as a whole by adding a new section designated sec. 1.5, following section 1, to read
as follows:

“Sec. 1.5. NRS 41.505 is hereby amended 1o read as follows:

41,505 1. Any physician or registered nurse who in good faith gives instruction or provides
supervision to an emergency medical attendant or registered nurse, at the scene of an emergency or
while transporting an ill or injured person from the scene of an emergency, is not liable for any civil
damages as a result of any act or omission, not amounting to gross negligence, in giving that .
instruction or providing that supervision. An emergency medical attendant, registered nurse or
licensed practical nurse who obeys an instroction given by a physician, registered nurse or licensad
practical nurse and thereby renders emergency care, at the scene of an emergency or while
transporting an ill or injured person from the scene of an emergency, is not liable for any civil
damages a8 a result of any act or omission, not amounting o gross negligence, in rendering that
emergency care.

2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, any person licensed under the provisions of
chapter 630, 632 or 633 of NRS and any person who holds an equivalent license issued by another

state, who renders emergency care of assistance in an emergency, gratuitonsly and in good faith, is
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Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill No, 2. Page 4

nol liable for any civil damages a5 a result of any act or omission, nol EMoUNTINE (0 Zross
negligence, by him in rendering the emergency care or assistance or as a result of any failure to act,
not amounting to gross neglipence, 1o provide or arrange for further medical treatment for the injuned
or ill person. This section docs not excuse a physician or nurse from liability for damages resulting
from his acts or omissions which occur in a licensed medical facility relative to any person with
whom there is a preexisting relationship s a patient,

3. Any person licensed under the provisions of chapter 630, 632 or 633 of NRS and any person
who holds an equivalent license issued by another state who renders emergency obstetrical care or
assistance o a pregnant woman during labor or the delivery of the child is not liable for any civil
damages as a result of any &ct or omission by him in rendering that care or assistance if:

{2} The care or assistance is rendered in good faith and in a manner not amounting to gross
negligence or reckless, willful or wanton conduct;

{b) The person has not previously provided prenatal or obstetrical care to the woman; and

() The damages are reasonably related to or primarily caused by a lack of prenatal care received
by the woman.

A licensed medical facility in which such care or assistance is rendered is not liable for any civil
damages as a result of any #ct or omission by the person in rendering that care or assistance if tha
person is not liable for any civil damages pursuant to this subsection and the actions of the medical
facility relating 1o the rendering of that care or assistance do not amount to gross negligence or
reckless, willful or wanton conduoct.

4, Any person licensed under the provisions of chapter 630, 632 or 633 of NRS and any person

who holds an equivalent license issued by another stale who:
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Amendment No. 2 1o Senate Bill No. 2. Page 5

{a) Is retired or otherwise does not practice on a full-time basis; and

(b) Gratuitously and in good faith, renders medical care within the scope of his license 1o an
indigent person,
is not liable for any civil damages as a resull of any act or omission by him, not amounting 1o gross
negligence or reckless, willful or wanton conduct, in rendering that care.

5. Any person licensed to practice medicine under the provisions of chapter 630 or 633 of
NRS or licensed to practice dentistry under the provizions of ehapter 631 of NRS, who renders
eare or assistance o a patient af a health care facility of a povernnental entity or @ nonprofit
organization, is not liable for any civil damages as a resulf of any act or omission by him in
rendering that care or assistance if the care or assistance is rendered gratuitously, in good faith
and in a manner not amounting to gross negligence or reckless, willful or wanton conduct.

f. As used in this section:

{(a) “Emergency medical attendant” means a person licensed as an attendant or certified as an
emergency medical technician, intermediate emergency medical technician or advanced emergency
medical technician pursuant o chapter 4508 of NRS.

{b) “Gratuitously™ has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 41.500.

(e) “Health care facility” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 449.800.".

Amend sec. 3, page 3, by deleting line 10 and insernting:

“treatment, care or custody, loss of earnings and loss of earning capacity.”.
Amend sec, 3, pages 3 and 4, by deleting lincs 14 through 47 on page 3 and lines | through 11 on

page 4, and inserting:

263

ADD 0177



Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill No, 2. Page 6

*Sec. 5. 1. Exceptas atherwise provided in subsection 2 and excepi as furiher Emited in
subseetion 3, in an action for damages for medical malpractice or dental malpractice, the
noncconomic damages awarded to each plaindiff from each defendant must nof exeeed $350,000,

2. In an action for damages for medical malpractice or dental malpractice, the limitation on
noneconomic damages set forth in subsection 1 does not apply in the following circumstances and
types of cases:

fa) A case fn which the conduct of the defendant is determined to consfifufe gross malpractice;

(bl A case in which, following return of @ verdict by the fury or a finding of damages in a
bench irial, the court determines, by clear and convincing evidence admitted at trial, that an
avard in excess of $350,000 for noneconomic damages ix justified because of exceptional
circumstances.

3. In an action for damages for medical malpractice or dental malpractice, in the
circumstances and bypex of cases described in subsections I and 2, the noneconomic damages
awarded to each plaintiff from each defendant must not exceed the amount of money remaining
under the professional liability insurance policy limii covering the defendant afier subtracting the
economic damages awarded to that plaintiff. Irrespective of the number of plaintiffs in the action,
in me evend may any single defendant be liable to the plaintiffs in the aggregate in excess of the
professional liability insurance policy limir covering that defendant.

4. This section is mof intended to limit the responsibility of any defendant for the tofal

economic damages awarded.
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Amendment Mo, 2 10 Senme Bill Mo, 2. Page 7

5. For the purposes of this section “gross malpractice™ means failure to exercise the required
degree of care, skill or knowledge which amounis fa:

fa) A conscious indifference to the consequences which may result from the gross malpractice;
and

(b} A disregard for and indifference to the safety and welfare of the patient.”,

Amend sec. 6, page 4, line 12, before “fn™ by inserting *1.".

Amend sec. 6, page 4, between lines 15 and 16, by insenting:

“2,  As used in this section, “medical malpractice” means the failure of a physician, hospital,
employee of a hospital, certified nurse midwife or certified registered nurse anesthetist in
rendering services, o use the reasonable care, skill or knowledge ordinarily used under similar
circumsiances.”.

Amend sec. 8, page 4, line 34, after “practices™ by inserting:

“or has practiced”,

Amend sec, 9, page 4, by deleting lines 37 and 38 and inserting:
“malpractice, each plaintff, each defendant, the representative of each defendani’s insurer, and
their respeciive aftorneys shall aftend”.

Amend sec. 9, page 5, line |, after “pary™ by inserting;
*, his insurer”.

Amend sec. 10, page 5, lines 6 and 7, by deleting “and 41A.009" and inserting:
 A1A.009 and 41A.013,",

Amend sec. 12, page 6, line 45, afier “practices™ by inserting:

“or has practiced”".
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Amendment No. 2 (o Senate Bill No. 2, Fnﬂ

Amend sec. 18, page 10, line 25, by deleting “person;” and insenting “eccurrence;”.
Amend sec. 18, page 10, line 26, by deleting “per occurrence.” and insening:
“in the aggregate.”.
Amend sec, 25, page 13, line 40, by deleting “person;™ and inserting “occurrence;™.
Amend sec. 25, page 13, line 41, by deleting “per occurrence.” and inserting:
“in the aggregate.”,
Amend sec. 27, page 13, line 47, by deleting *person;™ and inserting “occurrence;”.
Amend sec. 27, page 13, line 48, by deleling “per occurrence.” and inserting:
“in the aggregate.”.
Amend sec. 35, page 17, line 1, by deleting “41A.013,",
Amend sec. 3B, page 17, line 11, by deleting “41A.013" and insenting “41A.016",
Amend sec. 38, page 17, line 33, by deleting “41A.013" and inserting “41A.016".
Amend the leadlines of repealed sections by deleting the leadline of NRS 41A.013,
Amend the preamble of the bill, page 1, by deleting line 7 and inscrting:
“of Nevada; and
WHEREAS, It i recognized that patients who have been injured by medical malpractice must be
afforded appropriate access (o legal remedies for their injuries and that judicial discretion to render
decisions in malpractice actions involving exceptional circumsiances must be preserved; now,

therefore,”.
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(REPRINTED WITH ADOPTED AMENDMENTS)
FIRST REFRINT AB.1

ASSEMBELY BiLL No. [-ASSEMBLYMEN PERKINS, BUCKLEY, ANDERSON,
HETTRICK, CEGAVSKE. ANGLE, ARBERRY, BaCHE, BEERS,
BERMAN, BROWER, BROWN, CARPENTER, CHOWNING, CLABORN,
COLLINS, DE BRAGA, Dixit, FREEMAN, GIBBONS, GIUNCHIGLIANI,
GOLDWATER, GUSTAVSON, HUMKE, Koivisto, LEE, LESLIE
MANENDO, MARTIN, MAaARVEL, McCLAIN, MORTENSON,
NEIGHBORS, MOLAN, OCEGUERA. OHRENSCHALL, PARKS,
PARNELL, PRICE, SMITH, TIFFANY AND WILLIAMS

JuLy 30, 2002

Referred to Committes on Medical Malpractice [ssues
SUMMARY —Makes various changes related to medical amd diental malpractice. (BDR 3-17)

FISCAL NMOTE: Effect on Local Government: Peo,
Effect on the S1ae: Mo,

o

EXPLANATION - Maier in bokfad daiies v new, rmaier bevasss braclets fassiiod-saienas] o muenal o b osified

AN ACT relating o malpractice; limiting the hability of cemain medical providers for
negligent acls under cemain circwmstances; éstablishing a limitation on the
amount of poneconnmic damages that may be awarded in an action for medical
malpractice or densl malpractice; providing for several liability of a defendam
for noneconoemic damages in an action for needical malpraciice. making variows
changes concerning the payment of fuure economic damages in actions for
medical malpractice; providing for the mandatory dismissal of an action for
medical malpractice or demlal malpractice wnder certain crcumstances; repealing
the provisions pertaining o the ase of screening pancls for an acticn for medical
malpractice or dental malpractice; revising the statute of limitations for filing 20
scibon for medical malpractice or deatal malpractice; making vamcus other
changes conceming actions for medical malpractice or dental malpractice,
requiring certain district judges 10 receive raining concerning the complex isswes
involved in medical malpractice hitigation: reéquinng coaris (0 impose certain
sanchions on atlomeys kn cenan circumstances; making vanous changes relaling
tir the repotting of claims of malpractice or negligence; and providing other
matters properly relating thereto.

WHEREAS, The State of Nevada is experiencing extreme difficulues
attracting and maintaining a sufficient network of physicians to meet the
needs of the residents of this state: and

WHEREAS, The Nevada Legislature has determined that the shortage of
physicians and the inability 1o atract new physicians to this state pose a
serious threat to the health, welfare and safety of the residents of the State
of Nevada; and

nasoommis 30 _ pmces o O AT
CONTACT THE RESEARCH LIBRARY FOR e i R e

A COPY OF THE COMPLETE EXHIBIT
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Sign in Sheet for Testimony: 7-30-02

Jerry H. Mowhray
o Attorney
Robert McBeath, MD
o Nevada Medical Liability Physicians Task Force
Dan McBride, MD
o Physician — Chairman of Nevada Mutual Insurance Co.
Gerald Gillock
o Attormey
Jim Wadhams
o Attorney
Robert Byrd
o Chairman of the Board lor Medical Liability Insurance Co. of
MNevada
J. Kirk Woolley
o Executive Director of Association of Nevada Physicians and
SUrgeons
Ron Kendall
o Former Patient
Alice A. Molasky = Arman
o Commissioner — Division of Insurance
Maury Astley
o Executive Director - Nevada Dental Association
David PP. Haefner
o Certilied Registered Nurse Anesthetist
Michae]l Duabs, MD
o Physician = UMC, Nevada Orthopedic Society
Chip Wallace
o Nevada Mutual Insurance Co.
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SUMMARY—Makes vanous changes relaled 1o medical and dental malpractice. (BDR 3-13)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.

Effect on the State: No.

AN ACT relating to malpractice; limiting the liability of cerain medical providers for negligent
acts under certain circumstances; establishing a limitation on the amount of
nonscconomic damages that may be awarded in an action for medical malpractice or
dental malpractice; providing for several lisbility of a defendant for noneconomic
damsages in an action for medical malpractice; making various changes concerning the
payment of futore economic damages in actions for medical malpractice; providing for
the mandstory dismiszal of an action for medical malpractice or dental malpractice
under certain circumstances; repealing the provisions pertaining to the use of screening
panels for an action for medical malpractice or dental malpractice; revising the statute
of limitations for filing an action for medical malpractice or dental malpractice; making
various other changes concerning actions for medical malpractice or dental malpractice;
requiring certain distnct judges o receive training conceming the complex issues
involved in medical malpractice litigation; requiring courts to impose certain sanctions
on atlormeys in certain circomstances; making various changes relating to the reporting
of claims of malpractice of negligence; and providing other maters properly relating

theretio,
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Comparison of Assembly Bill No. 1 (First Reprint) and
Senate Bill No, 2 (Proposed First Reprint with Amendment No. 2)

Preamble: The last 3 “whereas™ clauses of AB. 1, relating 1o the medical errors
provisions, are not contained in 5.B. 2. The last “whereas™ clause of 5.B. 2, relating to
appropriate access to legal remedies in malpractice actions, is nof in AB. 1.

Section 1 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 1 of §.B. 2: Adds new section to chapter
41 of NES {Actions and Proceedings in Particular Cases Conceming Persons), Limils the
liability of certain medical providers for negligent acts under certain circumstances.

AB.1: 1. Subsection | provides a $50,000 cap on civil damages for care or
assistance rendered (in good faith and not amounting o gross negligence or “reckless,
willful or wanton conduct™ and necessitated by a sudden, unexpecied situation or
occurrence resulting in a serious medical condition demanding immediate medical
assistance for which the patient eniered the hospital through the emergency room or traums
center) by:

(a) A nonprofit hospital designated as a trauma center;

{(b) Employees of such a nonprofit hospital;

i) Physicians, dentists and osteopathic physicians who render care or assistance in
such a hospital (gratuitously or for a fee), and

(d) Physicians, dentists and osteopathic physicians whose liability is not otherwise
limited by NRS 41.032 1o 41,0337, inclusive, (soversign immunity) and who render care or
assistance in & hospital of a governmental entity designated as a trauma center (gratuitously
or for a fee).

2. Subsection 2 provides that the 550,000 cap does not apply o

{a) Acts or omissions which occur after the patient 15 stabilized and receiving treatment
s @ nonemergency paticnt unless surgery is required as a result of the emergency within a
reasonable time; or

(k) Acts or omissions not related to the original medical emergency.

3. Suobsection 3 provides a definition for the term “reckless, willful or wanton

5.B.2: Section 1 of 5.B. 2 contains all of the provisions of section | of AR, |
(although reorganized) with the following differences:

I. The language establishing the 350,000 cap was changed 1o make the language
match the 550,000 limitation on awards of tort damages against governmental entities in
MRS 41.035. This change results in the exclusion of post judgment interest from the
550,000 cap so that the cap will be interpreted in the same manner as the cap in NRS
41.035 (350,000 per claimant and per claim, regardless of the number of governmental
actors),

2. A new subsection 2 was added to provide a $50,000 cap on civil damages for care
or assistance rendered (in good faith and not amounting o gross negligence or “reckless,
willful or wanton conduct™ and necessitated by a sudden, unexpected situation or
occurrence resulting in an acute life threatening medical condition demanding immediae
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medical assistance for which the patient entered the hospital through the emergency room)
by

{a) Any hospital not described in paragraph (a) of subsection 1;

{b) Employees of such a hospital; and

{c) Physicians, dentists and osteopathic physicians who render care or assistance in
such a hospital (gratuitously or for a fee).

3. A new subsection 4 was added to create a rebuttable presumption that a medical
condition which arises during the course of follow-up care that is directly related 1o the
original medical condition for which care or assistance was rendered pursuant 1o
subsection 1 or 2 was caused by the care or assistance rendened pursuant to subsection | or
2, and that the limitation on liability applies in any action for malpractice based on the
medical condition that arises during the course of follow-up care.

Section 2 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 2 of 5.8, 2:  Directory language adding
new sections (3 t 9) to chapter 41 A of NRS (Actions for Medical or Dental Malpractice).
S.B. 2: Identical.

Section 3 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 3 of 5.B. 2.  Defines “economic damages™
fior the purposes of chapter 41A of NRS. Economic damages include damages for medical
treatment, cang or custody, loss of earmings and loss of earmning capacity.

S.B. 2: ldentical.

Section 4 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 4 of §.B. 2: Defines “noneconomic
damages” for the purposes of chapter 41A., of NRS., Noneconomic damages include
damages to compensate for pain, suffering, inconvenience, physical impairment,
disfigurement and other nonpecuniary damages. Generally, these are damages which
compensate @ plaintiff for losses that do not have a fixed amount, such as pain or suffening.
In addition to damages (o compensate the person directly injured by the malpractice, these
damages may include compensation for losses that occur to others who were affected by
the malpractice, such as loss of consorium or comfort.

8.B. 2: Identical.

Section 5 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 5 of 5.B. 2:  Establishes a general
limit on the amount of noneconomic damages that may be awarded 1o a plaintiff in an action
for dental malpractice or medical malpractice that is brought against a dentist, physician,
hospital or employee of a hospital. Specifically, section 5 provides that, unless cerain
exceptions apply. in an action for damages for medical malpractice or dental malpractice, the
noneconormic damages awanrded (o each injured plaintiff muost nol excesd 5350,000.
Subsection 2 of section 5 of the bill provides for certain exceptions to the $350,000 cap on
neneconomic damages for medical or dental malpractice actions whene the injury involves
organic brain damage, hemaplegia, paraplegia or quadraplegia, where a parent, spouse or
child dies, total blindness resulis, a person loses a limb or becomes sterile. where the conduct
of the defendant is grossly negligent or the court determines by clear and convincing

evidence at trial that an award in excess of 5350000 for nooeconomic damages 1s justified

because of exceptional circumstances. Subsection 3 of section 5 of the bill provides that in
gll cases of medical malpractice the amount of damages awarded (o the plaintiff may not
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exceed the amount of money remaining under the professional liability insurance policy limit
covering the defendant after subtracting the economic damages awarded to the plaintiff. In
addition, a single defendant cannot be held liable for noneconomic damages in an amount
which exceeds his professional liability insurance policy limit even if there is mone than one
plaintiff.

5.B.2: Limits the exceplions to cases where the conduct of the defendant 15
determined (o constitule grogs malpractice and where the court determines by clear and
convineing evidence ail trial that an award in excess of 3350,000 for noneconomic damages

i5 justified because of exceptional circumstances,

Section 6 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 6 of 5.B. 2: Provides for several liability for
noneconomic damages in an action for medical mal

5.B.2: Identical, except expands the definition of “medical malpractice” to
provide for several liability in an action for malpractice brought against a cerified nurse
midwife or a certified registered nurse anesthetist,

Section 7 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 7 of 5.B. 2: requires a court (o dismiss an
action involving medical malpractice or dental malpractice if the action is not brought to
trial in a timely manner, unless good cause is shown for the delay. Specifically, such an
action must be dismissed if it is not brought to trial within 3 vears after the date on which it
was filed if it is filed between October 1, 2002, and October 1, 2005. If the action is filed
on or after October 1, 2005, it must be dismissed if it is not brought to trial within 2 years
after the date on which it was filed. Dismissal of an sction pursuant to this section is a bar
to the filing of another action upon the same claim for relief against the same defendants.
Finally, this section requires cach district court to adopt court rules to expedite the
resolution of 3 medical or dental malpractice action. Section 39 of the bill se1s March 1,
2003, as the deadline for district courts to adopt these rules.

Section 8 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 8 of 5.B. 2: Reguires the plaintiff in an
action for medical malpractice or dental malpractice to file an affidavit submitted by a
medical expert who practices in an area that is substantially similar to the type of practice
that the defendant engaged in at the time of the alleged malpractice.

5.B. 2: Identical, except provides that a medical expert who has practiced in the
appropriate area, but who no longer actively practices in that area, may also submit the
required affidavit

Section 9 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 9 of 5.B. 2: Requires, in a medical or
dental malpractice action, all parties 1o the action and their insurers and attorneys to
participate in a settlement conference. Provides that failure of a party or his atlormey (o
participate in good faith is prounds for sanclions.

5.B. 2: Specifically requires each plaintiff, each defendant, the representative of
each defendant’s insurer and their attorneys to participate in a settlement conference.
Provides that failure of a party. his insurer, or his attorney to participste in good faith is
grounds for sanctions,
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Section 10 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 10 of 5.B. 2: Ensures that the definitions

sel forth in sections 3 and 4 of the bill apply 1o all of the provisions in chapter 41 A of NRS,

and changes references to reflect the repeal of various sections from chapter 41A of NRS.
S.B. 2: Does not reflect repeal of NRS 41A.013 defining “physician.”

Section 11 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 11 of 5.B. 2: Revises the times within
which certain actions for injury or death may be brought against cenain providers of health
care by decreasing the peneral limitation from 4 years afier the date of injury to 3 years
after the date of injury.

5.B. 2: Identical,

Section 12 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 12 of 5.B. 2: Provides that expert medical
testimony may only be given by a provider of medical care who practices in an area that is
substantially similar to the tvpe of practice that the defendant engaged in at the time of the
alleged negligence.

8.B. 2: ldentical, except provides that a provider of medical care who has
practiced in the appropriste area, but who no longer actively practiceés in that area, may
also give expert medical testimony.

Section 13 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 13 of 5.B. 2: Changes provisions
concerning the payment of future economic damages in actions for medical malpractice so
that the court has discretion, at the request of the claimant, to order the award to be paid in
a lump sum or in periodic payments. Provides that if the award will be paid in periodic
payments it may be paid either by the purchase of an annuity or by other means, if the
defendant posts an adequate bond or security.

8.B. 2: Identical.

Section 14 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 14 of 5.B. 2: Requires the Coun
Administrator to submit a biennial report to the Governor and the Legislature including
information relating to findings, judgments and other coun determinations of the liability
of physicians and osteopathic physicians for malpractice or negligence.

5.B. 2: ldentical.

Section 15 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 15 of 5.B. 2: Adds new section to chapter
3 of NRS (Remedics, Special Actions and Proceedings): requires district judges to whom
medical malpractice actions are assigned to receive training concerning the complex issues
involved in such actions.

S.B. 2: Identical.

Section 16 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 16 of 5.B. 2: Requires a court to sanction
an attorney who files, maintains or defends any civil action or proceeding which is not
well-grounded in fact or warranted by existing law or an argument for changing existing
law made in good faith, or who unreasonably and vexatiously extends any civil action or

proceeding.
S5.B. 2: Identical.
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Section 17 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 17 of 5.B. 2: Removes a provision of
NRS concerning the screening panels for medical and dental malpractice.
5.B. 2: ldentical.

Section 18 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section im 5.B. 2):  Directory language adding
new sections (19 to 43) to chapter 439 of NRS (Administration of Public Health).

Section 19 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.B. 2): General definition section.

Section 20 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in §.B. 2k Defines “incident.” This is a
key definition because it describes one of the iype of medical ermors that medical facility
personnel must report , i.¢., things which occur in connection with the treatment of a
patienl af a4 medical facility. An “incident™ is basically a “close call,™ b.e., a patient could
have been injured but was not, in actuality. Note that the medical errors reporting
provisions (55 18-46) model a similar Pennsylvania proposal (PA House Bill No. 18032),

Section 21 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.8, 2): Defines “medical facility.”
Thus, the requirements regarding medical ermor reporting only apply to personnel of
hospitals, as defined in NRS 449.012, an cbstetric center, as defined in NRS 449.01355, and
a surgical center for ambulatory patients, as defined in NRS 449.019.

Section 22 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 8.8, 2): Defines “patient.”

Section 23 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 8.8, 2): Defines “patient safety
officer.”

Section 24 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.B. 2): Delines “provider of health

care.”
Section 25 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 8.B. 2k Defines “repository.”

Section 26 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.B. 2): Defines “serious event.” This
is another key definition because it describes the second type of medical error that medical
facility personnel must report, i.e., things which occur in connection with the treatment of
a patient at & medical facility. A “serious event” is defined as something that either: (1)
causes the death of the patient; or (2) compromises the patient’s safety and causes an
“unanticipated injury” requiring them to need further treatment.

Section 27 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 8.8, 2): Defines “treatment.”

Section 28 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.8, 2): Defines “unanticipated
injury.”
Section 29 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 8.B. 2): Creates the repository for
health care quality assurance (“repository”) within the health division. In Pennsylvania,
this entity is called the health care quality assurance authority ("HCQAA™). The
<79
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“repository” is the main entity involved in receiving reports of incidents and serious
events, and disseminating information regarding serjous events in OMNLY an aggregated
format. Reporied incidents are used intemally with respect to the generation of
recommendations for medical facilities {az are reports of seripus incidents), but po
information regarding incidents is disseminated in any form.

Section 30 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.8, 2): Sets forth the main
requirement 1o report incidents and serious events which occur at medical facilities. The
basic rule is that incidents and serious events must be reporied to the repository by medical
facility personnel within 24 hours after their occurrence has been discovered. 'Within that
24-hour timeframe, the normal procedure is that the discovering employee notifies the
miedical facility’s “patient safety officer™ ("PS0™) within & hours, and then the PSO
nodifies the repository within 18 hours, for a total allowed time of 24 hours. If the PSO 15
the person who first becomes aware of the incident or serious event, the PSO has a straight
24 hour period to notify the repository. This way, the repository gets the information
within 24 hours, regardless of who actually first becomes aware of the incident or serious
event. Exactly how the repository is to be notified is not specified, but the administrator of
ithe health division is required to prescribe the meihod of notification. (Comesponds o PA
House Bill § 308.)

In sddition, this section requires the administrator of the health division to conduct follow-
up surveys with medical facility employees who repont incidents and serious events. The
follow-up survey is specifically geared towand finding out whether a reponting employes:
{1) was retaliated against or disciplined for reporting an incident or serious event; and (2)
knows of any remedial or corrective action taken by the applicable medical facility in
response to the incident or serious event reporied by the employee.

Section 31 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.8. 2): Requires the repository to
maintain and safeguard the reports of incidents and serious events that it receives and the
responses from the follow-up surveys. This is modeled on a similar section of NRS
penaining to the central repository for Nevada records of criminal history (NRS
I7T9A OB 1)),

Section 32 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 8.B. 2): Requires the health division
{of which the repository is a part) to contract out (o impartial independent contractors,
other than a provider of health care, for the performance of various functions, including the
processing of data regarding reports of incidents and serious events, the processing of data
from the follow-up surveys, the analysis of that data, and the transmission of
recommendations (o the repository. (PA House Bill § 304(a)5)).

Section 33 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.8, 2): Describes the process of how
recommendations for changes in health care practices and procedures are considered and
approved. Regarding approval, a recommendation is first received by the repository from
the independent contractor, the recommendation is then evaluated by the repository and
transmitted to the administrator (of the health division), who has the ultimate say in
approving or disapproving the recommendation. When a recommendation is evaluated by
the repository or considered for recommendation by the administrator, certain factors must
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be considered, including the likelihood of improving patient safety, feasibility, and cost
impacts. (PA House Bill § 304(a)(6)-(7)).

Section 34 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in S.B. 2): Describes the process of how
approved recommendations for changes in health care practices and procedures are
rransmitted to medical facilities.

Section 35 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.B. 2): Requires patients who have
been involved in a scrious event to be 5o notified by the relevant medical facility within 7
days after the fact. The notifying is aciually done by a person designated o perform that
duty by the medical facility. The person so designated may or may not be the same person
a5 the Patient Safety Officer. The provisions specifies that this notification MUST NOT be
considered an acknowledgment or admission of liability. (PA House Bill § 308(b)). Note
that “incidents™ are nol reporied 1o the patient.

Section 36 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.8. 2): Allows interested persons and
entitics to get from the repository the information received by the repository in the form of
the reports on incidents and serious events. Interested persons and entities can only get at
information in an aggregated form (e.g., state trends or trends within a particular
geographic region), such that no information can be given oot to the public in a form in
which individual persons or medical facilitics are named. This section references chapler
239 of NRS, basically making the repository’s collected information available as public
records, subject to the limitations described above. That chapter allows the imposition of a
reazonable fee in connection with providing copies of information. Specifically, this
section requires the repository 1o produce additional reports and documents which are
based on the reports on incidents and sefious events that the repository receives, but to
make gnly information regarding serious events available to the public in varipus
aggregaled forms.

Section 37 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.B. 2): Provides that none of the

information reported, created or compiled pursuant to these provisions may be used in any
administrative or coun proceeding as evidence. (PA House Bill § 311(a)).

Section 38 of ARB. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.8, 2): Requires each medical
facility to develop and comply with an internal safety plan.

Section 39 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 8.B. 2): Reguires each medical
facility to designate a patient safety officer.

Section 40 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 8.B. 2): Requires each medical
facility to establish a safety committee.
Directs the administrator of the health division to tailor the safety committee requirements
for application in smaller medical facilities.
Section 41 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.B. 2): Provides generally that
persons are nod criminally or civilly liable in defamation-type actions where they have,
<E1
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without malice, reported, transmitted or disseminated information regarding incidents or
serious events. (Modeled on NRS 616D.020.)

Section 42 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 8§.B. 2): Allows the administrator of
the health division to impose a fine of not more than 51,000 against a medical facility for
violations of these provisions by the medical facility or by members of its staff. Provides
for a hearing to protest the fine if the medical facility desires a hearing. This section was
modeled on NRS 118B.251.

Section 43 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.18. 2): Requires the adminstrator of
the health division to adopt regulation to carry out the medical error reporting provisions.

Section 44 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.B. 2):  Directory language adding
new sections (43 and 46) to chapter 449 of NRS (Medical and Other Related Facilities).

Section 45 of A.B. 1 (does not correspond with S.B. 2): Prohibits a medical facility from
retaliating or discriminating against an employee of the medical facility who in good faith:

1. Repors to the Board of Medical Examiners or ihe Siale Board of Osteopathic
Medicine information relating to the conduct of a physician or osteopathic physician which
may constitute grounds for initiating disciplinary action against the physician or which
otherwise raises a reasonable question regarding the competence of the physician to
practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety 1o patients.

2. Repons an incident or serious event to the repository for health care guality
ASEUFANCE,

3. Cooperates or otherwise participates in an investigation or proceeding conducted
by the Board of Medical Examiners, the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine or another
governmental entity relating to physician’s conduct.

Section 46 of A.B. 1 (does not correspond with 5.B. 2): Authorizes an emplovee of a
medical facility who has been retalialed or discriminated against for action specified in
section 45 to file an action in court. If the cournt determines that a violation occurred, the
court may award damages and interest and may grant equitable relief. Reguires an action
for a violation be brought within 2 years after the date of the last event constituting the
alleged violation for which the action was brought. Provides that a medical facility which
retaliates or discriminates against an employee is subject to a civil penalty of not more than
510,000 for each violation.

Section 47 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.B. 2): Directory language adding
new section (48, 49 and 50) to chapter 630 of NRS (Physicians, Physician Assistants and
Practitioners of Respiratory Cane)

Section 48 of A.B. 1 {does not correspond with 5.B. 2): Prohibits a physician from
retaliating or discriminating against an employee of the physician who in good faith:

. Reports to the Board of Medical Examiners information relating to the conduct of
the physician which may constitute grounds for initiating disciplinary action against the
physician or which otherwise raises a reasonable question regarding the competence of the
physician to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety 1o patients.
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2. Reporis an incident or serious event to the repository for health care quality
assurance.

3. Cooperates or otherwise participates in an investigation or proceeding conducted
by the Board of Medical Examiners or another govemmental entity relating 1o physician's
conduct.

Section 49 of A.B. 1 (does not correspond with 5.B. 2): Authorizes an employee of a
physician who has been retaliated or discriminated against for action specified in section
4% 1o file an action in court. If the count determines that a violation occumed, the cournt
may award damages and interest and may grant equitable relicf. Requires an action for a
violation be brought within 2 years afier the date of the last event coastituting the alleged
violation for which the action was brought, Provides that a physician who retaliates or
discriminates against an employee is subject to a civil penalty of nod more than 510,000 for
cach viplation.

Section 50 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 18 of 8.B. 2: Establishes minimum
amount of professional lability insurance for physician licensed pursuant to chapler 630 of
NRS at $1,000,000 per occurrence and 53,000,000 in the aggregate.

S.B. 2: Identical.

Section 51 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 19 of 5.B. 2: Amends MRS 630,130 1o
require the Board of Medical Examiners 1o submit to the Governor and the Legislature a
biennial written report compiling: (1) disciplinary action taken by the Board during the
previous biennium against physicians for malpractice or negligence; (2) information
reported to the Board during the previous bienniom relating to claims for malpractice or
negligence made against physicians and the settlement, award, judgment or other
disposition of the claims; (3) information reported o the Board during the previous
biennium relating (o changes in physicians’ privileges to practice medicine and certain
disciplinary actions taken against physicians; and (4) information reported to the Board by
a court during the previous bieanium concerning a determination that a physician,
physician assistant or practitioner of respiratory care is mentally ill or incompetent, has
been convicted of a felony or any law governing controlled substances or dangerous drugs,
is guilty of abuse or fraud under any state or federal program providing medical assistance,
or is liable for damages for malpractice or negligence. The report must include only
aggregate information for statistical purposes and exclude any identifying information
related to a particular person.

8.8, 2: Tdentical.

Bection 52 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 20 of 5.B. 2: Amends NRS 630.267 to
require physicians, as a condition of biennial registration, to submit to the Board of
Medical Examiners a list of all actions filed or claims submitted to arbitration or mediation
against the holder for malpractice or negligence during the previous 2 vears.

5B 2: Identical.

Section 53 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 21 of 5.B. 2: Amends NRS 630.3062,

which lists grounds for disciplinary action against all persons licensed pursuant to chapter
630 of NRS, to provide instead that a physician's failure to comply with a requirement
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relating to the reporting of claims for malpractice and negligence against the physician as
szt forth in NRS 630.3067 is grounds for initiating disciplinary action or denying licensure,
The section still makes a failure to report those claims to the Board of Medical Examiners
in & imely manner a ground for initiating disciplinary action against a physician, but the
9(0-day reporting that had been in this section has been changed to 30 days in the
amendment o NRS 6303067

S.B. 2: Ideotical.

Section 54 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 22 of 5.B. 2: Amends NRS 630.3067 1o
clarify that insurers of physicians and the physicians must repo 10 the Board of Medical
Examiners any action filed or any claim submitted to arbitration or mediation for the
malpractice or negligence of the physician and the settlement, award, judgment or other
disposition of the action or claim within 30 days after the action was filed or the claim was
submitted 1o arbitration or mediation, and within 30 days after the disposition of the action
orclaim. The references are to “action filed™ and “claim submitted to arbitration or
mediation” becanse, as noted above, this bill repeals the screening panels. This section
also requires the Board to report any failure of an insurer to comply with this section to the
Division of Insurance of the Department of Business and Industry ("Division™). If the
Division determines that an insurer failed to comply with this section, the Division may
impose an administrative fine of not more than 510,000 against the insurer for each such
failure to report and, if the administrative fine is not paid when due, the fine must be
recovered in a civil action brought by the Attormney General on behalf of the Division,

S.B. 2: Identical.

Section 55 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 23 of 5.B. 2: Amends NRS 630,307 1o
clarify certain deadlines for the reporting to the Board of Medical Examiners of certain
conduct that may constitute grounds for disciplinary action against a person practicing
medicing or respiratory care, and the reporting of changes in a physician's privileges to
practice medicine and the outcome of disciplinary action taken against a physician. The
section also provides a civil penalty of not more than $ 10,000 for certain Facilities that fail
to make the required reports concerning a change to a physician’s privileges and the
outcome of disciplinary action taken against the physician, In addition, this section
requires the Board to keep information received pursuant to the section confidential,
Finally, this section requires each coun clerk 1o submit (o the Office of Cournt
Administrator an annoal compilation of findings, judgments, and determinations of courts
of liability by physicians for malpractice or negligence that the coun clerks had reported 1o
the Board of Medical Examiners during the previous year.

5.B. 2: Identical.

Section 56 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 24 of 5.B. 2: amends NRS 630,364 1o
remove subsection 3 because it related only to medical and dental malpractice screening
panels, which have been eliminated,

S.B. 2: ldentical.

Section 57 of ALB. 1 corresponds with section 25 of 5.8, 2:  Establishes minimum
amount of professional liability insurance for dentist licensed pursuant to chapter 631 of
NRES at $1.000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate.
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S5.B. 2t ldentical.

Section 58 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in S.B. 2):  Directory language adding
new sections (59 to 64) to chapter 633 of NRS (Osteopathic Medicine).

Section 59 of A.B. 1 (does not correspond with S.B. 2): Prohibits an osteopathic
physician from retaliating or discriminating against an employee of the osteopathic
physician who in good faith:

|. Reports fo the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine information relating 1o the
conduct of the esteopathic physician which may constitute grounds for initiating
disciplinary action against the osteapathic physician or which otherwise raises a reasonable
gquestion regarding the competence of the osteopathic physician o practice medicine with
reasonable skill and safety to patients,

2. Reports an incident or serious event to the repository for health care quality
aSSUrance.

3. Cooperates or otherwise participates in an investigation or proceeding conducted
by the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine or another governmental entity relating to
osteopathic physician’s condoct.

Section 60 of AB. 1 (does nol correspond with 5.8, 2): Authorizes an employee of an
osteopathic physician who has been retaliated or discriminated against for action specified
in section 59 1o file an action in court. If the cournt determines that a violation occurred, the
court may award damages and interest and may grant equitable relief. Requires an action
for a violation be brought within 2 yvears afier the date of the last event constituting the
alleged violation for which the action was brought. Provides that a physician who
retaliates or discriminates against an employee is subject (o a civil penalty of not more than
210,000 for cach violation.

Section 61 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 27 of 5.B. 2: Establishes minimum

amount of professional lishility insurance for osteopathic physician licensed pursuant to

chapter 633 of NES at 51,000,000 per occurmence and 53,000,000 in the aggregate,
S.B. 2: Identical.

Section 62 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 28 of 5.B. 2: Adds a new section to
chapter 633 to require the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine to submit to the Governor
and the Legislature a bicnnial written report compiling: (1) disciplinary action taken by the
Board during the previous biennium against osteopathic physicians for malpractice or
negligence: (2) information reported to the Board during the previous biennium relating to
claims for malpractice or negligence made against osteopathic physicians and the
seitlement, award, judgment or other disposition of the claims; (3) information reported 1o
the Board during the previous biennium relating to changes in osteopathic physicians'
privileges to practice asteopathic medicine and certain disciplinary actions taken against
osteopathic physicians; and (4) information reporied to the Board by a court during the
previous biennium conceming a determination that an osteopathic physician or osteopathic
physician's assistant is mentally ill or incompetent, has been convicted of a felony or any
law governing controlled substances or dangerous drugs, is guilty of abuse or fraud under
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any state or federal program providing medical assistance, or is liable for damages for
malpractice or neglipence. The report must include only aggregate information for
statistical purposes and exclode any identifying information related to a particular person.
This section is modeled after NRS 630,130 from the chapter concerning physicians,
physician assistants and practitioners of respiratory care.

S.B. 2: ldentical,

Section 63 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 29 of 5.B. 2: Adds a new section 1o
chapter 633 to require that insurers of osteopathic physicians and the osteopathic
physicians to repon to the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine any action filed or any
claim submitted to arbitration or mediation for the osteopathic physician's malpractice or
negligence and the settlement, award, judgment or other disposition of the action or claim
within 30 days after the action was filed or the claim was submitted to arbitration or
mediation and within 30 davs after the disposition of the action or claim. In addition this
section requires the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine to report any failure of an insurer
to comply with this section to the Division of Insurance of the Depantment of Business and
Industry (“Division™). If the Division determines that an insurer failed to comply with this
section, the Division may impose an administrative fine of not more than $10,000 against
the insurer for each such failure 1o report and, if the administrative fine is not paid when
due, the fine must be recovered in a civil action brought by the Attormey General on behalf
of the Division. This section is modeled after NRS 630.3067 conceming physicians.

5.B. 2: Identical.

Section 64 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 30 of 5.B. 2: Adds a new section (o
chapter 633 to require the reporting of certain conduct that may constitute grounds for
disciplinary action and claims for malpractice or negligence against osteopathic physicians
by any person, certain facilities and court clerks 1o the State Board of Osteopathic
Medicine by a specified deadline. The section also provides a civil penalty of not more
than 510,000 for certain facilities that fail to make the required reports concerning a
change to an osteopathic physician’s privileges and the outcome of disciplinary action
taken against the osteopathic physician. In addition, this section requires the Board to keep
information received pursuant to the section confidential. Finally, this section requires
cach court clerk to submit to the Office of Count Administrator an annual compdlation of
findings, judgments, and determinations of courts of liability by osteopathic physicians for
malpractice or negligence that the court clerks had reported 1o the State Board of
Osteopathic Medical Examiners during the previous year. This section is modeled after
NRS 630.307 concerning physicians, physician assistanis and practitioners of respirmtory
care.

S.B. 2: Identical.

Section 65 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 31 of 5.B. 2: Amends NRS 633.471 1o
require osteopathic physicians and osteopathic physician’s assistants, as a condition of
renewal of their licenses, to submit 1o the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine a list of all
actions filed or claims submitted to arbitration or mediation against the licensee for
malpractice or negligence during the previocus year.

S.B. 2: ldentical.
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Section 66 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 32 of 5.B. 2: Amends NRES 633.511 10
provide that an osteopathic physician's failure to report the initiation or disposition of
actions or claims of malpractice or negligence in a timely manner to the State Board of
Deteopathic Medicine is a ground for initiating disciplinary action.

5.B. 2: Identical.

Section 67 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 33 of 5.B. 2: Amends NES 690B.045 o
provide a reference to section 29 of this bill to indicate that there are more requirements for
insurers in section 29 relating to the reporting of actions or claims of malpractice or
neglipence against osteopathic physicians to the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine.

S.B. 2: ldentical.

Section 68 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 34 of 5.B. 2: Amends NRS 6908.050 1o
redquine insurers (o report o the Commissioner of Insurance each setilement, award or
judgment relating to a claim of malpractice against an osteopathic physician. Note that this
section currently only requires insurers i report (o the Insurance Commissioner claims of
malpractice against physicians, The section also requires the insurance commissioner fo
repon these reports from insurers regarding the malpractice of osteopathic physicians (o
the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine.

5.B. 2: Identical.

Section 69 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 35 of 8.B. 2: Repeals the screening panels
for medical and dental malpractice.
S.B. 2: Does not repeal NRS 41A.013 defining “physician.”

Section 70 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 36 of S.B. 2: Limits the applicability of
the caps, liability of defendants, and limitations on commencement of actions provisions Lo
actions which accrue on or afier October 1, 2002.

5:B. 2 Identical.

Section 71 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 37 of 5.B. 2: Limits the applicability of
the certain new procedural provisions (o actions filed on or afler October 1, 2002,
5.B. 2: Identical.

Section 72 of A.B. 1 corresponds with section 38 of S.B. 2: Sets forth transitory
provisions (o address maiiers filed with but nol completed by the medical and dental
malpractice screening pancls as of October 1, 2002,

S.B. 2: Identical, except that the references (o the repeal of NRS 41A.013 are
removed as 5.B. 2 does not repeal NRS 41A.013 defining “physician.”

Section 73 of ARB. 1 corresponds with section 3% of 5.B. 2: Sets March 1, 2003, as the
deadline for district couns to adopt the rules to expedite the resolution of medical and
dental malpractice cases.

S.B. 2: Identical,
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Section 74 of A.B. 1 (no corresponding section in 5.8. 2): Specifies date by which a
medical facility is required 10 submit its patient safety plan to the repository for health care
quality assurance.

Section 75 of A.H. 1 corresponds with section 40 of S.B. 2: Seits the effective dae for
the provisions of the bill [Mote: The provisions that appear in both bills are effective on
October 1, 2002; the provisions found in A.B. 1 that are not included in 5.8. 2 are effective
July 1, 2003.]

Section 1.5. of 5.8. 2 (no corresponding section in A.B.1): This section amends NRS
41.505 1o provide total immunity from liability 10 medical doctors, osteopathic physicians
and dentists who provide care or assistance at a nonprofit or govemnmental health care
facility for any such care or assistance rendered (o a patient free of charge as long as the as
long as it is rendered in good faith and in a manner that does not amount to gross

negligence.,
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1'*1
{#‘P When a physician or dentist provides care or assistance to patients without requesting or
A eiving compensation or consideration for said services in a climie or public facility,
that physician or dentist shall not be | for civil damages as a resulf any act or omission
in rendering that care or assistance if the care or assistance is rendered in good faith and
in 4 manner not amounting to gross negligence or reckless, willful or wanton conduct.
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] A Publication of the Tort and Insurance Practice Section

gﬁ The Insurance Cycle

g [The Reform Cycle]

gii Joanne Doroshow
ESE he tort “reform® movement of the last two decades has nared the civil justice sys-
8= et it ekl o g epintory
g E zation members, boasts that most states have enacted some form of ton

that restrict the rights of injured consumers 1o sue snd be hully compensated for their

In the mibd-1980s, manufacrorers, municipalithes, doctors, nurse-midwives, daycare
ceniers, nonprofil groaps, and many other commensial costomers of insumance
were [aced with insurmnce rates, coverage reductions, and arbi pol-
icy cancellarions. Many could not find H:I.rrrgu-

Insurance sald costs were being up by an “explosion” in lidgstion
and claimed Tarwraaits™ and “cug of control® juries were foncing them 1o make
insurance unafordable or even unavailable. They told sate legislanires sround the
country that the only way 1o exse this crisis was to Hmit ton laws, 1o make it more dil-

Ficule fior sick and injured consumers 1o sue and be compensated by wrongdoers in
ooert.

But whee ultimasely proved 1o be the e cause of the “ability insarance oisis” of the
el 1 0800k woes ot ehee el syt i L !in%:hm@rﬂumdh
vy irerance: indosiny fund the sene el The “Ersmurnce orisis” W a seil-irflics-
e phencenenon crused by the mismanaged underwriting practioes of the indusrry fesell,

The past few years, when the econommy for the most part was have ki e |
conirt iont Elings sabile or declining Ondy 10 ijured people Bl clsims for com- -
#Hﬂ’ﬂlpﬂ.ﬂh‘!ﬂ temoes: & oy patiends sufler an infury

medical seatment than ever file a Punitive davages s rarely award-

e, and Mmhhﬁﬁmmmhﬂ%ﬁﬂ:ﬂmm—
BUUgng imlereriiing practices s indosry widely
expesed. With these fcrs in mind, # may be haed 10 understand sy ton relorm remains
om the rastional agends

By 1985 inbesesst rates haed deipper], and mvestment income had deceased accondingly The

incheary pesponded increasing persniams and reducing svallabiliy of e~
m.wmm-mwmmmmlm :

B while ihe industry was blaming s troubles on the toet systern, marry expers
ount that s peoblemns weee largely self-made. In previous years the industry
ﬂtdph:mpmm&puhtﬂnliundmm That,
rathuer tham excessive juy explaired most of the indusery francial difficultics.

The Mational Asochtion of Anormeys General and state commissions in New Mexion,
Michigan, and Pennsyhvani reached samilar conchusions. Even the insurnce industry sdrnit-
wed this ermally  In 1586 Mosice R Greenberg, presidert and CED of Ameriom
International Group, Inc., told an irsurence sudience in Boston that the
were, e i price cuis taken “io the point of sbasrdity” in the eacly 1980s. Had it ot been
o these cuts, he sxid, “there would not be ‘all this hullshaloo’ sbou the on system.”
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Nevada Revised Statute Definition of Trauma and
Certain Nevada Administrative Code Definitions Related to Trauma

NRS 4508.105 “Trauma®™ defined.
“Trauma" means any acute injury which, according to standardized criteria for triage in
the field, involves a significant risk of death or the precipitation of complications or
disabilities,

(Added to NRS by 1987, 1042)

NAC 450B.798 “Patient with trauma” defined.
“Patient with trauma™ means a person who has sustained injury and meets the triage
criteria usad to evaluate the condition of the patient.

{Added to NAC by Bd. of Health, eff. 3-15-88)

NAC 450B.770 Procedures for initial idemtification and care of patients with traumas.
A persom providing emergency medical care (o a patient at the scene of an injury shall
use the following procedures to identify and care for patients with traumas:

1. Swp 1: If a patient's airway is obstructed or he has cardiac-pulmonary
arrest, he must be transported to the nearest center for the wreatment of rauma if the
time required o transport the patient is not more than 10 minutes. If the time required
to transport the patient is more than 10 minutes, the patient must be transported to the
nearest hospital or center for the treatment of trauma. If the patient does not have an
obstructed airway or is not in cardisc-pulmonary arrest, the person providing
emergency medical care shall measure the patient's vital signs and level of
CONSCIOUSNEss.

2, Seep 2: If the patient's:

(a) Glasgow Coma Score is not more than 13;

(b) Systolic blood pressure is less than 90;

(c) Respiratory rate is less than 10 or greater than 29; or

(d) Champion trauma score i less than 14,
the patient must be transported to a center for the treatment of trauma. If not, the
person providing emergency medical care shall assess the patient's condition based
upon the degree of imjury o the anaomy and the mode of injury.

3. Step 3: If the patient:

{a) Has a penetrating injury to the chest, abdomen, head, neck or groin;

{b) Has at least two proximal long bone fractures;

{c) Has a combination of burns over at least 15 percent of his body or on his
face or in an airway;

(d) Has a flail chest;

{e) Has acute paralysis; or

(f) Has experienced a high-impact blow o the body which may include:

l
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(1) A fall of at least 20 feet;
{2) A motor vehicle accident in which:

(T) The motor vehicle was traveling at a speed of at least 20 miles
per hour when it crashed, resulting in at least 30 inches of damage to the body of the
motor vehicle;

(I} The front axle of the motor vehicle was displaced toward the
rear;

(Il[) There was an 1B8-inch intrusion inmto the passenger's
compartment where the patient was riding or a 24-inch intrusion on the opposite side of
the mator vehicle;

{TV} The patient was ejected from the motor vehicle;

(W} The motor vehicle rolled over; or

(V1) A person riding in the motor vehicle with the patient died as
a result of the accident; or

(3) Being struck as a pedestrian by a vehicle traveling at a speed of at
least 20 miles per hoar,
the patient must be transportied to a center for the treatment of trauma.

4. Step 4: If the patient is less than 5 years of age or more than 55 years of age
or is known to have a cardiac or respiratory disease, the person providing emergency
medical care shall communicate with a physician at a center for the treatment of traama
to determine the need to transport the patient to that center.

5, If the person providing emergency medical care is not certain whether (o
transport the patient to a center for the treatment of trauma, he shall transport the
patient 0 4 center pursuant (o NAC 450B.772.

(Added to NAC by Bd. of Health, eff, 3-15-88)

MNAC 450B.786 *Center for the treatment of trauma”™ defined.

“Center for the reament of trauma™ means a general hospital licensed in this stae

which has been designated as a level [, II, Il or IV center by the administrator of the

health division, pursuant to the provisions of NAC 450B. 780 1o 450B.875, inclusive.
{Added to NAC by Bd. of Health, eff. 3-15-88; A 10-22-93; 11-1-95)

)
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FLLIEH

T— 3.-_} o

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SENATE BILL NO. 2

Amend section | of the bill to read as follows:

Section 1. Chapler 41 of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto a new sechon fo
read as follows:

1. Except as otferwise provided in subsection 3 and NRS 41.505:

{a) A hospital which has been designated as a center for the ireatment of trauma by
the administrator of the health division of the department of human resources
pursuant to NRS 4508.237 and which iv @ nonprofit organization;

fh) An employee of a hospifal described in paragraph (a) whe renders care ar
ASKERTARCE 1 pafienis;

fel A plysician or denfist leensed wnder the provisions of chapier 630, 631 or 033 af
MRS who renders care or assistance in a hospital described in poragraph (o) whether
the care or assistance was rémdered gratiifously or for a fee; and

(i) A physician or dentist licensed under the provisions of chapier 630, 637 or 633 af
NRS:

(1) Whose liability is mot otherwise limited pursuant to NRS 41,032 co 41,0337,
fmefusive) and

(2} Whe renders care or assistance in a hospital of @ governmental entify that fas
been designated as @ cenver for the freatment of tragma by the administrator af the
Trealth division of the depariment of himian résotrces parsaail fo NRES 4508.237,
whether or nof the care or assisfance was rendered prafufiously or for a fee,
thaf fir good faith renders care ar assisfance necessitated by o sudden, anexpecied

situation or accurrence resaliing in a serious medical condition demanding immediate
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medical attention, for which the patient enters the hospital through its emergency room

ar fraama center, may nof be held liable for more than 350,000 in civil damages jas-a

resut] , exclusive of inter, awfed from the
of any claimant arising puf af any act or eimission in rendering that care or assistance

i the care or assistance is rendered in good faith and i @ manner nef amouniing fo

grass negligerce or reckless, willful or wanton conduct.

2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3 and NRS 41.505:

sitiealion or ecchirrerce resuliing fm an acitte life threatening medical condition

demanding smediaie medical gitention, for which the patiend enfers the ifal

thraueh fiv emergency oo, mrd el be held Kable for more tan 358,000 in civil

damages, exclusive of interest computed from the date of judgment, (o or for the benefi

2 The lmitarion on Nabifity provided parsoant fo this secifon does mof apply o any

act or oavission in rendering care or msiviance:

(%)
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fa) Wikich accurs affer the patient is stabilized and is copable of receiving medical
freatment as a nonemergency patient, unless surgery is required as a result of the
emergency within a reasonable time after the patient is stabiflized, in which case the
fimitation on lability provided by subsection I applies to any act or omission in
refrdering care or assistance wivich occars before the stabilization of the paifend
Sollowing the surgery; or

b Unrelated to the original medical emergency.

4. For the purposes of this sectfon “reckless, willful or wanfon conduct,™ as i
applics fe a person fo whom subsections Iand 2 apply, shall be deemed to be that
condect wiich the persan knew or showld ove known af the iimie e rendered the care
or assistance would be likely to resulr in injury so as fo affect the life or health of
arnother person, faking into consideration fo the extent applicable:

fa) The extent or sevious nature of the prevailing circumstances;

(b The lack of time or ability to obtain appropriate consultation;

fc) The lack of a prior medical relationsfiip with the paticns;

(e} The inability to obiain an appropreiate wmedical history of the patient; and

e} The time constraints imposed by coexisting emergencies.

Amend the bill as a whole by adding a new section (o the bill to read as follows:
Sec. X. MNES 41,503 iz hereby amended o read as follows:
41.505 1.  Any physician or registered nurse who in good faith gives instruction or

provides supervision to an emergency medical anendant or registered nurse, at the scene
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of an emergency or while transporting an ill or injured person from the scenc of an
emergency, is not liable for any civil damages as a result of any act or omission, not
amounting to gross negligence, in giving that instruction or providing that supervision.
An emergency medical attendant, registered nurse or licensed practical nurse who obeys
an instruction given by a physician, registered nurse or licensed practical nurse and
thereby renders emergency care, at the scene of an emergency or while transporting an ill
or injured person from the scene of an emergency, is not liable for any civil damages as a
result of any act or omission, not amounting to gross negligence, m rendening that
CMETECICY Care.

2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, any person licensed under the
provisions of chapter 630, 632 or 633 of NES and any person who holds an equivalent
license issued by another state, who renders emergency care or assislance in an
emergency, gratuitously and in good faith, is not liable for any civil damages as a result
of any act or omission, not amounting to gross negligence, by him m rendering the
emergency care or assistance or as a result of any failure to act, not amounting to gross
negligence, to provide or arrange for further medical treatment for the mjured or ill
person. This section does not excuse a physician or nurse from lability for damages
resulting from his acts or omissions which occur in a licensed medical facility relative 1o
any person with whom there is a preexisting relationship as a patient,

3. Any person licensed under the provisions of chapler 630, 632 or 633 of NRS and
any person who holds an equivalent licenze issned by another state who renders

emergency obstetrical care or assistance 1o a pregnant woman during labor or the delivery

a3y
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FLUSH

of the child is ot liable for any civil damages as a result of any act or omission by him in
rendering that care or assistance if’

(a) The care or assistance 15 rendered ingood faith and in a manner nol amouniing o
gross negligence or reckless, willful or wanton conduct;

(b} The person has not previously provided prenatal or obstetrical care Lo the woman;
and

{c) The damages are reasonably related to or primarily caused by a lack of prenatal
care received by the woman,
A licensed medical facility in which such care or assistance i3 rendered is not liable for
any civil damages as a result of any act or omission by the person in rendering that care
or assistance if that person is not liable for any civil damages pursuant to this subsection
and the actions of the medical facility relaning 1o the rendering of that care or assistance
do not amount to gross negligence or reckless, willful or wanton conduct.

4. Any person licensed under the provisions of chapter 630, 632 or 633 of NRS and
any person who holds an equivalent license issued by another stale who:

(a) Is retired or otherwise does not practice on o full-time basis; and

(b Grawtously and in good fanth, renders medical care within the scope of his
license to an indigent person,
is pot liable for any civil damages as a result of any act or omission by him, not

amounting lo gross negligence or reckless, willful or wanton conduct, in rendering that

CATE,
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RS, wih r assfs i patfent af a iy

povernmental ertity or @ nenprofit organization, i nef lable for any clvil damages as a
resali af any act or omission by b in rendering that care or axsistance i the care or

in il i Tl amd fre o dearimEr ot g Riing fo

gross pegligence or reckless, willful or wanton conduct.

6, As used in this section:

{a) “Emergency medical attendant™ means a person licensed as an attendant or
certified as an emergency medical technician, intermediate emergency medical technician
or advanced emergency medical technician pursuant (o chapter 4308 of NES.

{b) “Gratuitously” has the meaning ascribed fo it NRS 41.500.

) “Health care facility” has the meaning ascribed oo 0 e MRS 4498080,
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